
April 8, 2024 – Regular Meeting Agenda – 7:00 p.m. 

Printed on Recycled Paper See Reverse

47+---  

April 8, 2024 – City Council Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

City Council Chamber
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California
209) 941-7200

www.ci.lathrop.ca.us

City Council

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

Minnie Diallo, Vice Mayor

Paul Akinjo

Diane Lazard

Jennifer Torres- O’Callaghan

City Staff

Stephen Salvatore, City Manager

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Stephen Sealy, Chief of Police

Michael King, Assistant City Manager

Thomas Hedegard, Deputy City Manager

Teresa Vargas, Government Services
Director / City Clerk

Brad Taylor, City Engineer

Tony Fernandes, Information Systems Director

Cari James, Finance Director

Juliana Burns, Human Resources Director

Rick Caguiat, Community Development
Director

Todd Sebastian, Parks and Recreation
Director

General Order of Business
1. Preliminary

Call to Order
Closed Session
Roll Call
Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance
Announcements by Mayor/ City Mgr. 
Informational Items
Declaration of Conflict of Interest

2. Presentations
3. Citizen’ s Forum
4. Consent Calendar
5. Scheduled Items

Public Hearings
Appeals
Referrals and Reports from
Commissions and Committees
All Other Staff Reports and/ or Action
Items
Study Sessions

6. Council Communications
7. Adjournment

Order of Discussion
Generally, the order of discussion after introduction
of an item by the Mayor will include comments and
information by staff followed by City Council
questions and inquiries. The applicant, or their
authorized representative, or interested residents, 
may then speak on the item; each speaker may only
speak once to each item. At the close of public
discussion, the item will be considered by the City
Council and action taken. 

Consent Calendar
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered
routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one
motion and one vote. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless a Councilmember or
interested resident so requests, in which case the
item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and
considered separately.  

1

spmentel
http://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/



April 8, 2024 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THIS MEETING

This public meeting will be conducted in person; all members of the City Council will attend
in person. Members of the public are welcomed in person. This meeting will also be available
for public participation by teleconference via ZoomGov at the following link: 

https:// www.zoomgov.com/ j/1617363152?pwd=bkx1cndlTHZlTDNCTlFkc
nVPSUVRUT09

During the meeting, those joining by ZoomGov, will be allowed to speak prior to the
close of public comment on an item. If you are using this method, please “ raise the
hand” feature to inform the City Clerk ( meeting host) you wish to speak on the matter. 
Please ensure your computer speaker and microphone are fully functional.  

For audio / calling in only, dial: + 1 ( 669) 254- 5252 or + 1 ( 669) 216- 1590
o To request to speak ( same as the “ raise hand” feature) press * 9 / When the

City Clerk calls your name, press * 6 to unmute. 

Meeting Webinar ID: 161 736 3152 / Passcode: 692516

If you are not able to attend the meeting in person or virtually - Public
comment/ questions will be accepted by email to City Clerk Teresa Vargas at
website_ cco@ci. lathrop. ca.us or by calling ( 209) 941- 7230

Questions or comments must be submitted by 4: 00 p.m., on the day of the meeting. 

To address City Council in person, please submit a purple card to the City Clerk
indicating name, address, and number of the item upon which a person wishes to
speak.  

Council Meetings are live- streamed ( with Closed Captioning) on Comcast Cable Channel 97, 
and on the City Council Webpage: https:// www. ci. lathrop. ca. us/ citycouncil/ page/ live- stream

Addressing the Council

Any person may speak once on any item under discussion by the City Council after receiving
recognition by the Mayor. Purple speaker cards will be available prior to and during the
meeting. To address City Council, a card must be submitted to the City Clerk indicating name, 
address and number of the item upon which a person wishes to speak. When addressing the
City Council, please walk to the lectern located in front of the City Council. State your name
and address. In order to ensure all persons have the opportunity to speak, a time limit will
be set by the Mayor for each speaker ( see instructions on speaker form). In the interest of
time, each speaker may only speak once on each individual agenda item; please limit your
comments to new material; do not repeat what a prior speaker has said. If you challenge the
nature of a proposed action in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or
someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written
correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

2

spmentel
https://www.zoomgov.com/j/1617363152?pwd=bkx1cndlTHZlTDNCTlFkcnVPSUVRUT09

spmentel
https://www.zoomgov.com/j/1617363152?pwd=bkx1cndlTHZlTDNCTlFkcnVPSUVRUT09

spmentel
mailto:website_cco@ci.lathrop.ca.us

spmentel
https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/citycouncil/page/live-stream



April 8, 2024 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2

Citizen’ s Forum

Any person desiring to speak on a matter, which is not scheduled on this agenda, may do so
under the Citizen’ s Forum section. Please submit your purple speaker card to the City Clerk
prior to the commencement of Citizen’ s Forum, or submit your request to speak via the “ raise
hand” feature in ZoomGov. Only those who have submitted speaker cards, or have expressed
an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of Citizen’ s Forum will be called upon to speak. 
Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the City Council from taking any
immediate action on an item, which does not appear on the agenda, unless the item meets
stringent statutory requirements. The Mayor will limit the length of your presentation ( see
instructions on speaker form) and each speaker may only speak once on this agenda item. 
Please note, the Council Chamber has limited occupancy due to social distancing.  

To leave a voice message for all Councilmembers simultaneously, dial ( 209) 941- 7230. To
send an e-mail for Councilmembers simultaneously email: citycouncil@ci. lathrop. ca. us. This
City Council Agenda and meeting materials can be accessed by computer or any smart device
at: https:// www. ci. lathrop. ca.us/ meetings

General Information

For reports citing supplemental documents relating to specific agenda items, these are
available for review in the City Clerk’ s Office. This agenda was posted at the following
locations:  City Hall, Community Center, Generations Center, Senior Center, and the Lathrop-
Manteca Fire District “ J" Street and Somerston Parkway Offices. The meetings of the Lathrop
City Council are broadcast on Lathrop Comcast Cable Television Channel 97 and live streamed
on the City’ s website. 

Assistance will be provided to those requiring accommodations for disabilities in compliance
with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting
will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility and/ or
accommodations to this meeting. [ 28 CFR 35.102- 35.104 ADA Title II] Interested persons
must request the accommodation at least 2 working days in advance of the meeting by
contacting the City Clerk at ( 209) 941- 7230. Information about the City or items scheduled
on the Agenda may be referred to: 

Teresa Vargas, MMC
Government Services Director / City Clerk

390 Towne Centre Drive
Lathrop, CA 95330

Telephone: ( 209) 941- 7230

3

spmentel
https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/meetings

spmentel
mailto:citycouncil@ci.lathrop.ca.us.



April 8, 2024 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3

CITY OF LATHROP
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MONDAY, APRIL 8, 2024
7:00 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE: There will be a Closed Session commencing at 6:45 p.m.  The Regular
Meeting will reconvene at 7:00 p.m., or immediately following the Closed Session, 
whichever is later. 

1. PRELIMINARY

1.1 CALL TO ORDER

1.2 CLOSED SESSION

1.2.1 LIABILITY CLAIMS
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.95(a) 

Claimant: Rumanti Marsh
Agency Claimed Against: City of Lathrop

RECONVENE

1.2.2 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

1.3 ROLL CALL

1.4 INVOCATION

1.5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1.6 ANNOUNCEMENT(S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

1.7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) 

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY MOSQUITO & VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
UPDATE ON THE 2023 INVASIVE Aedes aegypti “ YELLOW FEVER
MOSQUITO” 

1.8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST

4



April 8, 2024 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4

2. PRESENTATIONS

2.1 CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION PRESENTED TO KULWANT SINGH
DHALIWAL AS GLOBAL AMBASSADOR FOR WORLD CANCER CARE
CHARITABLE SOCIETY

2.2 CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION PRESENTED TO JASS SANGHA AS
AMBASSADOR FOR UNITED STATES CANCER CARE CHARITABLE
SOCIETY

3. CITIZEN’S FORUM

Any person desiring to speak on a matter, which is not scheduled on this agenda, may
do so under Citizen’ s Forum. Please submit a purple speaker card to the City Clerk
prior to the commencement of Citizen’ s Forum. Only those who have submitted
speaker cards, or have expressed an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of
Citizen’ s Forum will be called upon to speak. Please be aware the California
Government Code prohibits the City Council from taking any immediate action on an
item, which does not appear on the agenda, unless the item meets stringent statutory
requirements. The City Council can, however, allow its members or staff to briefly ( no
more than five ( 5) minutes) respond to statements made, to ask questions for
clarification, make a brief announcement or report on his or her own activities. ( See
California Government Code Section 54954. 2(a)). Unless directed otherwise by a
majority of the City Council, all questions asked and not answered at the meeting will
be responded to in writing within 10 business days. ALL PUBLIC COMMENTS MUST BE
MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE LATHROP CITY COUNCIL HANDBOOK OF RULES AND
PROCEDURES! 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine by the City Council and will be
enacted by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these
items unless the Mayor, Councilmember, or citizen so requests, in which event the
item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered separately. 

4.1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS
Waive the Reading in Full of Ordinances and Resolutions on Agenda and
Adopt by Reading of Title Only, Unless Otherwise Requested by the
Mayor or a Councilmember

4.2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Approve Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of February 12, 2024

4.3 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 24-457 OF THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AMENDING THE LATHROP
MUNICIPAL CODE ( LMC) TO REGULATE SHORT- TERM RENTALS AND
BICYCLE VIOLATIONS BY ADDING NEW CHAPTERS TO TITLE 5, 
BUSINESS LICENSES AND REGULATIONS, AND TITLE 9, PUBLIC PEACE
AND WELFARE

5



April 8, 2024 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 5

Waive Full Reading and Adopt Ordinance 24- 457 Amending the Lathrop
Municipal Code ( LMC) To Regulate Short-Term Rentals and Bicycle
Violations by Adding New Chapters to Title 5, Business Licenses and
Regulations, and Title 9, Public Peace and Welfare

4.4 RATIFY THE PURCHASE WITH CDW-G FOR A CYBER SECURITY RELATED
SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION
Adopt Resolution Ratifying the Purchase with CDW- G for a Cyber
Security Related Software Subscription

4.5 RATIFY THE AGREEMENT WITH ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC. FOR THE
CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM FOR THE LATHROP POLICE
DEPARTMENT EVIDENCE BUILDING, CIP GG 21-13
Adopt Resolution Ratifying the Agreement with ICU Technologies, Inc. 
for the Camera Surveillance System for the Lathrop Police Department
Evidence Building, CIP GG 21-13

4.6 RATIFY THE SERVICE CONTRACT WITH ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC. FOR
THE CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR PHASE II OF MAJOR CITY
PARKS SURVEILLANCE, CIP GG 22-35
Adopt Resolution Ratifying the Service Contract with ICU Technologies, 
Inc. for the Surveillance Systems for Phase II of Major City Parks
Surveillance, CIP GG 22-35

4.7 APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER
AMUSEMENTS, INC. FOR THE LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT TO
PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR ANNUAL CARNIVAL
EVENT ON APRIL 18, 2024 THROUGH APRIL 21, 2024
Adopt Resolution Approving Professional Services Agreement with Butler
Amusement, Inc. for the Lathrop Police Department to Provide Law
Enforcement Services for their Annual Carnival Event on April 18, 2024
through April 21, 2024

4.8 APPROVE TASK ORDER NO. 12 WITH GOODWIN CONSULTING GROUP, 
INC. FOR CITYWIDE CFF UPDATE, CIP GG 22- 01 AND APPROVE BUDGET
AMENDMENT
Adopt Resolution Approving Task Order No. 12 with Goodwin Consulting
Group, Inc., for the Citywide Capital Facilities Fees Update, CIP GG 22-
01 and Approve Budget Amendment

4.9 APPROVE AMENDMENTS NO. 3 AND NO. 4 WITH RBI TO PROVIDE
ADDITIONAL STUDIES AND PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT SERVICES
FOR THE SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT, CIP WW 20-17 AND
APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT
Adopt Resolution Approving Amendments No. 3 and No. 4 with
Robertson-Bryan Inc., to Provide Additional Studies and NPDES Permit
Compliance Support Services for the Consolidated Treatment Facility

6



April 8, 2024 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 6

Surface Water Discharge Project, CIP WW 20- 17 and Approve Budget
Amendment

4.10 APPROVE PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
BKF ENGINEERS FOR THE EAST LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL
UPGRADES, CIP PW 24-12
Adopt Resolution Approving a Professional Engineering Services
Agreement with BKF Engineers for the East Lathrop Water Main and
Lateral Upgrades, CIP PW 24-12

4.11 ACCEPT THE GENERAL PLAN HOUSING ELEMENT ANNUAL PROGRESS
REPORT FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2023
Adopt Resolution Accepting the General Plan Housing Element Annual
Progress Report for Calendar Year 2023 and Authorize Staff to Submit
the Report to the Governor’ s Office of Planning and Research and State
Department of Housing and Community Development

4.12 ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH EP NO. 2022- 99, 
LOCATED AT 18580 CHRISTOPHER WAY FROM NEW CINGULAR
WIRELESS PCS, LLC DBA AT&T
Adopt Resolution Accepting Public Improvements Associated with
Encroachment Permit No. 2022- 99, Located at 18580 Christopher Way
from New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC dba AT&T

4.13 AUTHORIZE PARTICIPATION AND ALLOCATION OF FUNDING FOR THE
REGIONAL EARLY ACTION PLANNING ( REAP 2.0) GRANTS FUNDS
AWARDED TO SAN JOAQUIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS ON BEHALF
OF THE SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY MEMBER AGENCIES
Adopt Resolution Authorizing Application for, and Receipt of, REAP 2.0
Grant Program Funds through the San Joaquin Council of Governments

4.14 AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO KNIFE RIVER FOR THE
CONSTRUCTION OF PAVEMENT REHABILITATION, CIP PS 24-29 AND
APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT
Adopt Resolution to Award a Construction Contract to DSS Company dba
Knife River Construction for Construction of CIP PS 24-29 Pavement
Rehabilitation and Approve Budget Amendment

4.15 CREATE CIP GG 24-33 SCADA INTEGRATION AND MAINTENANCE, 
RATIFY THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH MCC
CONTROLS LLC, DBA PRIMEX AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET
AMENDMENTS
Adopt Resolution Creating CIP GG 24-33 SCADA Integration and
Maintenance, Ratify the Professional Service Agreement with MCC
Controls LLC, dba Primex and, Approve Related Budget Amendments

7



April 8, 2024 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 7

5. SCHEDULED ITEMS

5.1 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER ADOPTING THE
LATHROP ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN, CIP PS 22- 17
Council to Consider the Following: 

1. Hold a Public Hearing; and
2. Adopt Resolution Certifying and Adopting the Lathrop Active

Transportation Plan, CIP PS 22-17

5.2 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO FORM COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2024-1 (EAGLES LANDING SERVICES) 
Council to Consider the Following: 

1. Hold a Public Hearing; and
2. Adopt Resolution of Formation of the Community Facilities

District 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services); and
3. Adopt Resolution Calling Special Election for the Community

Facilities District No. 2024- 1 ( Eagles Landing Services); and
4. Adopt Resolution Declaring Results of Special Election and

Direct Recording of Notice of Special Tax Lien for the
Community Facilities District No. 2024- 1 ( Eagles Landing
Services); and

5. Introduce Ordinance Levying Special Taxes Within Community
Facilities District No. 2024- 1 ( Eagles Landing Services) 

5.3 DISCUSS AND CONSIDER OPTIONS TO INSTALL A FENCE OR WALL ON
MCKEE BOULEVARD FROM RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY TO TOWNE
CENTRE DRIVE
Discuss and Consider Options to Install a Fence or Wall on McKee
Boulevard from River Islands Parkway to Towne Centre Drive

6. COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6.1 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S) 
Ava Community Energy ( Diallo/ Torres-O’Callaghan)  
Central Valley Executive Committee/ LOCC ( Akinjo/ Diallo) 
Council of Governments ( Lazard/Diallo) 
Integrated Waste Management Solid Waste Division ( Akinjo/ Torres- O’Callaghan) 
Local Agency Formation Commission ( LAFCo) ( Diallo) 
Reclamation District 17 Joint Powers Authority (Salvatore) 
San Joaquin Partnership Board of Directors ( Salvatore)  
San Joaquin County Commission on Aging (Vacancy) 
San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District ( Akinjo/ Dhaliwal) 
Water Advisory Board (Torres-O’Callaghan/ Lazard) 
Tri Valley-San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority (Akinjo) 
San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency ( Akinjo/ Lazard/ Torres- O’Callaghan) 

8



April 8, 2024 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 8

6.2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S) 

7. ADJOURNMENT

Teresa Vargas/ 

Teresa Vargas, MMC
Government Services Director
City Clerk

9



PAGE LEFT

INTENTIONALLY

BLANK

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



ITEM 4.3

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE

24-457 OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

LATHROP AMENDING THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL

CODE ( LMC) TO REGULATE SHORT-TERM RENTALS

AND BICYCLE VIOLATIONS BY ADDING NEW

CHAPTERS TO TITLE 5, BUSINESS LICENSES AND

REGULATIONS, AND TITLE 9, PUBLIC PEACE AND

WELFARE

RECOMMENDATION: Waive Full Reading and Adopt Ordinance 24-457

Amending the Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC) to

Regulate Short -Term Rentals and Bicycle Violations

by Adding New Chapters to Title 5, Business Licenses

and Regulations, and Title 9, Public Peace and

Welfare

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

The City Council to conduct a second reading and adopt Ordinance 24-457 entitled:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO AMEND THE

LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE ( LMC) TO REGULATE SHORT-TERM RENTALS AND

BICYCLE VIOLATIONS BY ADDING NEW CHAPTERS TO TITLE 5, BUSINESS LICENSES

AND REGULATIONS, AND TITLE 9, PUBLIC PEACE AND WELFARE

SUMMARY:

On March 11, 2024, the City Council approved the introduction and first reading of

the subject Ordinance by the following vote:

AYES: Lazard, Torres -O'Callaghan, and Dhaliwal

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Akinjo and Diallo

The Ordinance will take effect 30 days after adoption.

SUBMITTED BY:

31
eresa Vargas, h'Clerk Date

23



ORDINANCE NO. 24-457

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO AMEND

THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE ( LMC) TO REGULATE SHORT-TERM

RENTALS AND BICYCLE VIOLATIONS BY ADDING NEW CHAPTERS TO TITLE

5, BUSINESS LICENSES AND REGULATIONS, AND TITLE 9, PUBLIC PEACE

AND WELFARE

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop does not allow short-term rentals within the

City; and

WHEREAS, the proposed ordinance will provide clarity and prevent any
uncertainties in regard to the permissibility of short-term rentals within the City; and

WHEREAS, negative consequences associated with short-term vacation

rentals include, but are not limited to, contributing to affordable housing shortages,
generating complaints about parking, noise, and refuse, and posing a risk to the

character of residential neighborhoods by providing access to transient occupants;
and

WHEREAS, the proposed ordinance aims to address these issues by
prioritizing affordable housing for long-term renters, supporting the traditional

lodging industry where short-term occupancy is appropriate and allowed, and

promoting the safety and character of residential neighborhoods; and

WHEREAS, the proposed ordinance is intended to prohibit short-term vacation

rentals to ensure the protection of public health, safety, and general welfare, and
reduce the costs associated with addressing service requests arising from short-term

rentals; and

WHEREAS, our officers and community members encounter recurring issues
that involve individuals riding their bicycles recklessly on City streets and other public
places; and

WHEREAS, due to the frequent recurrence of reckless bicycle riding by
individuals, the City has determined it necessary to propose an Ordinance to

authorize the Lathrop Police Department to impound bicycles used to violate the
California Vehicle Code; and

WHEREAS, this proposed ordinance will provide the police department with
the legal framework needed to intervene and impound bicycles when individuals
violate the California Vehicle Codes, ensuring accountability and discouraging repeat
offenses; and

WHEREAS, this proposed ordinance is intended to reinforce the importance of

compliance with traffic laws, create an environment that promotes safer streets, and

provide traffic education to members of our community and instill a greater sense of

accountability to deter similar behavior in the future; and

Ordinance No. 24-457

24



WHEREAS, proper notice of the public hearing held on March 11, 2024 was

given in all respects as required by law; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lathrop has duly considered all
written evidence and oral testimony presented during the March 11, 2024 public
hearing.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop, based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings
and pursuant to its independent review and consideration, does hereby approve the
Lathrop Municipal Code amendments as shown on Attachment B and C of the staff
report dated March 11, 2024 and incorporated by reference herein.

Section 1.

Title 5 of the Lathrop Municipal Code titled " Business Licenses and Regulations" is
hereby amended by adding new Chapter 5.10 entitled " Short -Term Rental
Prohibition". Title 9 of the Lathrop Municipal Code titled " Public Peace and Welfare"
is hereby amended by adding new Chapter 9.28 entitled " Bicycles Used in Violation
of the California Vehicle Code".

Section 2.

This ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a
manner that imposes upon the city or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory
duty of care toward persons and property within or without the city so as to provide
a basis of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

Section 3. Severability.

If any section, subsequent subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this
Ordinance is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such a
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The
City Council hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection,
subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance irrespective of
the unconstitutionality or invalidity of any section, subsection, subdivision,
paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase.

Section 4. Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall take legal effect 30 days from and after the date of its passage.

Section 5. Publication.

Within fifteen days of the adoption of this Ordinance, the City Clerk shall cause a copy
of this Ordinance to be published in full accordance with Section 36933 of the
Government Code.

Ordinance No. 24-457

25



THIS ORDINANCE was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of

the City of Lathrop on the 11th day of March 2024, and was PASSED AND ADOPTED

at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on the day of

2024, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Ordinance No. 24-457

26



ITEM 4.4

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:

RECOMMENDATION:

RATIFY THE PURCHASE WITH CDW-G FOR A

CYBER SECURITY RELATED SOFTWARE

SUBSCRIPTION

Adopt a Resolution Ratifying the Purchase with

CDW-G for a Cyber Security Related Software

Subscription

SUMMARY:

On March 11, 2024, City Council approved for the Information Systems Department
ISD) to increase the budget for software subscriptions related to cyber security. The

increase in funding was essential to maintain the ongoing enhancement of the City's
cyber security systems. However, it's imperative to note that the details of the

proposed cyber security software subscription cannot be publicly disclosed due to

significant security risks associated with such sensitive information. Publishing these

details could inadvertently provide malicious actors with valuable insights, potentially
enabling them to exploit vulnerabilities and launch harmful cyber-attacks against our

systems. Therefore, to safeguard against such threats and ensure the continued

integrity of the City's cyber security infrastructure, the specific details of the software

subscription must remain undisclosed.

The City Manager approved this purchase in March 2024, to expedite the

implementation of the software by ISD, aligning with the urgency of achieving
compliance with the rigorous standards set forth by the Department of Homeland

Security ( DHS). By promptly adopting this software, the City aims to bolster its cyber
security posture, thereby mitigating potential risks and ensuring adherence to

regulatory standards. Moreover, maintaining compliance with these standards is

essential for securing cyber insurance coverage, which not only enhances our overall

cyber security resilience but also has the potential to reduce associated costs. Hence,
this investment serves as a proactive measure to fortify our cyber security defenses

and safeguard the integrity of our digital infrastructure.

Tonight, Staff is requesting City Council adopt a resolution to ratify the purchase
order with CDW-G for a sum not to exceed $ 96,836.70 for the purchase of a one ( 1)
year cyber security related software subscription.

BACKGROUND:

The approval of the budget increase for cyber security software subscriptions by the

City Council on March 11th, 2024, marked a significant milestone in bolstering the
Cities' cyber security posture. This augmentation was specifically earmarked to cover

the expenses associated with acquiring cyber security software subscriptions,
essential for aligning with the rigorous standards outlined by the National Institute of

Standards and Technology ( NIST). Compliance with these standards is not only

27



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY THE PURCHASE WITH CDW-G FOR A CYBER SECURITY RELATED

SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION

mandated by the Department of Homeland Security ( DHS) and the Department of

Justice ( DOJ) but also required for the City to pursue State and Federal Grants in the

future. Additionally, adherence to NIST guidelines enables the City to maintain its'

cyber security insurance, thereby potentially reducing the overall cyber security
insurance expenses incurred by the City. By investing in this initiative, the City
demonstrates its commitment to proactive cyber security measures, ensuring
resilience against emerging threats.

Staff requested quotes from twelve vendors and received the following responses in

table 1 below.

Table 1

Vendor Total Amt

est. taxes & shipping)
CDW-G 96,836.70

Insight 121,469.80
ANS 152,622.84

Tonight, Staff is requesting City Council adopt a resolution to ratify the City Manager's
signature approval of the purchase order with CDW-G in the amount of $96,836.70.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

To ensure compliance with the requirements of the Department of Homeland Security
DHS) and the Department of Justice ( DOJ), enhance the City's cyber security

posture, maintain cyber security insurance coverage, and potentially reduce

insurance premiums.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There are sufficient funds in the budget for GL 1010-17-20-435-10-00 as approved
by the City Council on March 11th, 2024.

ATTACHMENTS:

A. Resolution Ratifying the Purchase with CDW-G for a Cyber Security Related

Software Subscription
B. Redacted PO # 2024-712 with CDW-G for the Cyber Security Related Software

Subscription

28



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY THE PURCHASE WITH CDW-G FOR A CYBER SECURITY RELATED

SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION

APPROVALS:

ernandes

Information Systems Director

Cari

Finance D rector

Date

3/199/ozpoif
Date

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

3•2g•2ov1

3•Z6•tz)z-Y

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

29



RESOLUTION NO. 24 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO RATIFY

THE PURCHASE WITH CDW-G FOR A CYBER SECURITY RELATED SOFTWARE

SUBSCRIPTION

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2024, City Council approved an increased budget for

the Information Systems Department ( ISD) for software subscriptions related to

cyber security; and

WHEREAS, this budget augmentation may be used for expenses associated

with acquiring cyber security software subscriptions, including those essential for

aligning with the rigorous standards outlined by the National Institute of Standards

and Technology ( NIST); and

WHEREAS, it is imperative to note that the details of the proposed cyber
security software subscription cannot be publicly disclosed due to significant security
risks associated with such sensitive information; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager approved this purchase in March 2024 to

expedite the implementation of the software by ISD, aligning with the urgency of

achieving compliance with the rigorous standards set forth by the Department of

Homeland Security ( DHS).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby ratify the City Manager's approval of the purchase order with CDW-G in

the amount of $ 96,836.70 for a cyber security software subscription.

30



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8th day of April 2024, by the

following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6C9D2D6F-1AC5-4703-9B0D-CEBD747EE259 Attachment B

The parties to this agreement
are:

Vendor No. 1568

COW Govemment, Inc
75 Remittance Or, Suite 1515

Chicago, IL 60675-1515

W 390 Towne Centre Dr

Lathrop, CA 95330

0

W 390 Towne Centre Dr
2 Lathrop, CA 95330
ci

Purchase Order

No. 2024-00000712

Date 3/25/2024

Resolution

PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER MUST
APPEAR ON ALL INVOICES, SHIPPERS, BILL
OF LADING AND CORRESPONDENCE

DELIVER BY

SHIP VIA

FREIGHT TERMS

PAGE

ORIGINATOR

1 of 3

Emily Malay

1 " II ! i ' i 1 . 1:ilT 1 j I„I ".I 1'.I

2.00

2.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

EACH

EACH

EACH

EACH

EACH

EACH

20,867.0100

4,731.3500

3,057.5300

42,031.5900

492.4400

58.4200

The contractor agrees to fumish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to perform the services
describe herein and agrees to comply with the terms and conditions identified below which are made a part
hereof by this reference ( Outline exact detail what is to be done, where is to be done and include work

specifications, if applicable.)
Doc.ab.w by:

rte_Fut,.0 jws 3/26/2024

CITY OF LATHROP
RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL

CITY Of LATHROP

APPROVED BY

Special Instructions

DATE

LOMA Stt4AUI"
x7erunun,vcw

41,734.02

9,462.70

3,057.53

42,031.59

492.44

58.42

96,836.70

3/26/2024

VENDOR ( Signature)
DATE APPROVED BY DATE

Tim Sharkey 3/26/2024

VENDOR ( Pant Name)
APPROVED BY DATE

Page 1 of 3

32



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6C9D2D6F-1AC5-4703-9BOD-CEBD747EE259

Page 2 of 3

STANDARD PURCHASE ORDER
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. ACCEPTANCE. Acceptance of this Purchase Order. whether by written acknowledgement or by performance by Seller, shall be upon the
terms atd conditions hereof; no other terms or conditions shall be binding on Buyer unless written approval thereof specifically referring
to such other terms and conditions shall have been given to Seller.

INVOICES_ Separate invoice shall be supplied for each Purchase Order shipment. Each invoice shall be itemized and shall show
Contract Number, terms, discounts, date of shipment or service dates. and Purchase Order Number. Faihre to show said items may result
in delay of paymect with all rights reserved. including cash eh:cou ts. The Vendor name on this Purchase Orderresutted from a quotation
signed in the same name. Payment will not be made to a firm name other than thatshown on the face hereof without written assignment

3. PAYMENT TERMS. Seller shall receive payment either by One - Time payment ( Lump Sum), Monthly or Quarterly ITEMIZED
LNVOICE. All payments are in anears.

4. ORDER CHANGES. The Buyer shall haw the right from time to time by written notices to make changes in quantities andror delivery
dates of any article, material or services covered by this Purchase Order prior to the time the item re items are actually placed into final
production by the Seller. Ifsuch changes are made after the article. material, or services are placed into furl production by the Seller and
such changes cause a substantial increase or decrease in Sellers performance will be made and this order will be modified in writing
accordingly, provided that any claim for adjustment mist be asserted by the Seller within a reasonabk time ( in no case to exceed twenty
days) after the change is ordered

S. SH/PPING. Seller will indicate plainly the Purchase Order Number on all bills of lading, all pods shipped pursuant to said order. and
on all invoices, freight bills, and packages. Each package must contain a memorandum showing Seller's name. contents of package. and
Purchase Order Number.

Shipments of goods specified on this Purchase Order number should result in lowest possable freight rate unless otherwise specified by
Buyer. Pantiles or increased charges due to failure to observe this provision will be charged to Seller.

Shipping cost for goods on back order shall be paid only at the rate which would have been applicable had the complete order been
shipped at one time. All excess costs shall be borne by Seller. Partial shipments must be identified as such on shipping memoranda and
invoices.

When shipping, Seller will make no declaration ofvalue to carried; except where shipment is subject to released value ratings.

Any materials supplied to City which are covered by the OSHA Hared Communication Standard must be accompanied by the applicable
Material Safety Data Sheet ( MSDS) at the time ofdelivery.

6. DELIVERY. Unless otherwise expressly provided, Seller shall deliver all articles to Buyer's premises, free of all freight handling.
transportation, drayage; boxing and similar charges. All times in this contract are of the essence

7. TERMINATION. Buyer may terminate all or part of this contract, with or without cause. If buyer temunates without cause, then Buyer
shall pay all reasonable termination charges incurred by Seller.

S. DECLINE IN PRICES. Buyer shall be protected in the event of declining prices on the undelivered portion of this Purchase Order. If
pica decline got items ordered, Seller may elect to mat priced reductions or other vendors. or is own lower prices to other purchasers,
but ifSella should refuse to do so. Buyer shall have the right to cancel any or all of the balance due on this Purchase Order without cost to
Buyer.

9. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither Seller nor Buyer shall be liable for nonperformance due to causes beyond reasonable control. Where only a

part of Seller's capacity to pedant is excused under this paragraph, Seller must allocated production and deliveries among the various
customers then nudes contract for similar goods during the period. The allocation must be made in a fair and equitable manner. Where
either Seller or Buyer chains an excuse for nonperformance coder this paragraph, it moat give notice in writing to the other party. Seller
shall not be obligated to sell, nor Buyer obligated to purchase. at a later date, that portion of the goods that Seller is unable to deliver or

Buyer is unable to receive or use due to any accused cause. No goods are to be tendered by Seller after the expiration of the terms
specified in this Purchase Order without consent ofBuyer.

10. WARRANTY. Seller warrants that all articles and services covered by this Purchase Older will conform to drawings. specifications. or

samples and will be merchantable and of goal material, design and workmanship, flee from all defects. and suitable for the use intended.
All articles will be subject to Buyer's inspection and rejection at the place of delivery. Defective articles may be tettrned to the Sella for
full credit or replacement at the Sellers risk and expense, including transportation charges both ways. but no defective articles shall be
replaced without formal replacement order signed by the Buyer.

11. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party shall assign or transfer this Rrchase Order without the written consent of the other.

12. LNDEMNITi'. SELLER WARRANTS THAT GOODS F[.RNLSHED UNDER TIES PURCHASE ORDER DO NOT INFRINGE
ANY PATENT. TRADEMARK, OR TRADE NAME, OR COPYRIGHT AND AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND SAVE
HARMLESS BUYER OR ITS VENDEES FROM An AND ALL CLAIMS, SUITS, LLABILITIES, DAMAGES, LOSSES, OR
EXPENSES INCURRED BY BUYER OR ITS VENDEES BY REASON OF ANY ALLEGED INFRINGEMENT OF ANY SUCH
RIGHTS.

33



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6C9D2D6F-1AC5-4703-9BOD-CEBD747EE259

PAGE 3 OF 3

SELLER SHALL INDEkiNIFF AND HOLD HARMLESS BUYER AND ITS AGEN'T'S AND EMPLOYEES FROM AN
AGAINST ALL CLAIMS, DAMAGES, LOSSES AND EXPENSES, INCLUDLNG ATTORNEY'S FEES, ARISING OL7 OF OR
RESULTING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK CAUSED BY ANY NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION OF

SELLER. ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, OR ANYONE FOR WHOSE ACTS ANY OF THEM MAY BE LIABLE. IN CASE OF

CONCURRING FAULT, EACH PARTY SHALL BEAR ITS SHARE OF THE LOSS.

13_ BUYER'SPROPERTY. Any property of Buyer in Sellers active or constructive possesLion or custody hereunder will be at Sellers risk.
and Seller agrees to reimburse Buyer for any loss or damage to such property however caused.

14. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS. By acceptance hereof. SellerWarrants:

a) that all goods, merchandise, and materials delivered and services rendered hereunder will have been produced and provided in

compliance with all requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended, and

b) that all goods, materials, and equipment delivered hereunder shall comply with the applicable federal standards prescribed by the

Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970. or as amended.

that Seller will comply with all applicable laws, miles and regulations of federal, state and local governments and agencies, thereof
including but not limited to Executive Orders 11246, 11701. and section 503 ofPublic Law 93-112. The Rehabilitation Act of 1973.
the provisions of The Americans and Disabilities Act. Transient Employes Law ( 285.230 R S. Mo et seq.) and Excessive
U:nemptoyment Law ( Section 290.550 et seq R.S. Mo.) which are hereby incorporated by reference, unless this Purchase Order is

exempt pursuant to said Executive Orders, or Acts and the regulations issued thereunder.

15. WORKER'S COMPENSATION, EMPLOYER'SLIABILITY, AND GENERAL LIABILITY. When work is perfonaed on Buyer's
premises_ Seller agrees to carry at Seller's own expense.

a) Waaker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance.

b) General liability ( including Contractual Liability and Products Liability Completed Operations) fsurance and Auto Liability
insurance each in amounts no less than $ 1,000.000 per occurrence. Insurance certificates of such coverage shall be submitted to City
Utilities' Risk Management upon request of Buyer.

16. LNSOLVENCY. If Seller shall become insolvent, file a petition in bankruptcy, or shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors. or

if a receiver or trustee shall be appointed of or for any of Seller's property or business, tie Purchase Order may be cancelled at Buyer's
option without liability.

17. TAXES. Sena agrees to cooperate with Buyer in opposing the imposition of any tax on any article covered by this Purchase Order. the
legality of which is questioned by Buyer, and in securing any abatement or any refund
thereof sought by Buyer.

18. FOREIGN SHIPMENTS. Foreign shipments mast be preceded by execution of formal Consular Invoice. At time of shipment, Ocean
Bills of Lading, Consular Invoice, and Commercial Invoices, in triplicate, shall be forwarded directly to the Purchasing Agent issuing this
Purchase Order.

c)

19. VENUE. This Purchase Order shall be governed by the law of the State ofCalifornia_

20. BRANDING_ Seller warrants that all materials covered by this Purchase Order are no altered or misbranded within the meaning of the
Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act; not an article with may not , under provisions of Section 401 or 505 of said act, be introduced into
interstate come, and not adulterated or misbranded within the meaning of the pure food and drug laws or the ordinances of any state
or city which are applicable to such shipment or delivery, and Seller hereby ages to indemnify and save the Buyer harmless from and

against all claims, charges, action and proceedings brought against Buyer by any lawful government authority or byany person on account

of any alleged adulteration or misbranding by Seller of any such material referred to above. Seller does no guarantee against any such
material becoming adulterated or misbranded after delivery to Buyer by reason of causes beyond Seller'scontrol.

21. CONFLICTING TERMS. In case of a conflict between these terms and conditions and those of a separate written contract signed by both
Buyer and Seiler, the written contract shall prevail.

22_ REVIEW OF RECORDS. During the term of the purchase order.'agzrement and for three years thereafter, City of Lathrop ( City) shall
have the right to review Seller's records, only for the purposes of vexifjing claims for payment and compliance with the terms and
conditions of the purchase order+agreement for at least three years after foal payment.

23. OFFSETTING BILLS. City reserves the right to apply offsetting paynients for goods and/or services that are due against delinquent
utility bills which are due City.

24_ NON-EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT. The purchase order is a non-exclusive contract and City reserves the right to purchase same or hike
materials and/or services from other sources as City deems necessary and appropriate.

34



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6C9D2D6F-1AC5-4703-9B0D-CE8D747EE259

Thank you for choosing CDW. We have received your quote.

CDINa Hardware Software Services IT Solutions Brands Research Hub

QUOTE CONFIRMATION

TONY FERNANDES,

Thank you for considering CDW•G for your technology needs. The details of your quote are below. If

you are an eProcurement or simile sign on customer, please Ioa into your system to access

the CDW site. You can search for your quote to retrieve and transfer back into your system for

processing.

For all other customers, click below to convert your quote to an order.

Convert Quote to Order

ACCOUNT MANAGER NOTES: Thank You.

QUOTE * QUOTE DATE QUOTE REFERENCE CUSTOMER * GRAND TOTAL

3/14/2024 1652748 96,836.70y_

QUOTE DETAILS

ITEM

Mfg. Part

UNSPSC:

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: MARKET

Mfg. PartUNSPSC:

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: MARKET

Mfg. 

PartUNSPSC:

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: MARKET

Mfg. Part*

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: MARKET

Mfg. Parte:

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: MARKET

QTY

2

2

1

1

1

CDW* UNIT PRICE

20,867.01

EXT. PRICE

41,734.02

4,731.35 $ 9,462.70

3,057.53 $ 3,057.53

42,031.59 $ 42,031.59

492.44 $ 492.44

35



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6C9D2D6F-1AC5-4703-9803-CEBD747EE259

QUOTE DETAILS ( CONT.)

1 $ 58.42

Mfg. Part*:

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: MARKET

58.42

punctual* BILLING INFO

Billing Address:

C11Y OF LATHROP
ACCTS PAYABLE

390 TOWNE CENTRE DR

LATHROP, CA 95330-9358
Phone: ( 209) 941-7200

Payment
Terms: NET 30 -VERBAL

Sales Contact Info

SUBTOTAL

SNIPPING

SALES TAX

GRAND TOTAL

DELIVER TO

Shipping Address:

CITY OF LATHROP
TONY FERNANDES

390 TOWNE CENTRE DR

LATHROP, CA 95330-9358
Phone: (209) 941-7200

Shipping Method: ELECTRONIC DISTRIBUTION

Please remit payments to:

CDW Government
75 Remittance Drive

Suite 1515

Chicago, IL 60675-1515

Tim Sharkey I ( 877) 881-6919 I timshara7c wq.com

96,836.70

0.00

0.00

96,836.70

Need Help?

II My Account Support

Ab9ut Us I privacy Policy 1 Terms and Conditions

This order Is subject to CDW's Terms and Conditions of Sales and Service Projects at

http: //www. cdwa.com/cantent/terms-conditions/product-sales. aso,

For more Information, contact a CDW account manager.

2024 CDWG LLC, 200 N. Milwaukee Avenue, Vernon Hills, IL 60061 1 800.808.4239

Cali 800.800.4239

Page 2 of 2

36



ITEM 4.5

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:

RECOMMENDATION:

RATIFY THE AGREEMENT WITH ICU

TECHNOLOGIES INC. FOR THE CAMERA

SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM FOR THE LATHROP

POLICE DEPARTMENT EVIDENCE BUILDING

CIP GG 21-13

Adopt a Resolution Ratifying the Agreement
with ICU Technologies, Inc. for the Camera

Surveillance System for the Lathrop Police

Department Evidence Building CIP GG 21-13

SUMMARY:

At the June 12, 2023, City Council Meeting, Council approved the budget and awarded

the contract for the construction of an evidence building for the Lathrop Police

Department. The construction of this building is almost complete and ready for

technological components to be installed. Network infrastructure equipment,
computers, monitors, cyber security hardware along with technology used to analyze
evidence will be installed after the building is accepted. It is crucial that the City
utilizes technology to help protect these assets and deter any malicious activity.

Surveillance cameras provide the Lathrop Police Department a critical tool for

investigations while mitigating potential vandalism, theft, and damage during
construction. The camera surveillance system would deter vandalism or other

criminal activities surrounding a critical building holding sensitive evidence in active

criminal investigations.

Staff requested proposals from ICU Technologies, Inc. ( ICU) for the hardware,
licensing and services required at the evidence building. ICU Technologies, Inc.

currently holds an active contract with the U.S. General Services Administration

GSA) in Security & Protection and Information Technology Hardware & Software and

is an authorized seller of surveillance cameras that meets the hardware specification
of the City's standard surveillance camera. Furthermore, ICU is certified to perform
the configuration and installation of these cameras. ICU presented a proposal for a

total of $249,919.10 to provide, configure and install the surveillance cameras and

the licensing and this price is equal to the price listed on their GSA contract.

Due to supply chain constraints and demand, there is a long lead time for the

required equipment to be shipped. Due to the extended lead time, to provide the

Lathrop Police department with a tool to utilize in the event of vandalism and to deter

any malicious activities, the City Manager signed the agreement in March 2024, with

ICU for the camera surveillance system for the Lathrop Police Department Evidence

building.

37



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY THE AGREEMENT WITH ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC. FOR THE

CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM FOR THE LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT

EVIDENCE BUILDING CIP GG 21-13

Tonight, Staff is requesting City Council adopt a resolution to ratify the agreement
with ICU Technologies, Inc. for a sum not to exceed $ 249,919.10 for the Lathrop
Police department Evidence Building surveillance cameras and licensing.

BACKGROUND:

At the June 12, 2023, City Council Meeting, Council approved the budget and awarded

the contract for the construction of an evidence building for the Lathrop Police

Department. This building will become a critical asset for the Lathrop Police

department, especially during investigations. The construction of this building is

almost complete and ready for technological components to be installed. This

equipment has a long lead time due to supply chain and demand, therefore staff is

preparing for the new building by ordering equipment now.

After the building is accepted, the technology used to process evidence along with

network infrastructure, computers, monitors, and other technological equipment will

be installed. Cyber security equipment and data backup servers are crucial to the

protection of the data being processed and the technological evidence being stored

in the building. It is crucial that the City utilizes technology to help protect these

assets and deter any malicious activity. Surveillance cameras can be a deterrent for

malicious activities and provide an investigative tool for the Lathrop Police

department in the event of an incident.

ICU Technologies, Inc. currently holds an active contract with the U.S. General

Services Administration ( GSA) - GSA Contract No. 47QSWA18D003K in Security &
Protection and Information Technology Hardware & Software. This program,
administered by the United States Government, provides government agencies with

discounted pricing schedules, and establishes purchasing contracts with vendors

through a competitive bidding process. The GSA's competitive bidding process is in

conformance with the Office of Procurement, Department of General Services of the

State of California exemption as described in the Lathrop Municipal Code Section

2.36.110. Furthermore, ICU has provided, configured, and installed other camera

surveillance systems at numerous City facilities.

Staff requested that ICU provide a proposal to provide, configure and install the

surveillance cameras and licensing for the Lathrop Police department Evidence

Building. ICU provided a proposal in the amount of $249,919.10 that is equal to the

pricing of their GSA Contract. Therefore, the claimed bidding exemption for the

agreement to provide, configure and install the cameras and the licensing for the

Lathrop Police department Evidence Building is pursuant to Lathrop Municipal Code

LMC) 2.36.110(a).

38



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY THE AGREEMENT WITH ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC. FOR THE

CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM FOR THE LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT

EVIDENCE BUILDING CIP GG 21-13

Due to supply chain demand, there is a long lead time for the required equipment to

be shipped. Due to the extended lead time, to provide the Lathrop Police department
with a tool to utilize in the event of vandalism and to deter any malicious activities,
the City Manager signed the agreement in March 2024, with ICU for the camera

surveillance system for the Lathrop Police Department Evidence building.

Tonight, Staff is requesting City Council adopt a resolution to ratify the agreement
with ICU Technologies, Inc. for a sum of $ 249,919.10 for the surveillance cameras

for the Lathrop Police department Evidence Building for CIP 21-13.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The Camera Surveillance System procured through ICU Technologies, LLC for CIP GG

21-13 represents an effort to utilize technology to deter crimes and expedite crime

solving.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There are sufficient funds available in CIP GG 21-13 to cover the cost and installation
of a camera surveillance system procured through ICU Technologies, Inc.

ATTACHMENTS:

A. Resolution Ratifying the Agreement with ICU Technologies, Inc. to Provide,
Configure and Install Camera Surveillance Systems for the Lathrop Police

Department Evidence Building for CIP 21-13

B. Agreement with ICU Technologies, Inc. to Provide, Configure and Install

Camera Surveillance System at Lathrop Police Department Evidence Building
CIP 21-13

39



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY THE AGREEMENT WITH ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC. FOR THE

CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM FOR THE LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT

EVIDENCE BUILDING CIP GG 21-13

APPROVALS:

eernandes Date

Information Systems Director

Cari James

Finance Director

34/ ADJ-11
Date

2 6, • zozy

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

ZC` Zoty
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

St : en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

3.2t3 -211 -

40



RESOLUTION NO. 24 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO RATIFY

THE AGREEMENT WITH ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC. FOR THE CAMERA

SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR THE LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT

EVIDENCE BUILDING CIP GG 21-13

WHEREAS, at the June 12, 2023, City Council Meeting, Council approved the

budget and awarded the contract for the construction of an evidence building for the

Lathrop Police Department for CIP GG 21-13; and

WHEREAS, the construction of this building is almost complete and ready for

technological components to be installed; and

WHEREAS, due to the extended lead time, to provide the Lathrop Police

department with a tool to utilize in the event of vandalism and to deter any malicious

activities, the City Manager signed the agreement in March 2024; and

WHEREAS, ICU currently holds an active contract with the U.S. General

Services Administration ( GSA) - GSA Contract No. 47QSWA18D003K in Security &
Protection and Information Technology Hardware & Software; and

WHEREAS, ICU presented proposals totaling $ 244,919.10 at pricing equal to

the contract that ICU holds with GSA and therefore, this agreement is exempt from

bidding pursuant to Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC) 2.36.110(a) for the purchase,
configuration and installation of the surveillance cameras and the licenses for the

Lathrop Police Department Evidence Building CIP GG 21-13.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby ratify the agreement with ICU Technologies Inc. for the Camera

Surveillance Systems for the Lathrop Police Evidence Building CIP GG 21-13 in the

amount of $ 244,919.09.

41



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8th day of April 2024, by the

following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

42



City of Attachment B

Office of the City Manager

March P , 2024

390 Towne Centre Dr. - Lathrop, CA 95330

Phone ( 209) 941-7220 - fax (209) 941-7248

www.ci.lathrop.ca.us

NOTICE TO PROCEED

ICU Technologies, Inc.

Tommy Smith

1382 Blue Oaks Blvd, Suite # 110

Roseville, CA 95678

Dear Mr. Smith:

Enclosed please find your original executed agreement to provide the Purchase,

Configuration and Installation Cameras for the Lathrop Police Department Evidence

Building CIP GG 21-13. This is your Notice to Proceed to the attached agreement.

Should you have any questions regarding the project, please contact Tony Fernandes at

209) 941-7349, the staff member directly involved with this project.

Sincerely,

Stephen J. Salvatore

City Manager

Copy: Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

Project File

43



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0295DA27-3D2A-44E1-AD4B-72F324115ED6

CITY OF LATHROP AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP
AND ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

FOR THE PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF
PIVOT TILT ZOOM ( PTZ) AND MULTI - SENSOR CAMERAS FOR THE

LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT EVIDENCE BUILDING CIP GG 21-13

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this P1' day of March 2024, is by and

made and entered into by and between ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC. ("CONSULTANT")

and the CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to

perform the installation, configuration, and commissioning of multi -sensor cameras as

required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT was selected by CITY pursuant to said qualifications;
and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Services as

hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

WHEREAS, the purchase from the CONSULTANT is exempt from the CITY'S
standard bidding procedure pursuant to Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC) 2.36.110, as the
CONSULTANT holds GSA Contract number 47QSWA18D003K in Security & Protection
and Information Technology Hardware & Software and pricing is pursuant to that contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1) Scope of Service.
CONSULTANT agrees to perform the deployment, configuration, and

commissioning of PTZ and multi -sensor cameras in accordance with the scope of
work and fee proposal submitted by the CONSULTANT, attached as Exhibit " A"
and incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform
these services in accordance with the standards of its profession and CITY'S
satisfaction.

2) Compensation.

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT a sum not to exceed $ 133,044.92 as

described in Exhibit "A".

44



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0295DA27-3D2A-44E1-AD4B-72F324115ED6

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI -SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

CONSULTANT shall be paid within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of billings containing
all information contained in Paragraph 5 below. In no event shall CONSULTANT

be entitled to compensation for work not included in Exhibit " A" through Exhibit " E",

unless a written change order or authorization describing the extra work and

payment terms has been executed by CITY's Authorized Representative prior to

the commencement of the work.

3) Effective Date and Term.

This agreement shall become effective on the signature date of the Department
Head and CONSULTANT has been notified in writing as identified in section ( 18),
and it shall terminate no later than June 30, 2024.

4) Independent Contractor Status.

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while

engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this

Agreement, is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.

CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to represent, at any time or in any manner,

that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5) Billings.

CONSULTANT'Sbills shall include date, date due, a list of all tasks performed by
deliverable, a total amount due, the amounts previously billed, the net amount due
on the invoice, and the balance remaining on the agreement and the
CONSULTANT'S signature. Except as specifically authorized by CITY,
CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate services performed by more than

one person. In no event shall CONSULTANT submit any billing for an amount in

excess of the maximum amount of compensation provided in section ( 2) for listed

services or for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a properly executed

change order.

6) Advice and Status Reporting.

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all

significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and

shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitor

the performance of this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall clarify with the CITY any
details of the design that are not specifically understood.

Page 2

45



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0295DA27-3D2A-44E1-AD4B-72F324115ED6

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI -SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

7) Assignment of Personnel.

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services

pursuant to this Agreement. If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person
assigned to the work called for under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to

do so immediately, regardless of the reason, or the lack of a reason, according to

the CITY'S request.

The services shall be performed by, or under the direct supervision,
CONSULTANT'sAuthorized Representative: Tommy Smith

CONSULTANT shall not replace its Authorized Representatives without the prior
written approval by the CITY.

8) Assignment and Subcontracting.

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for

entering into this Agreement was, and is, the professional reputation and

competence of CONSULTANT. Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein

may be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY'S
authorized representative. CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the

performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors

noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY'S authorized

representative.

9) Insurance.

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this

Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the
CITY the insurance specified in subsections ( a) through ( c) below with insurers
and under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.
CONSULTANT shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any
subcontract until all insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been
obtained for the subcontractor. Verification of this insurance shall be submitted
and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a) Workers' Compensation. CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT'S
sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for any and all persons
employed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT. Said Statutory
Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability
Insurance shall be provided with limits of not less than one million
dollars. In the alternative, CONSULTANT may rely on a self-

insurance program to meet these requirements provided that the

Page 3

46



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0295DA27-3D2A-44E1-AD4B-72F324115ED6

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI -SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the

California Labor Code. The insurer, if insurance is provided, or the

CONSULTANT, if a program of self-insurance is provided, shall

waive all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from
work performed under this Agreement.

b) Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT'S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance for
the period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one

million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for

risks associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement.
If a Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability

form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be

performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall

be at least twice the required occurrence limit. Such coverage shall
include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising
from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting there from,
and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under
this Agreement, including the use of owned and non - owned
automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office
Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/88)
and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001
ed. 12/90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or

added as an endorsement to the policy:

i) CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to
be covered as insured with respect to each of the following:
liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of

CONSULTANT, including the insider's general supervision of

CONSULTANT; products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT; premises owned, occupied or used by
CONSULTANT. The coverage shall contain no special
limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY, its
officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii) The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident
basis, and not on a claims made basis.

Page 4

47



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0295DA27-3D2A-44E1-AD4B-72F324115ED6

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI -SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

iii) An endorsement must state that coverage is primary
insurance and that no other insurance affected by the CITY

will be called upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv) Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting
provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to

CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

v) Insurance is to be placed with California - admitted insurers
with a Best's rating of no less than A: VII.

vi) Notice of cancellation or non -renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

c) Deductibles and Self -Insured Retentions. CONSULTANT shall

disclose the self -insured retentions and deductibles before beginning
any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement.
During the period covered by this Agreement, upon express written

authorization of the CITY's authorized representative,
CONSULTANT may increase such deductibles or self -insured
retentions with respect to CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and

volunteers. The CITY's authorized representative may condition

approval of an increase in deductible or self -insured retention levels

upon a requirement that CONSULTANT procure a bond

guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim

administration, and defense expenses that is satisfactory in all

respects to each of them.

d) Notice of Reduction in Coverage. In the event that any coverage

required under subsections ( a), (b), or ( c) of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other
manner, CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT'S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later

than five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in

coverage.

e) In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT

fails to provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i) Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of
the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under
the Agreement;

Page 5

48



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0295DA27-3D2A-44E1-AD4B-72F324115ED6

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI -SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

ii) Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or

withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT

hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii) Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to

other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for

CONSULTANT'Sbreach.

10) Indemnification - CONSULTANT'SResponsibility.

As to the CONSULTANT'S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that ( a)
CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, that (b)
CITY relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a

skillful and professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform.

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the

work performed. It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is

apprised of the scope of the work to be performed under this Agreement and

CONSULTANT agrees that said work can and shall be performed in a fully
competent manner in accordance with the standard of care applicable to

CONSULTANT'S profession.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, it officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims,
suits, actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury,
bodily injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal,
state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct

or negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors,
or agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for
any such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY, its
officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code. Acceptance of insurance
certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such

insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such

damages or claims for damages.

Page 6

49



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0295DA27-302A-44E1-AD4B-72F324115ED6

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI -SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

11) Licenses.

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration,
is required of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal
or state law, CONSULTANT warrants that such license has been obtained, is valid

and in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in effect at all times during
the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond has been posted in

accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

12) Business Licenses.

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until

all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

13) Termination.

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement upon 30 days written
notification to the other party. In the event of termination, the CONSULTANT shall
be entitled to compensation for services performed to the effective date of
termination; provided, however, that the CITY may condition payment of such

compensation upon CONSULTANT'S delivery to the CITY of any or all documents,
photographs, computer software, video and audio tapes, and other materials

provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for CONSULTANT or the CITY in
connection with this Agreement.

14) Funding.

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the

appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the
Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.

15) Notices.

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change
Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given
by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if (1) personally served, (2) sent by the United States
mail, postage prepaid, (3) sent by private express delivery service, or (4) in the
case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth
below during regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two

2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile transmission.
Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and service

by facsimile transmission.

Page 7

50



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0295DA27-3D2A-44E1-AD4B-72F324115ED6

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI - SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

To City: City of Lathrop
City Clerk

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to: City of Lathrop
Information Systems Department
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Phone: (209) 941-7430

FAX: (209) 941-7449

To Consultant:

16) Miscellaneous.

ICU Technologies
Tommy Smith

1382 Blue Oaks Blvd. Suite # 110

Roseville, CA 95678

Phone: (559) 280-9333

Fax: (559) 892-1142

a) Consent. Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and

shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

b) Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be

governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.

c) Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in these

specifications.

d) Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on

account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this

Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a

superior governmental authority.

e) Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement
and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of

any part of this Agreement.

Page 8

51



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0295DA27-3D2A-44E1-AD4B-72F324115ED6

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI -SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

f)

g)

Incorporation of Documents. All documents constituting the

Agreement documents described in Section 1 hereof and all

documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly
executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in

the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

Integration. This Agreement and any amendments hereto between
the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties
concerning the Project and Work; there are no other prior oral or

written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in

this Agreement.

h) Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in

writing and signed by the parties.

i) Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement
shall define or otherwise control, establish or limit the performance
required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to

be both covenants and conditions.

j) Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that

any provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the

provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force

and effect.

k) Status of CONSULTANT. In the exercise of rights and obligations
under this Agreement, CONSULTANT acts as an independent
contractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT

shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing
to the City Council members, officers or employees of CITY, and

CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and

benefits.

1)

m)

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall

inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors

and assigns of the parties.

Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and

each of its provisions. In the calculation of time hereunder, the time
in which an act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding
the first Day and including the last. If the time in which an act is to

Page 9

52



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0295DA27-3D2A-44E1-AD4B-72F324115ED6

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI -SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day observed as a

legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance shall be extended to

the following Business Day.

n) Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder,
the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively
in the state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the

United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

o) Recovery of Costs. The prevailing party in any action brought to

enforce the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney's
fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against
the non -prevailing party.

17) General Contractor Responsibilities.

Neither the professional activities of CONSULTANT, nor the presence of

CONSULTANT or CONSULTANTS sub -consultants shall relieve the Consultant

of its obligations, duties and responsibilities.

CITY agrees that the CITY, CONSULTANT and its sub -consultants shall be

indemnified by the General Contractor and shall be made additional insured under

the General Contractor' general liability insurance policy and that a Waiver of

Subrogation in favor of CONSULTANT will be provided under the General

Contractor'sWorkers Compensation policy. CITY will require General Contractor

to provide evidence of such insurance to CITY and CONSULTANT prior to General

Contractor beginning work on the project.

18) Notice to Proceed.

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a

written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued

until all necessary bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be

obligated to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to

Proceed.

19) Signatures.

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the

right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this

Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the
CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 10

53



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0295DA27-3D2A-44E1-AD4B-72F324115ED6

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI - SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

Salvador Navarrete

Recommended By: Director of Information Systems

Approved By:

Resolution #

CONSULTANT:

DocuSigned by:

C FU : AS
lc,aDr;Atelr478..

Tony Fernandes Date
Information Systems Director

Date

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

3/21/2024

Ste • -gin J. Salvatore

City Manager

ICU Technologies
Tommy Smith

1382 Blue Oaks Blvd. Suite # 110

Roseville, CA 95678

Fed ID #: 27-3118908
Business License #: 41814

Date

DocuSigned by:

L 5/i+ 3/21/2024
7IClOD 1C070418...

Signature

Tommy Smith

Date

CEO

Print Name Title

Page 11

54



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0295DA27-3D2A-44E1-AD4B-72F324115ED6

Exhibit A

IcU
TECHNOLOGIES

ICU Technologies Inc.

1382 Blue Oaks Blvd, Suite 110

Roseville, CA 95678

1 5304887200

orders@icu-techinc.com

www.icu-techinc.com

ADDRESS SHIP TO ESTIMATE 2024-1006

Tony Fernandes Tony Fernandes DATE 03/20/2024

City of Lathrop City of Lathrop EXPIRATION 04/26/2024

390 Towne Centre Dr 390 Towne Centre Dr DATE

Lathrop, CA 95330 Lathrop, CA 95330 USA

United States

PROJECT NAME CONTRACT

Property & Evidence GSA# 47QSWA18D003K

SIN ITEM QTY PRICE AMOUNT

8.0C-H6A-B01-IR (deleted) 2 1,581.46 3,162.92T
8MP H6ABullet IR Camera with 4.4-9.3mm Lens

8.0C-H6A-D01-IR (deleted) 2 1,680.51 3,361.02T
8MP H6AOutdoor IR Dome Camera with 4.4-9.3mm Lens

15C-H5A-3MH (deleted) 5 1,866.24 9,331.20T
3X5MP, WDR, 270 degree max field of view, Lightcatcher, 3.3-5.7MM, Camera Only

20C-H5A-4MH 14 2,233.17 31,264.38T
4X5MP, WDR, 360 degree max field of view, Lightcatcher, 3.3-5.7MM, Camera Only

334220 12.0W-H5A-FE-D01-IR 9 1,077.64 9,698.76T
12.0 MP; Fisheye Dome Camera; Day/Night; WDR; 1.6mm f/2.0; Next - Generation

Analytics; Integrated IR

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 3 89.25 267.75T

Avigilon:CRNMT-1001 - CORNER MNT FOR LRGE PENDT WLMT-1001

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 5 98.27 491.35T

Avigilon:WLMT-1001 - Wall Mount for large pendant camera

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 3 143.37 430.11T

Avignon:H5AMH-AD-CEIL1 - In -Ceiling Mount. For use with the Avigilon H5AMulti

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 11 161.42 1,775.62T
Avigilon:H5AMH-AD-DOME1 - Outdoor surface mount adapter. For use with the

Avigilon H5A Multisensor

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 5 161.42 807.10T

Avignon:H5AMH-AD-PEND1 - Outdoor pendant mount adapter. For use with the

Avigilon H5A

Multisensor

OLM H4AMH-AD-IRIL1 19 315.409999 5,992.79T
Optional IR illuminator ring, up to 30m ( 100ft), for use with H4AMH-DO-COVR1. 9

H5AMH-DO-COVR1 16 199.20 3,187.20T
Dome bubble and cover, for outdoor surface mount or pendant mount, clear. For use

with the Avigibn H5A Multisensor

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 3 71.26 213.78T

Avignon:H5AMH-DC-CO VR 1

Page 1 of 255



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0295DA27-3D2A-44E1-AD4B-72F324115ED6

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 3 2,402.91 7,208.73T
Microchip PD-9512GC/AC-US

334220 ACC7-ENT 32 256.37 8,203.84
ACC 7 Enterprise Edition camera license

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 1 1,133.4215 1,133.42T
Misc GSAinstaUation materials, including cabling, conduit, fittings, blocks,

connectors, and patch cables

541330L ICU-TECH1 251 127.27 31,944.77
Installation and service of access control and video surveillance field

devices/systems.

541330L ICU - Project Lead 32 162.76 5,208.32
Project Lead -Manage and set schedule, coordinate with others, communicate

system status.

Subtotal:

123,683.06

N/A GSA-IFF 123,683.06 0.007556 934.55

N/A ICU - SHIPPING 1 1,160.00 1,160.00
Freight to customer location

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 656 0.58 380.48T
Round -Trip Mileage from ICU HQ to Lathrop - 4 round trips x 1 vehicle - 82 miles

each direction

Estimate Notes: SUBTOTAL 126,158.09
1. DIR# 1000064885

2. Email Order to orders@icu-techinc.com TAX 6,886.83
3. Payment by credit card will include a 4% processing fee.

TOTAL $ 133,044.92

Accepted By

Accepted Date

Page 2 of 2
56



A D
CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE ( MMIDD/YYYY)

3/21/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
PRODUCER

Navo Financial, Inc. Insurance and Financial Solutions

2045 South Court Street, Suite A

Visalia CA 93277

CON tACi
NAME: Certificates

NEPANjc, N ); ( 559) 733-5169 ( AID, No): ( 888) 456-0130

A-MAILDDRESS: certs@navofinancial.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIL X

INSURER A : LANDMARK AMER INS CO 33138

INSURED

ICU Technologies Inc

1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD

Suite 110

ROSEVILLE CA 95678-7019

INSURER B : HARTFORD ACCID & IND CO 22357

INSURER C: HUDSON INS CO 25054

INSURER D: HARTFORD CASUALTY INS CO 29424

INSURER E : GREAT AMER RISK SOLUTIONS SURPLUS LINES It 35351

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE NSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
AUULJUEPC

INSD W VD POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

IYYYY)
POLILY EXP

MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y Y LHA142219 06/09/2023 06/09/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE 1,000,000

CLAIMS - MADE X OCCUR PREMISES ( Ea occurrence) 50,000

MED EXP ( Any one person) 5,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY 1,000,000

GEN'L

X

AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES

POLICY
PRO-
JECT

OTHER:

PER:

LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE 2,000,000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG 2,000,000

B

AUTOMOBILE

XHIRED

LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOS ONLY

X
u/
I-

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON - OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

Y Y 5I UECBD7944 06/09/2023 06/09/2024

COMBINED SINGLE LIMI I

Ea accident) 1,000,000

BODILY INJURY ( Per person)

BODILY INJURY ( Per accident)

PRUPEN 1 Y UAMAL,E

Per accident)

C X
UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS - MADE HXS 1001910 01 06/09/2023 06/09/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE 1,000,000

AGGREGATE 1,000,000

DED RETENTION $

D

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y / N

Y N / A 51 WEC BA8T7Y 01/03/2024 01/03/2025

I bN 01H -

XI STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 1,000,000

E
PRODUCT LIABILITY

PL 3288670-04 03/12/2024 03/12/2025

EACH OCC

PROD -COMP AGG

1,000,000

2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES ( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may he attached if more space is required)

City Of Lathrop is listed as additional insured per written contract or agreement per attached general liability and commercial auto endorsement

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANOE

City Of Lathrop

390 Towne Centre Drive

1 Lathrop, CA 95330

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

A. 4t n y Maces

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

57



POLICY NUMBER: LHA142219 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 11 12 19

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - MANAGERS OR
LESSORS OF PREMISES

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Designation Of Premises ( Part Leased To You):
ANY PREMISES REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT AND AS PER PARAGRAPHS A.

AND B. BELOW

Name Of Person(s) Or Organization(s) (Additional Insured):
ANY PERSON(S) OR ORGANIZATION(S) REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT AND AS
PER PARAGRAPHS A. AND B. BELOW

Additional Premium: $ INCLUDED

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to

include as an additional insured the person(s) or

organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only
with respect to liability for " bodily injury",
property damage" or " personal and advertising

injury" caused, in whole or in part, by you or

those acting on your behalf in connection with

the ownership, maintenance or use of that part of
the premises leased to you and shown in the

Schedule and subject to the following additional
exclusions:

This insurance does not apply to:

1. Any " occurrence" which takes place after you
cease to be a tenant in that premises.

2. Structural alterations, new construction or

demolition operations performed by or on

behalf of the person(s) or organization(s)
shown in the Schedule.

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional
insured only applies to the extent permitted
by law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured
is required by a contract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which you are

required by the contract or agreement to

provide for such additional insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following is added to

Section III — Limits Of Insurance:

If coverage provided to the additional insured is

required by a contract or agreement, the most we

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the

amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

2. Available under the applicable limits of

insurance;

whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the

applicable limits of insurance.

CG 2011 1219 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1

58



POLICY NUMBER: LHA142219 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 18 12 19

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED -

MORTGAGEE, ASSIGNEE OR RECEIVER

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name(s) Of Person(s) Or Organization(s) Designation Of Premises

ANY PERSON(S) OR ORGANIZATION(S) REQUIRED
BY WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT AND AS

PER PARAGRAPHS A., B., AND C. BELOW

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to
include as an additional insured the person(s) or

organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only
with respect to their liability as mortgagee,
assignee or receiver and arising out of the

ownership, maintenance or use of the premises by
you and shown in the Schedule.

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional

insured only applies to the extent permitted by
law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is

required by a contract or agreement, the

insurance afforded to such additional insured

will not be broader than that which you are

required by the contract or agreement to

provide for such additional insured.

B. This insurance does not apply to structural

alterations, new construction and demolition

operations performed by or for that person or

organization.

C. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following is added to

Section III — Limits Of Insurance:

If coverage provided to the additional insured is

required by a contract or agreement, the most we

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the

amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

2. Available under the applicable limits of

insurance;

whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the

applicable limits of insurance.

CG 2018 1219 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1 D

59



POLICY NUMBER: LHA142219 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20 37 12 19

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - COMPLETED OPERATIONS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s)
Or Organization(s) Location And Description Of Completed Operations

ANY PERSON(S) OR ORGANIZATION(S) REQUIRED
BY WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT AND AS
PER PARAGRAPHS A. AND B. BELOW

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to

include as an additional insured the person(s) or

organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only
with respect to liability for " bodily injury" or

property damage" caused, in whole or in part, by
your work" at the location designated and

described in the Schedule of this endorsement

performed for that additional insured and included
in the " products -completed operations hazard".

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional
insured only applies to the extent permitted by
law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured

is required by a contract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which you are

required by the contract or agreement to

provide for such additional insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following is added to
Section III — Limits Of Insurance:

If coverage provided to the additional insured is

required by a contract or agreement, the most we

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

2. Available under the applicable limits of
insurance;

whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the

applicable limits of insurance.

CG 20 37 12 19 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1

60



POLICY NUMBER: COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 10 12 19

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s)
Or Organization(s) Location(s) Of Covered Operations

ANY PERSON(S) OR ORGANIZATION(S) REQUIRED
BY WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT AND AS
PER PARAGRAPHS A., B., AND C. BELOW

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to

include as an additional insured the person(s) or

organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only
with respect to liability for " bodily injury", "property
damage" or " personal and advertising injury"
caused, in whole or in part, by:

1. Your acts or omissions; or

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your

behalf;

in the performance of your ongoing operations for
the additional insured(s) at the location(s)
designated above.

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional

insured only applies to the extent permitted by
law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured
is required by a contract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which you are

required by the contract or agreement to

provide for such additional insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following additional
exclusions apply:
This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or

property damage" occur- ing after:

1. All work, including materials, parts or

equipment furnished in connection with such

work, on the project ( other than service,
maintenance or repairs) to be performed by or

on behalf of the additional insured(s) at the

location of the covered operations has been

completed; or

CG 2010 1219 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 2

61



2. That portion of " your work" out of which the

injury or damage arises has been put to its

intended use by any person or organization
other than another contractor or subcontractor

engaged in performing operations for a

principal as a part of the same project.
C. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

additional insureds, the following is added to
Section 111— Limits Of Insurance:

If coverage provided to the additional insured is

required by a contract or agreement, the most we

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

2. Available under the applicable limits of

insurance;

whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the

applicable limits of insurance.

CG 20 10 12 19 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 2 of 2

62



POLICY NUMBER: LHA142219 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 12 12 19

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - STATE OR GOVERNMENTAL
AGENCY OR SUBDIVISION OR POLITICAL

SUBDIVISION - PERMITS OR AUTHORIZATIONS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

State Or Governmental Agency Or Subdivision Or Political Subdivision:

ANY STATE OR GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY OR SUBDIVISION OR POLITICAL SUBDIVISION TO WHOM
OR TO WHICH YOU ARE OBLIGATED BY THE ISSUANCE OR EXISTENCE OF A WRITTEN PERMIT TO
PROVIDE INSURANCE SUCH AS IS AFFORDED BY THIS POLICY.

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to

include as an additional insured any state or

governmental agency or subdivision or political
subdivision shown in the Schedule, subject to the

following provisions:

1. This insurance applies only with respect to

operations performed by you or on your behalf

for which the state or governmental agency or

subdivision or political subdivision has issued a

permit or authorization.

However:

a. The insurance afforded to such additional
insured only applies to the extent permitted
by law; and

b. If coverage provided to the additional
insured is required by a contract or

agreement, the insurance afforded to such
additional insured will not be broader than

that which you are required by the contract

or agreement to provide for such additional

insured.

2. This insurance does not apply to:

a. "Bodily injury", " property damage" or

personal and advertising injury" arising out
of operations performed for the federal

government, state or municipality; or

b. "Bodily injury" or " property damage"
included within the " products -completed
operations hazard".

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following is added to

Section III — Limits Of Insurance:

If coverage provided to the additional insured is

required by a contract or agreement, the most we

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the

amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

2. Available under the applicable limits of

insurance;

whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the

applicable limits of insurance.

CG 20 12 12 19 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1

63



POLICY NUMBER: LHA142219 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

AMENDMENT - AGGREGATE LIMITS OF INSURANCE

PER PROJECT)
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART.

The General Aggregate Limit under LIMITS OF INSURANCE ( SECTION III) applies separately to each of your
projects away from premises owned by or rented to you.

CG 25 0311 85 Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc., 1984 Page 1 of 1 0

64



Policy Number: LHA142219 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 01 12 19

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

PRIMARY AND NONCONTRIBUTORY -
OTHER INSURANCE CONDITION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to the Other Insurance

Condition and supersedes any provision to the

contrary:

Primary And Noncontributory Insurance

This insurance is primary to and will not seek

contribution from any other insurance available

to an additional insured under your policy
provided that:

1) The additional insured is a Named Insured

under such other insurance; and

2) You have agreed in writing in a contract or

agreement that this insurance would be

primary and would not seek contribution

from any other insurance available to the

additional insured.

CG 20 01 12 19 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1

65



LANDMARK AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY

This Endorsement Changes The Policy. Please Read It Carefully.

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST

OTHERS TO US

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

SCHEDULE

Name of Person or Organization:

Any Person or Organization As Required By Written Contract

The following is added to SECTION IV — CONDITIONS, 8. TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST

OTHERS TO US:

We waive any right of recovery we may have against the person or organization shown in the SCHEDULE above
because of payment we make for injury or damage arising out of your ongoing operations, "your product" or " your
work" done under a written contract with that person or organization and included in the " product -completed
operations hazard". This waiver applies only to the person or organization shown in the SCHEDULE above.

This endorsement effective 6/9/2023

forms part of Policy Number LHA142219

issued to ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC

by Landmark American Insurance Company

RSG 14048 1008 Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 1992
with its permission.

66



COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE

HA99161221

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE BROAD FORM

ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

To the extent that the provisions of this endorsement provide broader benefits to the " insured" than other

provisions of the Coverage Form, the provisions of this endorsement apply.

1. BROAD FORM INSURED

Paragraph . 1. - WHO IS AN INSURED - of

Section II - Liability Coverage is amended to

add the following:

d. Subsidiaries and Newly Acquired or

Formed Organizations

The Named Insured shown in the Declarations

is amended to include:

1) Any legal business entity other than a

partnership or joint venture, formed as a

subsidiary in which you have an

ownership interest of more than 50% on

the effective date of the Coverage Form.

However, the Named Insured does not

include any subsidiary that is an " insured"

under any other automobile policy or

would be an " insured" under such a policy
but for its termination or the exhaustion of

its Limit of Insurance.

2) Any organization that is acquired or

formed by you and over which you
maintain majority ownership. However,
the Named Insured does not include any
newly formed or acquired organization:

a) That is a partnership or joint venture,

b) That is an " insured" under any other

policy,

c) That has exhausted its Limit of
Insurance under any other policy, or

d) 180 days or more after its acquisition
or formation by you, unless you have

given us notice of the acquisition or

formation.

Coverage does not apply to " bodily injury"
or " property damage" that results from an

accident" that occurred before you
formed or acquired the organization.

g.

e. Employees as Insureds

1). Any " employee" of yours while using a

covered " auto" you don't own, hire or

borrow in your business or your personal
affairs.

f. Lessors as Insureds

1). The lessor of a covered " auto" while the
auto" is leased to you under a written

agreement if:

a) The agreement requires you to

provide direct primary insurance for

the lessor and

b) The " auto" is leased without a driver.

Such a leased " auto" will be considered a

covered " auto" you own and not a covered
auto" you hire.

Additional Insured if Required by Contract

1) When you have agreed, in a written
contract or written agreement, that a

person or organization be added as an

additional insured on your business auto

policy, such person or organization is an

insured", but only to the extent such

person or organization is liable for " bodily
injury" or " property damage" caused by
the conduct of an " insured" under

paragraphs a. or b. of Who Is An Insured
with regard to the ownership,
maintenance or use of a covered " auto."

The insurance afforded to any such
additional insured applies only if the

bodily injury" or " property damage"
occurs:

a) During the policy period, and

b) Subsequent to the execution of such
written contract, and

Form HA 99 16 12 21

2021, The Hartford
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.)

Page 1 of 5

67



c) Prior to the expiration of the period of

time that the written contract requires
such insurance be provided to the

additional insured.

2) How Limits Apply
If you have agreed in a written contract or

written agreement that another person or

organization be added as an additional

insured on your policy, the most we will

pay on behalf of such additional insured is

the lesser of:

a) The limits of insurance specified in the

written contract or written agreement;

3)

or

b) The Limits of Insurance shown in the

Declarations.

Such amount shall be a part of and not in

addition to Limits of Insurance shown in

the Declarations and described in this

Section.

Additional Insureds Other Insurance

If we cover a claim or " suit" under this

Coverage Part that may also be covered

by other insurance available to an

additional insured, such additional insured

must submit such claim or " suit" to the

other insurer for defense and indemnity.

However, this provision does not apply to

the extent that you have agreed in a

written contract or written agreement that

this insurance is primary and

non-contributory with the additional
insured's own insurance.

4) Duties in The Event Of Accident, Claim,
Suit or Loss

If you have agreed in a written contract or

written agreement that another person or

organization be added as an additional

insured on your policy, the additional
insured shall be required to comply with

the provisions in LOSS CONDITIONS 2. -

DUTIES IN THE EVENT OF ACCIDENT,
CLAIM , SUIT OR LOSS — OF SECTION

IV — BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS, in

the same manner as the Named Insured.

2. Primary and Non -Contributory if Required
by Contract

Only with respect to insurance provided to an

additional insured in A.1.g. - Additional

Insured If Required by Contract, the following
provisions apply:

1) Primary Insurance When Required By
Contract

This insurance is primary if you have

agreed in a written contract or written

agreement that this insurance be primary.
If other insurance is also primary, we will

share with all that other insurance by the

method described in Other Insurance 5.d.

2) Primary And Non -Contributory To Other

Insurance When Required By Contract

If you have agreed in a written contract or

written agreement that this insurance is

primary and non-contributory with the

additional insured's own insurance, this

insurance is primary and we will not seek

contribution from that other insurance.

Paragraphs ( 1) and ( 2) do not apply to other

insurance to which the additional insured has

been added as an additional insured.

When this insurance is excess, we will have

no duty to defend the insured against any
suit" if any other insurer has a duty to defend

the insured against that " suit". If no other

insurer defends, we will undertake to do so,

but we will be entitled to the insured's rights
against all those other insurers.

When this insurance is excess over other

insurance, we will pay only our share of the

amount of the loss, if any, that exceeds the
sum of:

1) The total amount that all such other

insurance would pay for the loss in the

absence of this insurance; and

2) The total of all deductible and self -insured

amounts under all that other insurance.

We will share the remaining loss, if any, by
the method described in SECTION IV -
Business Auto Conditions, B. General

Conditions, Other Insurance 5.d.

3. AUTOS RENTED BY EMPLOYEES

Any " auto" hired or rented by your " employee" on

your behalf and at your direction will be

considered an " auto" you hire.

The SECTION IV- Business Auto Conditions, B.
General Conditions, 5. OTHER INSURANCE
Condition is amended by adding the following:
e. If an " employee's" personal insurance also

applies on an excess basis to a covered

auto" hired or rented by your " employee" on

your behalf and at your direction, this

insurance will be primary to the " employee's"
personal insurance.

Page 2 of 5 Form HA 99 16 12 21
68



4. AMENDED FELLOW EMPLOYEE EXCLUSION

EXCLUSION 5. - FELLOW EMPLOYEE - of

SECTION II - LIABILITY COVERAGE does not

apply if you have workers' compensation
insurance in -force covering all of your

employees".

Coverage is excess over any other collectible

insurance.

5. HIRED AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE

If hired " autos" are covered " autos" for Liability
Coverage and if Comprehensive, Specified
Causes of Loss, or Collision coverages are

provided under this Coverage Form for any " auto"

you own, then the Physical Damage Coverages
provided are extended to " autos" you hire or

borrow, subject to the following limit.

The most we will pay for " loss" to any hired " auto"

is:

1) $100,000;

2) The actual cash value of the damaged or

stolen property at the time of the " loss"; or

The cost of repairing or replacing the

damaged or stolen property,
whichever is smallest, minus a deductible. The

deductible will be equal to the largest deductible

applicable to any owned " auto" for that coverage.
No deductible applies to " loss" caused by fire or

lightning. Hired Auto Physical Damage coverage
is excess over any other collectible insurance.

Subject to the above limit, deductible and excess

provisions, we will provide coverage equal to the

broadest coverage applicable to any covered
auto" you own.

We will also cover loss of use of the hired " auto" if

it results from an " accident", you are legally liable

and the lessor incurs an actual financial loss,
subject to a maximum of $1000 per "accident".

This extension of coverage does not apply to any
auto" you hire or borrow from any of your

employees", partners ( if you are a partnership),
members ( if you are a limited liability company),
or members of their households.

6. PHYSICAL DAMAGE - ADDITIONAL

TEMPORARY TRANSPORTATION EXPENSE

COVERAGE

Paragraph A.4.a. of SECTION III - PHYSICAL
DAMAGE COVERAGE is amended to provide a

limit of $ 50 per day and a maximum limit of

1,000.

7. LOAN/LEASE GAP COVERAGE

Under SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE

COVERAGE, in the event of a total " loss" to a

covered " auto", we will pay your additional legal

3)

obligation for any difference between the actual

cash value of the " auto" at the time of the " loss"
and the " outstanding balance" of the loan/lease.

Outstanding balance" means the amount you
owe on the loan/lease at the time of " loss" less

any amounts representing taxes; overdue

payments; penalties, interest or charges resulting
from overdue payments; additional mileage
charges; excess wear and tear charges; lease
termination fees; security deposits not returned by
the lessor; costs for extended warranties, credit

life Insurance, health, accident or disability
insurance purchased with the loan or lease; and

carry-over balances from previous loans or

leases.

8. AIRBAG COVERAGE

Under Paragraph B. EXCLUSIONS - of SECTION

III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, the

following is added:

The exclusion relating to mechanical breakdown

does not apply to the accidental discharge of an

airbag.
9. ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT - BROADENED

COVERAGE

a. The exceptions to Paragraphs B.4 -

EXCLUSIONS - of SECTION III - PHYSICAL
DAMAGE COVERAGE are replaced by the

following:

Exclusions 4.c. and 4.d. do not apply to

equipment designed to be operated solely by
use of the power from the " auto's" electrical

system that, at the time of " loss", is:

1) Permanently installed in or upon the

covered " auto";

2) Removable from a housing unit which is

permanently installed in or upon the

covered " auto";

An integral part of the same unit housing
any electronic equipment described in

Paragraphs ( 1) and ( 2) above; or

4) Necessary for the normal operation of the
covered " auto" or the monitoring of the
covered " auto's" operating system.

b. Section III, Physical Damage Coverage, Limit
of Insurance, Paragraph C.2. is amended to

add the following:

1,500 is the most we will pay for " loss" in

any one " accident" to all electronic equipment
other than equipment designed solely for the

reproduction of sound, and accessories used
with such equipment) that reproduces,
receives or transmits audio, visual or data

signals which, at the time of " loss", is:

3)

Form HA 99 16 12 21 Page 3 of 5
69



1) Permanently installed in or upon the

covered " auto" in a housing, opening or

other location that is not normally used by
the " auto" manufacturer for the installation

of such equipment;

2) Removable from a permanently installed

housing unit as described in Paragraph
2.a. above or is an integral part of that

equipment; or

3) An integral part of such equipment.

c. For each covered " auto", should loss be

limited to electronic equipment only, our

obligation to pay for, repair, return or replace
damaged or stolen electronic equipment will

be reduced by the applicable deductible

shown in the Declarations, or $ 250, whichever

deductible is less.

10. EXTRA EXPENSE - BROADENED COVERAGE

Under Paragraph A. - COVERAGE - of SECTION

III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, we will

pay for the expense of returning a stolen covered

auto" to you.

11. GLASS REPAIR - WAIVER OF DEDUCTIBLE

Under Paragraph D. - DEDUCTIBLE - of

SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE,
the following is added:

No deductible applies to glass damage if the glass
is repaired rather than replaced.

12. TWO OR MORE DEDUCTIBLES

Under Paragraph D. - DEDUCTIBLE - of

SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE,
the following is added:

If another Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc.

company policy or coverage form that is not an

automobile policy or coverage form applies to the

same " accident", the following applies:

1) If the deductible under this Business Auto

Coverage Form is the smaller ( or smallest)
deductible, it will be waived;

2) If the deductible under this Business Auto

Coverage Form is not the smaller ( or

smallest) deductible, it will be reduced by the

amount of the smaller ( or smallest)
deductible.

13. AMENDED DUTIES IN THE EVENT OF

ACCIDENT, CLAIM, SUIT OR LOSS

The requirement in LOSS CONDITIONS 2.a. -

DUTIES IN THE EVENT OF ACCIDENT, CLAIM,
SUIT OR LOSS - of SECTION IV - BUSINESS

AUTO CONDITIONS that you must notify us of an

accident" applies only when the " accident" is

known to:

1) You, if you are an individual;

2) A partner, if you are a partnership;

3) A member, if you are a limited liability
company; or

4) An executive officer or insurance manager, if

you are a corporation.

14. UNINTENTIONAL FAILURE TO DISCLOSE

HAZARDS

If you unintentionally fail to disclose any hazards

existing at the inception date of your policy, we

will not deny coverage under this Coverage Form

because of such failure.

15. HIRED AUTO - COVERAGE TERRITORY

SECTION IV, BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS,
PARAGRAPH B. GENERAL CONDITIONS, 7. -

POLICY PERIOD, COVERAGE TERRITORY - is

added to include the following:

6) For short-term hired " autos", the coverage

territory with respect to Liability Coverage is

anywhere in the world provided that if the

insured's" responsibility to pay damages for

bodily injury" or " property damage" is

determined in a " suit," the " suit" is brought in

the United States of America, the territories

and possessions of the United States of

America, Puerto Rico or Canada or in a

settlement we agree to.

16. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

Paragraph 5. TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF

RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS TO US - of

SECTION IV - BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS

A. Loss Conditions is amended by adding the

following:
We waive any right of recovery we may have

against any person or organization with whom you
have a written contract that requires such waiver
because of payments we make for damages
under this Coverage Form.

17. RESULTANT MENTAL ANGUISH COVERAGE

The definition of " bodily injury" in SECTION V -

DEFINITIONS, C. is replaced by the following:

Bodily injury" means bodily injury, sickness or

disease sustained by any person, including
mental anguish or death resulting from any of
these.

18. EXTENDED CANCELLATION CONDITION

Paragraph 2. of the COMMON POLICY

CONDITIONS - CANCELLATION - applies except
as follows:

If we cancel for any reason other than

nonpayment of premium, we will mail or deliver to
the first Named Insured written notice of

cancellation at least 60 days before the effective

date of cancellation.

Page 4 of 5 Form HA 99 16 12 21
70



19. HYBRID, ELECTRIC, OR NATURAL GAS

VEHICLE PAYMENT COVERAGE

In the event of a total loss to a " non -hybrid" auto

for which Comprehensive, Specified Causes of

Loss, or Collision coverages are provided under

this Coverage Form, then such Physical Damage
Coverages are amended as follows:

a. If the auto is replaced with a " hybrid" auto or

an auto powered solely by electricity or

natural gas, we will pay an additional 10%, to

a maximum of $ 2,500, of the " non -hybrid"
auto's actual cash value or replacement cost,
whichever is less,

b. The auto must be replaced and a copy of a

bill of sale or new lease agreement received

by us within 60 calendar days of the date of

loss,"

c. Regardless of the number of autos deemed a

total loss, the most we will pay under this

Hybrid, Electric, or Natural Gas Vehicle

Payment Coverage provision for any one

loss" is $ 10,000.

For the purposes of the coverage provision,

a. A " non -hybrid" auto is defined as an auto that

uses only an internal combustion engine to

move the auto but does not include autos

powered solely by electricity or natural gas.

b. A " hybrid" auto is defined as an auto with an

internal combustion engine and one or more

electric motors; and that uses the internal

combustion engine and one or more electric

motors to move the auto, or the internal
combustion engine to charge one or more

electric motors, which move the auto.

20. VEHICLE WRAP COVERAGE

In the event of a total loss to an " auto" for which

Comprehensive, Specified Causes of Loss, or

Collision coverages are provided under this

Coverage Form, then such Physical Damage
Coverages are amended to add the following:
In addition to the actual cash value of the " auto",

we will pay up to $ 1,000 for vinyl vehicle wraps
which are displayed on the covered " auto" at the

time of total loss. Regardless of the number of

autos deemed a total loss, the most we will pay
under this Vehicle Wrap Coverage provision for

any one " loss" is $ 5,000. For purposes of this

coverage provision, signs or other graphics
painted or magnetically affixed to the vehicle are

not considered vehicle wraps.

Form HA 99 16 12 21 Page 5 of 571



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION PAGE

INSURER: Hartford Casualty Insurance Company
NCCI Company Number: 14397 Audit Period: ANNUAL

Policy Effective Date: 01/03/24 Policy Expiration Date: 01/03/25

Policy Number: 51 WEC BA8T7Y Endorsement Number: 002

Effective Date: 03/22/24 Effective hour is the same as stated on the Information Page of the policy.
Named Insured and Address: ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC

1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD STE 110

ROSEVILLE CA 95678

FEIN Number: 27-3118908

Producer Name: NAVO FIN INC INS AND FIN SOLUTIONS

It is agreed that the policy is amended as follows:

Producer Code: 51135504

This is NOT a bill. However, any changes in your premium will be reflected in your next billing statement. You will receive
a separate bill from The Hartford.

In consideration of an additional premium of $ 131, it is agreed that:

Policy is amended to add the following condition(s):

Waiver of Our Right to Recover from Others Endorsement

Policy is amended to add the following Endorsement Forms reflecting the changes made to your policy.

WC040306

WC990006A(.2)

Policy is amended to revise the following Endorsement Forms reflecting the changes made to your policy.

G-4119-0

WC990006A(.1P)

Countersigned by
ra 1 o3` Cad &. r

Authorized Representative

Form WC 99 00 06 A ( 1) Printed in U.S.A. Page 1
Process Date: 03/22/24 Policy Expiration Date: 01/03/25

72



CHANGE IN INFORMATION PAGE ( Continued)

Policy Number: 51 WEC BA8T7Y

SCHEDULE

IT IS AGREED THAT THE POLICY IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS:

CLASS CODE NUMBER AND DESCRIPTION

CA - Location 1

Rating Period: 01/03/2024-03/22/2024

7605

SECURITY ALARM, FIRE ALARM OR LIFE SAFETY

SYSTEMS INSTALLATION, SERVICE OR REPAIR -

INCLUDING SHOP, YARD OR STORAGE OPERATIONS

8742

SALESPERSONS - OUTSIDE

8810

CLERICAL OFFICE EMPLOYEES - N 0 C

Rating Period: 03/22/2024-01/03/2025

7605

SECURITY ALARM, FIRE ALARM OR LIFE SAFETY

SYSTEMS INSTALLATION, SERVICE OR REPAIR -

INCLUDING SHOP, YARD OR STORAGE OPERATIONS

8742

SALESPERSONS - OUTSIDE

8810

CLERICAL OFFICE EMPLOYEES - N 0 C

Rating Period: 01/03/2024-01/03/2025

7605

SECURITY ALARM, FIRE ALARM OR LIFE SAFETY

SYSTEMS INSTALLATION, SERVICE OR REPAIR -
INCLUDING SHOP, YARD OR STORAGE OPERATIONS

8742

SALESPERSONS - OUTSIDE

8810

CLERICAL OFFICE EMPLOYEES - N O C

Total State Summary

Total Class Premium

CA Territorial Differential
Waiver charge
Schedule Rating Factor

Premium discount

Expense constant

Terrorism Risk Insurance Program Reauthorization Act

Disclosure Endorsement

CA User Fund

Form WC 99 00 06 A ( 1) Printed in U.S.A.

Process Date: 03/22/24

ESTIMATED RATES PER 100

TOTAL ANNUAL OF

REMUNERATION REMUNERATION

45,112.00

201,169.00

177,426.00

163,888.00

730,831.00

644, 574.00

209,000.00

932, 000.00

822,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

3.950000

0.500000

0.350000

3.950000

0.500000

0.350000

3.950000

0.500000

0.350000

0.877000

0.020000

0.500000
0.010000

0.020000

ESTIMATED

ANNUAL

PREMIUMS

1,782

1,006

621

6,474

3,654

2,256

8,256

4,660

2,877

0

1

248

125

2

0

0

2.460400 4

Page 2

Policy Expiration Date: 01/03/25
73



CHANGE IN INFORMATION PAGE ( Continued)

Policy Number: 51 WEC BA8T7Y

SCHEDULE

IT IS AGREED THAT THE POLICY IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS:

CLASS CODE NUMBER AND DESCRIPTION ESTIMATED RATES PER 100 ESTIMATED

TOTAL ANNUAL OF ANNUAL

RENUMERATION RENUMERATION PREMIUMS

CA Fraud 0.00 0.412200 1

CA Uninsured Employers Benefit Trust Fund 0.00 0.150500 0

CA Subsequent Injuries Benefit Trust Fund Assessments 0.00 1.589100 3

CA Occupational Safety & Health Fund 0.00 0.726600 1

CA Labor Enforcement & Compliance Fund 0.00 0.710900 0

California Total Cost 131

Form WC 99 00 06 A ( 1) Printed in U.S.A. Page 3
Process Date: 03/22/24 Policy Expiration Date: 01/03/25

74



THE
HARTFORD

POLICY HOLDER NOTICE - PAYROLL BILLING

Thank you for choosing The Hartford. Your policy is on our payroll billing method. The payroll billing method uses actual

payrolls received throughout the policy period and a blended rate(s) to determine premiums due during the policy period.
To learn more about how your premium is calculated on the payroll billing method please visit:

https://www.thehartford.com/blended

Below are the blended rate(s) being used for each state and classification code on your policy:

State Class Code Blended Rate Effective

1: 1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD

STE 110, ROSEVILLE, CA

8810 0.180000 01/03/2024

1: 1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD

STE 110, ROSEVILLE, CA

7605 1.850000 01/03/2024

1: 1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD

STE 110, ROSEVILLE, CA

8742 0.250000 01/03/2024

1: 1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD

STE 110, ROSEVILLE, CA

8742 0.260000 03/22/2024

1: 1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD

STE 110, ROSEVILLE, CA

7605 1.890000 03/22/2024

1: 1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD

STE 110, ROSEVILLE, CA

8810 0.190000 03/22/2024

Form G-4119-0 Printed in U.S.A.

2017, The Hartford
75



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

WAIVER OF OUR RIGHT TO RECOVER FROM

OTHERS ENDORSEMENT - CALIFORNIA

Policy Number: 51 WEC BA8T7Y Endorsement Number: 002
Effective Date: 03/22/24 Effective hour is the same as stated on the Information Page of the policy.
Named Insured and Address: ICU Technologies Inc

1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD STE 110
ROSEVILLE CA 95678

We have the right to recover our payments from anyone liable for an injury covered by this policy. We will not enforce our

right against the person or organization named in the Schedule. ( This agreement applies only to the extent that you
perform work under a written contract that requires you to obtain this agreement from us.)

You must maintain payroll records accurately segregating the remuneration of your employees while engaged in the work
described in the Schedule.

The additional premium for this endorsement shall be 2 %a of the California workers' compensation premium otherwise due
on such remuneration.

SCHEDULE

Person or Organization Job Description

Any person or organization for whom you are required by written contract or agreement to obtain this waiver of rights from
us

Countersigned by
Authorized Representative

Form WC 04 03 06 ( 1) Printed in U.S.A.

Process Date: 03/22/24 Policy Expiration Date: 01/03/25
76



THE
HARTFORD

THE HARTFORD

BUSINESS SERVICE CENTER

3600 WISEMAN BLVD

SAN ANTONIO TX 78251

For Informational Purposes Only
1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD STE 110
ROSEVILLE CA 95678-7052

Account Information:

Policy Holder Details : ICU Technologies Inc

March 22, 2024

L, Contact Us

Need Help?

Chat online or call us at

866) 467-8730.

We're here Monday - Friday.

Enclosed please find a Certificate Of Insurance for the above referenced Policyholder. Please contact us if you have any
questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Your Hartford Service Team

WLTR005

77



ACS
4.......- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE ( MM/DD/YYYY)

03/22/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE

HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE
AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE

ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,
subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does

not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
PRODUCER

NAVO FIN INC INS AND FIN SOLUTIONS

51135504

2045 SOUTH COURT STREET

VISALIA CA 93277

CONTACT NAME:

PHONE ( 559)733-5169
A/C, No, Ext):

FAX

A/C, No):

E-MAIL ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A: Hartford Casualty Insurance Company 29424

INSURED

ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC

1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD STE 110

ROSEVILLE CA 95678-7052

INSURER B :

INSURER C:

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED.NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE

TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

LTR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

INSR

SUER

WVD
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF

MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP

MM/DD/YYYY)
LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL

OCCUR

LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS - MADE DAMAGE TO RENTED

PREMISES ( Ea occurrence)

MED EXP ( Any one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GEN'L

HPOLICY
AAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO-

JECT

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED

AUTOS

HIRED

AUTOS

SCHEDULED

NON - OWNED

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

Ea accident)

BODILY INJURY ( Per person)

AUTOS
BODILY INJURY ( Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE

Per accident)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS -

MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

DED RETENTION $

A

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY Y/N

PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE —

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

Mandatory in NH) —
If yes. describe under

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

NIA X 51 WEC BA8T7Y 01/03/2024 01/03/2025

x PER OTH-

STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES ( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Those usual to the Insured's Operations.

DER CANCELLATION
For Informational Purposes Only
1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD STE 110

ROSEVILLE CA 95678-7052

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED

BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

78



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC#:

AGENCY

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 2 of 2

NAVO FIN INC INS AND FIN SOLUTIONS

POLICY NUMBER

SEE ACORD 25

CARRIER

SEE ACORD 25

NAIC CODE

NAMED INSURED

ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC

1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD STE 110

ROSEVILLE CA 95678-7052

EFFECTIVE DATE: SEE ACORD 25

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM

FORM NUMBER: ACORD 25 FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Waiver of Subrogation applies in favor of the Certificate Holder per the Broad Form Endorsement - Extended Option WC990301,
attached to this policy.

ACORD 101 ( 2014/01) 2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

79



PAGE LEFT

INTENTIONALLY

BLANK

80



ITEM 4.6

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:

RECOMMENDATION:

RATIFY THE SERVICE CONTRACT WITH ICU

TECHNOLOGIES INC. FOR THE CAMERA

SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR PHASE II OF

MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVEILLANCE CIP GG 22-

35

Adopt a Resolution Ratifying the Service

Contract with ICU Technologies, Inc. for the

Surveillance Systems for Phase II of Major City
Parks Surveillance CIP GG 22-35

SUMMARY:

At the September 12, 2022, City Council Meeting, Council approved a budget to cover

the cost of a camera surveillance system for the first phase of Capital Improvement
Project ( CIP) GG 22-35 Camera Surveillance Systems for Major City Parks. In

December 2023, City Council was presented with an update on the parks as the first

phase was almost complete and staff proposed the addition of the parks listed below,
to be added to CIP GG 22-35 as Phase II for the installation of a camera surveillance

system.

Champion Park

Park West

Woodfield Park Basin

William S. Moss Park

Mossdale Landing Community Park

Staff requested proposals from ICU Technologies, Inc. (ICU) for the hardware and

services required at each park. ICU currently holds an active contract with the U.S.

General Services Administration ( GSA) in Security & Protection and Information

Technology Hardware & Software and is an authorized seller of surveillance cameras

that meets the hardware specification of the City's standard camera surveillance

system for city parks under CIP GG 22-35. Furthermore, ICU is certified to perform
the configuration and installation of these cameras. ICU presented a proposal with a

sum of $ 244,919.10 to provide the licenses and cameras, configuration, and

installation for all five ( 5) additional parks.

Due to the supply chain demand, there is a long lead time for the required equipment.
To minimalize delay to the project and to provide a tool for the Lathrop Police

department to use during investigations and deter further vandalism the City
Manager signed the Service Contract with ICU Technologies Inc. for the camera

surveillance systems for Phase II of the CIP 22-35 Major City Parks in March 2024.

81



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY THE SERVICE CONTRACT WITH ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC. FOR THE

CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR PHASE II OF MAJOR CITY PARKS

SURVEILLANCE CIP GG 22-35

Tonight, Staff is requesting City Council adopt a resolution to ratify the service

contract with ICU Technologies, Inc. for a sum not to exceed $ 244,919.10 for the

purchase, and configuration, and installation of surveillance cameras for Phase II of

the CIP GG 22-35 Major City Parks Surveillance.

BACKGROUND:

On September 13, 2021, City Council approved the creation of Capital Improvement
Project ( CIP) GG 22-35 for Camera Surveillance Systems for Major City Parks. One

year after on September 12, 2022, Council approved Resolution 22-5150 authorizing
a budget to cover the cost of a camera surveillance system for the first phase of CIP

GG 22-35 Camera Surveillance Systems for Major City Parks. The first phase included

the three parks listed below.

Apolinar Sangalang Park

Manuel Valverde Park

Woodfield Park

In December 2023, City Council was presented with a slide presentation update of
Phase I as it was almost complete. During the presentation, staff proposed the

following five ( 5) parks to have the surveillance system installed as Phase II. These

parks have recently suffered significant damage from vandalism resulting in repair
expenses exceeding $ 10,000 for a single park.

Champion Park

Park West

Woodfield Park Basin

William S. Moss Park

Mossdale Landing Community Park

These parks would have benefitted from surveillance systems as they act as a

deterrent to vandalism and malicious activities. The Lathrop Police Department would
have been able to utilize the system to investigate the criminal activities and the

system would have facilitated the solving of these crimes.

Staff requested ICU present a proposal for each of the parks due to these
circumstances. ICU currently holds an active contract with the U.S. General Services
Administration ( GSA) - GSA Contract No. 47QSWA18D003K in Security & Protection
and Information Technology Hardware & Software. This program, administered by
the United States Government, provides government agencies with discounted

pricing schedules, and establishes purchasing contracts with vendors through a

competitive bidding process. The GSA's competitive bidding process is in

conformance with the Office of Procurement, Department of General Services of the
State of California exemption as described in the Lathrop Municipal Code Section
2.36.110. Furthermore, ICU has provided, configured, and installed other camera

surveillance systems and the licenses at numerous City facilities.

82



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 3
APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY THE SERVICE CONTRACT WITH ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC. FOR THE
CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR PHASE II OF MAJOR CITY PARKS

SURVEILLANCE CIP GG 22-35

ICU presented proposals that are equal to the pricing of the contract ICU holds with

GSA. Therefore, the claimed bidding exemption is pursuant to Lathrop Municipal Code

LMC) 2.36.110(a) for the Service Contract with ICU for the purchase, configuration
and installation of the surveillance cameras and the licenses for CIP 22-35 Major City
Parks.

Due to the supply chain and demand, there is a long lead time for the required
equipment. To not delay the project, provide a tool for the Lathrop Police department
to use during investigations and deter further vandalism the City Manager signed the
Service Contract with ICU Technologies Inc. for the camera surveillance systems for
Phase II of the CIP 22-35 Major City Parks in March 2024.

Tonight, Staff is requesting City Council adopt a resolution to ratify City Manager
approval of the service contract with ICU Technologies, Inc. for a sum of $244,919.10
for Phase II of Major City Parks CIP 22-35.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The Camera Surveillance System procured through ICU Technologies, LLC for CIP GG
22-35 for Camera Surveillance System for Major City Parks represents an effort to

utilize technology to deter crimes, expedite crime solving, and to enhance crime

prevention and public safety.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There are sufficient funds available in CIP GG 22-35 to cover the costs of installation
of a camera surveillance systems procured through ICU Technologies, Inc.

ATTACHMENTS:

A. Resolution Ratifying the Agreement with ICU Technologies, Inc. to Provide,
Configure and Install Camera Surveillance Systems for Phase II of Major City
Parks Surveillance Systems CIP GG 22-35

B. Service Contract with ICU Technologies, Inc. to Provide, Configure and Install
Camera Surveillance System for Phase II of Major City Parks Surveillance
Systems CIP GG 22-35

83



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY THE SERVICE CONTRACT WITHICU TECHNOLOGIES INC. FOR THE

CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR PHASE II OF MAJOR CITY PARKS

SURVEILLANCE CIP GG 22-35

APPROVALS:

z 2- Li
ony Fernandes Date

Information Systems Director

Ca

Finance Director

3/dzi/ate
Date

3 • 2 C • Z. c,

Michael King Date

Assistant City Mana

3 -z-z.

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Stephen 3. Salvatore Date

City Manager

84



RESOLUTION NO. 24 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO RATIFY

THE SERVICE CONTRACT WITH ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC. FOR THE CAMERA

SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR PHASE II OF MAJOR CITY PARKS CIP GG 22-

35

WHEREAS, on September 13, 2021, City Council approved the creation of

Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) GG 22-35 for Camera Surveillance Systems for

Major City Parks; and

WHEREAS, the first phase that included Apolinar Sangalang Park, Manuel

Valverde Park and Woodfield Park is complete; and

WHEREAS, staff proposed Champion Park, Park West, Woodfield Park Basin,
William S. Moss Park and Mossdale Landing Community Park to have the surveillance

system installed as Phase II; and

WHEREAS, ICU currently holds an active contract with the U.S. General

Services Administration ( GSA) - GSA Contract No. 47QSWA18D003K in Security &
Protection and Information Technology Hardware & Software; and

WHEREAS, ICU presented proposals totaling $ 244,919.10 at pricing equal to

the contract that ICU holds with GSA and therefore, this contract is exempt from

bidding pursuant to Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC) 2.36.110(a) for the purchase,
configuration and installation of the surveillance cameras and the licenses for CIP 22-

35 Major City Parks.

WHEREAS, to not delay the project provide a tool for the Lathrop Police

department to use during investigations and deter further vandalism, the City
Manager signed the Service Contract with ICU Technologies Inc. in March 2024.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of

Lathrop does hereby ratify the service contract with ICU Technologies Inc. for the
Camera Surveillance Systems for Phase II of Major City Parks Surveillance CIP GG
22-35 in the amount of $ 244,919.09.

85



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8th day of April 2024, by the

following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

86



City of

Office of the City Manager

March 2H, 2024

Attachment B

390 Towne Centre Dr. - Lathrop, CA 95330

Phone ( 209) 941-7220 - fax ( 209) 941-7248

www.ci.lathrop.ca.us

NOTICE TO PROCEED

ICU Technologies, Inc.

Tommy Smith

1382 Blue Oaks Blvd, Suite # 110

Roseville, CA 95678

Dear Mr. Smith:

Enclosed please find your original executed agreement to provide the Purchase,

Configuration and Installation Cameras for CIP GG 22-35 Major Parks Surveillance

Phase II. This is your Notice to Proceed to the attached agreement.

Should you have any questions regarding the project, please contact Tony Fernandes at

209) 941-7349, the staff member directly involved with this project.

Sincerely,

S en J. Salvatore

City Manager

Copy: Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

Project File

87



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41 D6-A611-FBF277F51571

CITY OF LATHROP AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP
AND ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

FOR THE PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF

PIVOT TILT ZOOM ( PTZ) AND MULTI - SENSOR CAMERAS FOR CIP GG

22-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this Zqday of March 2024, is by and

made and entered into by and between ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC. ("CONSULTANT")

and the CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to

perform the installation, configuration, and commissioning of multi -sensor cameras as

required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT was selected by CITY pursuant to said qualifications;
and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Services as

hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

WHEREAS, the purchase from the CONSULTANT is exempt from the CITY'S
standard bidding procedure pursuant to Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC) 2.36.110, as the
CONSULTANT holds GSA Contract number 47QSWA18D003K in Security & Protection
and Information Technology Hardware & Software and pricing is pursuant to that contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1) Scope of Service.
CONSULTANT agrees to perform the deployment, configuration, and

commissioning of PTZ and multi -sensor cameras in accordance with the scope of
work and fee proposal submitted by the CONSULTANT, attached as Exhibit " A"

through Exhibit " E" and incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT agrees
to diligently perform these services in accordance with the standards of its

profession and CITY'S satisfaction.

2) Compensation.

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT a sum not to exceed $ 244,919.10 as

described in Exhibit " A" through Exhibit "E".

88



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41D6-A611-FBF277F51571

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI -SENSOR
CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

CONSULTANT shall be paid within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of billings containing
all information contained in Paragraph 5 below. In no event shall CONSULTANT

be entitled to compensation for work not included in Exhibit " A" through Exhibit " E",

unless a written change order or authorization describing the extra work and

payment terms has been executed by CITY's Authorized Representative prior to

the commencement of the work.

3) Effective Date and Term.

This agreement shall become effective on the signature date of the Department
Head and CONSULTANT has been notified in writing as identified in section ( 18),
and it shall terminate no later than June 30, 2024.

4) Independent Contractor Status.

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while

engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this

Agreement, is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.

CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to represent, at any time or in any manner,
that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5) Billings.

CONSULTANT'S bills shall include date, date due, a list of all tasks performed by
deliverable, a total amount due, the amounts previously billed, the net amount due
on the invoice, and the balance remaining on the agreement and the
CONSULTANT'S signature. Except as specifically authorized by CITY,
CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate services performed by more than
one person. In no event shall CONSULTANT submit any billing for an amount in
excess of the maximum amount of compensation provided in section ( 2) for listed
services or for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a properly executed

change order.

6) Advice and Status Reporting.

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all

significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and
shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitor
the performance of this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall clarify with the CITY any
details of the design that are not specifically understood.

Page 2

89



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41 D6-A611-FBF277F51571

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI - SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

7) Assignment of Personnel.

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services

pursuant to this Agreement. If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person

assigned to the work called for under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to

do so immediately, regardless of the reason, or the lack of a reason, according to

the CITY'S request.

The services shall be performed by, or under the direct supervision,
CONSULTANT'sAuthorized Representative: Tommy Smith
CONSULTANT shall not replace its Authorized Representatives without the prior
written approval by the CITY.

8) Assignment and Subcontracting.

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for

entering into this Agreement was, and is, the professional reputation and

competence of CONSULTANT. Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein

may be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY'S

authorized representative. CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the

performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors
noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY'S authorized

representative.

9) Insurance.

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this

Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for
the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the
CITY the insurance specified in subsections ( a) through ( c) below with insurers
and under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.

CONSULTANT shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any
subcontract until all insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been
obtained for the subcontractor. Verification of this insurance shall be submitted
and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a) Workers' Compensation. CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT'S
sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for any and all persons
employed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT. Said Statutory
Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability
Insurance shall be provided with limits of not less than one million
dollars. In the alternative, CONSULTANT may rely on a self-

insurance program to meet these requirements provided that the

Page 3

90



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41D6-A611-FBF277F51571

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI -SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the

California Labor Code. The insurer, if insurance is provided, or the

CONSULTANT, if a program of self-insurance is provided, shall

waive all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from

work performed under this Agreement.

b) Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT'S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance for

the period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one

million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for

risks associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement.
If a Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability

form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be

performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall

be at least twice the required occurrence limit. Such coverage shall

include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising
from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting there from,
and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under

this Agreement, including the use of owned and non -owned

automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/88)
and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001
ed. 12/90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or

added as an endorsement to the policy:

i) CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to
be covered as insured with respect to each of the following:
liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of

CONSULTANT, including the insider's general supervision of

CONSULTANT; products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT; premises owned, occupied or used by
CONSULTANT. The coverage shall contain no special
limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY, its

officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii) The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident

basis, and not on a claims made basis.

Page 4

91



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41 D6-A611-FBF277F51571

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI -SENSOR
CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

iii) An endorsement must state that coverage is primary
insurance and that no other insurance affected by the CITY
will be called upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv) Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting
provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to

CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

v) Insurance is to be placed with California - admitted insurers
with a Best's rating of no less than A: VII.

vi) Notice of cancellation or non - renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

c) Deductibles and Self -Insured Retentions. CONSULTANT shall

disclose the self -insured retentions and deductibles before beginning
any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement.
During the period covered by this Agreement, upon express written
authorization of the CITY's authorized representative,
CONSULTANT may increase such deductibles or self -insured

retentions with respect to CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and

volunteers. The CITY's authorized representative may condition

approval of an increase in deductible or self -insured retention levels

upon a requirement that CONSULTANT procure a bond

guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim

administration, and defense expenses that is satisfactory in all

respects to each of them.

d) Notice of Reduction in Coverage. In the event that any coverage
required under subsections ( a), (b), or ( c) of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other

manner, CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT'S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in

coverage.

e) In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT
fails to provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i) Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of
the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under
the Agreement;

Page 5

92



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41 D6-A611-FBF277F51571

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI - SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

ii) Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or

withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT

hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until

CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii) Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to

other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for

CONSULTANT'S breach.

10) Indemnification - CONSULTANT'SResponsibility.

As to the CONSULTANT'S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that ( a)
CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, that ( b)
CITY relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a

skillful and professional manner, and (c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform.

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the
work performed. It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is

apprised of the scope of the work to be performed under this Agreement and

CONSULTANT agrees that said work can and shall be performed in a fully
competent manner in accordance with the standard of care applicable to
CONSULTANT'S profession.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, it officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims,
suits, actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury,
bodily injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal,
state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct
or negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors,
or agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for

any such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY, its
officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set
forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code. Acceptance of insurance
certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve
CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.
This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such

damages or claims for damages.
11) Licenses.

Page 6

93



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41 D6-A611-FBF277F51571

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI -SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration,
is required of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal
or state law, CONSULTANT warrants that such license has been obtained, is valid

and in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in effect at all times during
the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond has been posted in

accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

12) Business Licenses.

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until
all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

13) Termination.

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement upon 30 days written

notification to the other party. In the event of termination, the CONSULTANT shall
be entitled to compensation for services performed to the effective date of

termination; provided, however, that the CITY may condition payment of such

compensation upon CONSULTANT'S delivery to the CITY of any or all documents,
photographs, computer software, video and audio tapes, and other materials

provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for CONSULTANT or the CITY in

connection with this Agreement.

14) Funding.

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the

appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the

Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.

15) Notices.

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change
Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given
by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if (1) personally served, (2) sent by the United States

mail, postage prepaid, (3) sent by private express delivery service, or (4) in the
case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth
below during regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two

2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile transmission.
Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and service

by facsimile transmission.

Page 7

94



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41 D6-A611-FBF277F51571

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI -SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

To City: City of Lathrop
City Clerk

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to:

To Consultant:

16) Miscellaneous.

City of Lathrop
Information Systems Department
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Phone: (209) 941-7430

FAX: (209) 941-7449

ICU Technologies
Tommy Smith

1382 Blue Oaks Blvd. Suite # 110

Roseville, CA 95678

Phone: (559) 280-9333
Fax: (559) 892-1142

a) Consent. Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and

shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

b) Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be

governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the
State of California.

c) Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in these

specifications.

d) Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on

account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this

Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a

superior governmental authority.

e) Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement
and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of

any part of this Agreement.

Page 8

95



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41 D6-A611-FBF277F51571

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI -SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

f)

g)

Incorporation of Documents. All documents constituting the

Agreement documents described in Section 1 hereof and all
documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly
executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in

the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

Integration. This Agreement and any amendments hereto between

the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties
concerning the Project and Work; there are no other prior oral or

written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in

this Agreement.

h) Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in

writing and signed by the parties.

i) Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement
shall define or otherwise control, establish or limit the performance
required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to
be both covenants and conditions.

j) Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that

any provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the

provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force

and effect.

k) Status of CONSULTANT. In the exercise of rights and obligations
under this Agreement, CONSULTANT acts as an independent
contractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT
shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing
to the City Council members, officers or employees of CITY, and
CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and
benefits.

1)

m)

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall
inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors

and assigns of the parties.

Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and
each of its provisions. In the calculation of time hereunder, the time
in which an act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding
the first Day and including the last. If the time in which an act is to

Page 9

96



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41D6-A611-FBF277F51571

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI - SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day observed as a

legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance shall be extended to

the following Business Day.

n) Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder,
the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively
in the state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the

United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

o) Recovery of Costs. The prevailing party in any action brought to

enforce the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney's
fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against
the non -prevailing party.

17) General Contractor Responsibilities.

Neither the professional activities of CONSULTANT, nor the presence of

CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT'S sub -consultants shall relieve the Consultant
of its obligations, duties and responsibilities.

CITY agrees that the CITY, CONSULTANT and its sub -consultants shall be
indemnified by the General Contractor and shall be made additional insured under

the General Contractor' general liability insurance policy and that a Waiver of

Subrogation in favor of CONSULTANT will be provided under the General
Contractor'sWorkers Compensation policy. CITY will require General Contractor
to provide evidence of such insurance to CITY and CONSULTANT prior to General
Contractor beginning work on the project.

18) Notice to Proceed.

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a

written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued

until all necessary bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be

obligated to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to
Proceed.

19) Signatures.

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the

right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this

Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the
CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 10

97



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41 D6-A611-FBF277F51571

CITY OF LATHROP — ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND CONFIGURATION OF PTZ AND MULTI -SENSOR

CAMERAS FOR CIP GG 23-35 MAJOR CITY PARKS SURVIELLANCE

Approved as to Form:

Subject to Ratification

City of Lathrop
City Attorney

Salvador Navarrete

Recommended By: Director of Information Systems

Approved By:

Resolution #

CONSULTANT:

oocaslyoee by:

r

3-z.m~
Date

FulAAJA.ks 3/20/2024
F63101F479...

Tony Fernandes

Information Systems Director

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephe Salvatore

City Manager

ICU Technologies
Tommy Smith

1382 Blue Oaks Blvd. Suite # 110

Roseville, CA 95678
Fed ID #: 21 - 3t‘8°I.oa
Business License #: 1 -

Date

3.2q-z
Date

DocuSIgned by: !

M ¶ % i( , 3/20/2024
l — 74C19D&C970dA0...
Signature Date

Tommy Smith
CEO

Print Name Title

Page 11

98



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41 D6-A611-FBF277F51571

IcU
TECHNOLOGIES

ICU Technologies Inc.

1382 Blue Oaks Blvd, Suite 110

Roseville, CA 95678

1 5304887200

orders@icu-techinc.com

www.icu-techinc.com

Exhibit A

ADDRESS SHIP TO ESTIMATE 2024-1007

Tony Fernandes Tony Fernandes DATE 02/08/2024

City of Lathrop City of Lathrop EXPIRATION 03/29/2024

390 Towne Centre Dr 390 Towne Centre Dr DATE

Lathrop, CA 95330 Lathrop, CA 95330 USA

United States

PROJECT NAME CONTRACT

Champion Park Video Solution GSA# 470SWA18D003K

SIN ITEM QTY PRICE AMOUNT

20C-H5A-4MH 10 2,233.17 22,331.70T
4X5MP, WDR, 360 degree max field of view, Lightcatcher, 3.3-5.7MM, Camera Only

334220 2.0C-H5A-PTZ-DP36 4 2,543.22 10,172.88T
H5A; 2MP 36x Pendant PTZ Dome

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 14 98.27 1,375.78T

Avigilon:WLMT 1001 - Wall Mount for large pendant camera

H5AMH-DO-COVR1 10 161.41 1,614.10T
Dome bubble and cover, for outdoor surface mount or pendant mount, clear. For use

with the Avigilon H5A Muftisensor

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 10 161.42 1,614.20T

Avigilon:H5AMH-AD-PEND1 - Outdoor pendant mount adapter. For use with the

Avigilon H5A

Muftisensor

OLM H4AMH-AD-IRIL1 10 315.41 3,154.10T

Optional IR illuminator ring, up to 30m ( 100ft), for use with H4AMH-DO-COVR1.

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 14 93.15 1,304.10T
Avigilon:PLMT--1001 - POLE MOUNT FOR LRGE PENDT WLMT-1001

334220 NVR5-PRM-96TB-S19-NA 1 33,734.39 33,734.39T
NVR5 PRM 96TB 2U Rack Mnt; WS19 NA

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 13 546.00 7,098.00T
Aetek :H40 -022-90-120-A -

334220 ACCT - ENT 14 256.37 3,589.18
ACC 7 Enterprise Edition camera license

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 1 520.00 520.00T

Misc GSAinstalation materials, including cabling, conduit, fittings, blocks,
connectors, and patch cables

541330L ICU-TECH1 134 127.27 17,054.18
Installation and service of access control and video surveillance field

devices/systems.

Subtotal:

103,562.61

Page 1 of 299



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41D6-A611-FBF277F51571

N/A GSA-IFF 103,562.61 0.007556 782.52

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 1,521.92 0.58 882.71

Round -Trip Mieage from ICU HQ to Lathrop - 20 round trips x 2 vehicles - 82 miles

one way

N/A ICU -SHIPPING 1 1,250.00 1,250.00
Freight to customer location

Estimate Notes:

1. DIR# 1000064885

2. Email Order to orders@icu-techinc.com
3. Payment by credit card will include a 4% processing fee.

Accepted By

Accepted Date

SUBTOTAL 106,477.84

TAX 7,255.43

TOTAL $ 113,733.27

Page 2 of 2100



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41D6-A611-FBF277F51571

lcU
TECHNOLOGIES

ICU Technologies Inc.

1382 Blue Oaks Blvd, Suite 110

Roseville, CA 95678

1 5304887200

orders@icu-techinc.com

www.icu-techinc.com

Exhibit B

ADDRESS SHIP TO ESTIMATE 2024-1011

Tony Fernandes Tony Fernandes DATE 01/17/2024

City of Lathrop City of Lathrop

390 Towne Centre Dr 390 Towne Centre Dr

Lathrop, CA 95330 Lathrop, CA 95330 USA

United States

PROJECT NAME CONTRACT

Mossdale Landing Video Solution GSA# 47QSWA18D003K

SIN ITEM QTY PRICE AMOUNT

20C-H5A-4MH 6 2,233.17 13,399.02T
4X5MP, WDR, 360 degree max field of view, Lightcatcher, 3.3-5.7MM, Camera Only

334220 2.0C-H5A-PTZ-DP36 3 2,543.22 7,629.66T
H5A; 2MP 36x Pendant PTZ Dome

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 9 98.27 884.43T

Avgilon:WLMT 1001 - Wall Mount for large pendant camera

H5AMH-DO-COVR1 6 161.41 968.46T
Dome bubble and cover, for outdoor surface mount or pendant mount, clear. For use

with theAvigilon H5AMultisensor

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 6 161.42 968.52T

Avigilon:H5AMH-AD-PEND1 - Outdoor pendant mount adapter. For use with the

Av on H5A

Multisensor

OLM H4AMH-AD-IRIL1 6 315.41 1,892.46T
Optional IR illuminator ring, up to 30m ( 100ft), for use with H4AMH-DO-COVR1.

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 9 93.15 838.35T
Avigilon:PLMT-1001 - POLE MOUNT FOR LRGE PENDT WLMT-1001

334220 VMA-AS3-8P8-NA 4 2,552.60 10,210.40T
HD Video Appliance 8 -Port 8TB; NA. ACC licenses sold separately

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 3 382.33 1,146.99T
Avgaon:POE-INJ2-95W-BT-NA- Indoor single Port PoE Injector Gigabit, 95W, NA

power cord, for use with

H4IR PTZ - indoor installation rated.

POE-INJ2-60W-NA 6 147.37 884.22T
Indoor single port Gigabit PoE++60W, North American power cord

included.

334220 ACCT - ENT 9 256.37 2,307.33
ACC 7 Enterprise Edition camera license

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 1 390.00 390.00T
Misc GSA installation materials, including cabling, conduit, fittings, blocks,
connectors, and patch cables

Page 1 of 2101



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41 D6-A611-FBF277F51571

541330L ICU-TECH1 96 127.27 12,217.92
Installation and service of access control and video surveillance field

devices/systems.

N/A

OLM

N/A

Subtotal:

53,737.76

GSA-IFF 53,737.76 0.007556 406.04

ICU-MISC-GSA 1,141.44 0.58 662.04

Round -Trip Mileage from ICU HQ to Lathrop - 20 round trips x 2 vehicles - 82 miles

one way

ICU -SHIPPING 1 582.00 582.00

Freight to customer location

Estimate Notes.

1. DIR# 1000064885

2. Email Order to orders@icu-techinc.com
3. Payment by credit card wit include a 4% processing fee.

Accepted By

Accepted Date

SUBTOTAL

TAX

TOTAL

55,387.84

3,431.09

58,818.93

Page 2 of 2102



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41D6-A611-FBF277F51571

IcU
TECHNOLOGIES

ICU Technologies Inc.

1382 Blue Oaks Blvd, Suite 110

Roseville, CA 95678

1 5304887200

orders@icu-techinc.com

www.icu-techinc.com

Exhibit C

ADDRESS SHIP TO ESTIMATE 2024-1008

Tony Fernandes Tony Fernandes DATE 01/17/2024

City of Lathrop City of Lathrop

390 Towne Centre Dr 390 Towne Centre Dr

Lathrop, CA 95330 Lathrop, CA 95330 USA

United States

PROJECT NAME CONTRACT

Park West Video Solution GSA# 47QSWA18D003K

SIN ITEM QTY PRICE AMOUNT

20C-H5A-4MH 3 2,233.17 6,699.51T
4X5MP, WDR, 360 degree max field of view, Lightcatcher, 3.3-5.7MM, Camera Only

334220 2.0C-H5A-PTZ-DP36 3 2,543.22 7,629.66T
H5A; 2MP 36x Pendant PTZ Dome

OLM PP350 6 448.50 2,691.00T
Pelco PP350 Parapet Wall Mount

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 6 53.19 319.14T

Avignon:NPTA-1001 - 1.5 inch NPT Adapter for Large Pendant Mount Camera

H5AMH-DO-COVR1 3 161.41 484.23T
Dome bubble and cover, for outdoor surface mount or pendant mount, clear. For use

with theAvigilon H5A Multisensor

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 3 161.42 484.26T

Avigion:H5AMH-AD-PEND1 - Outdoor pendant mount adapter. For use with the

Avignon H5A

Multisensor

OLM H4AMH-AD-IRIL1 3 315.41 946.23T
Optional IR illuminator ring, up to 30m ( 100ft), for use with H4AMH-DO-COVR1.

334220 VMA-AS3-8P8-NA 3 2,552.60 7,657.80T
HD Video Appliance 8 -Port 8TB; NA. ACC licenses sold separately

334220 ACCT - ENT 6 256.37 1,538.22
ACC 7 Enterprise Edition camera license

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 1 260.00 260.00T
Misc GSAinstaflation materials, including cabling, conduit, fittings, blocks,
connectors, and patch cables

541330L ICU-TECH1 48 127.27 6,108.96
Installation and service of access control and video surveillance field

devices/systems.

Subtotal:

34,819.01

N/A GSA-IFF 34,819.01 0.007556 263.09

Page 1 of 2103



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41 D6-A611-FBF277F51571

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 570.72 0.58 331.02
Round -Trip Mileage from ICU HQ to Lathrop - 20 round trips x 2 vehicles - 82 miles
one way

N/A ICU -SHIPPING 1 404.00 404.00
Freight to customer location

Estimate Notes:

1. DIR# 1000064885

2. Email Order to orders@icu-techinc.com
3. Payment by credit card will include a 4% processing fee.

Accepted By

Accepted Date

SUBTOTAL

TAX

TOTAL

35,817.12

2,377.54

38,194.66

Page 2 of 2104



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41D6-A611-FBF277F51571

IcU
TECHNOLOGIES

ICU Technologies Inc.

1382 Blue Oaks Blvd, Suite 110

Roseville, CA 95678

1 5304887200

orderstgicu-techinc. com

www.icu-techinc.com

Exhibit D

ADDRESS SHIP TO ESTIMATE 2024-1010

Tony Fernandes Tony Fernandes DATE 01/17/2024

City of Lathrop City of Lathrop

390 Towne Centre Dr 390 Towne Centre Dr

Lathrop, CA 95330 Lathrop, CA 95330 USA

United States

PROJECT NAME CONTRACT

Wiliam S. Moss Video Solution GSA# 47QSWA18D003K

SIN ITEM QTY PRICE AMOUNT

20C-H5A-4MH 1 2,233.17 2,233.17T
4X5MP, WDR, 360 degree max field of view, Lightcatcher, 3.3-5.7MM, Camera Only

334220 2.0C-H5A-PTZ-DP36 1 2,543.22 2,543.22T
H5A; 2MP 36x Pendant PTZ Dome

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 2 98.27 196.54T

Avigilon:WLMT-1001 - Wall Mount for large pendant camera

H 5AMH-DO-COVR 1 1 161.41 161.41T
Dome bubble and cover, for outdoor surface mount or pendant mount, clear. For use

with the Avigilon H5AMultisensor

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 1 161.42 161.42T

Avigilon:H5AMH-AD-PEND1 - Outdoor pendant mount adapter. For use with the

Avigilon H5A

Multisensor

OLM H4AMH-AD-IRIL1 1 315.41 315.41T

Optional IR illuminator ring, up to 30m ( 100ft), for use with H4AMH-DO-COVR1.

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 2 93.15 186.30T
Avigilon:PLMT-1001 - POLE MOUNT FOR LRGE PENDT WLMT-1001

334220 VMA-AS3-8P8-NA 2 2,552.60 5,105.20T
HD Video Appliance 8 -Port 8TB; NA. ACC licenses sold separately

334220 ACCT - ENT 2 256.37 512.74
ACC 7 Enterprise Edition camera license

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 1 130.00 130.00T
Misc GSA installation materials, including cabling, conduit, fittings, blocks,

connectors, and patch cables

541330L ICU-TECH1 32 127.27 4,072.64
Installation and service of access control and video surveillance field

devices/systems.

Subtotal:

15,618.05

N/A GSA-IFF 15,618.05 0.007556 118.01

Page 1 of 2105



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41 D6-A611-FBF277F51571

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 380.48 0.58 220.68
Round -Trip Mileage from ICU HQ to Lathrop - 20 round trips x 2 vehicles - 82 miles

one way

N/A ICU -SHIPPING 1 164.00 164.00

Freight to customer location

Estimate Notes:

1. DIR# 1000064885

2. Email Order to orders@icu-techinc.com
3. Payment by credit card will include a 4% processing fee.

Accepted By

Accepted Date

SUBTOTAL

TAX

TOTAL

16,120.74

965.36

17,086.10

Page 2 of 2106



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41 D6-A611-FBF277F51571

IcU
TECHNOLOGIES

ICU Technologies Inc.

1382 Blue Oaks Blvd, Suite 110

Roseville, CA 95678

1 5304887200

orders@icu-techinc.com

www.icu-techinc.com

Exhibit E

ADDRESS SHIP TO ESTIMATE 2024-1009

Tony Fernandes Tony Fernandes DATE 01/17/2024

City of Lathrop City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Dr 390 Towne Centre Dr

Lathrop, CA 95330 Lathrop, CA 95330 USA

United States

PROJECT NAME CONTRACT

Woodfield Basin Video Solution GSA# 47QSWA18D003K

SIN ITEM QTY PRICE AMOUNT

20C-H5A-4MH 1 2,233.17 2,233.17T
4X5MP, WDR, 360 degree max field of view, Lightcatcher, 3.3-5.7MM, Camera Only

334220 2.0C-H5A-PTZ-DP36 1 2,543.22 2,543.22T
H5A; 2MP 36x Pendant PTZ Dome

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 2 98.27 196.54T

Avigilon:WLMT-1001 - Wall Mount for large pendant camera

H5AMH-DO-COVR1 1 161.41 161.41T
Dome bubble and cover, for outdoor surface mount or pendant mount, clear. For use

with theAvgilon H5AMukisensor

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 1 161.42 161.42T
Avgilon:H5AMH-AD-PEND1 - Outdoor pendant mount adapter. For use with the

Avigilon H5A

Multisensor

OLM H4AMH-AD-IRIL1 1 315.41 315.41T
Optional IR illuminator ring, up to 30m ( 100ft), for use with H4AMH-DO-COVR1.

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 2 93.15 186.30T
Avigilon:PLMT-1001 - POLE MOUNT FOR LRGE PENDT WLMT-1001

334220 VMA-AS3-8P8-NA 2 2,552.60 5,105.20T
HD Video Appliance 8 -Port 8TB; NA. ACC licenses sold separately

334220 ACCT - ENT 2 256.37 512.74
ACC 7 Enterprise Edition camera license

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 1 130.00 130.00T
Misc GSA installation materials, including cabling, conduit, fittings, blocks,

connectors, and patch cables

541330L ICU-TECH1 32 127.27 4,072.64
Installation and service of access control and video surveillance field
devices/systems.

Subtotal:

15,618.05

N/A GSA-IFF 15,618.05 0.007556 118.01

Page 1 of 2107



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64203625-4498-41D6-A611-FBF277F51571

OLM ICU-MISC-GSA 380.48 0.58 220.68
Round -Trip Mileage from ICU HQ to Lathrop 20 round trips x 2 vehicles - 82 miles

one way

N/A ICU -SHIPPING 1 164.00 164.00

Freight to customer location

Estimate Notes:

1. DIR# 1000064885

2. Email Order to ordersraicu-techinc.com
3. Payment by credit card will include a 4% processing fee.

Accepted By

Accepted Date

SUBTOTAL

TAX

TOTAL

16,120.74

965.36

17,086.10

Page 2 of 2108



O® ACOR
440...... ---" CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE ( MM/DD/YYYY)

3/21/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
PRODUCER

Navo Financial, Inc. Insurance and Financial Solutions

2045 South Court Street, Suite A

Visalia CA 93277

CONTACT
NAME: Certificates

aCNNo, Ext): ( 559) 733-5169
FAX

No): ( 888) 456-0130

ADDR certs@navofinancial.comADDRESS: `,

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

INSURER A : LANDMARK AMER INS CO 33138

INSURED

ICU Technologies Inc

1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD

Suite 110

ROSEVILLE CA 95678-7019

INSURER B : HARTFORD ACCID & IND CO 22357

INSURER C : HUDSON INS CO 25054

INSURER 0 : HARTFORD CASUALTY INS CO 29424

INSURER E : GREAT AMER RISK SOLUTIONS SURPLUS LINES It 35351

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: EVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE NSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE NSDWWVD
U LW

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
MM/OD/YYYY)

1' 

YYMMIMlODIODIYYYY) LIMITS

A

K COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y Y LHA142219 06/09/2023 06/09/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE 1,000,000

CLAIMS - MADE OCCURK

UAMAtat I U Rtry I tU

PREMISES ( Ea occurrence) 50,000

MED EXP ( Any one person) 5,000

PERSONAL BADVINJURY 1,000,000

GEN'L

iclPOLICY
AGGREGATE

OTHER:

LIMIT APPLIES

jECa
PER:

LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE 2,000,000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG 2,000,000

B

AUTOMOBILE

f.

LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

g
P.

AUTOS
SCHEDULED

NON - OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

Y Y 51 UECBD7944 06/09/2023 06/09/2024

UUMWINEU SINGLE LIMI t

Ea accident) 1,000,000

BODILY INJURY ( Per person)

BODILY INJURY ( Per accident) 5

PROPER 1Y DAMAGE
Per accident)

C x
UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS -MADE HXS 1001910 01 06/09/2023 06/09/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE 1,000,000

AGGREGATE 1,000,000

DED RETENTION $

WORKERS COMPENSATION

1i1ND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

PRIET

EREXRT
E ECUTIVEADANYYIPRNERPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

Mandatory In NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y/ N

Y N / A 51 WEC BA8T7Y 01/03/2024 01/03/2025

X
PER
STATUTE

011+

ER

E L. EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 1,000,000

F PRODUCT LIABILITY
PL 3288670-04 03/12/2024 03/12/2025

EACH OCC

PROD - COMP AGG

51,000,000

52,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS I VEHICLES ( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

City Of Lathrop is listed as additional insured per written contract or agreement per attached general liability and commercial auto endorsement

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

City Of Lathrop

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Amituf xy Macy,

ACORD 25 ( 2016/03)

1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

109



POLICY NUMBER: LHA142219 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 2011 1219

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - MANAGERS OR
LESSORS OF PREMISES

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Designation Of Premises ( Part Leased To You):
ANY PREMISES REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT AND AS PER PARAGRAPHS A.
AND B. BELOW

Name Of Person(s) Or Organization(s) (Additional Insured):
ANY PERSON(S) OR ORGANIZATION(S) REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT AND AS
PER PARAGRAPHS A. AND B. BELOW

Additional Premium: $ INCLUDED

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to

include as an additional insured the person(s) or

organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only
with respect to liability for " bodily injury",
property damage" or " personal and advertising

injury" caused, in whole or in part, by you or

those acting on your behalf in connection with
the ownership, maintenance or use of that part of
the premises leased to you and shown in the
Schedule and subject to the following additional
exclusions:

This insurance does not apply to:

1. Any " occurrence" which takes place after you
cease to be a tenant in that premises.

2. Structural alterations, new construction or

demolition operations performed by or on

behalf of the person(s) or organization(s)
shown in the Schedule.

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional
insured only applies to the extent permitted
by law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured
is required by a contract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which you are

required by the contract or agreement to

provide for such additional insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following is added to

Section III — Limits Of Insurance:

If coverage provided to the additional insured is

required by a contract or agreement, the most we

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the

amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

2. Available under the applicable limits of

insurance;

whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the

applicable limits of insurance.

CG 2011 1219 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1
110



POLICY NUMBER: LHA142219 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20 18 12 19

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED -

MORTGAGEE, ASSIGNEE OR RECEIVER

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name(s) Of Personss) Or Organizations)
ANY PERSON(S) OR ORGANIZATION(S) REQUIRED
BY WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT AND AS
PER PARAGRAPHS A., B., AND C. BELOW

Designation Of Premises

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to
include as an additional insured the person(s) or

organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only
with respect to their liability as mortgagee,
assignee or receiver and arising out of the

ownership, maintenance or use of the premises by
you and shown in the Schedule.

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional
insured only applies to the extent permitted by
law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is

required by a contract or agreement, the

insurance afforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which you are

required by the contract or agreement to

provide for such additional insured.

B. This insurance does not apply to structural
alterations, new construction and demolition

operations performed by or for that person or

organization.

C. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following is added to
Section III — Limits Of Insurance:

If coverage provided to the additional insured is

required by a contract or agreement, the most we

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

2. Available under the applicable limits of

insurance;
whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the

applicable limits of insurance.

CG 20 18 12 19 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1 
111



POLICY NUMBER: LHA142219 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20 37 1219

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - COMPLETED OPERATIONS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s)
Or Organization(s)

ANY PERSON(S) OR ORGANIZATION(S) REQUIRED
BY WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT AND AS
PER PARAGRAPHS A. AND B. BELOW

Location And Description Of Completed Operations

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to B.
include as an additional insured the person(s) or

organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only
with respect to liability for " bodily injury" or

property damage" caused, in whole or in part, by
your work" at the location designated and

described in the Schedule of this endorsement

performed for that additional insured and included
in the "products -completed operations hazard".

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional
insured only applies to the extent permitted by
law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured
is required by a contract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which you are

required by the contract or agreement to

provide for such additional insured.

With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following is added to
Section III — Limits Of Insurance:

If coverage provided to the additional insured is

required by a contract or agreement, the most we

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

2. Available under the applicable limits of
insurance;

whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the

applicable limits of insurance.

CG 20 37 12 19 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1
112



POLICY NUMBER: W
r ' . ,

9 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG20101219

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s)
Or Organization(s) Location(s) Of Covered Operations

ANY PERSON(S) OR ORGANIZATION(S) REQUIRED

BY WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT AND AS

PER PARAGRAPHS A., B., AND C. BELOW

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to

include as an additional insured the person(s) or

organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only
with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property
damage" or " personal and advertising injury"
caused, in whole or in part, by:
1. Your acts or omissions; or

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your
behalf;

in the performance of your ongoing operations for
the additional insured(s) at the location(s)
designated above.

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional

insured only applies to the extent permitted by
law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured
is required by a contract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which you are

required by the contract or agreement to

provide for such additional insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following additional
exclusions apply:
This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or

property damage" occurr ing after:

1. All work, including materials, parts or

equipment furnished in connection with such

work, on the project ( other than service,
maintenance or repairs) to be performed by or

on behalf of the additional insured(s) at the
location of the covered operations has been

completed; or

CG 20 10 12 19 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 2

113



2. That portion of " your work" out of which the

injury or damage arises has been put to its
intended use by any person or organization
other than another contractor or subcontractor

engaged in performing operations for a

principal as a part of the same project.
C. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

additional insureds, the following is added to

Section III — Limits Of Insurance:

If coverage provided to the additional insured is

required by a contract or agreement, the most we

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

2. Available under the applicable limits of

insurance;

whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the

applicable limits of insurance.

CG 20 10 12 19 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 2 of 2
114



POLICY NUMBER: LHA142219 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 12 12 19

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - STATE OR GOVERNMENTAL
AGENCY OR SUBDIVISION OR POLITICAL

SUBDIVISION - PERMITS OR AUTHORIZATIONS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

State Or Governmental Agency Or Subdivision Or Political Subdivision:

ANY STATE OR GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY OR SUBDIVISION OR POLITICAL SUBDIVISION TO WHOM
OR TO WHICH YOU ARE OBLIGATED BY THE ISSUANCE OR EXISTENCE OF A WRITTEN PERMIT TO

PROVIDE INSURANCE SUCH AS IS AFFORDED BY THIS POLICY.

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to
include as an additional insured any state or

governmental agency or subdivision or political
subdivision shown in the Schedule, subject to the

following provisions:
1. This insurance applies only with respect to

operations performed by you or on your behalf

for which the state or governmental agency or

subdivision or political subdivision has issued a

permit or authorization.

However:

a. The insurance afforded to such additional
insured only applies to the extent permitted
by law; and

b. If coverage provided to the additional

insured is required by a contract or

agreement, the insurance afforded to such

additional insured will not be broader than

that which you are required by the contract

or agreement to provide for such additional

insured.

2. This insurance does not apply to:

a. "Bodily injury", " property damage" or

personal and advertising injury" arising out
of operations performed for the federal

government, state or municipality; or

b. "Bodily injury" or " property damage"
included within the " products -completed
operations hazard".

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following is added to

Section III — Limits Of Insurance:

If coverage provided to the additional insured is

required by a contract or agreement, the most we

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

2. Available under the applicable limits of

insurance;

whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the

applicable limits of insurance.

CG 20 12 1219 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1

115



POLICY NUMBER: LHA142219 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

AMENDMENT - AGGREGATE LIMITS OF INSURANCE

PER PROJECT)
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART.

The General Aggregate Limit under LIMITS OF INSURANCE ( SECTION III) applies separately to each of your
projects away from premises owned by or rented to you.

CG 25 0311 85 Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc., 1984 Page 1 of 1 0
116



Policy Number: LHA142219 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 01 12 19

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

PRIMARY AND NONCONTRIBUTORY -
OTHER INSURANCE CONDITION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to the Other Insurance

Condition and supersedes any provision to the

contrary:

Primary And Noncontributory Insurance

This insurance is primary to and will not seek

contribution from any other insurance available

to an additional insured under your policy
provided that:

1) The additional insured is a Named Insured

under such other insurance; and

2) You have agreed in writing in a contract or

agreement that this insurance would be

primary and would not seek contribution

from any other insurance available to the

additional insured.

CG 20 01 1219 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1

117



LANDMARK AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY

This Endorsement Changes The Policy. Please Read It Carefully.

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST

OTHERS TO US

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

SCHEDULE

Name of Person or Organization:

Any Person or Organization As Required By Written Contract

The following is added to SECTION IV — CONDITIONS, 8. TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST
OTHERS TO US:

We waive any right of recovery we may have against the person or organization shown in the SCHEDULE above
because of payment we make for injury or damage arising out of your ongoing operations, "your product" or " your
work" done under a written contract with that person or organization and included in the " product -completed
operations hazard". This waiver applies only to the person or organization shown in the SCHEDULE above.

This endorsement effective 6/9/2023
forms part of Policy Number LHA142219

issued to ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC

by Landmark American Insurance Company

RSG 14048 1008 Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 1992
with its permission.

118



COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE
HA 99 16 12 21

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE BROAD FORM
ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

To the extent that the provisions of this endorsement provide broader benefits to the " insured" than other

provisions of the Coverage Form, the provisions of this endorsement apply.

1. BROAD FORM INSURED

Paragraph . 1. - WHO IS AN INSURED - of

Section II - Liability Coverage is amended to

add the following:
d. Subsidiaries and Newly Acquired or

Formed Organizations
The Named Insured shown in the Declarations

is amended to include:

1) Any legal business entity other than a

partnership or joint venture, formed as a

subsidiary in which you have an

ownership interest of more than 50% on

the effective date of the Coverage Form.

However, the Named Insured does not

include any subsidiary that is an " insured"

under any other automobile policy or

would be an " insured" under such a policy
but for its termination or the exhaustion of

its Limit of Insurance.

2) Any organization that is acquired or

formed by you and over which you
maintain majority ownership. However,
the Named Insured does not include any

newly formed or acquired organization:

a) That is a partnership or joint venture,

b) That is an " insured" under any other

policy,

c) That has exhausted its Limit of

Insurance under any other policy, or

d) 180 days or more after its acquisition
or formation by you, unless you have

given us notice of the acquisition or

formation.

Coverage does not apply to " bodily injury"
or " property damage" that results from an

accident" that occurred before you
formed or acquired the organization.

e. Employees as Insureds

1). Any " employee" of yours while using a

covered " auto" you don't own, hire or

borrow in your business or your personal
affairs.

f. Lessors as Insureds

1). The lessor of a covered " auto" while the

auto" is leased to you under a written

agreement if:

a) The agreement requires you to

provide direct primary insurance for

the lessor and

b) The " auto" is leased without a driver.

Such a leased " auto" will be considered a

covered " auto" you own and not a covered
auto" you hire.

Additional Insured if Required by Contract

1) When you have agreed, in a written

contract or written agreement, that a

person or organization be added as an

additional insured on your business auto

policy, such person or organization is an

insured", but only to the extent such

person or organization is liable for " bodily
injury" or " property damage" caused by
the conduct of an " insured" under

paragraphs a. or b. of Who Is An Insured
with regard to the ownership,
maintenance or use of a covered " auto."

The insurance afforded to any such

additional insured applies only if the

bodily injury" or " property damage"
occurs:

g.

a) During the policy period, and

b) Subsequent to the execution of such

written contract, and

Form HA 9916 12 21

2021, The Hartford
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.)

Page 1 of 5

119



c) Prior to the expiration of the period of

time that the written contract requires
such insurance be provided to the

additional insured.

2) How Limits Apply
If you have agreed in a written contract or

written agreement that another person or

organization be added as an additional

insured on your policy, the most we will

pay on behalf of such additional insured is

the lesser of:

a) The limits of insurance specified in the

written contract or written agreement;
or

b) The Limits of Insurance shown in the

Declarations.

Such amount shall be a part of and not in

addition to Limits of Insurance shown in

the Declarations and described in this

Section.

Additional Insureds Other Insurance

If we cover a claim or " suit" under this

Coverage Part that may also be covered

by other insurance available to an

additional insured, such additional insured

must submit such claim or " suit" to the

other insurer for defense and indemnity.

However, this provision does not apply to

the extent that you have agreed in a

written contract or written agreement that

this insurance is primary and

non-contributory with the additional

insured's own insurance.

4) Duties in The Event Of Accident, Claim,
Suit or Loss

If you have agreed in a written contract or

written agreement that another person or

organization be added as an additional

insured on your policy, the additional
insured shall be required to comply with

the provisions in LOSS CONDITIONS 2. -

DUTIES IN THE EVENT OF ACCIDENT,
CLAIM , SUIT OR LOSS — OF SECTION

IV — BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS, in

the same manner as the Named Insured.

2. Primary and Non -Contributory if Required
by Contract

Only with respect to insurance provided to an

additional insured in A.1.g. - Additional

Insured If Required by Contract, the following
provisions apply:

1) Primary Insurance When Required By
Contract

3)

This insurance is primary if you have

agreed in a written contract or written

agreement that this insurance be primary.
If other insurance is also primary, we will

share with all that other insurance by the
method described in Other Insurance 5.d.

2) Primary And Non -Contributory To Other

Insurance When Required By Contract

If you have agreed in a written contract or

written agreement that this insurance is

primary and non-contributory with the

additional insured's own insurance, this

insurance is primary and we will not seek

contribution from that other insurance.

Paragraphs ( 1) and ( 2) do not apply to other

insurance to which the additional insured has

been added as an additional insured.

When this insurance is excess, we will have

no duty to defend the insured against any
suit" if any other insurer has a duty to defend

the insured against that " suit". If no other

insurer defends, we will undertake to do so,

but we will be entitled to the insured's rights
against all those other insurers.

When this insurance is excess over other

insurance, we will pay only our share of the

amount of the loss, if any, that exceeds the
sum of:

1) The total amount that all such other

insurance would pay for the loss in the

absence of this insurance; and

2) The total of all deductible and self -insured

amounts under all that other insurance.

We will share the remaining loss, if any, by
the method described in SECTION IV -

Business Auto Conditions, B. General

Conditions, Other Insurance 5.d.

3. AUTOS RENTED BY EMPLOYEES

Any " auto" hired or rented by your " employee" on

your behalf and at your direction will be

considered an "auto" you hire.

The SECTION IV- Business Auto Conditions, B.
General Conditions, 5. OTHER INSURANCE
Condition is amended by adding the following:
e. If an " employee's" personal insurance also

applies on an excess basis to a covered
auto" hired or rented by your " employee" on

your behalf and at your direction, this

insurance will be primary to the " employee's"
personal insurance.

Page 2 of 5 Form HA 99 16 12 21
120



4. AMENDED FELLOW EMPLOYEE EXCLUSION

EXCLUSION 5. - FELLOW EMPLOYEE - of

SECTION II - LIABILITY COVERAGE does not

apply if you have workers' compensation
insurance in -force covering all of your

employees".

Coverage is excess over any other collectible

insurance.

5. HIRED AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE

If hired " autos" are covered " autos" for Liability
Coverage and if Comprehensive, Specified
Causes of Loss, or Collision coverages are

provided under this Coverage Form for any " auto"

you own, then the Physical Damage Coverages
provided are extended to " autos" you hire or

borrow, subject to the following limit.

The most we will pay for " loss" to any hired " auto"

is:

1) $100,000;

2) The actual cash value of the damaged or

stolen property at the time of the " loss"; or

3) The cost of repairing or replacing the

damaged or stolen property,

whichever is smallest, minus a deductible. The

deductible will be equal to the largest deductible

applicable to any owned " auto" for that coverage.
No deductible applies to " loss" caused by fire or

lightning. Hired Auto Physical Damage coverage
is excess over any other collectible insurance.

Subject to the above limit, deductible and excess

provisions, we will provide coverage equal to the

broadest coverage applicable to any covered

auto" you own.

We will also cover loss of use of the hired " auto" if

it results from an " accident", you are legally liable

and the lessor incurs an actual financial loss,

subject to a maximum of $ 1000 per "accident".

This extension of coverage does not apply to any
auto" you hire or borrow from any of your

employees", partners ( if you are a partnership),
members ( if you are a limited liability company),
or members of their households.

6. PHYSICAL DAMAGE - ADDITIONAL

TEMPORARY TRANSPORTATION EXPENSE

COVERAGE

Paragraph A.4.a. of SECTION III - PHYSICAL

DAMAGE COVERAGE is amended to provide a

limit of $ 50 per day and a maximum limit of

1,000.

7. LOAN/LEASE GAP COVERAGE

Under SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE

COVERAGE, in the event of a total " loss" to a

covered " auto", we will pay your additional legal

obligation for any difference between the actual

cash value of the " auto" at the time of the " loss"

and the "outstanding balance" of the loan/lease.

Outstanding balance" means the amount you
owe on the loan/lease at the time of " loss" less

any amounts representing taxes; overdue

payments; penalties, interest or charges resulting
from overdue payments; additional mileage
charges; excess wear and tear charges; lease

termination fees; security deposits not returned by
the lessor; costs for extended warranties, credit

life Insurance, health, accident or disability
insurance purchased with the loan or lease; and

carry-over balances from previous loans or

leases.

8. AIRBAG COVERAGE

Under Paragraph B. EXCLUSIONS - of SECTION

III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, the

following is added:

The exclusion relating to mechanical breakdown

does not apply to the accidental discharge of an

airbag.

9. ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT - BROADENED

COVERAGE

a. The exceptions to Paragraphs B.4 -

EXCLUSIONS - of SECTION III - PHYSICAL

DAMAGE COVERAGE are replaced by the

following:

Exclusions 4.c. and 4.d. do not apply to

equipment designed to be operated solely by
use of the power from the " auto's" electrical

system that, at the time of " loss", is:

1) Permanently installed in or upon the

covered " auto";

2) Removable from a housing unit which is

permanently installed in or upon the

covered " auto";

3) An integral part of the same unit housing
any electronic equipment described in

Paragraphs ( 1) and ( 2) above; or

4) Necessary for the normal operation of the
covered " auto" or the monitoring of the
covered " auto's" operating system.

b. Section III, Physical Damage Coverage, Limit

of Insurance, Paragraph C.2. is amended to

add the following:

1,500 is the most we will pay for " loss" in

any one " accident" to all electronic equipment
other than equipment designed solely for the

reproduction of sound, and accessories used

with such equipment) that reproduces,
receives or transmits audio, visual or data

signals which, at the time of " loss", is:

Form HA 99 16 12 21 Page 3 of 5
121



1) Permanently installed in or upon the

covered " auto" in a housing, opening or

other location that is not normally used by
the " auto" manufacturer for the installation

of such equipment;

2) Removable from a permanently installed

housing unit as described in Paragraph
2.a. above or is an integral part of that

equipment; or

3) An integral part of such equipment.

c. For each covered " auto", should loss be

limited to electronic equipment only, our

obligation to pay for, repair, return or replace
damaged or stolen electronic equipment will

be reduced by the applicable deductible

shown in the Declarations, or $ 250, whichever

deductible is less.

10. EXTRA EXPENSE • BROADENED COVERAGE

Under Paragraph A. - COVERAGE - of SECTION

III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE, we will

pay for the expense of returning a stolen covered

auto" to you.

11. GLASS REPAIR - WAIVER OF DEDUCTIBLE

Under Paragraph D. - DEDUCTIBLE - of

SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE,
the following is added:

No deductible applies to glass damage if the glass
is repaired rather than replaced.

12. TWO OR MORE DEDUCTIBLES

Under Paragraph D. - DEDUCTIBLE - of

SECTION III - PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE,
the following is added:

If another Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc.

company policy or coverage form that is not an

automobile policy or coverage form applies to the

same " accident", the following applies:

1) If the deductible under this Business Auto

Coverage Form is the smaller ( or smallest)
deductible, it will be waived;

2) If the deductible under this Business Auto

Coverage Form is not the smaller ( or

smallest) deductible, it will be reduced by the

amount of the smaller ( or smallest)
deductible.

13. AMENDED DUTIES IN THE EVENT OF

ACCIDENT, CLAIM, SUIT OR LOSS

The requirement in LOSS CONDITIONS 2.a. -

DUTIES IN THE EVENT OF ACCIDENT, CLAIM,
SUIT OR LOSS - of SECTION IV - BUSINESS
AUTO CONDITIONS that you must notify us of an

accident" applies only when the " accident" is

known to:

1) You, if you are an individual;

2) A partner, if you are a partnership;

3) A member, if you are a limited liability
company; or

4) An executive officer or insurance manager, if

you are a corporation.
14. UNINTENTIONAL FAILURE TO DISCLOSE

HAZARDS

If you unintentionally fail to disclose any hazards

existing at the inception date of your policy, we

will not deny coverage under this Coverage Form

because of such failure.

15. HIRED AUTO - COVERAGE TERRITORY

SECTION IV, BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS,
PARAGRAPH B. GENERAL CONDITIONS, 7. -

POLICY PERIOD, COVERAGE TERRITORY - is

added to include the following:

6) For short-term hired " autos", the coverage

territory with respect to Liability Coverage is

anywhere in the world provided that if the

insured's" responsibility to pay damages for

bodily injury" or " property damage" is

determined in a " suit," the " suit" is brought in

the United States of America, the territories

and possessions of the United States of

America, Puerto Rico or Canada or in a

settlement we agree to.

16. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

Paragraph 5. TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF

RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS TO US - of

SECTION IV - BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS

A. Loss Conditions is amended by adding the

following:
We waive any right of recovery we may have

against any person or organization with whom you
have a written contract that requires such waiver
because of payments we make for damages
under this Coverage Form.

17. RESULTANT MENTAL ANGUISH COVERAGE

The definition of " bodily injury" in SECTION V -

DEFINITIONS, C. is replaced by the following:

Bodily injury" means bodily injury, sickness or

disease sustained by any person, including
mental anguish or death resulting from any of
these.

18. EXTENDED CANCELLATION CONDITION

Paragraph 2. of the COMMON POLICY

CONDITIONS - CANCELLATION - applies except
as follows:

If we cancel for any reason other than

nonpayment of premium, we will mail or deliver to
the first Named Insured written notice of

cancellation at least 60 days before the effective

date of cancellation.

Page4of5 Form HA 9916 12 21

122



19. HYBRID, ELECTRIC, OR NATURAL GAS

VEHICLE PAYMENT COVERAGE

In the event of a total loss to a " non -hybrid" auto

for which Comprehensive, Specified Causes of

Loss, or Collision coverages are provided under

this Coverage Form, then such Physical Damage

Coverages are amended as follows:

a. If the auto is replaced with a " hybrid" auto or

an auto powered solely by electricity or

natural gas, we will pay an additional 10%, to

a maximum of $ 2,500, of the " non -hybrid"
auto's actual cash value or replacement cost,
whichever is less,

b. The auto must be replaced and a copy of a

bill of sale or new lease agreement received

by us within 60 calendar days of the date of

loss,"

c. Regardless of the number of autos deemed a

total loss, the most we will pay under this

Hybrid, Electric, or Natural Gas Vehicle

Payment Coverage provision for any one

loss" is $ 10,000.

For the purposes of the coverage provision,
a. A " non - hybrid" auto is defined as an auto that

uses only an internal combustion engine to

move the auto but does not include autos

powered solely by electricity or natural gas.

b. A " hybrid" auto is defined as an auto with an

internal combustion engine and one or more

electric motors; and that uses the internal

combustion engine and one or more electric

motors to move the auto, or the internal

combustion engine to charge one or more

electric motors, which move the auto.

20. VEHICLE WRAP COVERAGE

In the event of a total loss to an " auto" for which

Comprehensive, Specified Causes of Loss, or

Collision coverages are provided under this

Coverage Form, then such Physical Damage
Coverages are amended to add the following:
In addition to the actual cash value of the " auto",

we will pay up to $ 1,000 for vinyl vehicle wraps
which are displayed on the covered " auto" at the

time of total loss. Regardless of the number of

autos deemed a total loss, the most we will pay
under this Vehicle Wrap Coverage provision for

any one " loss" is $ 5,000. For purposes of this

coverage provision, signs or other graphics
painted or magnetically affixed to the vehicle are

not considered vehicle wraps.

Form HA 99 16 12 21 Page 5 of 5123



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION PAGE

INSURER: Hartford Casualty Insurance Company
NCCI Company Number: 14397 Audit Period: ANNUAL

Policy Effective Date: 01/03/24 Policy Expiration Date: 01/03/25

Policy Number: 51 WEC BA8T7Y Endorsement Number: 002

Effective Date: 03/22/24 Effective hour is the same as stated on the Information Page of the policy.
Named Insured and Address: ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC

1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD STE 110

ROSEVILLE CA 95678

FEIN Number: 27-3118908

Producer Name: NAVO FIN INC INS AND FIN SOLUTIONS

It is agreed that the policy is amended as follows:

Producer Code: 51135504

This is NOT a bill. However, any changes in your premium will be reflected in your next billing statement. You will receive

a separate bill from The Hartford.

In consideration of an additional premium of $ 131, it is agreed that:

Policy is amended to add the following condition(s):

Waiver of Our Right to Recover from Others Endorsement

Policy is amended to add the following Endorsement Forms reflecting the changes made to your policy.

WC040306

WC990006A(.2)

Policy is amended to revise the following Endorsement Forms reflecting the changes made to your policy.

G-4119-0

WC990006A(.1P)

Countersigned by

Authorized Representative

Form WC 99 00 06 A ( 1) Printed in U.S.A. Page 1
Process Date: 03/22/24 Policy Expiration Date: 01/03/25

124



CHANGE IN INFORMATION PAGE ( Continued)

Policy Number: 51 WEC BA8T7Y

SCHEDULE

IT IS AGREED THAT THE POLICY IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS:

CLASS CODE NUMBER AND DESCRIPTION

CA - Location 1

Rating Period: 01/03/2024-03/22/2024

7605

SECURITY ALARM, FIRE ALARM OR LIFE SAFETY

SYSTEMS INSTALLATION, SERVICE OR REPAIR -

INCLUDING SHOP, YARD OR STORAGE OPERATIONS

8742

SALESPERSONS - OUTSIDE

8810

CLERICAL OFFICE EMPLOYEES - N 0 C

Rating Period: 03/22/2024-01/03/2025

7605

SECURITY ALARM, FIRE ALARM OR LIFE SAFETY

SYSTEMS INSTALLATION, SERVICE OR REPAIR -

INCLUDING SHOP, YARD OR STORAGE OPERATIONS

8742

SALESPERSONS - OUTSIDE

8810

CLERICAL OFFICE EMPLOYEES -N 0 C

Rating Period: 01/03/2024-01/03/2025

7605

SECURITY ALARM, FIRE ALARM OR LIFE SAFETY

SYSTEMS INSTALLATION, SERVICE OR REPAIR -
INCLUDING SHOP, YARD OR STORAGE OPERATIONS
8742

SALESPERSONS - OUTSIDE

8810

CLERICAL OFFICE EMPLOYEES -N 0 C

Total State Summary

Total Class Premium

CA Territorial Differential

Waiver charge
Schedule Rating Factor

Premium discount

Expense constant

Terrorism Risk Insurance Program Reauthorization Act
Disclosure Endorsement
CA User Fund

Form WC 99 00 06 A ( 1) Printed in U.S.A.
Process Date: 03/22/24

ESTIMATED

TOTAL ANNUAL

REMUNERATION

45,112.00

201,169.00

177,426.00

163,888.00

730,831.00

644,574.00

209,000.00

932,000.00

822,000.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

RATES PER 100

OF

REMUNERATION

3.950000

0.500000

0.350000

3.950000

0.500000

0.350000

3.950000

0.500000

0.350000

0.877000

0.020000
0.500000

0.010000

0.020000

ESTIMATED

ANNUAL

PREMIUMS

1,782

1,006

621

6,474

3,654

2,256

8,256

4,660

2,877

0

1

248

125

2

0

0

2.460400 4

Page 2

Policy Expiration Date: 01/03/25

125



CHANGE IN INFORMATION PAGE ( Continued)

Policy Number: 51 WEC BA8T7Y

SCHEDULE

IT IS AGREED THAT THE POLICY IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS:

CLASS CODE NUMBER AND DESCRIPTION ESTIMATED RATES PER 100 ESTIMATED

TOTAL ANNUAL OF ANNUAL

RENUMERATION RENUMERATION PREMIUMS

CA Fraud 0.00 0.412200 1

CA Uninsured Employers Benefit Trust Fund 0.00 0.150500 0

CA Subsequent Injuries Benefit Trust Fund Assessments 0.00 1.589100 3

CA Occupational Safety & Health Fund 0.00 0.726600 1

CA Labor Enforcement & Compliance Fund 0.00 0.710900 0

California Total Cost 131

Form WC 99 00 06 A ( 1) Printed in U.S.A. Page 3
Process Date: 03/22/24 Policy Expiration Date: 01/03/25

126



THE
HARTFORD

POLICY HOLDER NOTICE - PAYROLL BILLING

Thank you for choosing The Hartford. Your policy is on our payroll billing method. The payroll billing method uses actual

payrolls received throughout the policy period and a blended rate(s) to determine premiums due during the policy period.
To learn more about how your premium is calculated on the payroll billing method please visit:

https://www.thehartford.com/blended

Below are the blended rate(s) being used for each state and classification code on your policy:

State Class Code Blended Rate Effective

1: 1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD

STE 110, ROSEVILLE, CA

8810 0.180000 01/03/2024

1: 1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD

STE 110, ROSEVILLE, CA

7605 1.850000 01/03/2024

1: 1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD

STE 110, ROSEVILLE, CA

8742 0.250000 01/03/2024

1: 1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD

STE 110, ROSEVILLE, CA

8742 0.260000 03/22/2024

1: 1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD

STE 110, ROSEVILLE, CA

7605 1.890000 03/22/2024

1: 1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD

STE 110, ROSEVILLE, CA

8810 0.190000 03/22/2024

Form G-4119-0 Printed in U.S.A.

2017, The Hartford

127



AC- Rd
CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE ( MM/DD/YYYY)

03/22/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE

HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE

AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE

ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,

subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does

not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
PRODUCER

NAVO FIN INC INS AND FIN SOLUTIONS

51135504

2045 SOUTH COURT STREET

VISALIA CA 93277

CONTACT NAME:

PHONE ( 559) 733-5169

IA/c, No, Bay

Fax

ac, No):

E-MAIL ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A: Hartford Casualty Insurance Company 29424

INSURED

ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC

1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD STE 110

ROSEVILLE CA 95678-7052

INSURER B :

INSURER C:

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED.NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE

TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

LTR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

INSR

SUER

WVD
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF

MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP

MMIDD/YYY()
LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

OCCUR

L_J

EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS - MADE] DAMAGE TO RENTED

PREMISES ( Ea occurrence)

MED EXP ( Any one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES

POLICY  
PRO-

JECT

OTHER:

PER:

LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED

AUTOS

HIRED

AUTOS

SCHEDULED

NON - OWNED

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

Ea accident)

BODILY INJURY ( Per person)

AUTOS
BODILY INJURY ( Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE

Per accident)

UMBRELLA L1AB

EXCESS LIAR

OCCUR

CLAIMS -

MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

DED RETENTION $

A

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS- LIABILITY

ANY Y/N

PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE r-
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? L
Mandatory in NH)

If yes, describe under

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

NIA X 51 WEC BA8T7Y 01/03/2024 01/03/2025

x PER OTH-

STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES ( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Those usual to the Insured's Operations.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER
For Informational Purposes Only
1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD STE 110

ROSEVILLE CA 95678-7052

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED

BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

i .,) of C -Z

ACORD 25 ( 2016/03)

1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

128



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

WAIVER OF OUR RIGHT TO RECOVER FROM

OTHERS ENDORSEMENT - CALIFORNIA

Policy Number: 51 WEC BA8T7Y Endorsement Number: 002

Effective Date: 03/22/24 Effective hour is the same as stated on the Information Page of the policy.
Named Insured and Address: ICU Technologies Inc

1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD STE 110

ROSEVILLE CA 95678

We have the right to recover our payments from anyone liable for an injury covered by this policy. We will not enforce our

right against the person or organization named in the Schedule. ( This agreement applies only to the extent that you

perform work under a written contract that requires you to obtain this agreement from us.)

You must maintain payroll records accurately segregating the remuneration of your employees while engaged in the work

described in the Schedule.

The additional premium for this endorsement shall be 2 % of the California workers' compensation premium otherwise due

on such remuneration.

SCHEDULE

Person or Organization Job Description

Any person or organization for whom you are required by written contract or agreement to obtain this waiver of rights from

us

Countersigned by
Authorized Representative

Form WC 04 03 06 ( 1) Printed in U.S.A.

Process Date: 03/22/24 Policy Expiration Date: 01/03/25

129



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC#:

AGENCY

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 2 of 2

NAVO FIN INC INS AND FIN SOLUTIONS

POLICY NUMBER

SEE ACORD 25

CARRIER

SEE ACORD 25

NAIC CODE

NAMED INSURED

ICU TECHNOLOGIES INC

1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD STE 110

ROSEVILLE CA 95678-7052

EFFECTIVE DATE: SEE ACORD 25

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM

FORM NUMBER: ACORD 25 FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Waiver of Subrogation applies in favor of the Certificate Holder per the Broad Form Endorsement - Extended Option WC990301,
attached to this policy.

ACORD 101 ( 2014/01) 2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

130



THE

HARTFORD

THE HARTFORD

BUSINESS SERVICE CENTER

3600 WISEMAN BLVD

SAN ANTONIO TX 78251

For Informational Purposes Only
1382 BLUE OAKS BLVD STE 110
ROSEVILLE CA 95678-7052

Account Information:

Policy Holder Details : ICU Technologies Inc

March 22, 2024

Ft Contact Us

Need Help?
Chat online or call us at

866) 467-8730.

We're here Monday - Friday.

Enclosed please find a Certificate Of Insurance for the above referenced Policyholder. Please contact us if you have any
questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Your Hartford Service Team

WLTROO5

131



PAGE LEFT

INTENTIONALLY

BLANK

132



ITEM 4.7

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER AMUSEMENTS, INC. FOR

LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT TO PROVIDE LAW

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR ANNUAL CARNIVAL

EVENT ON APRIL 18, 2024 THROUGH APRIL 21, 2024

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Approving Professional Services

Agreement with Butler Amusement, Inc. for Lathrop
Police Department to Provide Law Enforcement

Services for their Annual Carnival Event on April 18,
2024 through April 21, 2024

SUMMARY:

Butler Amusements, Inc. (Butler) is holding its annual carnival for 2024 at 1401 River

Islands Parkway ( APN 213-310-40). The event is scheduled to be held from April 18,

2024 through April 21, 2024. Set up for the event will begin on April 15, 2024 and

teardown will be on April 21, 2024. Butler is contracting with a private security firm

to provide security for the duration of the event. In addition, Butler has requested
law enforcement services from the City of Lathrop Police Department ( LPD) for their

event for additional security. The Lathrop Police Department is requiring two ( 2)
Police Officers and one ( 1) Community Service Officer ( CSO) during the peak hours

of the event as detailed in the table below:

Date No. of

Officers

No. of

CSOs

Hours Total

Hours

Friday, April 19 2 1 4:30PM - 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 15 Hours

Saturday, April 20 2 1 4:30PM - 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 15 Hours

Sunday, April 21 2 1 4:30PM - 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 15 Hours

The total hours required for the duration of the event is thirty ( 30) police officer

overtime hours and fifteen ( 15) CSO overtime hours. LPD is able to provide the

required overtime hours for the carnival. Butler has further agreed to pay the cost of

additional law enforcement services should circumstances require additional hours or

mutual aid from other agencies to restore or secure public safety at the event.

Staff recommends City Council approve the agreement to authorize LPD to provide
law enforcement services for Butler Amusement's annual carnival event.

133



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS, INC. FOR LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT TO PROVIDE LAW

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT ON APRIL 18,
2024 THROUGH APRIL 21, 2024

BACKGROUND:

Butler holds an annual carnival during the month of April that attracts thousands of

local attendees from the City of Lathrop and the surrounding areas. For 2023, LPD

provided law enforcement services to Butler for their annual carnival, and Butler has

requested LPD to provide law enforcement services for their carnival again this year.

LPD is able to provide the requested hours for the event.

The carnival is scheduled from April 18, 2024 through April 21, 2024 and will be held

at 1401 River Islands Parkway, near the Welcome Center in River Islands. The

carnival will consist of nineteen ( 19) amusement rides, approximately eleven ( 11)

game concessions and two ( 2) food concessions. Lathrop Police Department is

requiring a total of thirty ( 30) police officer overtime hours and fifteen ( 15) CSO

overtime hours for the duration of the event.

Lathrop Police Officers will work the hours below:

Date No. of

Officers

Hours Total

Hours

Est. OT

Hourly
Rate

Estimated

Total Cost

Friday, April 19 2 4:30PM - 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 10 108.55 1,085.50

Saturday, April 20 2 4:30PM - 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 10 108.55 1,085.50

Sunday, April 21 2 4:30PM - 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 10 108.55 1,085.50

Community Service Officers will work the hours below:

Date No. of

Officers

Hours Total

Hours

Est. OT

Hourly
Rate

Estimated

Total Cost

Friday, April 19 1 4:30PM - 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 5 60.54 302.70

Saturday, April 20 1 4:30PM - 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 5 60.54 302.70

Sunday, April 21 1 4:30PM - 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 5 60.54 302.70

LPD officers will work on a voluntary and rotational basis, and officers working the

event will do so outside of their regularly assigned work schedule.

The total estimated cost for the overtime hours requested is $ 4,166. Butler further

agrees to pay the cost of additional law enforcement services should circumstances

require a mutual aid request from other City, County, or State agencies in order to

restore or secure public safety at the event.

134



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS, INC. FOR LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT TO PROVIDE LAW

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT ON APRIL 18,
2024 THROUGH APRIL 21, 2024

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

LPD is able to provide the services requested and Butler has agreed to pay the

overtime rate to cover the costs of sworn personnel. Staff recommends Council

approve the agreement to allow LPD to provide law enforcement services for Butler's

annual carnival.

FISCAL IMPACT:

LPD overtime for the event is estimated at $ 4,166 and Butler agrees to pay this

amount as an initial deposit. At the conclusion of the event, the City will invoice Butler

for the actual cost of providing law enforcement services and apply the deposit as a

credit. Should circumstances arise requiring more hours than what was scheduled or

mutual aid from other agencies was needed, Butler will be responsible for

reimbursement of the actual hours worked and costs for mutual aid.

There is no fiscal impact to the City for this agreement, however, the budget

adjustment below is required to reflect the increase in revenue for staff time:

Increase Revenue: 1010-40-20-341-01-01 (Current Service Charges) $ 909

Increase Revenue: 1010-40-30-341-01-01 (Current Service Charges) $ 3,257
Increase Expense: 1010-40-30-410-13-00 (Overtime) $909

Increase Expense: 1010-40-20-410-13-00 (Overtime) $ 3,257

ATTACHMENTS:

A. Resolution Approving Professional Services Agreement with Butler

Amusements, Inc. for Lathrop Police Department to Provide Law Enforcement

Services for Annual Carnival Event on April 18, 2024 through April 21, 2024

B. Professional Services Agreement with Butler Amusements, Inc. for Lathrop
Police Department to Provide Law Enforcement Services for Annual Carnival

Event on April 18, 2024 through April 21, 2024

135



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS, INC. FOR LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT TO PROVIDE LAW

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT ON APRIL 18,
2024 THROUGH APRIL 21, 2024

APPROVALS:

en Sealy
Chief of Police

Cari James

Finance Dire tor

3 / 2-0 7—kt9
Da e

3M1koca2,
Date

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

3 -Z8 -VI
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

136



RESOLUTION NO. 24 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS, INC. FOR LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT TO PROVIDE LAW

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT ON APRIL 18,
2024 THROUGH APRIL 21, 2024

WHEREAS, Butler Amusements, Inc. ( Butler) is holding its annual carnival at

1401 River Islands Parkway ( APN 213-310-40); and

WHEREAS, the event is scheduled to be held from April 18, 2024 through April

21, 2024, with set up for the event to begin on April 15, 2024 and teardown will be

on April 22, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the carnival will consist of nineteen ( 19) amusement rides,

approximately eleven ( 11) game concessions and two ( 2) food concessions; and

WHEREAS, Butler is contracting with a private security firm to provide security.
for the duration of the event; and

WHEREAS, for 2023, Butler contracted with the Lathrop Police Department

LPD) to provide additional law enforcement services for their annual carnival; and

WHEREAS, Butler has requested LPD provide law enforcement services for

their annual event this year, and LPD is able to provide the requested hours; and

WHEREAS, Government Code 53069.8 allows the legislative body of any city
to contract with private entities to preserve the peace at special events or occurrences

and provide supplemental law enforcement services; and

WHEREAS, the Lathrop Police Department is requiring two ( 2) police officers

and one ( 1) Community Service Officer for the duration of the event as detailed in

the table below; and

Date No. of

Officers

No. of

CSOs

Hours Total

Hours

Friday, April 19 2 1 4:30PM - 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 15 Hours

Saturday, April 20 2 1 4:30PM - 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 15 Hours

Sunday, April 21 2 1 4:30PM - 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 15 Hours

WHEREAS, the total hours required for the duration of the event is thirty ( 30)
police officer overtime hours and fifteen ( 15) CSO overtime hours; and

WHEREAS, officers will work on a voluntary and rotational basis, and officers

working the event will do so outside of their regularly assigned work schedule; and

137



WHEREAS, Butler further agrees to pay the cost of additional law enforcement

services should circumstances require a mutual aid request from other City, County,
or State agencies in order to restore or secure public safety at the event; and

WHEREAS, overtime for the event is estimated at $ 4,166; and

WHEREAS, there is no fiscal impact to the City for this agreement, however,
the budget adjustment below is required to reflect the increase in revenue for staff

time:

Increase Revenue: 1010-40-20-341-01-01 (Current Service Charges) $ 909

Increase Revenue: 1010-40-30-341-01-01 (Current Service Charges) $ 3,257
Increase Expense: 1010-40-30-410-13-00 (Overtime) $ 909

Increase Expense: 1010-40-20-410-13-00 (Overtime) $3,257

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of

Lathrop does hereby approve the agreement with Butler Amusements, Inc. to provide
law enforcement services for the annual carnival event on April 18, 2024 through
April 21, 2024.

138



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8th day of April 2024, by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

APPROVED AS ORM:

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

139



ATTACHMENT B

CITY OF LATHROP

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER AMUSEMENTS, INC.

FOR LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT

SERVICES FOR ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT ON APRIL 18, 2024 THROUGH APRIL

21, 2024

THIS AGREEMENT for law enforcement services to BUTLER AMUSEMENTS, INC. for the

ANNUAL CARNIVAL event ( hereinafter " EVENT"), dated for convenience this 8th day of April 2024 is

by and between BUTLER AMUSEMENTS, INC., a separate and distinct entity ( hereinafter " BUTLER")

and the City of Lathrop, a California municipal corporation ( hereinafter " CITY"). The CITY and BUTLER

may be referred to herein as " Party" or collectively as " Parties".

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, BUTLER requests the CITY to provide law enforcement security services for its

EVENT; and

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to accommodate BUTLER'S request and has no objections to

providing law enforcement security services for the EVENT as allowed by Government Code 53069.8 and

reserves the right to terminate EVENT for the purposes of public safety; and

WHEREAS, any costs associated with work hours pursuant to this AGREEMENT wherein Officers

worked at the EVENT shall be paid for by BUTLER at the rate indicated in the estimated cost schedule

below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, covenants, terms, and conditions in this

Agreement, BUTLER and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1) Scope of Service

CITY's assigned police officers shall provide law enforcement security services to BUTLER'S

ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT located at 1401 River Islands Parkway, Lathrop, CA 95330 in

accordance with the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement.

A. Each police officer shall be the CITY's employee and shall be subject to the CITY's

administration, supervision, and control.

B. BUTLER agrees to the estimated costs for law enforcement security provided by the

Lathrop Police Department.

C. The estimated costs is based on the understanding that CITY shall assign Police

Officers and Community Service Officers to cover the EVENT on each requested
day on a rotational basis. Police and Community Resource Officer(s) will work from

a schedule with a total of 136 hours for the duration of the EVENT as detailed in

Section 2 Compensation below.

Page 1 of 8

140



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS, INC. FOR LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT TO PROVIDE LAW

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT APRIL 18, 2024 THROUGH

APRIL 21, 2024.

D. The CITY shall be entitled to a reimbursement should circumstances arise requiring
more hours/and or personnel and the estimated cost would be adjusted accordingly.

E. BUTLER shall be entitled to a reduction for less hours worked should circumstances

such as rain and wind) cause the EVENT to be closed or impacted. Additionally,
event hours are estimates. If the EVENT closes early, officers may work less hours.

F. BUTLER agrees to pay the CITY for all costs associated with providing law

enforcement services for the EVENT. In addition, if further resources are needed to

provide adequate security at the EVENT, including mutual aid from other agencies,
those cost will be the responsibility of BUTLER. Hourly rates for the additional

resources that are not included in the estimated cost schedule may vary.

2) Compensation

BUTLER hereby agrees to pay an initial deposit of $4,166, which is the total estimated cost of law

enforcement services as detailed in the schedule below:

Date No. of

Officers

Hours Total

Hours

Est. OT

Hourly Rate

Estimated

Total Cost

4/19/24 2 4:30PM — 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 10 108.55 1,085.50
4/20/24 2 4:30PM — 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 10 108.55 1,085.50

4/21/24 2 4:30PM — 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 10 108.55 1,085.50
Total Police Officers Estimated Cost 3,256.50

Date No. of

CSOs

Hours Total

Hours

Est. OT

Hourly Rate

Estimated

Total Cost

4/19/24 1 4:30PM — 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 5 60.54 302.70

4/20/24 1 4:30PM — 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 5 60.54 302.70

4/21/24 1 4:30PM — 9:30PM ( 5 hours) 5 60.54 302.70

Total Community Service Officers Estimated Cost s908.10

After the EVENT, CITY will invoice BUTLER for law enforcement services for actual hours of

CITY personnel and any additional resource costs incurred for the EVENT and apply the initial

deposit as a credit. Hourly rates for additional resources that may be needed to provide adequate
security at the EVENT that are not included in the estimated cost schedule above may vary.

3) Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Agreement shall be from the date of its full execution through April 21,

2024, unless terminated earlier by either party providing seven ( 7) days' written notice.

4) Employment of Officer(s) and Assivnments

CITY shall retain control over supervision, wages, and other terms and conditions of employment of

the officers providing the services under this Agreement. The parties acknowledge that such officers

are held to the requirements of the law and CITY policies and procedures. BUTLER shall

Page 2 of 8

141



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS, INC. FOR LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT TO PROVIDE LAW

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT APRIL 18, 2024 THROUGH

APRIL 21, 2024.

immediately notify the CITY of any concerns regarding the performance of the assigned officers,

including, but not limited to, adherence to quality of services as detailed in this agreement.
CITY shall assign Police Officers to cover the EVENT on each requested day on a rotational basis.

Police Officer(s) will work from a schedule as detailed in Section 2 Compensation of the Agreement,
unless otherwise adjusted due to circumstantial events as referenced in the Agreement.

5) Billings

CITY shall submit one invoice at the conclusion of the EVENT for actual law enforcement services

incurred and any additional resource costs incurred for the EVENT. BUTLER shall remit payment to

the CITY within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of invoice.

6) Supplies & Equipment

CITY shall provide each officer with the following equipment:

A. Police Vehicles: City shall,
1. Provide a standard patrol vehicle for each officer.

2. Maintain the motor vehicles assigned to each officer.

3. Purchase gasoline, oil, replacement tires, and other expenses associated with

the operation of each motor vehicle.

4. Maintain comprehensive general auto liability insurance on each motor

vehicle in an amount as is currently provided through the Central San Joaquin
Valley Risk Management Authority.

B. Weapons and Ammunition

1. CITY shall provide the standard issued weapons (handgun, shotgun, and rifle)
and rounds of ammunition for each officer.

C. Office Supplies
1. CITY shall provide each officer with the usual and customary office supplies
and forms required in the performance of their duties.

7) Compliance With the Laws

The Parties shall keep themselves informed of and in compliance with all federal, state and local

laws, ordinances, regulations, and orders that may affect in any manner performance of the Services

or those engaged to perform Services under this Agreement.

8) Insurance

A. BUTLER shall maintain commercial general liability insurance coverage at least as

broad as Insurance Services Office ( ISO) form CG 00 01, in an amount not less than

one million dollars ($ 1,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury,
and property damage, including without limitation, blanket contractual liability. If a

general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply
separately to this project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the

required occurrence limit. BUTLER general liability policies shall be primary and

shall not seek contribution from the CITY's coverage, and be endorsed using ISO

form CG 20 10 ( or equivalent) to provide that City and its officers, officials,

employees, and agents shall be additional insureds under such policies. For

Page 3 of 8

142



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS, INC. FOR LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT TO PROVIDE LAW

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT APRIL 18, 2024 THROUGH

APRIL 21, 2024.

construction projects, an endorsement providing completed operations coverage for

the additional insured, ISO form CG 20 37 ( or equivalent) is also required.

B. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies by BUTLER shall

not affect coverage provided the CITY.

C. Coverage shall state that BUTLER insurance shall apply separately to each insured

against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of

the insurer's liability.

D. Coverage shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the CITY.

9) Indemnification

A. BUTLER shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers, officials,

employees, and volunteers ( hereafter collectively City Personnel) from and against
any and all liability, claims, damage, cost, expenses, awards, fines, judgments, and

expenses of litigation ( including, without limitation, costs, attorney fees, expert
witness fees and prevailing party fees and cost) of every nature arising out of or in

connection with the any services provided by the City or any City Personnel or their

performance of work or any failure to comply with any of the City's duties

contained in the Agreement, except such loss or damage which was caused by the

gross or willful misconduct of City Personnel.

B. In the event of concurrent negligence on the part of BUTLER or any of its officers,

directors, trustees, employees, agents or volunteers, and CITY or any of its officers,

officials, employees, agents or volunteers, the liability for any and all such claims,
demands and actions in law equity for such losses, fines, penalties, forfeiture, costs

and damages shall be apportioned under the State of California's theory of

comparative negligence as presently established or as may be modified hereafter.

C. If BUTLER rejects a tender of defense by the City or City Personnel under this

Agreement, and it is later determined that the City and City Personnel breached no

duty of care and/or were immune from liability, BUTLER shall reimburse the City
and/or City Personnel for any and all litigation expenses ( including, without

limitation, costs, attorney fees, expert witness fees and prevailing party fees and

cost). A duty of care or immunity determination may be made by a jury or a court,

including a declaratory relief determination by a court after the City and/or City
Personnel settles a liability claim, with or without participation by BUTLER.

D. The Parties acknowledge that it is not the intent of the Agreement to create a duty of

care by the City or City Personnel that they would not owe in the absence of the

Agreement. The Agreement does not create an affirmative duty of care ( including,
without limitation, a duty to protect, a duty to deter and/or a duty to intervene) by
the City or City Personnel and the absence of City Personnel is not a material breach

of this Agreement. The Parties further acknowledge that by entering into this

Agreement neither the City nor City Personnel intend to waive any immunities to

which they would be entitled in the absence of the Agreement.

Page 4 of 8

143



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS, INC. FOR LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT TO PROVIDE LAW

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT APRIL 18, 2024 THROUGH

APRIL 21, 2024.

10) Integration of Prior Terms and Conditions

This Agreement, including all recitals, constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties. This

Agreement may be amended or modified only by the mutual written agreement of the Parties. This

Agreement is invalid unless approved by the legislative body of each Party, although it may be

executed by an authorized agent of each Party. An authorized agent of the City shall be a person

specifically authorized by the legislative body of the City to execute this Agreement, at the level of

City Manager or City Attorney or equivalent. The indemnity sections shall survive termination or

expiration of this agreement.

11) Termination

Either Party to this Agreement may for any reason terminate this Agreement at any time by giving
seven ( 7) days' written notice to the other party. Upon termination of this Agreement as herein

provided, BUTLER shall have no obligation to compensate of pay the CITY except for services

provided prior to termination.

12) Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change Orders, consents,

designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given by either party to the other shall be in

writing and shall be sufficiently given and served upon the other party ( 1) personally served, (2) sent

by the United States mail, postage prepaid, by certified mail ( 3) sent by private express delivery
service and addressed as follows:

To City:

Copy to:

To BUTLER:

13) Miscellaneous

City of Lathrop
City Clerk

390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

City of Lathrop
Lathrop Police Department
940 River Islands Parkway
Lathrop, CA 95330

Butler Amusements, Inc.

Attn: Andrea Stillwell

P.O. Box 2210

Fairfield, CA 94533

A. Consent. Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a party is required, such

approval or consent shall be in writing and shall be executed by a person having the express

authority to grant such approval or consent.

B. Contract Terms Prevail. All exhibits and this Agreement are intended to be construed as a

single document. Should any inconsistency occur between the specific terms of this

Agreement and attached exhibits, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

Page 5 of 8

144



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS, INC. FOR LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT TO PROVIDE LAW

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT APRIL 18, 2024 THROUGH

APRIL 21, 2024.

C. Non -Discrimination. No party shall employ any discriminatory practices in its performance
hereunder, including its employment practices, on the basis of sex, race, color, religion,
national origin, ancestry, age, sexual orientation, or physical and mental disability.

D. Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed by
and in accordance with the Laws of the State of California.

E. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or

failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, which directly results from an Act of

God or an act of a superior governmental authority.

F. Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect

upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

G. Incorporation of Documents. All documents constituting the Agreement documents

described in Section 1 hereof and all documents which may, from time to time, be referred to

in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in the Agreement
and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

H. Integration. This Agreement and any amendments hereto between the parties constitute the

entire Agreement between the parties concerning the Project and Work, and there are no

other prior oral or written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in this

Agreement.

I. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the

parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

J. Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification, restriction,

reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement shall define or otherwise control,
establish or limit the performance required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by
either party. All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to be both

covenants and conditions.

K. Severability. The invalidity in whole or part of any provision of this Agreement shall not

void or affect the validity of any other provision of this agreement. If a court of competent

jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the

provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force and effect.

L. Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and

shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns of the parties.

M. Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the parties agree that trial

of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of

San Joaquin or in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

N. Recovery of Costs. The prevailing party in any action brought to enforce the terms of this

Agreement or arising out of this Agreement may recover its reasonable costs, including
reasonable attorney's fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against the

non -prevailing party.

Page 6 of 8

145



CITY OF LATHROP — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS, INC. FOR LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT TO PROVIDE LAW

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT APRIL 18, 2024 THROUGH

APRIL 21, 2024.

14) Signatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the right, power, legal

capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective legal
entities of BUTLER and the CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon

the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 7 of 8

146



CITY OF LATHROP - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS, INC. FOR LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT TO PROVIDE LAW

ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT APRIL 18, 2024 THROUGH

APRIL 21, 2024.

In Witness Whereof, each Party to this Agreement has signed this Agreement upon the date indicated, and

agrees, for itself, its employees, officers, partners, and successors, to be fully bound by all terms and

conditions of this Agreement.

City of Lathrop: Butler Amusements, Inc.:

Recommended for Approval:

Stephen Sealy
Chief of Police

Approved By:

Date

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

Approved as to Form:

Salvador Navarrete

City Attorney

Date

Attest:

Teresa Vargas
City Clerk

Date

Andrea Stillwell Date

Butler Amusements, Inc.

Page 8 of 8147



PAGE LEFT

INTENTIONALLY

BLANK

148



ITEM 4.8

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE TASK ORDER NO. 12 WITH GOODWIN

CONSULTING GROUP, INC. FOR CITYWIDE CFF

UPDATE, CIP GG 22-01 AND APPROVE BUDGET

AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Approving Task Order No. 12 with

Goodwin Consulting Group, Inc., for the Citywide
Capital Facilities Fees Update, CIP GG 22-01 and

Approve Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

Capital Facilities Fees ( CFF's) are essential to providing a revenue source for capital
improvement projects within the City. As development progresses, it is necessary to

update the CFF's to include modifications to land uses, reimbursements for developer
installed infrastructure and adjustments to existing fees for current project costs.

Staff received a proposal from Goodwin Consulting Group, Inc. (GCG) to update the

CFF's, CIP GG 22-01. Staff requests that City Council approve Task Order No. 12

with GCG for $ 59,500. Sufficient funds were not approved in the FY 23-24 budget,
therefore; staff also requests that City Council approve a budget amendment as

detailed in the fiscal impact section below.

BACKGROUND:

On November 13, 2023, City Council approved the Central Lathrop Specific Plan

CLSP) Phase 2 Amendment changing the zoning in the CLSP Phase 2 area from

residential to limited industrial. Pursuant to the conditions of the CLSP Phase 2

Amendment, Hodgdon Group ( Developer) is required to complete a Capital Facility
Fee Study to update existing fees and establish new fees that will fund existing and

proposed infrastructure throughout the City. The change from residential to limited

industrial zoning modified the weight in which the CFF's are distributed throughout
the City and therefore, a citywide CFF update is needed.

The State of California Mitigation Fee Act ( also known as " AB 1600," Government

Code sections 66000, et seq.), identifies the required findings which must be made

by the City in any action establishing, increasing, or imposing a development impact
fee as a condition of approval of a development project. The City retained GCG to

assist in preparing fees for CLSP Phase 2, in accordance with AB 1600. GCG has

assisted the City in establishing CFF's for various specific plan areas throughout the

City.

149



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE TASK ORDER NO. 12 WITH GOODWIN CONSULTING GROUP, INC.

FOR CITYWIDE CFF UPDATE, CIP GG 22-01 AND APPROVE BUDGET

AMENDMENT

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

CFF's are essential to providing a revenue source for capital improvement projects
within the City. As development progresses, it is necessary to update the CFF's to

include modifications to land uses, reimbursements for developer installed

infrastructure and adjustments to existing fees for current project costs.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total cost of Task Order No. 12 with GCG is $ 59,500 to update the CFF's. The

Developer has funded Task Order No. 12, but the funds need to be transferred to the

project ( GG 22-01), therefore staff requests that City Council approve a budget
amendment as detailed below.

Increase Revenue

2710-80-00-372-01-00

Increase Transfer Out

2710- 9900-90-9010

Increase Transfer In

3010-9900-393-0000

Increase Appropriation
3010-8000-420-1200

ATTACHMENTS:

59,500

59,500

GG 22-01 $ 59,500

GG 22-01 $ 59,500

A. Resolution Approving Task Order No. 12 with Goodwin Consulting Group, Inc.,

for the Citywide Capital Facilities Fees Update, CIP PS 22-01 and Approve
Budget Amendment

B. Task Order No. 12 with Goodwin Consulting Group to update the Citywide
Capital Facilities Fees Update, CIP GG 20-17

150



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE TASK ORDER NO. 12 WITH GOODWIN CONSULTING GROUP, INC.

FOR CITYWIDE CFF UPDATE, CIP GG 22-01 AND APPROVE BUDGET

AMENDMENT

APPROVALS

Brad ylor
City Engineer

Cari Ja

Finance ,'- ctor

Michael King
Assistant City Manager

Salvador Navarrete

City Attorney

3/26/7432-1-1
Date

4474W
Date

3 • ZC Z.ozy
Date

2.4 1-‘4

Date

3•Z8•Z#
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

151



RESOLUTION NO. 24-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING TASK ORDER NO. 12 WITH GOODWIN CONSULTING GROUP,
INC. FOR THE CITYWIDE CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES UPDATE, CIP GG 22-01

AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, on November 13, 2023 City Council approved the Central Lathrop
Specific Plan ( CLSP) Phase 2 Amendment changing the zoning in the CLSP Phase 2

area from residential to limited industrial; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the conditions of the CLSP Phase 2 Amendment

Hodgdon Group Realty, Inc. (Developer) is required to complete a Capital Facility Fee

Study to update existing fees and establish new fees that will fund existing and

proposed infrastructure throughout the City; and

WHEREAS, the change from residential to limited industrial zoning modified

the weight in which the CFF's are distributed throughout the City and therefore, a

citywide CFF update is needed; and

WHEREAS, the State of California Mitigation Fee Act ( also known as " AB

1600," Government Code sections 66000, et seq.), identifies the required findings
which must be made by the City in any action establishing, increasing, or imposing a

development impact fee as a condition of approval of a development project. The City
retained GCG to assist in preparing fees for CLSP Phase 2, in accordance with AB

1600. GCG has assisted the City in establishing CFF's for various specific plan areas

throughout the City; and

WHEREAS, the total cost of Task Order No. 12 with GCG is $ 59,500 to update
the Citywide CFF's, CIP GG 22-01. The Developer has funded Task Order No. 12, but

the funds need to be transferred to the project; therefore, staff requests that City
Council approve a budget amendment as follows:

Increase Revenue

2710-80-00-372-01-00 $ 59,500

Increase Transfer Out

2710- 9900-90-9010 $ 59,500

Increase Transfer In

3010-9900-393-0000 GG 22-01 $ 59,500

Increase Appropriation
3010-8000-420-1200 GG 22-01 $ 59,500

152



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of

Lathrop hereby approves Task Order No. 12 with Goodwin Consulting Group, Inc. for

59,500 to update the Citywide CFF's and budget amendment as detailed above.

153



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8th day of April 2024, by the

following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

154



ATTACHMENT

CITY OF LATHROP

TASK ORDER NO. 12 PURSUANT TO MASTER CONSULTING

AGREEMENT DATED MAY 13, 2019 WITH

GOODWIN CONSULTING GROUP

TO PREPARE THE CITYWIDE CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES UPDATE,
CIP GG 22-01

THIS TASK ORDER NO. 12, dated for convenience this 8t" of April 2024 is by
and made and entered into by and between GOODWIN CONSULTING GROUP

CONSULTANT") and the CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal corporation
CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2019, CONSULTANT entered into a Master Agreement
AGREEMENT") with the CITY, and pursuant to Section 3 " Effective Date and Term," the

AGREEMENT shall automatically be renewed under the same terms and conditions by
which the CONSULTANT has agreed to prepare Capital Facilities Fees for Various

Development Projects; and

WHEREAS, at the request of the City, CONSULTANT submitted the scope of work

and fee estimate for services which are attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and incorporated
herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, the developer ( Hodgdon Group Realty, Inc.) has fully funded the cost

of this agreement, and payment has been deposited with the CITY;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1) Incorporation of Master Agreement

This Task Order No. 12 hereby incorporates by reference all terms and

conditions set forth in the Master Agreement for Consulting Services dated

May 13, 2019, unless specifically modified by this Task Order.

2) Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform services in accordance with the scope

of work and fee proposal attached hereto as Exhibit " A" to this Task Order.

CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services in accordance

with the upmost standards of its profession and to the CITY'S satisfaction.

Page 1 of 3

155



CITY OF LATHROP — TASK ORDER NO. 12 WITH GOODWIN CONSULTING GROUP

TO PREPARE THE CITYWIDE CFF UPDATE, CIP GG 22-01

3) Effective Date and Term.

The effective date of this Task Order No. 12 is April 8, 2024, and it shall

terminate no later than December 31, 2025.

4) Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT hourly rates and other charges
not to exceed $ 59,500 for the scope of work and fee proposal attached

hereto as Exhibit " A". CONSULTANT shall be paid any uncontested sum

due and payable within thirty (30) days of receipt of billings containing all

information pursuant to Paragraph 5 below. Compensation for any task

must be equal to or less than the percentage of task complete. In no event

shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for work not included in

Exhibit "A", unless a written change order or authorization describing the

extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY's authorized

representative prior to the commencement of the work.

5) Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall

receive a written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall

not be issued until all necessary insurance have been received. City shall

not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance

of the Notice to Proceed.

6) Signatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they
have the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to

execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the

CONSULTANT and the CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of

and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and

assigns.

Page 2 of 3

156



CITY OF LATHROP — TASK ORDER NO. 12 WITH GOODWIN CONSULTING GROUP

TO PREPARE THE CITYWIDE CFF UPDATE, CIP GG 22-01

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

Q 3 - z - z- `(

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Assistant City Manager

Michael King Date

Approved By: City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT: Goodwin Consulting Group
655 University Avenue, Suite 200

Sacramento, CA 95825

Fed ID #

Lathrop Bus License #

By: Print Name, Title Date

Page 3 of 3

157



EXHIBIT

GCG
GOODWIN CONSULTING GROUP

I. CITY OF LATHROP FEE STUDY UPDATE - SCOPE OF WORK

Goodwin Consulting Group, Inc. (GCG) will prepare the City of Lathrop ( City) Capital Facilities

Fee ( CFF) Study Update ( the " Study") to ensure that the fees included in the Study are compliant
with the Mitigation Fee Act ( Government Code Section 66000 et. seq.) and updated for revised

land uses approved in Phase 2 of the Central Lathrop Specific Plan ( CLSP) area. Additionally,
GCG will evaluate the existing fee methodologies and update as required to comply with new

impact fee requirements pursuant to Assembly Bill 602 ( AB 602) that went into effect in 2022.

These CFFs will be used to fund various public facilities both within Central Lathrop and also

other development areas of the City that share facilities with Phase 2 of CLSP. The CFFs included

in this scope of work are as follows:

West/Central Lathrop Regional Transportation
Water System — West/Central Lathrop Well Improvement
Sewer/Recycled Water System for CLSP

Culture and Leisure

CLSP In -Lieu Community Parks Dedication

CLSP Storm Drainage System Improvements for WS4

Municipal Services

WLSP Regional Transportation

Following is a summary of the tasks that will be provided.

Task 1. Project Initiation Meeting

GCG will coordinate with City staff on the updated facilities, costs, and development estimates

within CLSP and other areas that will be used to calculate the fees. GCG will also coordinate with

staff on the cost allocation methodology that will be used to calculate the fees. GCG will review

the cost allocation methodologies to ensure they are a reasonable approach to establish nexus

between the land uses and the fees and to ensure compliance with AB 602. GCG will coordinate

with the City on reviewing existing levels of service and any justifications needed for increases as

a result of the fee updates. Additionally, GCG will coordinate with the City to examine fees

collected prior to the fee update to justify fee increases, if any, as required by AB 602. Finally,
GCG will coordinate with City staff to determine the preferable fee format for the program.

Task 2. Data Collection and Development

GCG will collect updated land use, infrastructure, parcel, and development data related to the

CLSP area and refer to the DA regarding reimbursement provisions for the facilities and costs.

GCG will also obtain land use information for other affected areas as necessary. If necessary,

City of Lathrop 1 Lathrop CFF Update

158



GCG will collect existing residential square footage data to develop an average for use in

converting fees to a per square -foot basis, as required by AB 602. GCG will rely on an existing
traffic study or a new traffic study for trip generation information used to update the West/Central

Lathrop Regional Transportation CFF.

Task 3. Fee Calculation and Analysis

Once the facilities and land costs have been updated, GCG will allocate costs based on application
of the following steps:

Allocate each facility's costs based on acreage or equivalent dwelling units ( EDUs) to the

land use categories in CLSP and any other affected areas. Coordinate with City staff on

acreage totals and whether acreage numbers should be reduced to account for streets and

other public uses.

Calculate fees on a per square -foot basis or convert where necessary to comply with

requirements in AB 602. Otherwise, GCG will calculate fees on a per unit basis for

residential development and on a per square foot basis for non-residential development, or

on any other basis that is compliant with the Mitigation Fee Act.

Once calculated, GCG will provide the draft fees to the City for discussion, comment, and to make

any necessary changes to the fee analysis.

Task 4. Report Preparation

This task involves summarizing all data and assumptions used to determine the fees and presenting
the findings of the Study. The report will identify all facilities and detailed costs to be funded by
the plan, outline the nexus argument for the fee amounts and provide a clear discussion of how

fees were calculated. GCG will also provide a clear summary of the land uses within the affected

area of each fee.

The report will also identify the cost allocation methodology used to determine the fair share cost

for the development areas. Pursuant to AB 602, the report will review levels of service for any
fees that are establishing a higher level of service as a result of the CFF update. The report will
also review fees collected for any fees that increase as a result of the update. Finally, the report
will include a discussion of the annual accounting, reporting, and administrative procedures that

are required pursuant to AB 1600. GCG will provide the City with an administrative draft version

of the report, a draft report for public distribution, and a finalized report for presentation to the

City Council and the public.

Task 5. Meetings

GCG will attend up to two meetings associated with this scope of work, which may include, but

will not be limited to, meetings with City staff or developer(s) to review data requirements,
assumptions, or the draft fee report; and City Council meeting to present the final report. GCG

will also prepare a PowerPoint presentation for the City Council meeting that summarizes the

results of the Study.

City of Lathrop 2 Lathrop CFF Update

159



II. FEE PROPOSAL

In association with the scope of work set forth in Section I above, GCG proposes a fee of $59,500.

This fee represents a maximum amount not to be exceeded subject to the limitations set forth

below. If the scope of work can be completed for less than the maximum budget, only the hours

actually expended will be billed. Services will be billed on a time and materials basis using the

hourly rates set forth in the table below.

Expenses

GCG shall be reimbursed for all costs such as travel mileage, overnight delivery, and data

purchases.

Billing Structure

GCG shall submit monthly invoices to the City providing details of services rendered and expenses

incurred. Out of scope services that are requested by the City will be billed at the hourly rates

listed in Table 1. Out of scope services include:

Meetings for which GCG is requested to attend that would be in excess of the two included

in this scope of work will be billed at the hourly rates listed in Table 1

Should the City determine that additional CFFs need to be updated as part of this work

effort, an additional fee of $6,000 per additional CFF will be charged.

TABLE 1

GCG HOURLY SERVICE RATES

Managing Principal $ 345/Hour

Senior Principal 325/Hour

Principal 310/Hour

Vice President 275/Hour

Senior Associate 250/Hour

Associate 230/Hour

Analyst 215/Hour

Research Assistant 95/Hour

City ofLathrop 3 Lathrop CFF Update

160



ITEM 4.9

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE AMENDMENTS NO. 3 AND NO. 4 WITH RBI

TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL STUDIES AND PERMIT

COMPLIANCE SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE SURFACE

WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT, CIP WW 20-17 AND

APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Approving Amendments No. 3 and

No. 4 with Robertson -Bryan Inc., to Provide

Additional Studies and NPDES Permit Compliance
Support Services for the Consolidated Treatment

Facility Surface Water Discharge Project, CIP WW

20-17 and Approve Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

The Surface Water Discharge Project Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) WW 20-17

was created in order to obtain a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

NPDES) permit to discharge effluent generated by the Lathrop Consolidated

Treatment Facility ( LCTF) to the San Joaquin River. On November 8, 2021, City
Council approved a Professional Services Agreement ( PSA) with Robertson - Bryan,
Inc., (RBI) to assist the City with meeting the requirements of the National Pollutant

Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) permit for the Consolidated Treatment Facility

CTF) river discharge project.

Additional permit compliance services from RBI are needed for: 1) one-time tasks to

prepare studies required by the National Marine Fisheries Service ( NMFS) Biological
Opinion for River Discharge and; 2) routine tasks needed for the continuing

implementation of permit requirements through Fiscal Year 2024-2025.

Staff requests Council approve Amendments No.3 and No.4 to the PSA with RBI for

LCTF NPDES permit compliance services to be provided for a time and materials cost,
not to exceed; 1) $298,289 for the one-time tasks under Amendment No.3, and; 2)

300,271 for the routine tasks under Amendment No.4, for a total cost of $ 598,860

and associated budget amendment.

Sufficient funds were not included in the FY 2023-2024 or FY 2024-2025 budgets to

pay for these tasks under CIP# WW 20-17 or for the CTF - MBR Sewer Professional

Services operations. Therefore, staff requests Council approve a budget amendment

to transfer funds for $ 298,289 from the Wastewater Connection Fee Fund ( 6030) to
the CIP # WW 20-17 Surface Water Discharge for Fiscal Year 2023-2024. For

Amendment No. 4 staff request approval of a budget amendment to transfer funds

for $ 300,571 from the CTF - MBR Sewer Fund ( 6080) to CTF Operations -
Professional Services for Fiscal Year 2024-2025.

161



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE AMENDMENTS NO. 3 AND NO. 4 WITH RBI TO PROVIDE

ADDITIONAL STUDIES AND PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT SERVICES FOR

CIP WW 20-17 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

BACKGROUND:

The Surface Water Discharge Project CIP, WW 20-17 was created to obtain a NPDES

permit to discharge effluent generated by the Lathrop Consolidated LCTF to the San

Joaquin River in order to minimize future sewer rate increases, and support growth
as the City's wastewater flows increase and land becomes unavailable for the storage
and disposal of recycled water.

The Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) issued the NPDES permit in

February 2022, with river discharge commencing on February 1, 2024. On November

8, 2021, City Council approved a PSA with RBI to assist the City with meeting the

requirements of the NPDES permit. Amendments No. 1 and No. 2 to the PSA for

additional LCTF permit compliance support services RBI were also approved by
Council on December 12, 2022 for: 1) one-time tasks to prepare the LCTF for

discharge of effluent to the San Joaquin River, and 2) routine tasks needed for the

continuing implementation of permit requirements through the end of 2023.

Additional permit compliance services from RBI are needed for; 1) one-time tasks to

prepare studies required by the National Marine Fisheries Service Biological Opinion
for River Discharge and; 2) routine tasks needed for the continuing implementation
of permit requirements through the end of Fiscal Years ( FY) 2023-2024 and through
FY 2024-2025.

RBI has provided three proposals to provide the additional permit compliance support
services for a time and materials cost, not to exceed $ 298,289 for the one-time tasks

needed for studies required by the NMFS Biological Opinion for River Discharge, and

300,571 for the routine NPDES permit compliance tasks, for a total cost of

598,860. These services are to be provided under Amendments No. 3 and No. 4

respectively to the PSA for LCTF permit compliance support services as follow:

Proposal

Amendment No. 3

Funding Source Cost

Constituents of Emerging Concern WW 20-17 ( Fund $ 163,165

Study 6030)
Effluent Dispersion Study

COST OF AMENDMENT NO. 3

WW 20-17 ( Fund

6030)
135,124

298,289

Proposal

Amendment No. 4

Funding Source

LCTF Operations
Fund 6080

NPDES Permit Compliance

COST OF AMENDMENT NO. 4

Cost

300,571

300,571

162



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE AMENDMENTS NO. 3 AND NO. 4 WITH RBI TO PROVIDE

ADDITIONAL STUDIES AND PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT SERVICES FOR

CIP WW 20-17 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The ability to dispose of effluent from the LCTF to the San Joaquin River is necessary

to minimize future rate increases and support growth as the City's wastewater flows

increase and as land becomes unavailable for the storage and disposal of recycled
water. Additional permit compliance support services from RBI are needed to assist

the City meet the NPDES permit requirements for river discharge.

Staff requests Council approve Amendments No.3 and No.4 to the PSA with RBI for

LCTF NPDES permit compliance services to be provided for a time and materials cost,
not to exceed; 1) $298,289 for the one-time tasks under Amendment No.3, and; 2)

300,571 for the routine tasks under Amendment No.4 for a total cost of $ 598,860.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Sufficient funds were not included in the FY 2023-2024 or FY 2024-2025 budgets to

pay for these tasks under CIP# WW 20-17, or for the CTF - MBR Sewer, Professional

Services operations. The one-time tasks to prepare the LCTF for the discharge of

effluent to the San Joaquin River under Amendment No. 3 are proposed to be paid
from the Surface Water Discharge CIP WW 20-17 and the routine tasks needed for

the continuing implementation of permit requirements for Fiscal Year 2024- 2025

under Amendment No.4 will be paid from the CTF-MBR Sewer Fund 6080.

For RBI Contract Amendment No. 3, staff is requesting approval of a budget
amendment to transfer funds for $ 298,289 from the Wastewater Connection Fee

Fund ( 6030) to the CIP # WW 20-17 Surface Water Discharge for Fiscal Year 2023-

2024. For Amendment No. 4 staff is requesting approval of a budget amendment to

transfer funds for $ 300,571 from the CTF - MBR Sewer Fund ( 6080) to CTF

Operations - Professional Services for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 as follows:

FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024;

Increase Transfer Out

6030-9900-990-90-10

Increase Transfer In

6090-9900-393-00-00

Increase Appropriations
6090-8000-420-01-00 WW 20-17

298,289

298,289

298,289

163



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE AMENDMENTS NO. 3 AND NO. 4 WITH RBI TO PROVIDE

ADDITIONAL STUDIES AND PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT SERVICES FOR

CIP WW 20-17 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025;

Increase Appropriations
CTF - MBR Sewer Fund

6080-5034-420-01-00

ATTACHMENTS:

300,571

A. Resolution Approving Amendments No. 3 and No. 4 with Robertson - Bryan Inc.

to Provide Additional Studies and NPDES Permit Compliance Support Services

for the Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project, CIP

WW 20-17 and Approve Budget Amendment

B. Amendment No. 3 with Robertson - Bryan Inc. to provide Professional Services

to Conduct a Constituent of Emerging Concern Study and Provide Effluent

Dispersion Study Professional Services for the City of Lathrop Consolidated

Treatment Facility - CIP WW 20-17

C. Amendment No. 4 with Robertson - Bryan Inc. to provide Professional Services

to the City of Lathrop for the Monitoring, Reporting, and Compliance Activities

Associated with Operations of the Consolidated Treatment Facility - CIP WW

20-17

164



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 5

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE AMENDMENTS NO. 3 AND NO.4 WITH RBI TO PROVIDE

ADDITIONAL STUDIES AND PERMIT COMPLIANCE SUPPORT SERVICES FOR

CIP WW 20-17 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

APPROVALS

o1/2! /0v2tt
Greg ibson Date

Senior Civil Engineer

Brad Taylor
City Engineer

Cari James

Finance Direcor

L! c

3/26/Zo7,1-)
Date

L3A01,),D.24
Date

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

22-ZUZ-V

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

3.2s•r4
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

165



RESOLUTION NO. 24 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING AMENDMENTS NO. 3 AND NO. 4 WITH ROBERTSON - BRYAN INC.,

TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL STUDIES AND NPDES PERMIT COMPLIANCE

SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY

SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT, CIP WW 20-17 AND APPROVE

BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, the Surface Water Discharge Project Capital Improvement Project
CIP) WW 20-17 was created in order to obtain a National Pollutant Discharge

Elimination System ( NPDES) permit to discharge effluent generated by the Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility ( LCTF) to the San Joaquin River; and

WHEREAS, on November 8, 2021, City Council approved a Professional

Services Agreement ( PSA) with Robertson - Bryan, Inc., (RBI) to assist the City with

meeting the requirements of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
NPDES) permit for the Consolidated Treatment Facility ( CTF) river discharge project;

and

WHEREAS, additional permit compliance services from RBI are needed for: 1)
one-time tasks to prepare studies required by the National Marine Fisheries Service

NMFS) Biological Opinion for River Discharge and; 2) routine tasks needed for the

continuing implementation of permit requirements through Fiscal Year 2024-2025;
and

WHEREAS, staff requests Council approve Amendments No.3 and No.4 to the

PSA with RBI for LCTF NPDES permit compliance services to be provided for a time

and materials cost, not to exceed; 1) $298,289 for the one-time tasks under

Amendment No.3, and; 2) $300,571 for the routine tasks under Amendment No.4

for a total cost of $598,860 and associated budget amendment; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds were not included in the FY 2023-2024 or FY 2024-

2025 budgets to pay for these tasks under CIP# WW 20-17, or for the CTF - MBR

Sewer, Professional Services operations; and

WHEREAS, staff requests Council approve a budget amendment to transfer

funds in the amount of $ 298,289 from the Wastewater Connection Fee Fund ( 6030)
to the CIP # WW 20-17 Surface Water Discharge for Fiscal Year 2023-2024; and

WHEREAS, for Amendment No. 4 staff is requesting approval of a budget
amendment to transfer funds in the amount of $300,571 from the CTF - MBR Sewer

Fund ( 6080) to CTF Operations - Professional Services for Fiscal Year 2024-2025;
and

166



WHEREAS, the one-time tasks to prepare the LCTF for the discharge of

effluent to the San Joaquin River under Amendment No. 3 are proposed to be paid
from the Surface Water Discharge CIP WW 20-17 and the routine tasks needed for

the continuing implementation of permit requirements for Fiscal Year 2024- 2025

under Amendment No.4 will be paid from the CTF-MBR Sewer Fund 6080.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby approve Amendments No.3 and No.4 to the PSA with RBI for LCTF NPDES

permit compliance services to be provided for a time and materials cost, not to

exceed; 1) $298,289 for the one-time tasks under Amendment No.3, and; 2)
300,571 for the routine tasks under Amendment No.4 for a total cost of $ 598,860;

and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop does

hereby approve a budget amendment using the Wastewater Connection Fee Fund

6030) to transfer funds in the amount of $ 298,289 to the CIP # WW 20-17 Surface

Water Discharge for Fiscal Year 2023-2024, and for Amendment No. 4 to transfer

funds from the CTF - MBR Sewer Fund ( 6080) in the amount of $ 300,571 for FY

2024-2025 to CTF Operations - Professional Services as follows:

Fiscal Year 2023-2024;

Increase Transfer Out

6030-9900-990-90-10

Increase Transfer In

6090-9900-393-00-00

Increase Appropriations
6090-8000-420-01-00 WW 20-17

Fiscal Year 2024-2025;

Increase Appropriations
CTF - MBR Sewer Fund

6080-5034-420-01-00

298,289

298,289

298,289

300,571

167



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8th day of April, 2024, by the

following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO, FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

168



ATTACHMENT " B"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

ROBERTSON - BRYAN, INC DATED NOVEMBER 8, 2021

TO CONDUCT A CONSTITUENT OF EMERGING CONCERN STUDY AND PROVIDE

EFFLUENT DISPERSION STUDY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF

LATHROP CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY IN ACCORDANCE WITH NMFS

BIOLOGICAL OPINION REQUIREMENTS — CIP WW 20-17

THIS AMENDMENT ( hereinafter " AMENDMENT NO. 3") to the agreement between

Robertson -Bryan, Inc. and the City of Lathrop dated November 8, 2021, ( hereinafter

AGREEMENT") dated for convenience this 8th day of April 2024, is by and between

Robertson -Bryan, Inc. ("CONSULTANT") and the City of Lathrop, a California municipal
corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to perform
Professional Engineering Consulting Services for the City of Lathrop, which are required by this

agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, on November 8, 2021, CONSULTANT and CITY entered into an

AGREEMENT for Professional Engineering Consulting Services to Assist the CITY with NPDES

Permit Compliance for the Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project, CIP

WW 20-17, in the amount not to exceed $ 294,532; and

WHEREAS, on December 12, 2022, CONSULTANT and CITY entered into an

Amendment No. 1 to the AGREEMENT for Professional Services to Prepare the City of Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility for Discharge of Effluent to the San Joaquin River for the

Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project, CIP WW 20-17, in the amount

not to exceed $ 262,082; and

WHEREAS, on December 12, 2022, CONSULTANT and CITY entered into an

Amendment No. 2 to the AGREEMENT for Professional Services to Assist with Implementing all

Requirements of the City of Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility NPDES Permit, CIP WW 20-

17, in the amount not to exceed $ 259,290; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT provided scope of work attached hereto as Exhibit " A" for

Amendment No. 3 to Conduct a Constituent of Emerging Concern Study for the City of Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility Required by the NMFS Biological Opinion for River Discharge,
CIP WW 20-17, in the amount not to exceed $ 163,165; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT provided scope of work attached hereto as Exhibit " B" for

Amendment No. 3 to Provide Effluent Dispersion Study Professional Services for the City of

Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility in accordance with Requirements of the NMFS Biological
Opinion for River Discharge, CIP WW 20-17, in the amount not to exceed $ 135,124; and

Page 1 of 4

169



CITY OF LATHROP — ROBERTSON - BRYAN, INC.

AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO CONDUCT A CONSTITUENT OF EMERGING CONCERN STUDY AND

PROVIDE EFFLUENT DISPERSION STUDY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF LATHROP

CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY IN ACCORDANCE WITH NMFS BIOLOGICAL OPINION

REQUIREMENTS — CIP WW 20-17

WHEREAS, parties have previously agreed to extend the term of the Professional

Services Agreement, dated November 8, 2021, to expire on December 31, 2024 and now desire

to further extend the term to expire December 31, 2025; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Engineering Consulting
Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO AGREEMENT

1) Scope of Service. Section ( 1) of the AGREEMENT is hereby amended to add

the following:

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Professional Engineering Consulting Services in

accordance with the scope of work and fee proposal provided by CONSULTANT, attached

hereto as Exhibits " A" and " B" in addition to the scope of work in the original AGREEMENT

dated November 8, 2021. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services in

accordance with the upmost standards of its profession and to CITY'S satisfaction.

2) Compensation. Section ( 2) of the AGREEMENT is hereby amended as

follows:

City hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT an additional cost of $ 298,289 for the

Professional Engineering Consulting Services set forth in Exhibits " A" and " B" of this

Amendment No. 3, with a total sum not to exceed of $1,172,935 ($294,532 for the original
Agreement, $ 320,824 for Amendment No. 1, $259,290 for Amendment No. 2, and

298,289 for Amendment No. 3). CONSULTANT shall be paid within thirty ( 30) days of

receipt of billings containing all information contained in Paragraph 5 of the original
AGREEMENT. Compensation for any task must be equal to or less than the percentage
of task complete. In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for work

not included in the original scope of work and this AMENDMENT unless a written change
order or authorization describing the extra work and payment terms has been executed

by CITY'S Authorized Representative prior to the commencement of the work.

3) Effective Date and Term. Section (3) of the AGREEMENT is hereby amended

as follows:

The effective date of the original agreement dated November 8, 2021 is November 8, 2021

and the effective date of Amendments No. 1-2 are as indicated by each. The effective date

of Amendment No. 3 is April 8, 2024. The term of the Agreement, as amended by
Amendments No. 1-3, inclusive, is hereby extended to end on December 31, 2025. All

other terms of the original AGREEMENT as amended shall remain in full force and effect.

Page 2 of 4

170



CITY OF LATHROP — ROBERTSON - BRYAN, INC.

AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO CONDUCT A CONSTITUENT OF EMERGING CONCERN STUDY AND

PROVIDE EFFLUENT DISPERSION STUDY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF LATHROP

CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY IN ACCORDANCE WITH NMFS BIOLOGICAL OPINION

REQUIREMENTS — CIP WW 20-17

4) Applicability to Original Consultant AGREEMENT

All terms and conditions set forth in the AGREEMENT dated November 8, 2021 are still in

effect and are incorporated by reference herein and said AGREEMENT is incorporated by
reference herein.

5) Signatures

The individuals executing this AMENDMENT NO. 3 represent and warrant that they have

the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this

AMENDMENT NO. 3 on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and

the CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 3 of 4

171



CITY OF LATHROP — ROBERTSON - BRYAN, INC.

AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO CONDUCT A CONSTITUENT OF EMERGING CONCERN STUDY AND

PROVIDE EFFLUENT DISPERSION STUDY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF LATHROP

CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY IN ACCORDANCE WITH NMFS BIOLOGICAL OPINION

REQUIREMENTS — CIP WW 20-17

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Assistant City Manager

Approved by:
Resolution No.:

Consultant:

Michael King Date

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

Robertson -Bryan, Inc.

3100 Zinfandel Drive

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

Phone: (916) 714-1801

Federal ID # 68-0460693

Lathrop Business License # 20647

Signature Date

Print Name and Title

Page 4 of 4

172



EXHIBIT A

ROBERTSON - BRT6N, Inc.
Solutions for Progress

February 16, 2024

DELIVERED BY EMAIL

Mr. Michael King, P.E.

Assistant City Manager
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330

Subject: Proposal to Conduct a Constituent of Emerging Concern Study for the City of

Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Required by the NMFS Biological
Opinion for River Discharge

Dear Mr. King:

Robertson -Bryan, Inc. (RBI) has assisted the City of Lathrop ( City) in preparing to discharge
treated effluent from its Consolidated Treatment Facility ( CTF) to the San Joaquin River,
including obtaining necessary regulatory approvals for construction of the CTF's San Joaquin
River outfall. RBI prepared a National Marine Fisheries Service Biological Assessment and

Essential Fish Habitat Assessment for the City ofLathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility
Surface Water Discharge Project ( 2020), and subsequent addendums ( collectively, Biological
Assessment or BA). The National Marine Fisheries Service ( NFMS) subsequently issued an

Endangered Species Act Section 7(a)(2) Biological Opinion and Magnuson -Stevens Fishery
Conservation and Management Act Essential Fish Habitat Response for the City of Lathrop
Outfall Installation Project [ 408 Permission Section ( 19535)] (2021; Biological Opinion or

BO). The BO addressed potential effects of the City's discharge to the San Joaquin River on

federally listed threatened Central Valley spring -run Chinook salmon ( Oncorhynchus

tshawytscha) Evolutionarily Significant Unit, the threatened California Central Valley
steelhead ( 0. mykiss) Distinct Population Segment ( DPS), and the threatened southern DPS

green sturgeon ( Acipenser medirostris) in accordance with Section 7 of the Endangered
Species Act ( ESA). The BO identifies conservation measures ( CMs) that must be met by the

project to mitigate potential environmental effects of the outfall construction on ESA -listed

anadromous fishes potentially occurring in the lower San Joaquin River. This proposal for

professional services is provided in regard to CM 15 ( Chemicals of Emerging Concern

Study), which is defined in the BO as follows:

Within six months of initiating discharge to the San Joaquin River, the City will

initiate a monitoring study of chemicals of emerging concern ( CECs). This study will

evaluate chemicals ofconcern to NMFS, but not yet regulated by the Regional Water

Board. The study is proposed to monitor undiluted effluent and river water quarterly
for two years. River monitoring will occur at a location(s) where the CTF discharge

3100 Zinfandel Dr., Suite 300 Phone 916.714.1801

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 Fax 916.714.1804

www.robertson-bryan.com

173



Mr. Michael King, P.E.

City of Lathrop
February 16, 2024

Page 2

I ( f C ) ROBERTSON - Biiygn, INC.
Solutions for Progress

has fully mixed with river flows. The City's consultant will develop the list of CECs to

monitor and route to NMFS stafffor review and approval prior to study initiation.

The City initiated discharge to the San Joaquin River on February 1, 2024, triggering these

study requirements. RBI's scope of work for developing and implementing a CEC study to

satisfy CM 15 is provided in the subsequent sections of this proposal.

I. SCOPE OF WORK

TASK 1: CEC SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS PLAN

RBI will prepare a sampling and analysis plan ( SAP) describing a schedule for conducting the

CEC study, CECs to be monitored, sampling locations, and other details describing the

monitoring study. CEC sampling will occur quarterly for two years as required by CM 15 of

the BO. The list of CECs to be monitored will be consistent with California CEC monitoring
guidance from Drewes et al. (2023)1, Tadese ( 2016)2, and the State Water Resources Control

Board Resolution 2013-0003 recycled water policy. It was assumed, for the purpose of this

proposal, that the CECs to be monitored are those recommended by these three guidance
documents for monitoring in freshwater because of concerns for potential effects to aquatic
life. The proposed list of CECs to be monitored is provided in Attachment 1.

The following three locations will be sampled.

CTF Final Effluent at EFF-001 or EFF-002

San Joaquin River upstream of the outfall at RSW-001

San Joaquin River downstream of the outfall

The downstream San Joaquin River sampling location will be approximately 0.35 miles

downstream of the outfall ( fully mixed per RBI mixing zone study) or as informed by the

City's Effluent Dispersion Study ( CM 14) to confirm where effluent mixing with the San

Joaquin River is complete.

The SAP will describe sampling conditions that include timing based on flows in the San

Joaquin River ( i.e., so that flows will be in the downstream direction for sufficient time to

ensure that effluent is not present at the upstream sample location), that sampling will only

Drewes, J.E., P. Anderson, N. Denslow, D.C.G. Muir, A.W. Olivieri, D. Schlenk, and S.A. Snyder. 2023.

Monitoring Strategies for Constituents of Emerging Concern ( CECs) in California's Aquatic Ecosystems.
Recommendations of a Science Advisory Panel. Prepared by California Water Resources Control Board by the

Southern California Coastal Water Research Project. Technical Report 1302.

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water issues/programs/cec/does/ecopanel-finalreport-SCCWRP-TR 1302.pdf
z

Tadesse, D. 2016. Constituents of Emerging Concern ( CECs) Statewide Pilot Study Monitoring Plan. State

Water Board. Prepared by Statewide CEC Pilot Study Monitoring Plan. Office of Information Management and

Analysis. January. http://www.sfestuary.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/SOE17Abstract23 PubOutreach.pdf

174



Mr. Michael King, P.E.

City of Lathrop
February 16, 2024

Page 3

f -M, ROBERTSON - BRVAH, INC.
Solutions for Progress

occur when the CTF is discharging to the river, avoiding sampling when there is stormwater

discharge from the MS4 outfall between RSW-001 and the CTF outfall, and avoiding
sampling during facility maintenance or episodic storm events when discharge and river flows

are not representative of typical conditions. The SAP also will describe effluent and water

quality constituents that will be measured at the time of sampling ( i.e., dissolved oxygen, pH,
conductivity, and temperature). Effluent flow will be recorded from meters established by the

City and San Joaquin River flow will be obtained from the San Joaquin River California Data

Exchange Center ( CDEC) station at the Mossdale Bridge3. Data quality objectives, quality
assurance and quality control samples, sample container types, volumes, analytical methods,
method detection limits, reporting limits, and quality control limits also will be presented.

A draft SAP will be provided to the City for review and a revised draft SAP will be provided
to NMFS for review. After which, the SAP will be finalized. The budget assumes that the

preliminary list of CECs identified by RBI in the SAP is approved by NMFS.

Deliverables:

Draft CEC Sampling and Analysis Plan for review by the City

Revised Draft CEC Sampling and Analysis Plan for submittal to NMFS

Final CEC Sampling and Analysis Plan

TASK 2: FIELD SAMPLING

RBI will conduct CEC sampling and coordinate analysis with the City and Eurofins Test

America ( West Sacramento, CA). CECs are often new compounds that are not common in

typical analyses. Thus, most commercial laboratories do not offer all or even some of the

analyses needed for this study. Eurofins Test America provides analyses for all CEC listed in

Attachment 1 and has reporting limits sufficiently low to meet monitoring recommendations.

The budget includes the costs of analysis and Eurofins Test America will be contracted

directly by RBI. Prior to sampling, RBI will contact the City to ensure sampling conditions

are met and for access to the CTF and San Joaquin River. The analytical laboratory also will

be contacted prior to sampling to supply sample containers that will be prepared for sample
collection by RBI. Field preparation will include equipment calibration and decontamination.

Two RBI staff will mobilize to the field during each of the eight sampling events to collect

grab samples of final effluent at the CTF and San Joaquin River and document field

conditions at the outfall and at sampling locations in the river. River water samples will be

collected from the riverbank using a pole to access surface water not influenced by near -shore

disturbances. Each sampling event is expected to be conducted in a single day and samples
will be shipped by overnight courier or taken directly to the analytical laboratory.

3
https://cdec.water.ca.gov/index.html

175



Mr. Michael King, P.E.

City of Lathrop
February 16, 2024

Page 4

ROBERTSON - BITTqM, Inc
Solutions for Progress

Reports and electronic data deliverables ( EDDs) received from the analytical laboratory will

be reviewed to identify any deviations from data quality objectives in the SAP and to

determine if corrective actions are needed to address any issues in the next sampling event.

RBI will discuss any data issues and any necessary actions to remedy the issues with the City.

TASK 3: REPORTING

RBI will review, analyze, and report data collected during the CEC study. The focus of the

data report will be to fully implement CM 15 of the BO by presenting the CEC analytical
results. The report also will describe the methods used for this CEC study, field data collected

at the time of sampling, any deviations from data quality objectives described in the SAP, and

any corrective actions taken.

A draft report will be provided to the City for review. Upon request, RBI also will meet with

the City via conference call to discuss the draft report and findings. RBI will prepare a final

CEC study report that addresses any comments from the City. The final report will be

provided to the City in PDF format, complete with any attachments ( i.e., analytical data), for

the City to submit to NMFS. RBI can submit this report to NMFS on behalf of the City, upon

request.

Deliverables:

Draft CEC Study Report

Final CEC Study Report

TASK 4: PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Project management time shall primarily be used to coordinate and direct project activities to

ensure that all tasks are conducted efficiently and effectively. This task also provides time for

project coordination by phone and email with other project team members and local/regional
agencies as appropriate, review of budget and invoices, schedule tracking, and other duties to

coordinate and administer the project.

II. SCHEDULE

RBI can begin providing professional services associated with the tasks defined herein upon

receipt of a contract or written authorization to proceed.

III. CONTRACT AND BILLING ARRANGEMENT

RBI recommends a time -and -materials contract, not to exceed the amount shown in

Attachment 2 without written authorization, to provide the professional services outlined

herein. RBI will invoice the City monthly according to its annual rates ( Attachment 3) for all

RBI work activities completed in the prior month.

176



Mr. Michael King, P.E.

City of Lathrop
February 16, 2024

Page 5

ROBERTSON - BRYAN, Inc
Solutions for Progress

If you have any questions regarding this proposal, please do not hesitate to contact Cameron

Irvine at ( 916) 335-2369.

Sincerely,

6E,
Michael Bryan, Ph.D. Cameron Irvine, M.S.

Principal - in -Charge Project Manager

Attachment 1: CECs to be Monitored in the Study
Attachment 2: Budget
Attachment 3: 2024 Fee Schedule

177



Ro8ERlson - BR1'An, bk.
Solutions for Progress

ATTACHMENT 1

CECs TO BE MONITORED IN THE STUDY

Analytes

SWRCB Recycled Water Policy
Drewes et al. 2023 Tadesse 2016 ( SWB Resolution 2013-0003)

Pharmaceuticals and Personal Care Products

176-estradiol X X

Bisphenol a X X

Diclofenac X X

Estrone X X

Gemfibrozil -

Ibuprofen X X

lopromide -
Sucralose -

Tridosan X X

Pharmaceuticals and Personal Care Products

Caffeine -

N,N-Diethyl-meta-toluamide (DEET) - -

Polybrominated diphenyl ethers. Pyrethroids and Pesticides

Galaxolide X X

Nitrosoamines

N-Nitrosodimethylamine ( NDMA) -

x

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

Sources:

Drewes, J.E., P. Anderson, N. Denslow, D.C.G. Muir, A.W. Olivieri, D. Schlenk, and S.A. Snyder. 2023. Monitoring
Strategies for Constituents of Emerging Concem ( CECs) in California's Aquatic Ecosystems. Recommendations of a

Science Advisory Panel. Prepared by California Water Resources Control Board by the Southem Califomia Coastal

Water Research Project. Technical Report 1302.

State Water Resources Control Board Recycled Water Policy ( SWB Resolution 2013-0003)
Tadesse, D. 2016_ Constituents of Emerging Concern ( CECs) Statewide Pilot Study Monitoring Plan. State Water Board.

Prepared by Statewide CEC Pilot Study Monitoring Plan. Office of Information Management and Analysis.

178



r -rj7j ROBERTSON - BRYAN, Inc
Solutions for Progress

ATTACHMENT 2

RBI BUDGET

Michael

Bryan

Paul

Bedore

Cameron

Irvine

Teresa

Lopez

Whitney

Thorpe

Managing Wastewater Project Project
Partner Director Associate Scientist I Scientist I Subtotal

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Task 1: Sampling & Analysis Plan 20,406
Draft Sampling & Analysis Plan 2 8 24 16 13,546

Discussion/Review by City and NMFS 2 4 8 4,230
Final Sampling & Analysis Plan 2 4 4 2,630

Task 2: Study Implementation 34,670

Laboratory Coordination 2 12 8 5,822
Field Sampling (4 events) 16 56 56 28,848

Task 3: Reporting 35,319
Data Review and Quality Control Documentation 10 24 8 9,822
Draft Report 2 4 48 16 19,326
Final Report 1 2 12 8 6,171

Task 4: Project Management 6 12 24 12,690

Total Hours: 13 34 158 132 64 401

Rate: 349 301 291 216 216

Labor Subtotal: 4,537 10,234 45,978 28,512 13,824 103,085
DIRECT EXPENSES

Laboratory Analysis of CECs 55,000

Mileage 1,000
Water Quality Meter Rental ($ 35/day) 280

Sampling Supplies 1,000

Direct Expenses Subtotal: 57,280
Administrative Fee (5%) on non - RBI Expenses: 2,800

Direct Expenses Total: 60,080

TOTAL BUDGET 163,16

179



l ROBERTSON - BRVRN, Inc
Solutions for Progress

ATTACHMENT 3

2024 FEE SCHEDULE

Charges for project work performed by Robertson -Bryan, Inc. (RBI) will be calculated and billed
at the hourly rates shown below.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RATE/HOUR

Managing Partner $ 350.00

Partner $ 342.00

Principal Engineer/Scientist $ 333.00

Senior Consultant/Department Head $ 316.00

Resource Director $ 301.00

Associate $ 291.00

Senior Engineer/Scientist II $ 284.00

Senior Engineer/Scientist I $ 269.00

Project Engineer/Scientist III $ 247.00

Project Engineer/Scientist II $ 236.00

Project Engineer/Scientist I $ 216.00

Staff Engineer/Scientist II $ 201.00

Staff Engineer/Scientist I $ 185.00

Technical Analyst $ 173.00

Graphics/GIS $ 153.00

Laboratory Compliance Specialist $ 149.00

Administrative Assistant $ 115.00

Intern $ 72.00

Up to ten percent ( 10%) of subcontractor charges will be added to cover administrative costs.

Hourly rates will be increased by a minimum of fifty percent ( 50%) for depositions, trials, and

hearings. Rates will be adjusted annually. Rates are adjusted annually, effective December

166.

Invoicing and Payments

Invoices will be issued on a monthly basis for all work performed on a project. Payment is

due upon receipt of the invoice.

180



EXHIBIT B

ROBERTSON - BRYON, INC.
Solutions for Progress

February 16, 2024

DELIVERED BY EMAIL

Mr. Michael King, P.E.

Assistant City Manager
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330

Subject: Proposal to Provide Effluent Dispersion Study Professional Services for the

City of Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility in accordance with

Requirements of the NMFS Biological Opinion for River Discharge

Dear Mr. King:

Robertson -Bryan, Inc. (RBI) has been assisting the City of Lathrop ( City) in preparing to

discharge treated effluent from its Consolidated Treatment Facility ( CTF) to the San Joaquin
River, including obtaining necessary regulatory approvals for construction of the CTF's San

Joaquin River outfall. RBI prepared a National Marine Fisheries Service Biological
Assessment and Essential Fish Habitat Assessment for the City ofLathrop Consolidated

Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project (2020), and subsequent addendums

collectively, Biological Assessment or BA). National Marine Fisheries Service ( NFMS)
subsequently issued an Endangered Species Act Section 7(a)(2) Biological Opinion and

Magnuson -Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act Essential Fish Habitat

Response for the City ofLathrop Outfall Installation Project [408 Permission Section

19535)] (2021; Biological Opinion or BO). The BO addressed the potential effects of the

City's San Joaquin River discharge on the threatened Central Valley spring -run Chinook

salmon ( Oncorhynchus tshawytscha) Evolutionarily Significant Unit, the threatened

California Central Valley steelhead ( 0. mykiss) Distinct Population Segment ( DPS), and the

threatened southern DPS green sturgeon ( Acipenser medirostris) in accordance with Section 7

of the Endangered Species Act ( ESA). The BO identifies conservation measures (CMs) that

must be met by the project to mitigate potential environmental effects of the outfall

construction on ESA -listed anadromous fishes potentially occurring in the lower San Joaquin
River. This proposal for professional services is provided to assist the City with implementing
CM14 (Effluent Dispersion Study), which is specified in the NMFS BO as follows.

Within six months of initiating discharge to the San Joaquin River, the City will initiate a

dye tracer ( or similar methodology) study to track the actual dispersion patterns of the

effluent discharged from the outfall into the San Joaquin River. This study will ensure the

inferences made in the BA for the Project prepared by the City, based upon modeled

mixing ofeffluent with river flows, is representative of real -world conditions.

3100 Zinfandel Dr., Suite 300 Phone 916.714.1801

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 Fax 916.714.1804

www.robertson-bryan.com

181



Mr. Michael King, P.E.

City of Lathrop
February 16, 2024

Page 2

7117:j ROBERTSON • BRrAN, INC.
Solutions for Progress

The City initiated discharge to the San Joaquin River on February 1, 2024, triggering these

study requirements. RBI's scope of work for Effluent Dispersion Study ( study) services is

provided in the subsequent sections of this proposal.

I. STUDY ASSUMPTIONS

The BO requires the City to conduct a dye tracer study to track dispersion patterns of the CTF

effluent discharged to the San Joaquin River through the CTF's outfall. RBI assumes the use

of rhodamine dye for the study. Rhodamine dye is commonly used for this purpose primarily
due to its benign character in aquatic environments and chemical stability ( low rate of

degradation). RBI has performed several similar studies in Delta water bodies with great
success.

It is also assumed that the study will be performed in a single event ( three day duration)
during daylight hours. The study design will accommodate these assumptions.

II. SCOPE OF WORK

TASK 1: STUDY WORKPLAN PREPARATION

Under this task, RBI will prepare a workplan that outlines the procedures and schedule for

conducting the study. The workplan will define the study approach, methods for field

measurement of rhodamine dye concentrations and any other relevant field or water quality
parameters measured ( e.g., temperature, electrical conductivity). As part of this task, RBI staff

will perform a site visit to the CTF outfall site to confirm the approach identified in the

workplan. Additionally, the workplan will identify procedures for post -processing of field

data gathered to meet the objectives of the study. The workplan will be provided to the City
for review in Microsoft Word format, with any attachments provided in PDF format. Upon
receipt of any review comments, RBI will finalize and issue the workplan to the City in PDF

format.

TASK 2: STUDY PREPARATION AND COORDINATION

Under this task, RBI will prepare, plan, and coordinate the study with project team members,

including the City and any other involved parties. This task will involve procurement and

fabrication of field supplies and apparatus necessary for the study. Anticipated supplies and

apparatus include rented fluorescent dye monitoring equipment, buoys, anchors, rope, and

rhodamine dye.

Budget is provided under this task for routine coordination with project team members in

advance of the study. Additional budget is provided for coordination with regulatory
authorities, as appropriate, to obtain any necessary approvals for conducting the study.

Budget also is provided under this task for RBI staff to perform a site visit to the CTF outfall

site to perform testing of field apparatus prior to the study. This will ensure that the field

apparatus is properly suited to achieve the goals of the study.

182



Mr. Michael King, P.E.

City of Lathrop
February 16, 2024

Page 3

TASK 3: FIELD STUDY

7 ROBERTSON ' BRI'Rn, Inc
Solutions for Progress

RBI will conduct the field rhodamine dye tracer study at the CTF's outfall and within its

vicinity in the San Joaquin River. The study is anticipated to take place over the course of

three days, with the first day dedicated to equipment setup in the field and testing to confirm

proper functionality.

The study will be conducted on the second day once equipment setup and functionality has

been confirmed. RBI anticipates the use of up to ten ( 10) rhodamine dye measurement sondes,
with some placed at strategic locations within the study area and at least one positioned to a

boat that will be used to track the effluent plume in the river. On the morning of the second

day, multiple rhodamine dye slugs will be dosed at the CTF effluent transfer pump station,
which will allow the rhodamine dye to be fully mixed in the CTF effluent prior to discharge to

the San Joaquin River. Dye slug doses will be staggered to prevent overlapping of the effluent

plumes and to allow for tracking of the effluent plume via boat.

The third day of the study will primarily be used to retrieve field apparatus deployed during
the study, in addition to any remaining data gathering.

For budgeting purposes, it is assumed that three ( 3) RBI staff will be on -site each day during
the study.

TASK 4: DATA PROCESSING AND REPORT PREPARATION

After completion of the field tracer study, RBI will download, review, process, and analyze
the data collected during the study. The data will be reviewed to ensure that sufficient and

accurate data was collected before proceeding with the preparation of the study report. RBI

will discuss any data issues with the City and determine any necessary actions to remedy the

issues.

Once the data has been adequately analyzed, RBI will prepare a study report documenting the

findings from the study. This report will summarize the findings from the field dye tracer

study and provide a comparison of the study findings to the modeled effluent dispersion
discussed in the BA, in accordance with the requirements of CM14. The report will provide
the following:

1. Description of purpose and need;
2. Description of field data collection and methods;
3. Field data results for dye tracer concentrations and other water quality parameters

measured;
4. Comparison of field study results to modeled dispersion of CTF effluent in the San

Joaquin River included in the NMFS BA; and

5. Study conclusions.

The draft report will be provided to the City for review in Microsoft Word format, with any

attachments in PDF format. RBI will then prepare a final report, incorporating any comments

183



Mr. Michael King, P.E.

City of Lathrop
February 16, 2024

Page 4

A vat

4 ROBERTSON-BRTAM, Inc.
Solutions for Progress

and revisions received from the City. The final report will be provided to the City in PDF

format, complete with any attachments, for the City to submit to NMFS.

TASK 5: PROJECT MANAGEMENT

This task provides hours for RBI's principal -in -charge, Michael Bryan, Ph.D., and project
manager, Cyle Moon, P.E., to oversee and direct efforts on each task, project coordination

with other project members, budget and schedule tracking, invoicing, and other duties to

administer the project.

III. SCHEDULE

RBI can begin providing professional services associated with the tasks defined herein upon

receipt of a contract or written authorization to proceed.

IV. CONTRACT AND BILLING ARRANGEMENT

RBI recommends a time -and -materials contract, not to exceed the amount shown in

Attachment 1 without written authorization, to provide the professional services outlined

herein ( see Attachment 1 for a detailed project budget and Attachment 2 for a cost summary
of equipment purchases/rentals).

RBI will invoice the City monthly according to the fee schedule in Attachment 3 for all RBI

work activities completed in the prior month.

If you have any questions regarding this proposal, please do not hesitate to contact me at

916) 405-8944.

Sincerely,

Michael Bryan, Ph.D.

Principal - in -Charge

Attachment 1: Budget
Attachment 2: Equipment Purchases/Rentals Summary
Attachment 3: Fee Schedule

Cyle Moon, P.E.

Project Manager

184



17 ROBERTSON - BRYAN, Inc

ATTACHMENT 1

RBI BUDGET

Lathrop CTF Effluent Dis

PROIT:SSIO\AL SFRVICIS

Task 1: Study Workplan Preparation

Task 2: Study Preparation and Coordination

Task 3: Field Study

Task 4: Data Processing and Report Preparation

Task 5: Project Management

ersion Stud Professional Services

Robertson-l3rc 11. hoc.

Solutions for Progress

Prncpal-n- Resource Resource Senior Project Project Project
Charge Director Director Engineer 11 Scientist 1 Scientist 1 Scientist 1

Michael

B PhD

2

6

12

Ben Giudice,

PhD, PE

8

4

2

4

Paul Bedore,

MS

4

2

Cyle Moon,

MS, PE

24

24

28

44

40

Haile Price

8

24

40

32

Teresa Lo . - z

8

8

40

16

Whitney
Tho . e

8

32

40

16

Subtotal

16,310

22,446

34,474

29,618

15,548

Total Hours:

Rate:

20

349

18

301

6

301

160

284

104

216

72

216

96

216

Labor Subtotal:

DIRE( I E\I'I.\SLS

Mileage

Boat and Boat Operator Allowance

RBI Markup on Boat and Boat Operator Allowance ( 5%)

Equipment Purchases/Rentals

6,980 $ 5,418 $ 1,806 $ 45,440 $ 22,464 $ 15 552 $ 20,736 $ 118,396

1,400

5,000

250

10,078

Direct Ex nses Total 16,728

T01kl.RCDGI11 13;.124

185



7M, ROBERTSON - BRYON, INC
Solutions for Progress

ATTACHMENT 2

EQUIPMENT PURCHASES/RENTALS SUMMARY

Description Purchase Type Unit Cost Quantity Total Cost

Buoy One-time purchase 62.00 10 620.00

Anchor One-time purchase 7.00 20 140.00

Anchor Chain — 35' length One-time purchase 40.00 10 400.00

Rope — 100' length One-time purchase 28.00 5 140.00

Rhodamine Dye —1 gallon One-time purchase 950.00 3 2,850.00
Rhodamine Measurement Sonde Rental ( cost per month) 456.00 10 4,560.00

Miscellaneous Equipment One-time purchase 500.00 1 500.00

Subtotal 9,210.00
Sales Tax (7.25%) 667.73

Estimated Shipping Costs 200.00

Total ( rounded to nearest dollar) 10,078.00

186



F" 1 ' ROBERTSON - Bryan, Inc
Solutions for Progress

ATTACHMENT 3

2024 FEE SCHEDULE

Charges for project work performed by Robertson -Bryan, Inc. (RBI) will be calculated and billed

at the hourly rates shown below.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Managing Partner

Partner

Managing Principal Engineer/Scientist

Principal Engineer/Scientist

Resource Director

Associate

Senior Engineer/Scientist II

Senior Engineer/Scientist I

Project Engineer/Scientist III

Project Engineer/Scientist II

Project Engineer/Scientist I

Staff Engineer/Scientist II

Staff Engineer/Scientist I

Technical Analyst

Graphics/GIS

Laboratory Compliance Specialist

Administrative Assistant

Intern

RATE/HOUR

349.00

342.00

333.00

315.00

301.00

291.00

284.00

269.00

247.00

236.00

216.00

201.00

185.00

172.00

153.00

149.00

115.00

71.00

Up to ten percent ( 10%) of subcontractor charges will be added to cover administrative costs.

Hourly rates will be increased by a minimum of fifty percent ( 50%) for depositions, trials, and

hearings. Rates will be adjusted annually. Rates are adjusted annually, effective December

16th

Invoicing and Payments

Invoices will be issued on a monthly basis for all work performed on a project. Payment is

due upon receipt of the invoice.

187



ATTACHMENT " C"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

ROBERTSON - BRYAN, INC DATED NOVEMBER 8, 2021

TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO THE CITY OF LATHROP FOR THE

MONITORING, REPORTING, AND COMPLIANCE ACTIVITIES ASSOCIATED WITH

OPERATIONS OF THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY — CIP WW 20-17

THIS AMENDMENT ( hereinafter " AMENDMENT NO. 4") to the agreement between

Robertson -Bryan, Inc. and the City of Lathrop dated November 8, 2021, ( hereinafter

AGREEMENT") dated for convenience this 8th day of April 2024, is by and between

Robertson -Bryan, Inc. ("CONSULTANT") and the City of Lathrop, a California municipal
corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to perform
Professional Engineering Consulting Services for the City of Lathrop, which are required by this

agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, on November 8, 2021, CONSULTANT and CITY entered into an

AGREEMENT for Professional Engineering Consulting Services to Assist the CITY with NPDES

Permit Compliance for the Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project, CIP

WW 20-17, in the amount not to exceed $ 294,532; and

WHEREAS, on December 12, 2022, CONSULTANT and CITY entered into an

Amendment No. 1 to the AGREEMENT for Professional Services to Prepare the City of Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility for Discharge of Effluent to the San Joaquin River for the

Consolidated Treatment Facility Surface Water Discharge Project, CIP WW 20-17, in the amount

not to exceed $ 262,082; and

WHEREAS, on December 12, 2022, CONSULTANT and CITY entered into an

Amendment No. 2 to the AGREEMENT for Professional Services to Assist with Implementing all

Requirements of the City of Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility NPDES Permit, CIP WW 20-

17, in the amount not to exceed $ 259,290; and

WHEREAS, on April 8, 2024, CONSULTANT and CITY entered into an Amendment No.

3, to the AGREEMENT for Professional Services to Conduct a Constituent of Emerging Concern

Study and Provide Effluent Dispersion Study Professional Services for the City of Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility in accordance with NMFS Biological Opinion Requirements, CIP

WW 20-17, in the amount not to exceed $ 298,289; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT provided scope of work attached hereto as Exhibit " A" for

Amendment No. 4 to Provide Professional Services to the City of Lathrop for Monitoring,
Reporting, and Compliance Activities Associated with Operations of the Consolidated Treatment

Facility, CIP WW 20-17, in the amount not to exceed $ 300,571; and

Page 1 of 4

188



CITY OF LATHROP — ROBERTSON - BRYAN, INC.

AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO THE CITY OF LATHROP FOR THE

MONITORING, REPORTING, AND COMPLIANCE ACTIVITIES ASSOCIATED WITH OPERATIONS OF

THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY — CIP WW 20-17

WHEREAS, parties have previously agreed to extend the term of the Professional

Services Agreement, dated November 8, 2021, to expire on December 31, 2024 and now desire

to further extend the term to expire December 31, 2025; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Engineering Consulting
Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO AGREEMENT

1) Scope of Service. Section (1) of the AGREEMENT is hereby amended to add

the following:

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Professional Engineering Consulting Services in

accordance with the scope of work and fee proposal provided by CONSULTANT, attached

hereto as Exhibit " A" in addition to the scope of work in the original AGREEMENT dated

November 8, 2021. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services in

accordance with the upmost standards of its profession and to CITY'S satisfaction.

2) Compensation. Section ( 2) of the AGREEMENT is hereby amended as

follows:

City hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT an additional cost of $ 300,571 for the

Professional Engineering Consulting Services set forth in Exhibits " A" and " B" of this

Amendment No. 4, with a total sum not to exceed of $ 1,473,506 ($294,532 for the original
Agreement, $ 320,824 for Amendment No. 1, $259,290 for Amendment No. 2, $298,289
for Amendment No. 3, and $ 300,571 for Amendment No. 4). CONSULTANT shall be paid
within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of billings containing all information contained in

Paragraph 5 of the original AGREEMENT. Compensation for any task must be equal to

or less than the percentage of task complete. In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled

to compensation for work not included in the original scope of work and this AMENDMENT

unless a written change order or authorization describing the extra work and payment
terms has been executed by CITY'S Authorized Representative prior to the

commencement of the work.

3) Effective Date and Term. Section ( 3) of the AGREEMENT is hereby amended

as follows:

The effective date of the original agreement dated November 8, 2021 is November 8, 2021

and the effective date of Amendments No. 1-3 are as indicated by each. The effective date

of Amendment No. 4 is April 8, 2024. The term of the Agreement, as amended by
Amendments No. 1-4, inclusive, is hereby extended to end on December 31, 2025. All

other terms of the original AGREEMENT as amended shall remain in full force and effect.

Page 2 of 4

189



CITY OF LATHROP — ROBERTSON - BRYAN, INC.

AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO THE CITY OF LATHROP FOR THE

MONITORING, REPORTING, AND COMPLIANCE ACTIVITIES ASSOCIATED WITH OPERATIONS OF

THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY — CIP WW 20-17

4) Applicability to Original Consultant AGREEMENT

All terms and conditions set forth in the AGREEMENT dated November 8, 2021 are still in

effect and are incorporated by reference herein and said AGREEMENT is incorporated by
reference herein.

5) Signatures

The individuals executing this AMENDMENT NO. 4 represent and warrant that they have

the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this

AMENDMENT NO. 4 on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and

the CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 3 of 4

190



CITY OF LATHROP - ROBERTSON - BRYAN, INC.

AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO THE CITY OF LATHROP FOR THE

MONITORING, REPORTING, AND COMPLIANCE ACTIVITIES ASSOCIATED WITH OPERATIONS OF

THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY - CIP WW 20-17

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

Salvador Navarrete

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Assistant City Manager

Approved by:
Resolution No.:

Consultant:

3---O y
Date

Michael King Date

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

Robertson -Bryan, Inc.

3100 Zinfandel Drive

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

Phone: (916) 714-1801

Federal ID # 68-0460693

Lathrop Business License # 20647

Signature Date

Print Name and Title

Page 4 of 4

191



EXHIBIT A

ROBERTSON - BRYAN, INC
Solutions for Progress

March 6, 2024

DELIVERED BY EMAIL

Mr. Michael King
Director of Public Works

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Subject: Proposal to Provide Professional Services to the City of Lathrop for

Monitoring, Reporting, and Compliance Activities Associated with Operations
of its Consolidated Treatment Facility

Dear Mr. King:

As requested, please accept this proposal for Robertson -Bryan, Inc. (RBI) to provide
monitoring, reporting and other compliance - related services for the City of Lathrop's (City)
Consolidated Treatment Facility (CTF) during Fiscal Year 2024-2025 (July 1 — June 30). This

work is needed to coordinate the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES)
permit -required monitoring for river discharge and recycled water production, prepare routine

self -monitoring reports ( SMRs), prepare permit -required progress and special reports, and

conduct other tasks to facilitate operation of the CTF in compliance with its permit. This

effort will require the City, Veolia, Pacific Advanced Civil Engineering ( PACE), and RBI to

work as a team to operate the CTF to meet the effluent limits and other compliance
requirements.

RBI is an industry leader in municipal wastewater NPDES permitting and permit compliance.
We have the expertise and experience to cost-effectively assist the City in operating the CTF

in compliance with the NPDES permit and its Monitoring and Reporting Program.

The scope of work provided below identifies the tasks that RBI will lead to assist the City in

operating the CTF in compliance with its NPDES permit.

Task 1: Compliance Coordination Meetings

Task 2: Effluent and Receiving Water Monitoring

Task 3: Electronic Self -monitoring Reports ( eSMRs)

Task 4: NPDES Permit -required Progress and Special Reports

Task 5: Industrial Pretreatment Program

Task 6: Toxicity Compliance Support

Task 7: Regulatory Development Tracking and Reporting

Task 8: Temperature Monitoring

3100 Zinfandel Drive, Suite 300 Phone 916.714.1801

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 Fax 916.714.1804

www.robertson-bryan.com

192



Mr. Michael King
City of Lathrop
March 6, 2024

Page 2
Ain ROBERTSON - BRVRN, Inc

Solutions for Progress

Task 9: General Compliance Support

Task 10: Project Management

These tasks are explained further in the detailed scope of work and budget provided below.

I. SCOPE OF WORK

TASK 1: COMPLIANCE COORDINATION MEETINGS

This task provides for up to two meetings per month during the six-month recycled water

reclamation season ( May —October; 12 meetings) and weekly meetings during the wet season

November —April; 25 meetings) when the CTF is likely to be discharging to the San Joaquin
River. Weekly coordination is necessary while discharging to the river because of the

additional attention needed to comply with the NPDES permit. These meetings will be used

by RBI staff to meet with City staff and its contractors/consultants to coordinate efforts and

obtain information associated with implementing this scope of work. For the purposes of the

scope and budget for this task, two (2) hours are assumed each for two RBI staff members

attending each meeting, which provides time for meeting/call preparation, participation, and

post -meeting briefings of other parties not attending the meetings. RBI's Principal - in -Charge
is assumed to attend up to eight ( 8) meetings.

TASK 2: EFFLUENT AND RECEIVING WATER MONITORING

Ensuring compliance with the NPDES permit Monitoring and Reporting Program involves

the subtasks below.

Subtask 2.1: Scheduling and Coordination

RBI will update and maintain the monitoring schedule spreadsheet used by RBI, the City,
Veolia, Compliance First, and FGL. RBI will coordinate with these parties to ensure they are

aware of upcoming sampling, identify issues with sampling dates, ensure bottles are on -hand,
review chain of custodies ( COCs), and other related issues.

Subtask 2.2: Review and Compile Data

RBI will review and maintain a spreadsheet of monitoring results for routine CTF monitoring
data tested at FGL and field data produced by Compliance First. An updated version of this

spreadsheet and the final lab reports will be provided to the City with the monthly SMRs or

made available through RBI's Sharefile data portal. RBI will update its internal tracking
spreadsheet for trihalomethane ( THM) disinfection byproducts so that we can advise the City
and its contractors on the need to collect additional samples, adjust operations to minimize

THM formation, and help ensure compliance with THM effluent limitations.

Subtask 2.3: Characterization Monitoring

The City initiated four quarters of effluent and receiving water characterization monitoring in

Q1 2024. RBI will coordinate with the City, Veolia, Compliance First, and FGL to ensure that

193



Mr. Michael King
City of Lathrop
March 6, 2024

Page 3

ROBERTSON - BRYRN, Inc
Solutions for Progress

the testing will be completed as required. This scope of work and budget assumes that Veolia

or FGL will collect the effluent samples, Compliance First will collect the receiving water

samples, and FGL will be responsible for analytical testing. RBI will review the laboratory
reports, coordinate with FGL on any QA/QC issues, and prepare the data for submittal to

CIWQS with the SMRs. RBI will process the data using the Central Valley Water Board's

reasonable potential analysis tool, which determines if the new characterization data would

trigger effluent limitations in the next/renewed NPDES permit.

Subtask 2.4: Pyrethroid Pesticides Monitoring

The City initiated four quarters of effluent and receiving water monitoring for pyrethroid
pesticides and acute toxicity using the test species, Hyalella aztecca during Q1 2024. RBI will

coordinate with the City, Veolia and FGL to ensure that the testing will be completed as

required. This scope of work and budget assumes that Veolia or FGL will collect the effluent

samples, Compliance First will collect the receiving water samples, and McCampbell
Analytical will conduct the testing under sub -contract to FGL. RBI will review the laboratory
reports, coordinate with FGL and McCampbell Analytical on any QA/QC issues, and prepare
the data for submission to CIWQS with the SMRs. RBI will advise the City on any

requirements applicable to the CTF if effluent pyrethroid levels were to exceed the Central

Valley Water Board pyrethroid triggers.

TASK 3: ELECTRONIC SELF -MONITORING REPORTS ( ESMRS)

RBI will assist the City with preparing and reviewing data files and cover letters for routine

SMRs, which includes monthly, quarterly, and annual reports. RBI also will assist with

preparation and review of the Discharge Monitoring Report ( DMR) that is required with each

SMR submittal. Both the DMR and SMRs are uploaded to the California Integrated Water

Quality System ( CIWQS) database. RBI will assist the City in preparation of draft SMRs and

will review draft SMR and DMR data files to ensure they contain the NPDES permit -required
information, the calculated and analytical parameters are accurate, and the contents of the

cover letter and any attachments are consistent with the reported data. RBI will work with the

City to finalize the SMRs for upload to CIWQS and will coordinate with the City to ensure

the SMRs are submitted and certified in CIWQS by the report due date. The City is

responsible for conducting the final submittal and certification of SMRs in CIWQS. Hours

budgeted are for providing assistance with SMRs/DMRs for the following submittals.

194



Mr. Michael King
City of Lathrop
March 6, 2024

Page 4
vjROBERTSON - BRYRM, INC

Solutions for Progress

Report Type Reporting Period Report Due Date

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

June 2024

July 2024

August 2024

September 2024

October 2024

November 2024

December 2024

January 2025

February 2025

March 2025

April 2025

May 2025

August 1, 2024

September 1, 2024

October 1, 2024

November 1, 2024

December 1, 2024

January 1, 2025

February 1, 2025

March 1, 2025

April 1, 2025

May 1, 2025

June 1, 2025

July 1, 2025

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

2nd Quarter 2024

3rd Quarter 2024

4th Quarter 2024

1St Quarter 2025

August 1, 2024

November 1, 2024

February 1, 2025

May 1, 2025

Annual Calendar Year 2024 February 1, 2025

TASK 4: NPDES PERMIT -REQUIRED PROGRESS REPORTS

RBI will prepare the following annual reports required by the NPDES permit, as well as cover

letters for the submittals. Draft reports will be prepared for review and comment by the City.
The City's comments will be incorporated into a final report for the City to submit to CIWQS.

Annual Operations Report due February 1, 2025

Best Management Practices Plan for Salinity Annual Report due February 1, 2025

Mercury Pollution Prevention Plan Annual Report due February 1, 2025

TASK 5: INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM

RBI is currently under contract to implement the City's Industrial Pretreatment Program ( IPP)
for fiscal years 2023/2024 and 2024/2025. Services provided under that contract include

assistance with industrial user permit development, monitoring, and enforcement. Services to

be provided under this task include the following subtasks.

Task 5.1: IPP Approval by Central Valley Water Board

In January 2024, the City submitted its updated IPP, prepared by RBI, to the Central Valley
Water Board for approval, in accordance with CTF NPDES permit requirements. RBI is

tracking Central Valley Water Board staff's review of the IPP. This task is for RBI to address

195



Mr. Michael King
City of Lathrop
March 6, 2024

Page 5
IMROBERTSON-BRYON, Inc

Solutions for Progress

Board staff queries regarding the IPP to facilitate its approval. This task is also for RBI to

make minor revisions to the IPP in the event Board staff have comments and request changes.

Task 5.2: Municipal Code Revisions

The IPP update included proposed revisions to the City's municipal code to local limits, new

industrial user definitions, and editorial revisions. This task is for RBI to support the City to

revise the municipal code, such as assistance with preparing the staff report and resolution to

be considered by City Council.

Task 5.3: IPP Annual Report

RBI will prepare the IPP Annual Report required by the CTF NPDES permit. This report will

address IPP activities in calendar year 2024 and is to be submitted to CIWQS by February 1,
2025. This will be the first IPP Annual Report submittal by the City. The report will address

all twelve elements listed in Attachment E, section X.D.5 (for brevity, these items are not

described here). The information and data to address these elements will come from industrial

user data, data collected by the City, and inspections conducted by the City.

If the City is not in compliance with the Central Valley Water Board's pretreatment
audit/compliance inspection requirements, then the report will include the reasons for

noncompliance and state how and when the City will comply with such conditions and

requirements.

TASK 6: TOXICITY COMPLIANCE SUPPORT

RBI will assist the City with scheduling, coordination, and reviewing results of routine,

quarterly whole effluent toxicity ( WET) testing required by the NPDES permit. RBI will

advise the City on whether permit -required accelerated testing or a Toxicity Reduction

Evaluation ( TRE) has been triggered. In the event a TRE is triggered by the routine bioassay
results, the City must submit a TRE Action Plan to the Central Valley Water Board within 30

days. Budget is provided for RBI to prepare one ( 1) TRE Action Plan for the City to provide a

timely submittal, should a TRE be triggered. RBI will provide a separate scope and budget to

provide assistance beyond the hours budgeted herein in the event that additional effort is

required to assist implementing routine testing, accelerated testing, or a TRE. We assume that

the City will contract laboratory testing services separate from RBI's contract and that Veolia

operations staff will collect the effluent samples used for bioassay testing.

TASK 7: REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS TRACKING AND REPORTING

The CTF is currently subject of several Central Valley Water Board initiatives, including CV -

SALTS, the Delta Regional Monitoring Program ( RMP), the Delta Merucry Control Program
and Total Maximum Daily Load ( TMDL), Pyrethroid Control Program, and others. There

may be other regulatory initiatives that the CTF would be affected by during FY24/25,

including the State Water Resources Control Board's Clean Water Act section 303(d) listing
process. As approved by the City, RBI will attend meetings for these initiatives, advocate for

the City's interest, and advise the City on these initiatives and their impacts to the CTF. RBI

196



Mr. Michael King
City of Lathrop
March 6, 2024

Page 6

ROBERTSON - BRYON, Inc.
Solutions for Progress

will cost share these efforts with other RBI clients when feasible. RBI'seffort on these

activities is limited by the task budget.

TASK 8: TEMPERATURE MONITORING

RBI will continue to closely monitor CTF effluent and San Joaquin River temperature to

identify any potential temperature compliance challenges. This will involve monitoring of

effluent temperature in the CTF's cooling ponds ( Ponds A and B) to better characterize the

amount of cooling provided by these ponds and help PACE identify appropriate changes to

the ponds when constructing the Phase 3 upgrades. Budget is included in this task for RBI

staff to procure, deploy, and routinely ( quarterly) download data from a temperature logger in

Pond B, obtain effluent temperature data from the CTF's Effluent Transfer Pump Station, and

post -process the data. Budget is provided for RBI staff to travel to the CTF to download data

from and perform any necessary maintenance to the temperature logger. RBI will

communicate findings from this monitoring to the City in the form of a technical

memorandum. Budget is provided for preparation of a single technical memorandum in

FY24/25.

TASK 9: GENERAL COMPLIANCE AND OPERATIONAL SUPPORT

As requested, RBI will provide general compliance and operational support to the City,
including, but not limited to, the following items.

Assistance with responding to Notices of Violations ( NOVs) received from the Central

Valley Water Board

Presence at Central Valley Water Board inspections of the CTF

Review of CTF Phase 3 design plans

THM compliance investigations

Chlorination/dechlorination operational support

Effluent temperature compliance with the NPDES permit effluent limitations and the

State's Thermal Plan

Support in obtaining contractors for compliance monitoring services

Feedback to the City on adjustments to SCADA, PLCs, and CTF treatment

processes/components to support NPDES permit compliance reporting

Recycled water production under the NPDES permit and use throughout the City

Sewer rate evaluation

RBI'seffort on these activities is limited by the task budget.

197



Mr. Michael King
City of Lathrop
March 6, 2024

Page 7

ROBERTSON - Bunn, Inc
Solutions for Progress

TASK 10: PROJECT MANAGEMENT

This task provides hours for RBI's Project Manager and Principal - in -Charge to oversee and

direct RBI staff efforts on each task, to hold key conversations with agency staff when

needed, and to review interim work products. In addition, this task provides time for project
coordination by phone, email, and fax with other project team members, budget and schedule

tracking, invoicing, and other duties to coordinate/administer the project.

Additional Assumptions of this Scope of Work

The level of effort for this scope is limited to the hours budgeted. Should additional services

be requested due to additional requests of Central Valley Water Board or City staff that are

not identified herein, or should analyses of greater scope or depth than identified and

budgeted herein be required, RBI will notify the City to discuss the extent of any out -of -scope
services needed/requested. Should out -of -scope services be requested by the City, RBI will

submit a supplemental scope and fee proposal for those services.

II. SCHEDULE

RBI can begin providing professional services associated with the tasks defined herein upon

receipt of a signed contract or written authorization to proceed.

III. CONTRACT AND BILLING ARRANGEMENT

RBI will complete the scope of work defined herein on a time -and -materials basis, with an

authorized budget as shown in Attachment 1. RBI will not exceed the authorized budget
amount without written approval.

If you have any questions regarding this proposal, please do not hesitate to contact me at

916) 261-4043 or Paul Bedore at ( 916) 224-6271. We look forward to continuing to assist the

City with its NPDES permitting and compliance needs.

Sincerely,

Michael Bryan, Ph.D.

Managing
Partner

Attachment 1: RBI Budget
Attachment 2: 2024 Fee Schedule

198



PROFESSIONALSERVICES

Task
1: 

ComplianceCoordination

Meeting
s

Task
2: 

Effluent
and

Receiving
Water
Monitoring

Task
2.1: 
Scheduling
and
Coordination

Task
2.2: 
Review
and
Compile
Data

Task
2.3: 
Characterization
Monitoring

Task
2.4: 
Pyrethroid
Pesticides
Monitoring

Task
3: 

ElectronicSelf -
monitoring
Reports (
eSMRs)

Task
4: 

NPDES
Permit -

required

Progress
Reports

Task
5: 

Industrial
Pretreatment
Program

Task
5.1: 
IPP
Approval
by
Central
Valley
Water
Board

Task
5.2: 

M

unicipal
Code
Revisions

Task
5. 3: 

IPP
Annual
Report

Task
6: 

Toxicity
Compliance
Support

Task
7: 

Regulatory
Developments

Tracking & 
Reporting

Task
8: 

Temperature
Monitoring

Task
9: 

General
Compliance

andOperatio
nal

Support

Task
10: 

Project

Ma

nagemen
t

ATTACHMENT
1

RBI
BU

DGET
Lathr
opNPDES

Per

mitC

omplianc
e

Services

Managing

Resource

Senior

Project

Project

Partner

Partner

Director
Associate
Associate
Engineer
II

Scientist
I

Scientist
I

Michael
B

an

8 1 1 1 2 2 2 8 2 8 36

Art
O'Brien

12

Paul Bedore
74 16 4 4 16 6 10 24 8 60 52

Mi

chell eBrown
12 8

24

Cameron
Cyle

Irvine

Moon
6 24 16

74 12 4 80 24 60 20

Ter

es a

L

o. -
z

32 60 24 20 80 24 24 16 40 16 32

Whitney Tho .

e
20

ROBERTSON -
BRYAN, 
Inc

S

olutionsf

orPr

ogress
Task Subtotal

Task
T

otal
46,082 $ 

46,082

11,728 16,717 7,873 7,619 45,514 7,688 8,676 5,784 15,624 14,148 14,672 21,154 41,996 33,896

43,937 45,514 7,688 30,084 14,148 14,672
S

21,154 41,996 33,896

71 349
24,779

12 342
4,104 $ 

82,474 $ 

12,804 $ 

13,386 $ 

77,816 $ 

79,488 $ 

4,320

274 301

44
291

46

274

291 $ 

284

368 216

20 216

Total
b

Staff.

erson
DIRECT
EXPENSESMileage

HOBO
Temperature
Loggers (
2)

1,000 400

Su
btota

lOthe
r

Direc
t

Ex .e nses

1,400
300,571

TOTAL
BUDGET

299,171

199



ROBERTSON - BRYOM, INC
Solutions for Progress

ATTACHMENT 2

2024 FEE SCHEDULE

Charges for project work performed by Robertson -Bryan, Inc. (RBI) will be calculated and

billed at the hourly rates shown below.

Professional Services

Managing Partner

Partner

Managing Principal Engineer/Scientist

Principal Engineer/Scientist

Resource Director

Associate

Senior Engineer/Scientist II

Senior Engineer/Scientist I

Project Engineer/Scientist III

Project Engineer/Scientist II

Project Engineer/Scientist I

Staff Engineer/Scientist II

Staff Engineer/Scientist I

Technical Analyst

Graphics/GIS

Laboratory Compliance Specialist

Administrative Assistant

Intern

Rate/Hour

349.00

342.00

333.00

315.00

301.00

291.00

284.00

269.00

247.00

236.00

216.00

201.00

185.00

172.00

153.00

149.00

115.00

71.00

Up to ten percent ( 10%) of subcontractor charges will be added to cover administrative costs.

Hourly rates will be increased by a minimum of fifty percent ( 50%) for depositions, trials, and

hearings. Rates will be adjusted annually. Rates are adjusted annually, effective December

16th.

Invoicing and Payments

Invoices will be issued on a monthly basis for all work performed on a project. Payment is

due upon receipt of the invoice.

200



ITEM 4.10

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BKF ENGINEERS FOR

THE EAST LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL

UPGRADES CIP PW 24-12

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Approving a Professional

Engineering Services Agreement with BKF Engineers
for the East Lathrop Water Main and Lateral Upgrades
CIP PW 24-12

SUMMARY:

The East Lathrop Water Main and Lateral Upgrades Capital Improvement Project
CIP) PW 24-12 was created and included in the Fiscal Year ( FY) 23-24 budget to

upgrade designated portions of the City water system located in an area bounded by
Louise Avenue, Bizzibe Street, Cambridge Drive, and " 0" Street. Professional

engineering services are needed for the design, preparation of the plans and

specifications and to provide engineering support services during construction.

Staff requested and received proposals from qualified engineering consultants. BKF

Engineers ( BKF) was selected as the best -qualified firm based on their previous work

history, qualifications, positive references, and overall understanding of the project
requirements.

Staff requests that City Council approve an Engineering Professional Services

Agreement with BKF in the amount of $ 350,921 for engineering consulting services

needed to support the East Lathrop Water Main and Lateral Upgrades, CIP PW 24-

12.

Sufficient funds have been allocated in the FY 23-24 budget.

BACKGROUND:

The East Lathrop Water Main and Lateral Upgrades CIP PW 24-12 (Project) was

created to upgrade designated portions of the water system located in a residential

neighborhood bounded by Louise Avenue, Bizzibe Street, Cambridge Drive, and " 0"

Street in order to meet current City Standards.

The water mains in the Project area consist of asbestos -cement 6 - inch diameter pipes
mainly located on private property in the front yards of homes making maintenance

of the water mains and service laterals challenging to identify and repair. The Project
includes the abandonment and replacement of these mains with new 8 -inch PVC pipe
located within the public right-of-way and the installation of new meters, valves and

hydrants.

201



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BKF

ENGINEERS FOR THE EAST LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL UPGRADES

CIP PW 24-12

Staff requested and received proposals from qualified engineering consultants for

engineering consulting services needed to support the Project. BKF was selected as

the best - qualified firm based on their previous work history, qualifications, positive
references, and overall understanding of the Project requirements.

The cost for the agreement with BKF is $ 350,921 for engineering consulting services

needed to support the Project.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

This Project was created to upgrade designated portions of the City's water system
to meet current City Standards and ensure safe, reliable delivery of water to residents

living in the Project area. BKF was selected as the best -qualified firm to provide
engineering services to support the Project based on their previous work history,
qualifications, positive references, and overall understanding of the Project
requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff requests that City Council approve a Professional Services Agreement with BKF

in the amount of $ 350,921 for engineering consulting services to support the East

Lathrop Water Main and Lateral Upgrades CIP PW 24-12.

Sufficient funds have been approved in the FY 2023-24 budget for CIP PW 24-12.

ATTACHMENTS:

A. Resolution Approving an Engineering Professional Services Agreement with

BKF Engineers for the East Lathrop Water Main and Lateral Upgrades, CIP PW

24-12

B. Engineering Professional Services Agreement with BKF Engineers for the East

Lathrop Water Main and Lateral Upgrades CIP PW 24-12

202



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BKF

ENGINEERS FOR THE EAST LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL UPGRADES

CIP PW 24-12

APPROVALS

Greg son Date

Senior Civil Engineer

Brad Taylor
City, ngineer

Cari Jame

Finance Di e•tor

Date

2/021-//.20L(
Date

3/1-//ze

3 • ZZ • ZOz'f
Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

5 -Le-VP

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

203



RESOLUTION NO. 24 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH

BKF ENGINEERS FOR THE EAST LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL

UPGRADES CIP PW 24-12

WHEREAS, the East Lathrop Water Main and Lateral Upgrades Capital
Improvement Project ( CIP) PW 24-12 was created to upgrade designated portions of

the water system located in a residential neighborhood bounded by Louise Avenue,
Bizzibe Street, Cambridge Drive, and " 0" Street to meet current City Standards; and

WHEREAS, staff requested and received proposals from qualified engineering
consultants for engineering consulting services needed to support the East Lathrop
Water Main and Lateral Upgrades CIP PW 24-12; and

WHEREAS, after reviewing the proposals requested from qualified engineering
consultants that specialize in providing these services, BKF Engineers was selected

as the best qualified firm to support this project based on their previous work history,
qualifications, positive references, and overall understanding of the project
requirements; and

WHEREAS, staff has negotiated a scope and fee proposal with BKF Engineers
for engineering consulting services to support the East Lathrop Water Main and

Lateral Upgrades CIP PW 24-12; and

WHEREAS, staff requests that City Council approve a Professional Services

Agreement with BKF Engineers in the amount of $350,921 for engineering consulting
services to support the East Lathrop Water Main and Lateral Upgrades CIP PW 24-

12; and

WHEREAS, funds approved in the FY 2023/24 budget for the East Lathrop
Water Main and Lateral Upgrades CIP PW 24-12 are sufficient to authorize the

agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby approve an Engineering Professional Services Agreement with BKF

Engineers in the amount of $ 350,921 for engineering consulting services to support
the East Lathrop Water Main and Lateral Upgrades CIP PW 24-12.

204



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8th day of April, 2024, by the

following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

205



ATTACHMENT

CITY OF LATHROP

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES WITH BKF

ENGINEERS

TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE EAST

LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL UPGRADES CIP PW 24-12

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this April 8, 2024 is by and between BKF

Engineers ("CONSULTANT") and the City of Lathrop, a California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to perform
Professional Consulting Services, which are required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Consulting Services, as

hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1) Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Professional Consulting Services in accordance with the

scope of work and fee proposal provided by CONSULTANT, attached hereto as Exhibit "A"

and incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT represents it is prepared to and can

diligently perform these services in accordance with the upmost standards of its profession
and to CITY'S satisfaction. The fee proposal shall include all reimbursable costs required for

the performance of the Scope of Services. Payment of additional reimbursable costs

considered to be over and above those inherent in the original Scope of Services shall be

approved of in advance and in writing, by the CITY.

2) Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT a sum not to exceed $ 350,921.00 for the

Professional Consulting Services set forth in Exhibit "A". CONSULTANT shall be paid any
uncontested sum due and payable within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of billings containing all

information pursuant to Paragraph 5 below. Compensation for any task must be equal to or

less than the percentage of task complete. In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to

compensation for work not included in Exhibit " A", unless a written change order or

authorization describing the extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY's

authorized representative prior to the commencement of the work. Payment is made based

on a time and materials basis.

Page1 of 11

206



CITY OF LATHROP — TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE EAST
LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL UPGRADES CIP PW 24-12

3) Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Agreement is April 8, 2024, and it shall terminate no later than

June 30, 2025.

4) Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while engaged in

carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, is an

independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY. As an independent contractor,
CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means and methods to complete the scope
of work described in Exhibit "A" to City's satisfaction. CONSULTANT expressly warrants not

to represent, at any time or in any manner, that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5) Billings

CONSULTANT shall submit invoices for completed work on a monthly basis, or as otherwise

agreed, providing without limitation, details as to amount of hours, individual performing said

work, hourly rate, and indicating to what aspect of the Scope of Services said work is

attributable. CONSULTANT'S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the

amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice. Except as specifically
authorized by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate services performed by
more than one person. In no event shall CONSULTANT submit any billing for an amount in

excess of the rates or the maximum amount of compensation provided in section ( 2) for

either task or for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a properly executed change
order.

6) Advice and Status Reporting

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all significant
developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and shall furnish to

CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitor the performance of this

Agreement.

CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY such reports, diagrams, drawings and other work

products developed pursuant to the Scope of Services.

7) Auditing

CITY reserves the right to periodically audit all charges made by CONSULTANT to CITY for

services under this Agreement. Upon request, CONSULTANT agrees to furnish CITY, or a

designated representative, with necessary information and assistance needed to conduct

such an audit.

CONSULTANT agrees that CITY or its delegate will have the right to review, obtain and

copy all records pertaining to performance of this Agreement. CONSULTANT agrees to

provide CITY or its delegate with any relevant information requested and shall permit CITY

or its delegate access to its premises, upon reasonable notice, during normal business

hours for the purpose of interviewing employees and inspecting and copying such books,

records, accounts, and other material that may be relevant to a matter under investigation for

the purpose of determining compliance with the requirement. CONSULTANT further agrees

Page 2 of 11

207



CITY OF LATHROP — TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE EAST

LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL UPGRADES CIP PW 24-12

to maintain such records for a period of three ( 3) years after final payment under this

agreement.

8) Assignment of Personnel

CONSULTANT acknowledges that the CITY has relied on CONSULTANT's capabilities and
on the qualifications of CONSULTANT's principals and staff as identified in its proposal to

CITY. The services shall be performed by, or under the direct supervision, of

CONSULTANT's Authorized Representative: Sravan Paladugu, PE, CFM, Associate

Principal, CITY shall be notified by CONSULTANT of any change of its Authorized

Representative, and CITY is granted the right of approval of all original, additional, and

replacement personnel at CITY's sole discretion, and shall be notified by CONSULTANT of

any changes of CONSULTANT's project staff prior to any change.

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services pursuant to this

Agreement. If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person assigned to the work called for

under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to do so immediately, without requiring the

City to process a reason or explanation for its request.

9) Assignment and Subcontracting

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for entering into

this Agreement was, and is, the professional reputation and competence of CONSULTANT.

Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein may be assigned by CONSULTANT without

the prior written approval of CITY'S authorized representative. CONSULTANT shall not

subcontract any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than

the subcontractors noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY'S

authorized representative.

10) Insurance

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement,
CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for the duration of the

Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the CITY the insurance specified
in subsections ( a) through (c) below with insurers and under forms of insurance satisfactory
in all respects to the CITY. CONSULTANT shall not allow any subcontractor to commence

work on any subcontract until all insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been

obtained for the subcontractor. Verification of this insurance shall be submitted and made

part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a) Workers' Compensation. CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT'Ssole

cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and

Employer'sLiability Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or

indirectly by CONSULTANT. Said Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of

not less than one million dollars ($ 1,000,000). In the alternative,
CONSULTANT may rely on a self-insurance program to meet these

requirements provided that the program of self-insurance complies fully with

the provisions of the California Labor Code. The insurer, if insurance is

provided, or the CONSULTANT, if a program of self-insurance is provided,
shall waive all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from

Page 3 of 11

208



CITY OF LATHROP — TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE EAST

LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL UPGRADES CIP PW 24-12

work performed under this Agreement.

b) Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. CONSULTANT, at

CONSULTANT'S own cost and expense, shall maintain commercial general
and automobile liability insurance for the period covered by this Agreement in

an amount not less than one million dollars ($ 1,000,000) per occurrence,

combined single limit coverage for risks associated with the work

contemplated by this Agreement. If Commercial General Liability Insurance

or an Automobile Liability form or other form with a general aggregate limit is

used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to

be performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall be at

least twice the required occurrence limit. Such coverage shall include but

shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising from bodily and

personal injury, including death resulting therefrom, and damage to property
resulting from activities contemplated under this Agreement, including the

use of owned and non -owned automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/88) and

Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 ( ed. 12/90)
Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or added

as an endorsement to the policy:

i) CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be

covered as insured with respect to each of the following: liability
arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of CONSULTANT,

including the insider's general supervision of CONSULTANT;
products and completed operations of CONSULTANT; premises
owned, occupied or used by CONSULTANT. The coverage shall

contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to

CITY, its officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii) The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident basis,
and not on a claim made basis.

iii) An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance and

that no other insurance affected by the CITY will be called upon to

contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv) Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting provisions of

the policy shall not affect coverage provided to CITY and its officers,

employees, agents, and volunteers.

v) Insurance is to be placed with California -admitted insurers with a

Best's rating of no less than A: VII.

vi) Notice of cancellation or non -renewal must be received by CITY at

least thirty days prior to such change.

Page 4 of 11

209



CITY OF LATHROP — TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE EAST

LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL UPGRADES CIP PW 24-12

c) Professional Liability. CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT'S own cost and expense, shall

maintain for the period covered by this Agreement professional liability insurance for

licensed professionals performing work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less

than Two Million Dollars ($ 2,000,000) per claim made and per policy aggregate covering the

licensed professionals' errors and omissions, as follows:

i) Any deductible or self -insured retention shall not exceed $ 150,000
per claim.

ii) Notice of cancellation, material change, or non -renewal must be

received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such change shall be

included in the coverage or added as an endorsement to the policy.

iii) The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest

clause.

iv) The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1. The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and must be

before the date of the Agreement.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance

must be provided for at least five years after completion of the

Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available at

reasonable rates.

3. If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not replaced
with another claims made policy form with a retroactive date

that precedes the date of this Agreement, CONSULTANT

must provide extended reporting coverage for a minimum of

five years after completion of the Agreement or the work.

The CITY shall have the right to exercise at the

CONSULTANT'S cost, any extended reporting provisions of

the policy should the CONSULTANT cancel or not renew the

coverage.

4. A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be submitted

to the CITY prior to the commencement of any work under

this Agreement.

d) Deductibles and Self -Insured Retentions. CONSULTANT shall disclose the self -insured

retentions and deductibles before beginning any of the services or work called for by any
term of this Agreement. During the period covered by this Agreement, upon express written

authorization of the CITY's authorized representative, CONSULTANT may increase such

deductibles or self -insured retentions with respect to CITY, its officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers. The CITY's authorized representative may condition approval of an

increase in deductible or self -insured retention levels upon a requirement that

CONSULTANT procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations,
claim administration, and defense expenses that is satisfactory in all respects to each of

them.

Page 5 of 11

210



CITY OF LATHROP — TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE EAST

LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL UPGRADES CIP PW 24-12

e) Notice of Reduction in Coverage. In the event that any coverage required under
subsections ( a), (b), or (c) of this section of the Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially
affected in any other manner, CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT'S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later than five days after

CONSULTANT is notified of the change in coverage.

f) In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT fails to provide or

maintain any insurance policies or policy endorsements to the extent and within the time

herein required, CITY may, at its sole option:

i) Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of the

premiums for such insurance from any sums due under the

Agreement;

ii) Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or withhold

any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT hereunder, or

both stop work and withhold any payment, until CONSULTANT

demonstrates compliance with the requirements hereof;

iii) Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to other

remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for

CONSULTANT'S breach.

11) Indemnification - CONSULTANT'S Responsibility

As to the CONSULTANT'S work hereunder, it is understood and agreed that ( a)
CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, (b) CITY relies

upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a skillful and

professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform.

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate as a

release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the work performed.
It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is apprised of the scope of the work

to be performed under this Agreement and CONSULTANT agrees that said work can and

shall be performed in a fully competent manner in accordance with the standard of care

applicable to CONSULTANT'S profession.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and

volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, suits, actions, damages,
and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily injury, loss of life, or damage
to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent

caused by the willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its

employees, subcontractors, or agents, or on account of the performance or character of this

work, except for any such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the

CITY, its officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. It is understood that the duty of

CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in

Section 2778 of the California Civil Code. Acceptance of insurance certificates and

endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve CONSULTANT from liability

Page 6of11

211



CITY OF LATHROP — TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE EAST

LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL UPGRADES CIP PW 24-12

under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold
harmless clause shall apply whether or not such insurance policies shall have been

determined to be applicable to any of such damages or claims for damages.

12) Licenses

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration, is required
of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal or state law,
CONSULTANT warrants that such license has been obtained, is valid and in good standing,
and CONSULTANT shall keep it in effect at all times during the term of this Agreement, and

that any applicable bond has been posted in accordance with all applicable laws and

regulations.

13) Business Licenses

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until all

Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

14) Termination

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement upon 30 days written notification

to the other party. Upon termination, or completion of services under this Agreement, all

information collected, work product and documents shall be delivered by CONSULTANT to

CITY within ten ( 10) calendar days.

15) Funding

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in subsequent years
is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the appropriations limits of

Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the Council may determine not to fund

this agreement in subsequent years.

16) Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change Orders,
consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given by either party to the

other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and served upon the other party if (1)
personally served, (2) sent by the United States mail, postage prepaid, (3) sent by private
express delivery service, or (4) in the case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the

telephone FAX number set forth below during regular business hours of the receiving party
and followed with two ( 2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile

transmission. Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and

service by facsimile transmission.

To City: City of Lathrop
City Clerk

390 Towne Centre Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330

Page 7 of 11

212



CITY OF LATHROP — TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE EAST
LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL UPGRADES CIP PW 24-12

Copy to: City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330

MAIN: ( 209) 941-7430

FAX: ( 209) 941-7449

To Consultant:

17) Miscellaneous

BKF Engineers
7901 Stoneridge Dr., Suite 360

Pleasanton, CA 94588

Phone: ( 650) 482-6313

a) Consent. Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a party is

required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and shall be executed by a

person having the express authority to grant such approval or consent.

b) Contract Terms Prevail. All exhibits and this Agreement are intended to be

construed as a single document. Should any inconsistency occur between the

specific terms of this Agreement and attached exhibits, the terms of this Agreement
shall prevail.

c) Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and

construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the State of California.

d) Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in these specifications.

e) Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any

delay or failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, which directly results

from an Act of God or an act of a superior governmental authority.

f) Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have

no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.
g) Incorporation of Documents. All documents constituting the Agreement documents

described in Section 1 hereof and all documents which may, from time to time, be

referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such reference

incorporated in the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.
h) Integration. This Agreement and any amendments hereto between the parties

constitute the entire Agreement between the parties concerning the Project and

Work, and there are no other prior oral or written agreements between the parties
that are not incorporated in this Agreement.

Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon
the parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

Ownership of Documents. All documents, photographs, reports, analyses, audits,
computer media, or other material documents or data, and working papers, whether

or not in final form, which have been obtained or prepared under this Agreement,

Page 8 of 11

213



CITY OF LATHROP — TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE EAST
LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL UPGRADES CIP PW 24-12

shall be deemed the property of the CITY. Upon CITY's request, CONSULTANT
shall allow CITY to inspect all such documents during the CONSULTANT's regular
business hours.

k) Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification, restriction,
reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement shall define or otherwise

control, establish or limit the performance required or permitted or to be required of

or permitted by either party. All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be

deemed to be both covenants and conditions.

I)

m)

Severability. The invalidity in whole or part of any provision of this Agreement shall

not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this agreement. If a court of

competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this Agreement is void or

unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full

force and effect.

Status of CONSULTANT. In the exercise of rights and obligations under this

Agreement, CONSULTANT acts as an independent contractor and not as an agent
or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits

accorded or accruing to the City Council members, officers or employees of CITY,
and CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and benefits.

n) Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit

of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns of the parties.

o) Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its

provisions. In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be

performed shall be computed by excluding the first Day and including the last. If the

time in which an act is to be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day
observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance shall be extended to

the following Business Day.

p)

q)

Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the parties agree
that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in

the County of San Joaquin or in the United States District Court for the Eastern

District of California.

Recovery of Costs. The prevailing party in any action brought to enforce the terms of

this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement may recover its reasonable costs,
including reasonable attorney'sfees, incurred or expended in connection with such

action against the non -prevailing party.

18) Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a written

Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued until all necessary
bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT

for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

Page 9 of 11

214



CITY OF LATHROP — TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE EAST
LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL UPGRADES CIP PW 24-12

19) Signatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the right,
power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this Agreement on behalf of

the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the CITY. This agreement shall inure
to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and

assigns.

Page 10 of 11

215



CITY OF LATHROP — TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE EAST

LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL UPGRADES CIP PW 24-12

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

Salvador Navarrete

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Assist City Manager

Approved by:
Resolution No.:

Consultant:

3-/r•Zo2Y
Date

Michael King

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Date

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

BKF Engineers
7901 Stoneridge Dr., Suite 360

Pleasanton, CA 94588

Fed ID #

Business License #

Signature Date

Print Name and Title

Page 11 of 11

216



EXHIBIT A

EAST LATHROP WATER MAIN AND LATERAL UPGRADES - SCOPE OF WORK

TASK 1: PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AND COORDINATION

Project Management: This task will include a) overseeing specific quality assurance and quality control ( QA/QC)

measures; b) prepare monthly project invoices; c) communicate and correspond as necessary with the City's project

manager on project issues ( administrative, design, and construction/field-related); and d) prepare detailed schedule of

work showing each task and subtask, identifying milestones for critical meetings, workshops, progress calls, deliverables

and City reviews. The schedule will be submitted within five ( 5) days of award of contract. The detailed schedule will be

submitted electronically in Microsoft Project and in PDF file format. Schedule updates will be submitted as needed.

Project Meetings and Communication with the City: BKF will organize and attend a virtual kick-off meeting with the

City to review the scope of the project, develop a project schedule, and confirm deliverables. This meeting will include the

design consultant and key City staff.

In addition to the kick-off meeting, BKF will schedule and conduct a minimum of three ( 3) virtual design -related

meetings/workshops ( Preliminary Design Workshop, 65%, and 95% Design Review Meetings) and five ( 5) progress calls

with City staff as needed during the design phase of the project.

BKF will prepare the meeting agenda and distribute meeting minutes. BKF will also keep an action items list at each

meeting and conference call.

Deliverables:

Monthly Invoices with Summary of work completed
Project schedule updates

Meeting agendas and minutes

Action items list

TASK 2: PRELIMINARY DESIGN

TASK 2.1: KICK-OFF MEETING, DATA COLLECTION AND REVIEW

BKF will conduct thorough research to obtain all available utility information within the project area. During the kick-off

meeting, we will prepare a data request for the City to gather all available records for our review. We will review existing
records including, but not limited to, street improvement plans; GIS utility layers; block maps; engineering studies;

available right-of-way documents; manhole surveys, City Standard Provisions, and Standard Details; and codes,

ordinances, and policies pertaining to the proposed project designs. BKF will also contact other utility companies to obtain

the underground utility information within the project limit. BKF will be responsible for researching all applicable agency

and utility company records.

Deliverables:

Initial Data Request
Compiled Record Drawings

TASK 2.2: FIELD RECONNAISSANCE

We realize that record drawings do not always reflect field conditions. So, it is important to reconcile the differences early
on. During the site visits, we will perform a cursory level field verification of record drawings reviewed under Task 2.1 from

City and utility owners. We will coordinate with City staff prior to our field visit for access to gated sites, manholes, and/or

structures, as needed. During these visits, we will also identify site construction access and other constraints.

Deliverables:

Basemap Showing Data Gaps in PDF format

TASK 2.3: TOPOGRAPHIC MAPPING AND SURVEY CONTROL

We will perform conventional ground topographic surveys to capture top of curb, back of walk, driveways, street

centerline, utility poles, meter boxes, and dip flowline of storm and sewer manholes/inlets. Horizontal control will be based

on California State Plane Coordinates and vertical control will be based on NAVD88 datum. It is not in this scope to do

right-of-way research or to plot right-of-way lines. We will use City or County GIS parcel lines as right-of-way.

Deliverables:

217



Electronic copy of survey files ( AutoCAD)

TASK 2.4: PRELIMINARY DESIGN REPORT

BKF will prepare a Preliminary Design Report ( PDR) to document design objectives, design criteria, design codes, and

decisions made on major issues related to the project. The PDR will include the project's preliminary design, which will be

used as the basis for producing final construction bid documents without the need for further engineering studies or re-

evaluation of basic design decisions. Utilities, access, and any potential code/permit or other challenging aspects of the

project will be discussed in the PDR. The PDR will also establish budget and schedule requirements. The PDR will include,

as a minimum, the following elements:

1. Introduction

Background and purpose of the project

Project scope

2. Design and Construction

Pipeline design criteria including but are not limited to criteria for selecting new water main alignment, pipe
material, and size, proposed points of tie-in/system connections, and method/design for crossing existing utilities

and easements.

Construction hours based on input received by City from residents

Identify new fire locations to comply with the current City fire coverage requirements
List of project specification sections ( technical sections only)
List of drawings
List of required permits
Identification of potential project challenges for proposed design alternative

3. Special Construction Considerations

Perform a constructability review, including major temporary works and access — these items will also be identified

and included in cost estimates in the preliminary engineering phase.
Provide construction execution recommendations, e.g., mandatory work sequence, construction

restriction/constraints, testing requirements, typical submittal requirements, work hours, traffic control

requirements, etc.

Other potential project challenges
Provide recommended construction duration in calendar days.

Identify impacts on water system operations ( e.g., planned outages, water shutdowns, and durations.

Proposed project laydown areas

Identify the potential need for design variances and coordination with the Department of Drinking Water

4. Conclusion and Recommendations

Summary of project and site and design constraints

Recommendations for a preferred alternative for City review and approval

Deliverables:

Draft copy of Preliminary Design Report with 10% Concept Drawings ( PDF format)

TASK 3: DESIGN DEVELOPMENT/ CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

BKF will provide a complete set of documents that will allow for public bidding and construction of the proposed project
at the 100% design submittal by preparing Final Design/Bid Documents, including drawings, technical specifications, and

final contract documents. Design drawings will be prepared under the supervision of, and stamped and signed by, a

California Registered Professional Engineer of the applicable discipline(s). BKF will respond to all permit -related

reviews/comments and revise construction documents accordingly.

TASK 3.1: 65% DESIGN SUBMITTAL

After approval of preferred alternative(s) alignment under Task 2.4, BKF will prepare and submit the 65% submittal to the

City for review. BKF will present the 65% to City stakeholders at a design review meeting. The schedule will allow for a

three-week review period by City staff following the meeting and submission of draft meeting minutes within three

working days following the meeting.

218



At a minimum, the 65% submittal will include:

Addressing City comments on draft PDR

Plan view of the proposed pipeline alignment showing the horizontal alignment in relation to the existing
topographic features, property lines, public right-of-way, private easements, and existing utilities and private
easements ( existing or future)

Profile view of the proposed pipeline alignment showing the pipeline invert elevation's ground profile above the

centerline of the pipeline alignment and existing utilities ( i.e., sewer mains, storm drains, gas) with top of pipe
and/or invert elevations, if confirmed through utility locating/ potholing as part of additional service

Plan view of hydrant laterals, air release valve laterals, and services to meter box

Plan view of proposed street resurfacing. Scope does not include rebuilding of curb ramps driveways or street

rehabilitation/replacement

Preliminary determination of major utility crossings and utilities in conflict

Details for points of connection, pipeline off -sets, trench details, cathodic protection, valves, manhole detail, and

other appurtenances ( ex., fire hydrants, meters, blow - offs, cleanouts, etc.)

Standard California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices ( CA MUTCD) details

Technical specifications
Payment item schedule for contract bid documents

Construction cost estimate based on 65% design submittal

Red - lined" version of City's Standard Front Ends: BKF will be provided the City's Standard Front Ends in PDF

format. BKF will " red -line" as required, and then the City will incorporate edits, as required, for incorporation into

the final bid documents.

Deliverables:

PDF half -size -to -scale set of the 65% design plans
PDF and Microsoft Word files of project specifications
Construction cost estimate in Microsoft Excel

Final PDR Report ( PDF)

TASK 3.2: 95% DESIGN SUBMITTAL

BKF will prepare and submit the 95% submittal for review by the City. The 95% submittal will incorporate the pertinent City
review comments to 65% submittal. The schedule will allow for a three-week review period by City staff following the

submission of the 95% design submittal.

The 95% submittal will include:

Written response to City review comments to the 65% submittal

Detailed drawings and technical specifications are to be included in the contract documents

Final draft bid schedule

Update of the construction cost estimate

Division of Drinking Water Application

BKF will incorporate any changes to the 95% design submittal no later than five working days upon receipt of the City's
comments. The revised version, herein referred to as the 95% design submittal, will be the version of the design drawings
to be made available to permitting agencies for review for the issuance of any construction permits. BKF will submit

documents to respective permitting agencies in accordance with their specific requirements ( i.e., number of copies, full-

size vs. half-size format, hard vs. electronic copies, etc.).

Deliverables:

PDF half-size to scale set of the 95% design plans.
PDF and Microsoft Word files of project specifications.
Updated construction cost estimate in Microsoft Excel.

Updated construction schedule.

65% response to comments

219



TASK 3.3: 100% DESIGN SUBMITTAL

BKF will prepare and submit a " Draft" of 100% design and construction documents based on the City's 95% submittal

review comments. After completing the City's review of the " Draft" 100% submittal, BKF will meet with the City to review

comments and revise plans and specifications for the " Final" 100% submittal. The " Final" 100% submittal will represent the

final bid -ready contract documents and incorporate the pertinent City and/or Permitting Agency review comments from

the " Draft" 100% design submittal. Final 100% design documents will be signed by a California Registered Professional

Engineer. The Bid Document submittal will include:

Written response to each City and/or Permitting Agency comment to the 95% design submittal

Final, detailed drawings and technical specifications to be included in the contract documents

Final payment item schedule for incorporation into the final contract bid documents

Revised/updated cost estimate based on the 100% design submittal

Deliverables:

Half-size and full-size PDF of " Draft" 100% plans, specifications, and estimate.

One full-size wet signed and electronic ( PDF) copy formatted in both half-size and full-size of the " Final" 100%

submittal plans. The PDF version of the design drawings will include BKF's professional engineering stamp and

signature.
On a USB flash drive: AutoCAD ( version 2018 or higher) files for all design drawings; Final technical specifications
in MS Word and PDF formats, with Consultant's professional engineering stamp and signature in the PDF file; cost

estimates in MS Excel and PDF formats; and the construction schedule in MS Project.

TASK 4: BIDDING SUPPORT

BKF will provide engineering support and assist the City, as required, during the bid phase of the project. Bid phase
services may include:

Attendance at a pre -bid meeting with potential contractors

Assistance with and preparation of responses to questions or clarification of aspects of the design and/or

specifications
Evaluation of bids received, as needed

Preparation of conformed drawings with any addenda issued during the bid period

Deliverables:

Review and comment on pre -bid meeting minutes

Respond to questions during the pre -bid meeting if requested by the City (no consultant- prospective bidder

communication)
Formal response to inquiries to the City, either in email or memo -written format

Conformed project specifications, print - ready for double - sided printing in both PDF and Microsoft Word ( docx)
formats.

Conformed Design Drawings in half-size (11x17) and full-size (22x34) to -scale electronic PDF.

Electronic copy of conformed AutoCAD files.

TASK 5: CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT

BKF will assist the City during the construction phase by conducting the following tasks:

BKF will review design submittals including flushing and disinfection sequence. Scope assumes reviewing up to

twenty ( 20) submittals and review of one ( 1) round of revision of each submittal. BKF anticipates spending 1 to 2

hours per submittal depending on the list of items provided in each submittal.

BKF will provide clarifications, as required, of construction documents and respond to contractor requests for

information ( RFI). Scope assumes responding to up to ten ( 10) RFIs. BKF anticipates spending 1 to 2 hours,

depending on the complexity of RFI.

BKF will evaluate and respond to contract change order requests or claims for additional compensation pertaining
to design elements that may arise. Scope assumes responding to up to two ( 2) change orders.

BKF will perform up to two ( 2) site visits to review construction at important stages and/or attend project

meetings as requested.

220



Review contractor's redlined record drawings and prepare one ( 1) signed, stamped set of record drawings.
Prepare a geodatabase file. BKF will updated pipeline and manhole attributes in the City's geodatabase file.

Deliverables:

Submittal reviews as Word or PDF files

Response to RFIs as Word or PDF files

Change order reviews, including modifications to plans or specifications as Word or PDF files

Final Punch List

Record Drawings in AutoCAD and PDF file formats

ADDITIONAL SERVICES

TASK 1A: UTILITY LOCATING

Our in-house Ground Penetrating Radar ( GPR) locating services will allow us to shortlist utilities that are perceived to be in

conflict, thereby eliminating or reducing the number of needed potholes. After reviewing utility company maps, City block

maps, and GIS, BKF will perform utility locating. We will identify metallic utilities ( i.e., electric, telephone, gas,

communication lines, and water) and non-metallic utilities with visible tracer wire. We will prepare a memorandum to

document critical utilities, utilities in close conflict, and if there is a need to pothole any. The memorandum will include

photos of utility paint marks on the street.

Deliverables:

Utility Locating Report

TASK 2A: POTHOLING

Based on the GPR utility locating survey, BKF will develop a potholing plan for locating and profiling existing underground
utilities, and once approved by the CITY, will be responsible for conducting the required potholing and site restoration.

Our subconsultant, Bess Testlab, Inc., will perform potholing using Hydro -vacuum. The scope assumes that the City
encroachment permit fee will be waived. BKF will submit a potholing table summary report electronically describing all

findings in Excel format. It is assumed that City will allow use of typical MUTCD details for traffic control and site specific
traffic control plan is not required for this work.

Deliverables:

Pothole plan ( four potholes assumed)

Electronic copy of pothole table summary report showing pothole identification, utility, depth of cover, material,

pavement information, and other pertinent information

Electronic copy of Pavement thickness summary table

TASK 3A: RIGHT-OF-WAY MAPPING

If requested by the City, BKF will plot the right-of-way (R/W) lines based on street monuments or split of the street

improvements. We will include parcel information based on the assessor's maps, documents from BKF's document

retrieval service, and record maps that may be available on the County website. We will include the lot lines that intersect

the R/W and provide the Assessor's Parcel Numbers ( APN) and street address numbers for reference. This does not

include ordering or using title reports for all properties along the project streets.

Deliverables:

Updated topographic map with ROW lines ( PDF & AutoCAD)

221



CIP
PW
24-12
EAST
LATHROP
WATER
MAIN
AND
LATERAL
UPGRADES

March
6, 

2024

BKF
E

ngineers
T

otal
BKFHours

BKF Fee

Bess
Tech Lab

Sub -ConsultantsTotalFee

induding10% Markup)TotalLabor

ODC/ ReimbursablesTotalFe

e

Prindpal
BrianScottProjectManager

SravanPaladugu

QA/QCManagerRamonAlvarez- Mur

o

TechManagerStephTanverakulSr . ProjectEngineer
GeorgeRovir

a

ProjectEngineer/Surveyor

VariesDesignEngineer

Varies

SurveyPartyChiefVary

SurveyChainpers

on

Vary

UtilityLocatorIV

Varie

s

CCTV/UtilityP

otholing

302

273

260

239

222

195

J

170

222

143

224

Hours

Lump
Sum

Hours

Task
1

Project
Administration & 

Coordination
Project
Management

2

40

42

11,524

0

42

11,524

Project
Meetings (

Kick-off & 
5

Prog

ess
calls)

10

10

F

20

5,120

0

20

5,120

Task
1

Project
Administration & 

Coordination
Subt
otal:2

50

0

10

0

0

0

0

62

16,644

0

0

62

0

16,644

Task
2

Preliminary
Design2. 1

Data
Collection & 
Review

4

4

16

40

64

11,968

0

64

11,968

2. 2

Field
Reconnaisance (

1 -

day
of
site
visit)

8

8

16

2,920

0

16

50

2,970

2.3

Topographic
Mapping
and
Survey

Control
8

20

16

64

64

172

32,164

0

172

300

32,464

2.4

Preliminary
Design (
10% 
Concept
Drawings)

24

60

84

17,436

0

84

17,436

Task
2

Preliminary
Design

Subtotal:

0

12

0

28

0

104

64

64

64

0

336

64,488

0

0

336

350

64,838

Task
3

Construction

Documents3. 1

65% 
Design
Submittal

65% 
Plans

8

8

30

60

120

200

426

82,154

0

426

100

82,254

65% 
Sepcs & 

Estimate

12

4

32

6

8

62

14,656

0

62

14,656

3. 2

95% 
Design

Submittal
95% 
Plans

4

4

15

30

60

100

213

41,077

0

213

100

41,177

95% 
Sepcs & 

Estimate

6

2

16

3

0

4

31

7,328

0

31

7,328

3. 3

Final
100% 
Design
Submittal

100% 
Plans

3

3

11

21

42

70

149

28,754

0

149

100

28,854

100% 
Sepcs & 

Estimate

4

1

11

2

0

3

22

5,130

0

22

5,130

Task
3

Constru ction
Docume

nts

Subto
tal:

0

37

22

115

122

222

385

0

0

0

903

179,099

0 $

0

903 $

300

179,399

Task
4

Bidding

Support

Pre-Bid/RFIs/Review
of
Bids (

6

RFIs)

6

12

12

30

6,846

0

30

6,846

Conformed
Drawings

2

8

20

30

5,858

0

30

5,858

Task
4

Bidding
Support

Subto
tal:I

0

6

0

12

0

12

0

0

0

0

I

30

I $

6,846

I

0

I $

0

I

30

I $

0

I

6,846

222



March
6, 

2024

BKF
Engineers

TotalBKFHours

BKF Fee

Bess
T

ech
Lab

Sub -ConsultantsTotalFee

including10% Markup)TotalLaborODC/Reimbursables

1v. rR F

Principal
Bria

n

Scott

ProjectManager

SravanPaladugu

QA/QCManagerRamonAlvarez- Muro

TechManagerStephTanverakulSr . ProjectEngineer
GeorgeRovIra

ProjectEngineer/Surveyor

Varies

DesignEngineerVaries

SurveyPartyChief

Vary

SurveyChainpersonVary

UtilityLocatorIV

Varies

CCTV/UtilityP

otholing

302

273

260

239

222

195

170

222

143

224

Hours

Lump
Sum

Hours

Task
5

ConstructionSupport

Submittals (
20
Assumed)

4

16

20

20

60

11,944

0

60

11,944

RFIs (

10

Assumed)

8

10

20

38

8,304

0

38

8,304

Site
Visits (
2

Assumed)

16

16

32

6,672

0

32

50

6,722

ChangeOrders (
2

assumed)

4

8

12

3,004

0

12

3,004

As-builts

2

2

8

12

16

40

7,860

0

40

7,860

Ta

sk

5

Construction

Support
Subtotal:

0

18

0

10

50

68

36

0

0

0

182

I $

37,784
1

0

0

f

182
Ill

50

37,834

BaseScopeTotal

2

123

22

175

172

406

485

64

64

0

1,513

304,861

0

0

1,513

700

305,561

Additional
Services

lA

Utility
Locating

8

80

88

20,104

0

88

20,104

2A

Potholing (
4

assumed)

4

8

12

2,316

12,000

13 ,

200

12

15,516

3A

Right -
of -
Way

M

apping

20

16

16

52

9,740

0

52

9,740

Additional
Services
Subtotal:

0

8

0

4

0

20

8

16

16

80

152

32,160

12,000

13,200

152

0

45,360

FeeAssumptions:

1. 

Assumptions
for
number
of
meetings, 
potholes, 
RFIs, 
submittals, 
site
visits, 
etc
are

provide
in

the
table
as

part
of
task
description .

2. 

It

is

assumed
that
City
will
lead
the
coordination
withresidents. 
Fee
does
not
include
attending
community
engagement/outreach
meetings

3. 

Preliminary
design
will

include
evaluating
upto
two
water
main
alignment
alternatives.

4. 

Fee
does
not
inlclude
revision
to
water
main

alignment
after
approval
of
preffered
alignment
by
City

staff.
5. 

Fee
assumes

City
standard
trench
design

detail
is

adequate
and

therefore
geotechnical
investigation
is

not
included.

6. 

Fee
does
not
include
site
corrosivity
test
andcatho
dic
protectiondesign.

7. 

Construction
submittals
review
includes
review
of

one
revised

submittal.

223



PAGE LEFT

INTENTIONALLY

BLANK

224



ITEM 4.11

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: ACCEPT THE GENERAL PLAN HOUSING ELEMENT

ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT FOR CALENDAR YEAR

2023

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt a Resolution Accepting the General Plan

Housing Element Annual Progress Report for

Calendar Year 2023 and Authorize Staff to Submit

the Report to the Governor's Office of Planning and

Research and State Department of Housing and

Community Development.

SUMMARY:

The purpose of the Housing Element Annual Progress Report ( APR) is to provide the

City Council and the State with the City's progress on the General Plan Housing
Element's implementation programs and status towards meeting the City's fair share

of the Regional Housing Needs Allocation ( RHNA).

Each year, California cities are required to prepare an APR on the status of

implementing the General Plan Housing Element, and to submit the report to the

State Department of Housing and Community Development ( HCD) and the

Governor's office of Planning and Research ( OPR). Using a form provided by HCD,
staff provides data to create a snapshot of housing production across affordability
levels, a listing of development applications received, and an update on housing
program implementation. The annual progress report must be provided to the City
Council for review and authorization prior to sending to the State.

BACKGROUND:

The City Council adopted the City's Housing Element on December 9, 2019 and

received certification by HCD on February 7, 2020. The Housing Element is one ( 1)
of seven ( 7) mandated elements of the City's General Plan and includes information

related to the City's existing housing needs, an analysis of the City's population and

employment trends, household characteristics, an inventory of land suitable for

residential development and goals, policies and programs intended to meet the

identified housing needs and state - mandated requirements.

225



CITY MANAGERS REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

HOUSING ELEMENT ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT

PAGE 2

Under California Government Code Section 65400(2), Planning staff is required to

prepare a General Plan Housing Element Annual Progress Report for review by the

City Council and submittal to OPR and HCD by April 1st of each year.

As part of the update to the City's Housing Element, the City is required to identify
sites to accommodate its fair share of the RHNA, as established by HCD and managed
by the San Joaquin Council of Governments ( SJCOG).

In summary, the RHNA process allocates the State's future housing needs to each

County. The State HCD identifies housing needs for each region in response to

projected population and household growth, and mandates that each Council of

Governments ( COG) distribute the RHNA to each jurisdiction ( Cities and Counties).
The City's 2019 Housing Element update identified a number of sites that could

accommodate the City's fair share of the RHNA, in all income categories. The

following table represents the City's RHNA ( excerpt from the 2019 General Plan

Housing Element):

TABLE 1: REGIONAL HOUSING NEEDS ALLOCATION ( 2014-2023) PROGRESS

Status Extremely
Low Very Low Low Moderate

bove

AdenModerate
TOTAL

RHNA Allocation 526 493 759 957 2,421 5,156
Built 0 0 0 291 1,571 1,600
Under Construction'

Pernutiecl
0 0 0 02 197 197

Remaining Allocation 526 493 759 928 653 3,359
IINCL UDES 18 HOMES BUILT IN 2014 AND 9 HOMES BUILT IN 2015 SOLD AT MARKET - RATE PRICES AFFORDABLE TO MODERATE INCOME HOUSEHOLDS

AND INCLUDES 2 ADDS BUILT IN 20.17 AND 2018

2104 BUNGALOW UNITS ARE UNDER CONSTRUCTION IN RIVER ISLANDS; THESE UN/715 WILL BE MONITORED AS THE DENSITY AND SIZE OF TILE' UNITS MAY

YIELD MARKET - RA'Z'E SALES PRICES AFFORDABLE TO MODERATE INCOME HOUSEHOLDS.

3THERE IS THE POTENTIAL FOR SOME OR ALL OF THE APPROVED 350 MULTIFAMILY UNITS TO VE DEVELOPED AS AFFORDABLE UNITS; IF THE' ZO

SEEKS ADDITIONAL FUNDING OR SELLS ONE OR MORE' OF THE PROIECI5 TO AN AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPER.

SOURCE: SAN JOAQUIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS, 2014; Z!LL OW.COM; CITY OF LATHROP, 2019

DEV ER

Each income category is defined as a percentage of the Area Median Income ( AMI),
as established by HCD which is currently $ 74,988 for a four -person household. The
income categories are then used to calculate housing affordability for rental and

owner occupied housing. Each income category is defined as follows:

Extremely Low Income Households have a combined income at or lower than

30 percent of AMI.

Very Low Income Households have a combined income between 30 and 50

percent of AMI.

Low Income Households have a combined income between 50 and 80 percent
of AMI.

Moderate Income Households have a combined income between 80 and 120

percent of AMI.

226



CITY MANAGERS REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

HOUSING ELEMENT ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT

PAGE 3

Above Moderate Income Households have a combined income greater than

120 percent of AMI

The forms provided by HCD were originally adopted in 2010 and have recently been

updated pursuant to Assembly Bill 879 ( AB 879) and Senate Bill 35 ( SB35), which

now include information related to the number of development applications received

and approved and list of sites rezoned to address RHNA shortfall.

In summary, the forms require the following information:

Status of the plan and progress in its implementation
Progress in meeting its share of the regional housing needs

The number of housing development applications received in the prior year
The number of units included in all development applications in the prior year
The number of units approved and disapproved in the prior year
The degree to which its approved general plan complies with the adopted
General Plan guidelines
Site rezoned to accommodate that portion of the City's share of the regional
housing need for each income level.

Number of building permits issued and development applications received

using the streamlined review process ( SB 35).
Locally owned lands included in the Housing Element Sites Inventory that have

been sold, leased, or otherwise disposed of.

Locally owned or controlled lands declared surplus pursuant to Government

Code Section 54221, or identified as excess pursuant to Government Code
Section 50569.

Progress on the LEAP Grant including the amount of reimbursement requests
that have been made by the City.

The Planning Commission considered the Housing Element Annual Progress Report
for Calendar Year 2023 at their March 20, 2024 meeting. At the conclusion of the

public meeting, the Planning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend the City Council

accept the Housing Element Annual Progress Report for Calendar Year 2023 and

authorize staff to submit the report to OPR and HCD ( Attachment 4).

ANALYSIS:

Staff has prepared the 2023 Lathrop Housing Element Annual Progress Report,
included as Attachment 2.

New Applications Received

The City processed seven ( 7) residential entitlement applications for new residential

development that may result in 784 new units. The City received and processed the

following entitlement applications in 2023.

227



CITY MANAGERS REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

HOUSING ELEMENT ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT

Architectural Design Review - River Islands

Van Daele Village KK 150 single-family dwelling units

Kiper Capri at River Islands 100 single-family dwelling units

Tri Pointe Village 1 68 single-family dwelling units

Architectural Design Review - Central Lathrop
D.R. Horton Phase 1D, Tract 4105 89 single-family dwelling units

KB Homes Phase 1D-2, Tract 4105 81 single-family dwelling units

K Hovnanian Homes Phase 1D -N3 101 single-family dwelling units

Escala at Stanford Crossing 195 multi - family dwelling units

PAGE 4

New Home Construction

The City issued a total number of 575 residential building permits in 2023, which

represents a decrease of 383 Tess than 2022 ( a total of 958 residential permits issued

in 2022). Of the 575 residential building permits, 566 are single-family residential
units and are considered " Above Moderate" affordability. The remaining 9 residential

building permits are for accessory dwelling units and are considered " Moderate"

affordability.

Progress Towards Meeting RHNA

As illustrated in Table B of the HCD Forms below, the City has issued 5,071 building
permits for residential development for the 2014 - 2023 Housing Element Planning
Period.

Deed

Restricted

Non -Deed

Very Low Restricted

Deed

Restricted

Non -Deed

Low Restricted

Moderate

Above

Moderate

Total RHNA

Total Units

Deed

Restricted

Non - Deed

Restricted

5156

343

343

170

170

297

297

383

383

389

389

148

679

827

179

950

1,129

34

924

958

9

566

575

4,701

5,071,• 2,365

228



CITY MANAGERS REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

HOUSING ELEMENT ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT

RECOMMENDATION:

PAGE 5

The Planning Commission and staff recommend that the City Council consider all

information provided and submitted, take and consider all public testimony and, if
determined to be appropriate, adopt the proposed resolution to accept the Housing
Element Annual Progress Report for Calendar Year 2023 and authorize staff to submit

the report to the OPR and HCD.

CEQA STATUS:

The proposed Housing Element Annual Progress Report for Calendar Year 2023 is not

considered a project as defined in Article 20 § 15378 of the California Environmental

Quality Act ( CEQA) Guidelines. This report does not authorize construction of any

housing. However, the housing units reported as being permitted for construction

are subject to their individual environmental review document previously established,
reviewed and approved by the City.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The request has no fiscal impact to the City other than staff time to prepare the

report.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution for Housing Element Annual Progress Report for Calendar Year 2023

2. Housing Element Annual Progress Report for Calendar Year 2023

3. Planning Commission Resolution No. 24-3

229



CITY MANAGERS REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

HOUSING ELEMENT ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT

APPROVALS:

David Niskanen

Contract Plannyr

Caguia
ommuni t Director

PAGE 6

2
t19

Date

3 7 —

Date

Zft -LO Ly
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Stphen 3. Salvatore Date

City Manager

230



RESOLUTION NO. 24-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP ACCEPTING

THE GENERAL PLAN HOUSING ELEMENT ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT FOR

CALENDAR YEAR 2023 AND AUTHORIZING STAFF TO SUBMIT THE REPORT

TO THE GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF PLANNING AND RESEARCH AND THE

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 65400(2) requires the

planning agency to provide an annual report to the City Council, the Governor's Office

of Planning and Research and the State Department of Housing and Community
Development ( HCD) regarding progress toward implementation of the housing
element of the general plan; and

WHEREAS, planning staff has prepared an annual progress report for the

calendar year 2023, utilizing the prescribed forms and instructions provided by the

State Department of Housing and Community Development; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public meeting on March 20, 2024

and adopted Resolution No. 24-3, recommending the City Council accept the report
and authorize staff to submit the report to the Governor's Office of Planning and

Research and the State Department of Housing and Community Development; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Housing Element Annual Progress Report for

Calendar Year 2023 is not considered a project as defined in Article 20 § 15378 of

the California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Guidelines; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all written evidence and oral

testimony presented to date.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby find the proposed Housing Element Annual Progress Report for Calendar

Year 2022 is not considered a project as defined in Article 20 § 15378 of the California

Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Guidelines.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lathrop based

on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings, its findings above

and pursuant to its independent review and consideration, hereby receives and

accepts the annual progress report on the Housing Element, attached and

incorporated by reference herein, and authorizes staff to forward the report to the

Governor's Office of Planning and Research and the State Department of Housing and

Community Development pursuant to Government Code Section 65400(2).

231



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop at a regular
meeting on the 8th day of April, 2024 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Salvador Navarrete, City AttorneyTeresa Vargas, City Clerk

232



ATTACHMENT " 2
11

Jurisdiction

Very Low

Low

Moderate

Above Moderate

Total Units

Note: Units serving extremely low-income households are included in the very low-income permitted units totals

Total Housing Applications Submitted:

Number of Proposed Units in All Applications Received:

Total Housing Units Approved:
Total Housing Units Disapproved:

Number of SB 35 Streamlining Applications
Number of SB 35 Streamlining Applications Approved

Lathrop.

Deed Restricted

Non -Deed

Restricted

Deed Restricted

Non -Deed

Restricted

Deed Restricted

Non -Deed

Restricted

233



Units Construe Peir
nc

Very Low

Low

Moderate 0
Above Moderate

Total

SB 9 (2021) - Duplex in SF Zone

SB 9 (2021) - Residential Lot Split
AB 2011 ( 2022)

SB 6 (2022)
SB 35 ( 2017)

Number of Applications Submitted Requesting a Density Bonus

Number of Units in Applications Submitted Requesting a Density Bonus

Number of Projects Permitted with a Density Bonus

Number of Units in Projects Permitted with a Density Bonus

234



V

ery
Low

Deed
Restricted

Non -
Deed

Restricted
Deed
Restricted

ow

Non -

Deed
Restricted

Deed
Restricted

M

oderate

Non -

Deed
Restricted

Above

Mo

derate
Total
RHNA

Total
Units

343

ANNUAL
ELEMENT
PROGRESS
REPORT

Ho

usingEl

ementImplementation Table
B

Regi
onalHo

usingNeeds
Allocation
Progress

Permitted
Units
Issued
by
Affordability

2

170

297

383

389

This
tables
auto -
populated

once
you

enter
your

jurisdiction
nam

e

and
current
year

data. 
Past

year
informati
oncomes

from
previous
APRs .

Please
contact
HCD
if

your
data
is

different
than
the
material

suppliedher

e

679

Progress
tow
ardextremely
l

ow-incomeh

ousing
need, 
as

determined
p

ursuant
to

Government
C

ode
65583( 

a)(1) ,
950

924

566

Extremely
low-income
houisng
need
determined
pursuant
to

Government
Code65583(a)(1). 
Value
in

Section
5

is

default
value, 

assumed
to

be

half

of
the
very

low-income
RHNA. 
May

be

overwritten.

Please
Note: 

TableB

does
not

currently
contain
data
from
Table
F

or
TableF2

for
pri

or
years . 

You
may

login
to
the
APR
system
to

see
Table
B

that
contains
this
data .

Note: 
units
serving
extremely
low-incomehouseholds

are
included
in

the
very

low-income
RHNA
pr

ogress
and
must

be
reported

as
very

low-income
units
in

secti

on
7

of

Table
A2. 
They
m

ustalso
be

reported
in

th

e

extremely

low-income
category (
section
13) 
in

Table
A2

to

be
counted
as

progress
toward
meeting
the
extr

emely
low-income
housing
need
determined
pursuant
to

Government
Cod

e

65583(a)(1).

Please
note: 
For
the
last
year

ofthe
5th
cycle, 
Table
B

will

o

nly
include
units
that

were
permitted
during
the
portion

of
the
y

ear
that

was
in

the
5th
cycl

e. 
For
the
first

year
of
the
6th

cycle, 
Table
B

will
only

includeunits
that

were
permitted
since
the
start

ofthe
planninaq
eriod. 
Proj

ection
Period
units
are
In

a

separate
column.

lease
Wore: 

I

nevrrn
rorm

can

omy
alsplay
o

ra

ror
oneplammg

peno
o. 

I

o

view
pr 

e

ss

ror
a

merenr
planning
penoa, 
you

ay

ogin
ro

1

l

s

onune ,
4

rt < 
system, 

or
c

onracr
HCD
staff
at

apr@hcd.ca. gov.
VLI

Deed
Restricted

VLI
Non
Deed

Restricted

235



ANNUAL
ELEMENT
PROGRESS
REPORT

H

ousingElement
Impl
ementation

Program
la

Implementation
Status
pursuantto
GC
Secti

on
65583

low, 
very

low, 

low, 
and
moderate
income

housing
are

available
throughout
the

planning
period
to

meet
the
City's

RHNA, 
the
City
will

continueto

biennially
update
the

inventory
of
lower

and
moderateincomesites (

Appendix

A). 

The
update
shall

remove
sites
that

have
been
developed
and
add
any

replacement
or
new

sites. 
The
update

shall
ensure

that
the
inve

ntory
of

residential
sites

continuesto
include

sites
appropriate

fo

r

a

variety
of

single

family
and
multifamily
housing
types
as

well
as

sites
to

accommodate
single

room
occupancies

and
emergency

shelters.

Updat

e

in

ventory
on

a

biennial
basis
and
make

inventoryavailable
at

City

Hall
and
on

the
City

website.
The
City
continues
to
maintain
the
inventory
of

residentialsites (Appendix

A

of

the
Housing
Element) . 
As
devel

opment
occurs, 

the
in

ventorywill
be
updated

and
published . 
Inventory
d

evelopedas
part
of
th

e

HousingElement
will
be

maint

ained
thr

ough
the
Housign
El

ement
Planning

Period .
236



Program
1

b

C

ontinueto
monitor
the
amount
ofland

z

onedfor
b

othsingle
family
and

multifamily
de

velopmentand
ensure

that

land
use

and
zoning
decisions
do
not

reduce
sites
available
for
affordable

housing . 
See
Pr

ogram1b
in

theHousingElem

entf

orthe
full
lang
uage.Ongoing

through
the

devleopment
review

process

The
City
continues
to

monitor
and
maintain
the

amountof
land
zoned
for
both

single
family
and
multi -
family
developments
and

ensureland
use

and
zoning

decisions
do
not
reduce
sites
availablility
for

affodablehousing .

Continue
to

encourage
development
of

well -
designed
and
innovative
projects

that
provide
for
the
de

velopmentofcompatible
residential, 

comm
ercial,industrial, 

institutional, and/or
public

uses
within
a

single
project
or

neighborhood
by

continuingto

The
City
continues
to

encourage
well
designed
a

nd

innovativeprojects
within

the
West
Lathr

op
and
Central
Lathrop
Specific
Plans . 

The
W

estLathrop
Specifi

c

Plan
continue

s

to

be
built -
out
and

as
d

evelopment

occurs, the
City
re

views
Program
lc

implement
the
West
Lathrop
and

Ongoing

Architectur

e, 
Landscaping, 
and
De

velopment
Plan
for

c

onsistencywith
the
West

Central
Lathrop
Specific
Plans, 
which

encourage
mixed

use
development

as

well
as
a

range
of

uses
through
allowing

higher
building

intensities, 

reduced

parking
requirements, 
reduced
set- 
back

and
yard

requirements, 
allow
for
a

higher
building
height, 

and

greater
floor

area
ratios.

Lathrop
Specific
Plan
and
the
River
Islands
Urban

DesignConcept
as

well
as

associated
neighborhood
specific
Architecture
Design

Guidelines
and

Standards . 
De

velopment
within
the
Central
Lathrop

Specific
Plan
began
in

2019

and
will
continue
to

occur
within
the
H

ousing
Element

Planning
Peri

od .
237



Program
1d

Support
affordable
or

special
n

eeds
including
senior, 
disabled,

developmentally
disabled, 
farmworker,

homeless, 
large
family, 
and
single

female
head
of

family) 
housing
pr

ojects
applications
for
federal, 
state, 
and/or

regional
progr
ams, i

ncludingCDBG,

HOME, 
project -
based
Sectio

n

8/211, 
L

ow
Income
Housing
Tax
Credit, 
and
HCD

grant
programs, 

that
may
be
used
for

the
development
and
on -

going

affordability
of

lower
inc

omeand
sp

ecial

needs
housing. Support

for

applications
shall

beprovided
through
staff
technical

assistance
with
the
application (
e .

g .,

assisting
with
completing
applicationcomponents

related
to

developmentreview
and

environmental
compliance)

where
appropriate
and
City
Council

consideration
of
resolutions
indicating

local
support
for
each

project.

Ongoing
on
a

pr

oject -
by -

project
basis

The
City
continuesto
support
affordable
or

special

needshousing
projects . 
As

applications
for
such
developments
are

received, 
the

City
will
a

ssistapplicant(s)

in

preparing
and
submitting
grant

applications
f

or

funding . No

affordabl
e

or

speci

al
n

eeds
hou

sing
grants
were

submitted
in

2023 .

238



programs
on
a

biennial
basi

s

to

determin

e

if

there
ar

e

additional

programs
appropriate
to

encourage

affordable
housing
development
orfor

the
City
to

use
to

augment
First
Time

Homebuyer
program

for
lower
inc

omehouseholdsand
request
funds
wh

enBienially (
by
December
The
City
will
evalu

at e

State -
administered
fundi

ng
pr

ogramson

a

biennial
basis

appropriate
and
a

vailable . Assoon
as

31st
of
2021

and
to

determine
if

there
ar

e

additi

onal
programs

appropriateto

enc

ourage
possible, 

request
SB
2

funds
to

develop

2023); 
SB
2

affordable
housing
development
or

for
the
City
to
use

to

augment
First
Time

Program
le

additional
housing
incentives, 
such
as

funding
to

be
requested
H

omebuyer
program
for
lower
income
households

andrequest
funds
when

reduced
fee
structures
f

orsenior,

disabled, 
and
other
special
needs

housing
where
a

nexus
can
bedemonstrated

that
service
d

emandsfor

such
housing
are

less
than
typical

single
family
or

multifamily
housing, 
pre -

approved
plans
for
small-scaleinfill

housing
projects
that
include
an

affordablecomponent, 
and
a

plan
for

use
of
future
SB
2

funds.

c

oncurrently
with
Housing

Element
Update (
2019)

appropriate
and
available . 
The
City
received

approvalfor
SB
2

fu

ndingfrom
HCD

f

or
a

variety
of

programs, 
including
Acc

essory
Dw

ellingUnit (
ADU) 
pre -
appr
oved

building
plans .

VVf1UIIUC
W

L.UII

IUeI
t691VIIG1

development
through
working
with

Program
it

SJCOG
and
local

jurisdiction
s

to

plan

for
high
quality

regional

dev
elopment,

including
adequate

affordable
housing,

by
reviewing
SJCOG
data
and
online

resources
to

track
regional

development, 
and
by

providing
input

into
thede velopmentof

the

methodolo
gyfo

r

allocating
the

re
gion'sOngoing

The
City
continues
to

monitor
and

support
pp

ort
devel

opmentwithin
San
Joaquin.

The
City
works
closely
with
the
City
of
Manteca
and

San

Joaquin
County
to

ensure
devl

eopment
is

compatible
with
adjacent

jurisdictionsand
uses.

Regional
Ho

using
NeedsAllocation.

239



Program
1g

onrniue
m
a

uureb
b

a

na

encourag
e

lower
income
housing, 
special

populations, 
and
homeless
needs
on
an

annual
basis
through
dev
eloperand

service
pro

videroutr
eachand
through

participation
in

the
Urba

n

County/County
Continuum
of
Care . 
As

part
of

the
development
of
the
AnnualActionPlan

for
CDBG/HOME
funding,

contact
potential
housing
developers

and
serviceprovid

ersand
enc
ourage

their
submittal
of

funding
applicati
ons

and

housing
proposals
that
use

the

City's
allocation
as

well
as

the

Countywide
allocation

offunds
for

extremely
low
income

housing, very
l

ow

income
housing, 
and
low
incomehousing

as
well
as

housing
for
disabled,

seniors, 
veterans, 
homeless, 
and
other

special
needs

populations. See

Program
lg

inthe

H

ousing
Element

for

With
Annual
Action
Plan

public
hearing
notices

The
City
continues
to

encourag

e

devel

opers
to

submithousing
proposals
for
low.

income
housing . 
The
City, 
in

coordination
with
San

Joaquin
County, 

manages

CDBG
funds
for
public
facilities, 
the
GAP
Loan

Program (d

ownpayment

assistance), 
HOME
Programs (
First
Time
H

ome
Buyer

Programs), 
and
the

property
Rehabilitati

on
Pr

ogram . 
Collecti

vely, 
the

se

ar
e

called
H

omeLoan

Fu

nds
and
are

administered
by
the
S

an
J

oaquin

CountyNeighborhood

Preservation
Di

vision. 
Information
related
to

CDBG
is

provided
via
the
City's

w

ebsite, 
under
the
Economic
Development
webpage.

Program
1

h

Main? 
in

tnlormatuon

regarding

homeless
shelters
and
services

available
to

City
residents. 

This

Ongoing; 
distribute

brochures
on

a

monthlyThe
City
will
mai

ntain
information
related
to

HomelessShelters
and
services

information
shall
be
available
at

City

Hall, 
the
Lathrop
Community
Center, 
the

basis
or
as -

needed

a

vailable
to

City
residents .

Library, 
and
on

the
City'swebsite.
i

ne
citsnap
participate
min
ban

Joaquin
County's
efforts
to
address

farmworker
housing
needs.

The
City
will
work
with
San
Joaquin
County
to

addressfarmw
orkerhousing .

Program
11

Participation
withthe
County
may

include
identificatio

n

of
potential
sites

and
fun

dingsou
rces

available
for
farm

laborhousing.As
needed

Participation
may

includ

e

identification
of
sit

es

availablein
the
City
for
such
a

development
and
identification

of
funding
s

ources .
240



Program
lj

a.urnur

ue

W

worR
wan
mu
aa

n

Joaqui
n

Housing
Authority
by

providing
housing

information
requested
by
the
Housi
ng

Authority
in
a

timely
manner. 
E

ncourage
the
Hou
singAuth
orityto

issue
more vouchersto

City
resid
entsin

need
and

to
make
eff

ortstoincr
easethe
use
ofvouchersfor

rental
of

single
family

homes
due
to

the
City's
limited
supply

of
multifamily

h

ousing .Ong

oing; including
H

ousingAuth
orityin

an

nualmailing
und

er
program
lg

Th

e

City
will
provide
any
inf

ormation
the
San
Joaquin

County
Housing
Authority

needs
and/or
requests. 
No
action
in

2023 .

onunue
10
permit
ri

nneu
Development
District
zoning
that

promotes
a

variety
of

ho

usingtypes
in

the
City
through

theutilization
of

As
development
o

ccurs
and
devel

opment

applicationsare
recei
ved, the
City
will

review
and
make
re

commendations
towards
Planned

Development
Zoning . 
In

Program
1

k

innovative

development
techniques
and

flexible
standards, 
such
as: 
zero
lot

lines, 
clustering
of

dwelling
units,

narrower
streets, 

increased
densities,

and
fewer

dedication
requirements.

Ongoing

addtion, 
as

inquiries
are

recei

ved
on

particular

properties, the
City
will
evaluate

whether
a

Planned
Development
Zoning
would

benefitthe
Project . 
No
Plan
ned

Development
Rezone
requests
were
proc

essed
in

2023 .
rental
housing
and
affordable
for -
sale

and
rental
housing, 
including
housing

for
extremely

low, 

v

ery
low, 

and
lo

w

income
groupsand

special
ne

eds

populations, 
through
the
following: •

Regulatory
incentives, 
such
as

expediting
permit
processing, 
deferred

fees, 
and/or

reduced
parking

requirements
basedon
the
bedroom
mix

The
City
did
n

ot
receive
an

applicati

on
for
extrem

ely

low, very
low, 
and
low

Program
11

ofthe
proje

ct; 
and • 

Encourage

developers
to

utilize
the
density
bonus

and
incentiveprovisio
ns

required
by

Ongoing

income
gr

oup s

and
sp

ecial
ne

eds
p

opulations
in

2023 .

State
law; 
and • 

Publicize
these

incen
tive

s

for
market
rate
housing
to

develope
rs

an
d/

o
r

othe
r

interested

parties
by
providing
informational
flyers

at

the
Community
Development

Department's
counter
and
in

developmen
t

projectapplications.

241



Program
1m

Encourage
a

range
of

h

ousingtypes
for

the
de

velopmentallydisabled
through

coordination
with
the
Valley
Mountain

Regional
Center
to

identify
needed

housing
types, 
such
asindependent

living
opportunities
and
gr

ouphomes

and
other
facilities
that
provide

assistance
to

residents . 
Projects
that

provide
housing
for
developm
entally

disabled
personswill

be

assisted

through
priority/expedited

pr

ocessing,

assistancewith
funding
applications,

and
assistance
with
any

density
bonus

requests
for
a

density
bonus, 
reduced

development
standards (

e.g., minimum

lot
size , setbacks, 

parking, 
etc) 

orother

incentives. 
Continue

to

refer
households

with
a

developmentally
disabled
member

to

the
Valley
Mountain
Regional
Center

for
assistance.

Ongoing

This
program
is

ongoing. 
The
City

encourages

developmentof
a

variety
of

housing
typies, 
including
housing
for
devel

opmentallydi

sabled . R

esidents
requesting
informati

on
regarding
housing
for
the
de

velopmentallydi

sabledare

directedto
the
Vall

ey
Mountain
Regi

onal
Center .

1

n

RCY1be
LIIC
LV1/I119
l. VUC

IV

ICquire

ministerial
approval, 

which

may
include

site
plan
review, 

for

housing

developments
that
include
a

minimum
of

20
percent
of

units
affordable
to

lower

income
households
on

the
following

sitesconsistent
withGovern
ment
Code

65583. 2: 

1: 

21331033
2: 
21321006
3:

19121017
5: 

19122032
6: 

19122039
7:

19122040
8:19122059
11:19608021
12:

19608026
13: 

19608072

No
later
than
December
1,

2022
due
to

stat

utoryrequirementstobecomcompleted
within
3

years

p

ofHo
using
Element

adoptionp

The
City
adopted
Ordinanc

e

No . 

22-442
in

No

vember

2022
that
clarifi
edthat

housing
devel

opments
that
incl

ude
a

minimum
20
p

ercentof
units
affordable
to

lower
income
households
shall
be
ministerial
and

exemptfrom
Site
Plan
Review .

This
language
was

added
to

Multifamily
Residential

Districts . 
This

program
is

complete .

242



Program
2a

Continue
to
offer
pre -

applicatio

n

meeting

s

to

alldevelopers
with

various
City
staff
representing

numerous
City

dep
artments (e .

g. 

planning, 
building,

engineering, 
etc .) todiscuss
project

design, 
city
standards, 

necessary
public

improvements, 
and
funding
strategies .

Ongoing

The
City
continues
to

offer
pre -

applicatio

n

meetings

to

alldev

eloper
s

within
the

community . 
The
City
had
se

ven (
7) 

pre -
application

m

eeting
s

with
d

evelopersin

2023, 
including
a

pr

e -

application
f

or
a

residential

subdivision .
Provideincenti
ve

s

to

encouragethe

development
of

special
needs
a

nd
affordable

housing . This
program
is

anticipated
to

assist
at

least
four

projects, 
in

coordination
with
oth

er

applicableprograms. 
Incentive

s

shall

include: • 
Allowing
developer

s

to

submit

col
ncurrent/"piggyback" 
applications

e.g., 

rezones, 
tentativetract

maps,

conditional
use

permits, 
variance

requests, 
etc. ) tostreamline

processing

ofdevelopment
projects
that

require

multiple
City

approvals

orentitleme
nts; •

The
City
continues
to

offer
incentives
through
the

optionslisted
in

Program
2b .

The
City
allows
developers
to

submit
concurrent/ "

piggyback"
P

p

iggyback" applicati
onsto

Program
2b

Provide
technical
assistance
with
the

entitlement
process

for

projects
that

propose
extremely
low-, 
very

low-, an
d

low- 
income
housing

or
thatin
clude
a

significant
portion
of

units
for
special

needs
households. • 
Consideration
of

fee
waivers
or

fee
deferrals, 
where

deemed
appropriate , projectspro

viding

housing
for

ex

tremely
low-, 
very

lo
w-,

and

low
inco

me
householdsor
special

needs
households. 

See
Program
2b
in

the
Housing
Element
for
the
full

language.

Ongoing

streamline
processing
of
developme

nt
projects
that
r

equiremultipl

e

City

approvals, 
provide
t

echnical
assistance
with
the

entitlementprocess, 
and
will

consider
fee
waivers
f

or
proj

ects
that
proposed
low-

incomeh

ousing . This

program
is

ongoing .

243



Program
2c

Continu

e

to

monit
ora

veragepr

ocessing
times
for
discretionary
development

permits
on
a

biennial
basis
and
regularly

re

viewthe
Zoning
Code
and
the
City's

development
project
processing

proced
urestoidentify

chang
esto

further
reduce
hou

singcosts
and

average
permit
pr

ocessingtime . 
Where

changes
are

feasible
toimplement,

update
the
Zoning
Code
and
amend
th

e

City's
processing
procedur
estor

educ
e

housing
costs

andproc
essingtimes .

Bienial
review (
2021, 
2023)

The
City
will
monitor
processing
times
f

or

developmentapplications
and
review

on
a

bienial
basis . 
The
City
re

views
and
updates
th

e

Zoning
C

odeannually

Zoning
Omnibus) 
to

provid

e

consistency

updates

withState
law
and
streamline

development
application
processi

ng . 
This
pr

ogram
is

ongoing .

Review
affordable

housing
and
in -

fill

projects
for

eligibleCEQA
exemptions

and
exempt
those
projects
that
are

eligible
from
further
CEQA
review. In

Ong
oing
for
review
of

dev
elopment
applications;

order
to

encourage
use

ofCEQA

concurrent
with
the

As

part
of
the
review
of
a

de

velopment
application, 

theCity
makes
a

CEQ

A

exemptions
and
the

advanceCEQAwork

Housing
Element
updat

e

Determin

ationas
to
whether
a

project
is

exempt, 
will

require
an

Initial
Study
or

Program
2d

g

that
has

been

completed
for
the
majority

of
the
City's
lower

income
sites, 

ensure

that
the
inventory
maintained

unde

r

Program
la

identifies
the
required

approvals, 
including
CEQA

rev

iew, 
so

that
developers

u

nderstand
that
the
City

has
minimal
processing
requirements

for
its
lower
income

sites.

information
pro

vided
to

developers
to

identify
sit

eseligible
for
CEQA

g exemptions
for
CEQA

review
has
been

completed.
En

vironmental
Impact
Rep

ort . 
The
City
will
review

affordablehousing
and
infill

projects
for
eligibility
for
a

CEQA
exemption
as

devel

opmentapplications
are

received .

reeview
an
upaates
ana
revisions
to

tne

Program

City's
ordinances, 
codes, po
licies, 

a

nd

procedures
to

ensure
that
they
do

no
t

constrain "
reasonable
accommodation"

Staff
continues
to

monitor
updat

es
and
revisio

ns
to

theCity's
Ordinances,

Codes, 
Policies

and
Pr

ocedures . 
The
City's
Gen

eral

PlanUpdate
was

adopted
in

September
2022 . 

Following
the
ad

option
of
the

GeneralPlan
Update, 
a

Zoning

2e

fo r

disabled
persons

and
to

ensure
that

they
do

not
reduce
the
City's
capacity

for
a

range
of
housing
types
and

densities.
Ongo

ing

Consistency
Project
was

initiated
and
completed
in

2023 . The
Zoni
ng

Consistency
Project
updated

various
Chapters
and

Sectionsof
the
Lathrop

M

unicipal
Code
to

bring
it

into
compliance
with
the

GeneralPlan.

244



Program
2f

Continueto

encourag
e

devel
opersto

include
access
orydwelling

units
as
an

integral
part
of
their
project
through

maintaining
provisions
inthe
Zoning

Code
that
pr

ovidefor
accessory

dwelling
units (
ADUs) 
in

all
zones

that

allow
single
family
homes
and
bycontinuingto

pr

ovidea

reduced
f

ee
structure
for

accessory
dwelling
units,

including
exemption
from
water
and

sewer
connection
fees
and
capacity

charges, 
and
by

modifying
the
ADU

standards
in

the
Zoning
Code
as -

needed

to
be
consistent
with
requirements
of

Ong
oing

The
City
continues
to

encourage
the
development
of

Accessory
Dwelling
Units

ADU) 
in
the
community . 
The
City
submitted
a

Sen

ate

Bill
2

grant
application
to

amend
the
Zoning
Code
to

be
consistent
with

new

StateLaw
and
pr

eparepre -

approved
building
plans
for
ADUs . 
Th

e

City
als

o

r

ecie

vedLEAP
Grant
Funding

to
prepare

three (
3) 

Pre -
Appr

oved
ADU
Plans . 
These

plans
are

complete
and
will

be

published
in

2024. 
A

total
of

nine (
9) 

Building

Permitsfor
ADUs

were
issued

in

2023 . 
This

program
is

ongoing .

State
law, 
as
may

be
amended
from
time

totime. It

is

anticipated
at

least
6

ADUs

will
be

incentivized
through
the
City's

provisions
toaccommodate

and

encourage
ADUs.encourage

u

eveiopera
to

tale

a

avantage

of
density
bonuses
and
incentives

fo

r

affordable
housing
and
senior
housing

projects
that
are

provided
by
the
City

Program
2g

consistent
with
the
requirements
of

State
law

a

nd

provide
information
that

identifiesthe
maximum

densities
that

can
be
achieved
through
a

density

bonus.

Ongoing

The
City
continues
to

encourage
the
use
of
de

nsity

bonusesfor
dev

elopments
that
qualify . 
This

program
is

ongoing .

245



Program
2h

large
families
to

alleviate
overcr
owding

in

the
City
by

fa

cilitatingthe

c

onstructionofh

ousingthat
includes
3 -

and
4 -

bedroom
units
affordable
to

extremely
low-, 
very

low-, 
and
low-

income
families. 
The
City
will
publiciz

e

financial
and
regulatory
i

ncentiveopportunitiesto

developers
and/ 
orother

parties
interestedin

the
construction
of

housing
that
includes
3- 

and
4 -

bedroom

affordable
units
by

providing

information
on

the
City's
website
and

through
flyers
at

theCommunity

Development
Department
and
in
all

specific
plan
and
subdivision

application
packets.

Ong
oing
As
development
applications

are
received, 
the
City

willencourage
the

development
of
3- 

and
4- 

bedroom
units
aff

ordable
to

extremely
low-, 
very

low -

and
l

ow-ioncome
families . 
No
affordable
housing

applicationswere
recei

vedin

2023.

Program
2i

Continue
to

support
female -
headed

households
in
the
City
with
the

permitting
of

child
day

care
facilities
as

outlined
in

Chapter
17

of
the
Municipal

Code

On

oin
g

g

The
City
continues
to

support
child
day

care
facilites

and
permits
child
day

care

facilities
as

prescribed
in

the
Municipal
C

ode.
Program
2n

rwqunv
uuvewpelb
ui

naw
nuuDulu9
wu

use
the
HCD
New
Home
Universal

Design
Option

Checklist
todisclo
se
to

buyers
accessible
featurestha
t

are

available. The
City
shall

encourage

developers
to

makeac
cessible
features

available
as

s tandard
features
to

the

extent

feasible
and
to

provide
remaining

accessible
features
as

optional
features

or
features
available
in
a

limite
d

number

of
units.

Ongoing

The
City
will
require
developers
of

new
housing
to
use

the
HCD
New
Home

Universal
D

esign
Option
Checklist. 
This

program
is

ongoing .

246



Program
20

In
c

ompliancewith
St

atelaw

Go

vernmentCode
Secti
on65589.7), 
th

e

City
will
establish
written
polici
esand

procedures
that
grant
priority
for
water

and
sewer
to

prop
oseddevelopment

that
includes
h

ousingaffordable
tolower -

income
hou

seholds .
Jan -
20

The
City
will
establish
written
policies
and
proc

edures

that
grant
priority
water

and
s

ewer
to

proposed
development
that
includes

housingaffordableto

lower -

income
households .

Support
multifamily
housing
on

site
s

that
accommodatelower

inc

ome
households
by

revising
the
Zoning

Ordinance
to

limit
development
of

single

family
units
on

sites
designated
for
high

density
residential

uses. Single
family

Program
2p

development
shall

o

nly
be
allowed
if

the

s

ingle
family
unit(s) 
are: 
1) 

replacing
an

e

xisting
single
family
unit
on
a

one
f

or

one
basis, 
2) 

on
an

existing
lot
of
8,000

square
feet
or

less, 
or
3) 
are
part
of
a

housing
development

with
the
majority

of
units

affordable
to

extremely
low, 

v

ery

low, 

and/or
low

income
househo

lds.

Jan -
20

This
program
was

completed
in

2019 .

Kevise
the
coning
t. oae

to

permit

manufactured
homes
in

the
same

manner
as

single
familiy

homes, 
as

required
by

Government
CodeSectio
n

65852.3. 
The
following
revision
shall
be

made
to

Section
17. 68. 

010: "

The

provisions
of
thischapte
r

shall

a

pply
to

Program

2q

all
manu
factu

redhous
ing

an
d

mobilehomes
on

permanent

foundations, 
which
shall
be

allowed

subject
to

the
same

permit
requirements

and
standards
as
a

single
family
home

in

all

districts
that

allo
w

single
family

homes
a

nd

s

hall

also
be
subject
to

the

standards
identified
in

Section

Jan -
20

This
program
was

completed
in

2019 .

17

RR
Awl

247



Revise
the
Zoning
Code
toremo

ve

inconsistencies
regarding
the
densitie

s

allowed
in

th

e

RM

zoneand
toensure

that
the
densities
allowed
are

consistent

with
the
densities
identified
in

the

General
Plan
Land
Use
Element . 
The

Program
2r

followingrevisi
onshall
be
made
to

Jan -
20

This
program
was
c

ompleted
in

2019 .

Section
17.36.050 .D.: "

Density . 
Th

e

allowable
density
for
the
RM
multifamilyresidentialdistricts

shall
be: 

RM- 

MH8: 1-

8

units
per
acre

RM-3: 
8-15
units
per

acre
RM-2: 
16-25
units
per
acre

RM-1 .
5:

16-25
units
per
acre

Revise
the
Zoning
Code
to

implement

the
requirements

of
GovernmentC

ode

Sections
65913. 4 (

as
amendedby

SB

35), 

65660, 
65662, 
65664, 
65666, 
and

65668 (
as

established
and/or
amended

by
AB
101), 
and
65650
through
65656 (
as

established

and/or
amended
by
AB

2162), 
including

the
following: 
1) 

Identify

the
SB
35

streamlining
approval

process

and
standards
for
eligible

pro
jects, 
as

set
forth
under

G

overnment
Code

Section
65913.4; 
2) 

Define
low
barrier

The
City
will
revi

se
th

e

Z

oning
Code
to

define
a

nd
all

owLow
Barrier
Navigation

Center
as

a

by -

right
use. 

City
policies
and
procedures

are
consistent
with
SB35 .

Program
2s

n

avigation
center
as
a

use
allowed
by

right
and
develop
standards
and

requirements
for
processing
a

low

barrier
navigation
centerconsis
tent
with

the
requirements

ofState
law, 
including

Aug -
20

Additionally, 
the
City
offers
a

pre -
application

process

to

developers, 
including

residential
development . 
The
City
anticipates
that
the

Code
Text
Amendment
will

be
c

ompleted
in

2024 .

Governme
nt

CodeSectio
ns

65660

through
65668; 
and
3) 

Establish

standards
and
requirements
for

processingsuppo
rtive
housing
by
right

consistent
with

therequireme
nts
of

State
law, 
including
Government
Code

Sections
65650
through

65656.

248



Joaquin
Urban
County
c

onsortiumto

r

eceiveanduseHO

MEand
CDBG
f

unds
to

pro

videhousing
r

ehabilitatio
n

loans

a

ndemerge
ncyrepair

loans
orgrants,

administered
through
the
San
Joaquin

County
Rehabilitation
Program, 
for

lower
inc

omehouseholds
and
to

provide
servicesfor
lower
income

The
City, 
in

c

oordination
with
San
Joaquin
County, 

managesCDBG
funds
for

populations, including
extr
emelyl

owAnnual
re

viewofho

using
public
facilities, 
the
G

AP
Loan
Program (
d

own

paymentassistance), 
HOME

income, 
homeless/at-riskof

homelessness,

needs
and
c

ommitm
ent
of

fu

nds

Programs (
First
Time
H

ome
Buyer
Programs), 
and
the

property
Rehabilitation

Program
3a

seniors, 
and
youth . 
On

thr

ough
Urban

Program . 
Collectively, 
these
are

called
Home
Loan

Fundsand
are

administered

an
annual
basis, 
determine
whether

County
process; 

ongoing
by
the
San
Joaquin
C

ounty
Neighb

orhood
Pr

es

ervationDivisi
on . Inf

ormation
funds
are

adequate
to

seta

sidefunds

specifically
for

assistance (h

ousingrehabilitation , emergency
repair, 
or

weatherization) 

for
extremely
low

income
households

and
whether
funds

are
adequate

to

allowbedroom/bathroom
additions
where

necessary
toaccommodate

large

families. See
Program

3a
in

the
Housin

g

efforts
to

ensure
public

awareness

related

to
CDBG
is

provid

edvia
the
City's
websit

e, 

underthe
Economic

Development
w

ebpag e.

Element
for
the
full

language.

review
the
conmg
t.oae
ana

potenu
at

funding
sources
to

identify
metho

ds

to

provide
incentives
for

rehabilitatio
n

of

Ongoing
2019/2020

Program
3b

existing
residential
units
and
toinco

rporate

incentives
int

o

This
program
is

ongoing . 
The
City
continues
to

review

and
update
the
Zoning

encourage
re- 

investment
in

the
Historic
SB
2

funding
opportunities

Code
on

an
annual
basis.

Lathrop
Overlay
District
and
in

o

lder

neighborhoo
dseas
t

of
1-5.

249



Continue
to

employa

full
time
code

c

omplianc
e

o

fficerwho
will
vigorously

enforce
the
building
and
zoning
codes

in

locati
onswhere

dilapidation, 
blight,

and/or
health
and
safety
violations

may

be
occurring . 
Coordinate
code

compliance
efforts
with
the
housing

Ong

oing; biennial
review

rehabilitation
program

with
code

ofareas
appropriate
for

The
City
continues
to

employ
a

Code
Enforcement

Officer. This
program
is

Program
3c

compliance
efforts
to

encourage

property
owners
to

maintain
dwelling

units
in

safe
and
habitable
c

onditions .targeted
assistance
and/or

enforcement

ongoing.

Regularly
review
housing
conditions
to

determine
if

specific
locationsor

neighborhoods
require
targeted
code

enforcement
and
work
to

provide, 
when

funding
is

available, 
targeted

rehabilitation
or

replacement
assistance .

vvnanwV
w

1.01111
1. 141).1011. 121

n, 

11.11V
va„

Joaquin
Urban
County
consortium
to

provide
funding
and
support
for
the

rehabilitation
ofmobile

homes, 

when

adequatefunds
are

available. 
In

2020/2021, 
conduct

outreach
to Ongoing; Mobilehome

The
City
c

ontinues
to

c

oordinate
with
San
Joaqui

n

CountytoofferCDBG

Program
3d

mobilehome
park
residents
and
qualified

fundi

ng
f

or
Rehabilitation (
R

ehabilitation
Program) . 

The
City
will
advertise
the

non -
profits
to

determine
if

there
is

interest
in

the
State's

Mobileho
me

Parkoutre
ach
in
2020
and
2021

State's
M

obilehome
Park
Rehabiltiation
and
Resident

Ownership
Program .

Rehabilitatio
n

and

Reside
nt

Ownership

Program
and
any
of
the
City's

mobileho
me

parks
would
be

eligible
for

this
type
of

program.

250



Program
3e

Regul
arlyr

eviewthe
City's
eligibilityf

or
Federal
and
State
home
repair,

r

enovation, and
replacement

programs

annually
and
apply
for

programs, 
as

appropriate. 
If

multifamily
own
ersorotherentitiesexpressinter
estin

available
funding

programs
f

orhousing

rehabilitation
or

repair, 
supp
ortthe

application
forfunding
and, 
if

appropriate
and
feasible, 
pr

ovide
technical
assistanceto
the
projectapplicantwith

the
funding
application .

Ong

oing
No
action
in

2022 . 

This
program
is

ongoing .

Continue

to

encourage
the

enforcement
of
federal
and
state
fair
housing

standards. 
The
City
will
provide
fair

housing
informationtointerested

citizens
and

will
makefair

housing

materials
from
the
California
Department

of
Fair
Housing
and
Employment
and

the
federal
Office

ofFair
Housing
and

Program
4a

Equal
Opportunity
available
at

City
Hall,

the
Library, 
the
Community

Cente
r, 

and

on
the
City's

website
in

both
En

glish

and

Spanish. All

requests
fo

r

fair

treatment
on

housing
will
be
referred
to

the
fair
housing
provider
funded

through
the
San

Jo

aquin
UrbanCoun
ty

consortium (
curre

ntly
SanJoaqu
in

Fair

Ongoing

This
pr

ogram
is

ongoing .

Housing, 
Inc.).

Require
all

recipients
of

locally

administered
housingfun
ds

to

Program
4b

ackn

owledge
theirunderstan
ding
of
fair

housing
law, 
affirm
their
commitment

to the
law, 
and
to

provide
fair
housing

opportunities
for
all

persons.

Ongoing

As

housing
de

velopment
projects
are

completed, 
this

program
will
be

implemented . 
No
l

ocally
administ

ered
h

ousing
funds

wer

e

us

edin
2022 .

251



Program
5a

Continue
to

participate
in

the
San

Joaquin
Housing
Authority
and

encourage
the
Housing
Authorityto

increas

e

assistance
tothe
City, 
through allocatingmore

Housing
Ch

oiceVouchersand
working
with
housing

developers
to

provide
Project -
Based

Vouchers, 
as

well
as

other
assistance

administered
by

the
Housing
Authority .

The
City
shall
provid

e

inf

ormationontheavailability
ofHousing
Authority

programs
tointerested

residents .

Ong

oing; annual

coordination
and
outreach

to
Housing
Authorityto

encourage
increased assistance

The
City
continues
to

encourage
interested
resid

ents

to

contact
the
San
Jo

aquin
Housing
Authoritytoobtain
informati

on
related
to

h

ousinga

ndth

e

availability
of

A
ffordabl e

Housing. 
This

program
is

ongoing .

Program
5b

Provide
housing
informatio

n

to

all

interested

agencies , developers,residents, 
and

non-profit

groups. 
City

staff
will
assist
with

Zoning
and
General

Plan
inquiries
as

well
as

provide
contact

information
between
the
San

Joaquin

Ongoing

The
City
continues

to
provide
housing
information
to

interested
parties,

including
home

owners, 
de

velopers, 
property

owners, non-profit
grups, 
etc . 

as
it

relates
to
Zonign
and
G

eneral
Plan . 

This
program
is

ongoing.

Urban
County
Consortium, 

SanJoaquin

Housing
Authority, 
housing

develo
pers,

and

non-profit
groups.

Promote

e

nergy
efficient

landu

se

planning
by

incorporating
en

ergy

conservation
as
a

major
criterion
for

Program
6a

future
decision

making. 
This
shall

includeinnovative
site
designs
and

orientation
techniqu

es, 
which

incorporate
passive
and
active
solar

designs
and
naturalco
olingtechniques.

Ongoing

This
program
is

ongoing . 
The
City
will
continue
to

encourageenergyefficient

la

nd
use

planning .

252



Program
6b

eru..u
urayepre -
appli
cationmeeunya
to

address
sit

e

layout
and
design

c

omponentsthat
encourage
energy

conservation
prior
to

any
formal

submittal
that
is

to

be

considered
by

the

Planning
Commission
and/or
City

Council. 
Th

e

City
shall
c

ontinueto

rely

on

project
input
from
all
departments
to

assess
design
and
layout
for
all

residential
projects .

Ongoing

The
City
continues
to

hold
pre -

applic

ation
meetings . 

This
program
is

ongoing .

Program
6c

OYVVLl11C
LV .

7

r/pJVIL
Cn.QI
yy

conservation
in

existingand
new

housing, 
through
participating
in

programs
such
as

the
Open
PACE
cl

ean

energy
program

a

nd
ensuringthe

community
has

access
to

curre
nten

ergy

conservation
methods

and
practices
as

well
as

information
on

programs

available
to

fund
energy

conservation

improvements. Ensure
information

is

available
at

City
Hall
and
on

the
City's

website.

Ongoing

OnMay
2, 

2016, 
the
City
Co

uncil
approved
the
City's

first
cle

anenergy
financi
ng

pr

ogram, 
known
as

the
Home
E

nergy
Renovati

on

Opportunity (HERO) 
Financing

Program
through
the
Property

Assessment
Clean

Energy (PACE) 
Program . 
On

Dec

ember
4, 

2017, 
the
City
Council

appro

ved
similar

clean
energy

financing

programs
with
CSCDA
Open
Pace, 
Figtree
Pace, 
and

Golden
State
Financing

Authority . 
On

December
10, 
2018, 
the
City
Council

adopteda

Resolutionto

participate
in
the

California
Municipal
Fi

nance

Authority (CMFA) 
Op

en

Pr

operty
Assessed
Cl

ean
Energy (
PACE) 
Program. 
Information

related
to

the
energy

conservation
is

available
upon

request .

Program
6d

Encourage

n

ew
residential

development

or
significant
rehabilitation
projects
to

meet
or

exceed
CalGre

en
Tier
1

and/or

to
achieveLEED

certification.

On
goingg

g

The
City
will

encourge
n

ew
residential
d

evelopment

orsignificant
rehab . 
Proj
ects

to

meet
CALGreen
and
LEED
standards .

253



ATTACHMENT " 3

CITY OF LATHROP

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 24-3

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL RECEIVE AND ACCEPT THE HOUSING

ELEMENT ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2023 AND

AUTHORIZE STAFF TO SUBMIT THE REPORT TO THE GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF

PLANNING AND RESEARCH AND THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 65400(2) requires the planning agency to

provide an annual report to the City Council, the Governor's Office of Planning and Research

OPR), and the State Department of Housing and Community Development ( HCD) regarding
progress toward implementation of the housing element of the general plan; and

WHEREAS, planning staff has prepared an annual progress report for the calendar year

2023, utilizing the prescribed forms and instructions provided by HCD; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed all written evidence and oral testimony
presented to date.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of

Lathrop based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings and pursuant to its

independent review and consideration, does hereby recommend the City Council receive and accept
the annual progress report on the Housing Element for Calendar Year 2023, attached and

incorporated by reference herein, and authorize staff to forward the report to the Governor's Office

of Planning and Research and the State Department of Housing and Community Development
pursuant to Government Code Section 65400(2).

Planning Commission Resolution No. 24-3 Page 1 of 2

254



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop at a

regular meeting on the 20x̀' day of March, 2024 by the following vote:

AYES: Ishihara, Ralmilay, Camarena, Jackson

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Rhodes

ATTEST:

guiat, Secretary

Tosh shihara, Ch

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Planning Commission Resolution No. 24-3 Page 2 of 2

255



PAGE LEFT

INTENTIONALLY

BLANK

256



ITEM 4.12

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH

EP NO. 2022-99, LOCATED AT 18580 CHRISTOPHER

WAY FROM NEW CINGULAR WIRELESS PCS, LLC DBA

AT&T

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Accepting Public Improvements
Associated with Encroachment Permit No. 2022-99,
Located at 18580 Christopher Way from New

Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC dba AT&T

SUMMARY:

New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC dba AT&T (AT&T), the developer of the wireless

communication tower ( Tower) located at 18580 Christopher Way, completed the

public improvements associated with Encroachment Permit No. ( EP) 2022-99

Project). A Vicinity Map is included as Attachment " B".

AT&T has offered the Tower and associated improvements to the City for acceptance.
Staff inspected the completed improvements constructed by AT&T and they have

been deemed complete and in accordance with the approved plans and specifications

by the City Engineer. The approximate value of the improvements constructed is

252,322, as shown in the GASB 34 Report included as Attachment " C".

Lien releases have been submitted confirming all sub -contractors and suppliers have

been paid in full. Staff also received a one-year warranty bond ( based on 10% of the

GASB 34 Report) for the improvements to be accepted.

Staff requests City Council accept the completed improvements constructed by AT&T

associated with the EP 2022-99.

BACKGROUND:

On July 11, 2022, City Council approved an Option and Land Lease Agreement

Agreement) with AT&T. The Agreement allows for the development and construction

of a Tower on City owned property near Christopher Way. The Agreement also

outlines AT&T's non-exclusive use of the Tower and ground space.

Construction of the Tower and associated improvements are complete and the

approximate value of the improvements proposed to be accepted is $ 252,322, as

shown in the GASB 34 Report. These improvements have been inspected by staff and

have been deemed complete to approved plans and to City specifications by the City

Engineer. A performance bond ( No. SU1190308) was provided with EP 2022-99, in

the amount shown in Table 1 below that guaranteed the construction of the

improvements.

257



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH EP NO. 2022-99,

LOCATED AT 18580 CHRISTOPHER WAY, FROM NEW CINGULAR WIRELESS

PCS, LLC. DBA AT&T

PAGE 2

The performance bond will be released and replaced with the warranty bond upon

acceptance of the improvements.
Table 1

Description Performance Bond Warranty Bond

Number & Amount

Encroachment Permit

2022-99

SU1190308

300,000

SU1190308M

25,233

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff has inspected the improvements listed in the GASB 34 Report and confirmed

that the improvements have been completed in accordance with City specifications
and deemed complete by the City Engineer. Lien releases have been submitted for

the completed improvements being accepted. Staff have received the one-year

warranty bond and as - built drawings for said improvements.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The one-year warranty bond covers any repairs or replacements that become

necessary during the one-year period, beginning with this acceptance, due to

defective materials or workmanship in connection with the completed improvements.

ATTACHMENTS:

A. Resolution Accepting Public Improvements Associated with Encroachment

Permit No. 2022-99, located at 18580 Christopher Way from New Cingular
Wireless PCS, LLC dba AT&T

B. Vicinity Map - 18580 Christopher Way

C. GASB 34 Report

258



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH EP NO. 2022-99,
LOCATED AT 18580 CHRISTOPHER WAY, FROM AT&T

APPROVALS

Bella) Nabizadah

Assistant Engineer

n—" ernandes

Director of Information Systems

i 5 /. 2

Date

L6211
Date

Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

Brad Taylor
City Engineer

Carl James

Finance Dir- tor

3/25/'Zc)4
Date

3/6.2ace'.77
Date

3 . 2..5 • Z 62'-1

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Stun Salvatore

City Manager

3 2$• 2e
Date

259



RESOLUTION NO. 24-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP ACCEPTING

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH ENCROACHMENT PERMIT NO.

2022-99, LOCATED AT 18580 CHRISTOPHER WAY FROM NEW CINGULAR

WIRELESS PCS, LLC DBA AT&T

WHEREAS, on July 11, 2022, City Council approved an Option and Land Lease

Agreement for a wireless communications facilities site lease with New Cingular
Wireless PCS, LLC dba AT&T (AT&T), for the development and construction of a

wireless communication tower ( Tower) on City Owned property near Christopher

Way, and non-exclusive use of the Tower and ground space by AT&T; and

WHEREAS, construction of the Tower and associated improvements are

complete and AT&T has offered the Tower and associated improvements to the City
for acceptance. The approximate value of the improvements proposed to be accepted
is $ 252,322; and

WHEREAS, a performance bond ( No. SU1190308) was provided with EP 2022-

99 in the amount shown in Table 1 below that guaranteed the construction of the

improvements. The performance bond will be released and replaced with the

warranty bond by the City Engineer upon acceptance of the improvements

Table 1

Description Performance Bond Warranty Bond

Number & Amount

Encroachment Permit

2022-99

SU1190308

300,000

SU1190308M

25,233
and

WHEREAS, staff has inspected the improvements listed in the GASB 34 Report
and they have been deemed complete and in accordance with the approved plans
and specifications by the City Engineer; and

WHEREAS, lien releases have been submitted for the improvements being
accepted; and

WHEREAS, staff has received a one-year warranty bond that covers any

repairs or replacements that become necessary during the one-year period,
beginning with this acceptance, due to defective materials or workmanship in

connection with the completed improvements.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of

Lathrop does hereby approve and accept the improvements associated with EP No.

2022-99, located at 18580 Christopher Way, from New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC

dba AT&T.

260



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this 8th day
of April 2024 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TA FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

261



262



ATTACHMENT
CVL01950 - 18580 CHRISTOPHER WAY

AT&T TOWER AND CELL SITE INSTALL

TRITON TOWER, INC.

Item Quanity Unit Description Unit Price Amount

A STREET WORK

1 1 EA 6" COMMERCIAL DRIVE WAY $ 54,850.36 $ 54,850.36

2 40 FT SIDEWALK REPLACMENT $ 14.45 $ 578.00

3 60 SQ. FT. ASPHALT REPLACMENT ACROSS ROADWAY $ 197.00 $ 11,820.00

4 1 EA TRAFFIC CONTROL AND BARRICADES $ 9,612.77 $ 7,612.77

TOTAL STREETWORK $ 74,861.13

B LANDSCAPING

1 1 EA EXCAVATION EQUIPMENT $ 60,466.63 $ 60,466.63

2 50 TON CLASS 2 BASE ROCK $ 67.21 $ 3,360.50

3 50 TON BACKFILLSAND $ 20.62 $ 1,031.00

TOTAL LANDSCAPE 64,858.13

C ELECTRICAL WORK

1 1 EA BORE 60' ACROSS ROADWAY FOR CONDUIT INSTALL $ 38,421.00 $ 38,421.00

2 1 EA PRECAST VAULT $ 15,192.97 $ 15,192.97

3 108 LF PVC CONDUIT FOR POWER RUN $ 5.89 $ 636.12

TOTAL ELECTRICAL

D TOWER INSTALLATION

1 1 EA

2 1 EA

3 1 EA

EQUIPMENT - CRANE

TOWER MATERIAL

TOWER FOUNDATION

54,250.09

12,762.50 $ 12,762.50

17,895.00 $ 17,895.00

27,695.00 $ 27,695.00

TOTAL TOWER INSTALLATION 58,352.50

TOTAL COSTS $ 252,321.85

263



PAGE LEFT

INTENTIONALLY

BLANK

264



ITEM 4.13

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: AUTHORIZE PARTICIPATION AND ALLOCATION OF

FUNDING FOR THE REGIONAL EARLY ACTION

PLANNING ( REAP 2.0) GRANTS FUNDS AWARDED TO

SAN JOAQUIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS ON

BEHALF OF THE SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY MEMBER

AGENCIES

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Application for, and

Receipt of, REAP 2.0 Grant Program Funds Through
the San Joaquin Council of Governments

SUMMARY:

The State Department of Housing and Community Development ( HCD) created the

Regional Early Action Planning ( REAP) program to help fund regional governments
and entities for planning activities that would accelerate housing production. The

primary goal of REAP 2.0 funds is to advance and supplement regional housing
production while focusing on infill housing, diverse housing options, and maximizing
future funding opportunities. The estimated total allocated to the City of Lathrop is

714,116. Staff identified the East Lathrop Stormwater Master Plan ( ELSMP) as a

potential candidate to qualify for the REAP 2.0 Grant Funding.

BACKGROUND:

In 2019, the State Department of Housing and Community Development ( HCD)
created the Regional Early Action Planning ( REAP) program to help fund regional
governments and entities for planning activities that would accelerate housing

production. On August 9, 2021, the City Council adopted a Resolution authorizing
staff to submit an application for the Regional Early Action Planning ( REAP) 1.0 Grant

Program Funds which included a $ 59,890 allocation for the Integrated Water

Resources Master Plan ( IWRMP).

More recently, REAP 2.0 funds have been made available through HCD to the San

Joaquin Council of Government ( SJCOG) member agencies. The primary goal of REAP

2.0 funds is to advance and supplement regional housing production while focusing
on infill housing, diverse housing options, and maximizing future funding

opportunities. On December 24, 2022, SJCOG submitted an application to acquire
REAP 2.0 funds and received their letter of approval from HCD earlier this year. HCD

has made available $ 10.6 million for local government planning projects. Of the $ 10.6

million, approximately $ 6.9 million will be allocated for local programs and projects.
The estimated total allocated to the City of Lathrop is $ 714,116.

One of the projects that staff has identified that qualifies for the REAP 2.0 Grant

Funding is the East Lathrop Stormwater Master Plan ( ELSMP).

265



CITY MANAGERS REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

REAP 2.0 GRANT FUNDING

PAGE 2

One of the major constraints that hinders development in East Lathrop is the

availability to utilize efficient stormwater management facilities. The ELSMP will

provide a framework for the development of stormwater facilities in East Lathrop to

allow potential development to occur with this area of Lathrop. Currently,
developments are responsible for managing stormwater on -site reducing the

availability of land for residential development.

The REAP 2.0 Grant Applications are submitted to and administered by SJCOG. Once

allocated, the City will submit an application to SJCOG for the REAP 2.0 Grant

Program.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council consider all information provided and

submitted, and if determined to be appropriate, adopt a resolution authorizing the

City Manager to execute and submit the application for the REAP 2.0 Grant Program
Funds and appoint the City Manager, or designee, to execute the REAP 2.0 Grant

Application and amendments, if necessary.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There are potential positive fiscal impacts associated with the REAP 2.0 Grant

Program as the grant could fund up to $ 714,116 in City of Lathrop projects. Staff is

requesting the following budget amendments:

Increase Revenues

2160-8000-331-0500

Increase Transfer Out

2160-9900-990-9010

Increase Transfer In

1010-9900-393-0000

Increase Expenditures
1010-2010-420-0100

ATTACHMENTS:

714,116.00

714,116.00

714,116.00

714,116.00

1. City Council Resolution for the REAP 2.0 Grant Application
2. 2023 Regional Early Action Planning Guidelines & Application Packet

266



CITY MANAGERS REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

REAP 2.0 GRANT FUNDING

APPROVALS:

Associate Planner

es Michaels

Senior Planner

ck Cag '. t

omm , ity Development Director

Brad fi/aylor
City ngine-r

Cari Jam

Finance ! ' rector

Salvador Navarrete

City Attorney

PAGE 3

3/?J174) 74/
Date

31.29 /ioa.j
Date

3/2s/so 2y
Date

4/02.07
Date

3 `1 F" 1-

Date

Stephen7. Salvatore Date

City Manager

267



RESOLUTION NO. 24 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AUTHORIZING THE PARTICIPATION AND ALLOCATION OF FUNDING FOR

THE REGIONAL EARLY ACTION PLANNING ( REAP 2.0) GRANTS FUNDS

AWARDED TO SAN JOAQUIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS ON BEHALF OF

THE SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY MEMBER AGENCIES

WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 50515 et. seq. the

California Department of Housing and Community Development ( Department) has

provided funds for the Local Government Planning Supports Grants Program
hereinafter referred to by the Department as the Regional Early Action Planning

Grants program or REAP); and

WHEREAS, SJCOG has been delegated the responsibility for the

administration of the grant allocation, establishing necessary procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Department awarded the allocation to SJCOG on behalf of

San Joaquin County Member Agencies ( City of Escalon, City of Lathrop, City of Lodi,

City of Manteca, City of Ripon, City of Stockton, City of Tracy, and County of San

Joaquin); and

WHEREAS, SJCOG and participating member agencies, will conduct planning
and implementation activities that will accelerate housing production and housing -
related initiatives; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lathrop desires to submit a REAP

2.0 grant application package (" Application") to SJCOG for approval of grant

funding for projects that advance and supplement regional housing production while

focusing on infill housing, diverse housing options, and maximizing future funding
opportunities.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the City Council of the

City of Lathrop, as follows:

Section 1. The City Manager or designee is hereby authorized and directed

to apply for and submit a REAP 2.0 Grant Application package to SJCOG.

Section 2. If the Application is approved by SJCOG, the City Manager or

designee of the City of Lathrop (" Applicant") is authorized to submit the Application,
enter into, execute, and deliver an SJCOG agreement in the amount of $ 714,116,
and any and all other documents required or deemed necessary or appropriate to

evidence and secure the REAP 2.0 grant, the Applicant'sobligations related thereto,

and all amendments thereto.

Resolution No. 24-

268



Section 3. The Applicant shall be subject to the terms and conditions as

specified in the SJCOG REAP 2.0 Grant Guidelines and the Agreement provided by
the SJCOG after approval. The Applicant and any and all accompanying documents

are incorporated in full as part of the Agreement. Any and all activities funded,
information provided, and timelines represented in the Application will be

enforceable through the fully executed Agreement. Pursuant to the SJCOG REAP

2.0 Grant Guidelines and in conjunction with the terms of the Agreement, the

Applicant hereby agrees to use the funds for eligible uses and allowable

expenditures in the manner presented and specifically identified in the approved
Application.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a budget amendment is required as

follows:

Increase Revenues

2160-8000-331-0500

Increase Transfer Out

2160-9900-990-9010

Increase Transfer In

1010-9900-393-0000

Increase Expenditures
1010-2010-420-0100

714,116.00

714,116.00

714,116.00

714,116.00

Resolution No. 24-

269



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8th day of April, 2024,

by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 24-

270



2023 Regional Early Action Planning ( REAP) Guidelines &

Application Packet

Final Approved Month 20xx

271



Table of Contents

Overview

Timeline

Glossary of key terms

List of resources

Background
o REAP 2.0 Advance Application Award Funding Framework

o Allocation Formulas for Local Program and Projects
o Evaluation Criteria for Local Programs and Projects
o Eligibility

Application and Submittal Process

o Checklist

o Scoring Sheet

o Attachment C - REAP 2.0 Reporting Form Excel Attachment " REAP - Local

Jurisdiction Summary Template"
o Attachment D - REAP 2.0 Council Resolution

o Attachment E - Signed Co -Op Agreement

1
272



Overview

Program Description & Background
These guidelines detail SJCOG's plan for allocating Regional
Early Action Planning ( REAP) 2.0 program funds. They specify
eligible regional and local planning activities aimed at

advancing SJCOG's Regional Housing Priorities, adopted by
the policy board in September 2020. The primary goal of REAP

2.0 funds is to expedite and enhance regional housing
production, focusing on infill housing, diverse housing options,
and maximizing future funding opportunities.

Attachments

Attachment A - Letter of Support ( Optional)
Attachment B - Project Map
Attachment C - " REAP - Local Jurisdiction Summary Template"
Attachment D - REAP 2.0 Signed Council Resolution

Attachment E - Signed Co -Op Agreement

Scoring Summary

REAP 2.0 Objectives

1. Accelerating Infill Development

2. Affirmatively Furthering Fair

Housing

3. Reducing Vehicle Miles Traveled

Subtotal:

Primary Factors

Subtotal

Secondary Factors

Subtotal

Total Possible Points

Minimum 40 Points Required

24

24

24

72

Minimum 15 Points Required

23

Minimum 5 Points Required

5

100

Total Minimum Points Required 60

Eligible Projects

A project must meet all the following criteria to be eligible for

Funding:
The project must meet all three REAP 2.0 Program Objectives:

o Accelerate infill development that facilitates

housing supply, choice, and affordability.
o Affirmatively Further Fair Housing
o Reduce vehicle miles traveled

Eligible Applicants
Cities in the County of San Joaquin
County of San Joaquin

Program Manager
Joann Martinez

martinez@sicog.org

REAP 2•
Funding

Funding Source

California Department of Housing and

Community Development Regional
Early Action Planning Grants of 2021

REAP 2.0) - State General Fund

Expenditure Deadline

All funds must be expended on the

project by December 31, 2025

Available Funding
Total funding available: $ 10.6 million

Program Administration

5°l $ 530,626

Regional Supportive Infrastructure & Clean

Mobility Initiatives

21% 82,183, 754

Regional Housing Acceleration Fund Set Aside

9% 81,000,000

Formula Funded Local Programs and Projects
65% $ 6,898,134

Formula Funded Local Programs and Projects

Stockton
San Joaquin County

Tracy
Manteca

Lodi

Lathrop

Ripon
Escalon

Population Allocation " 0.5) +

RHNA Allocation * 0.5)

1,938,577
1,105,464

1,124,509
909,297

8506,170

714,116

300,000
300,000

Example Projects

Rezoning and updating planning
documents and zoning ordinances

Conducting infrastructure plans and

studies

Affordable housing predevelopment
costs and construction

Capital investments that support
future housing development

2
273



Timeline:

Activity:

Final REAP Guidelines Project Application Release

Date:

March 2024

Project Applications with Resolutions Due April 15 2024

Application Review April 30 2024

Co -Operative Agreement Issuance May 2024

Final Invoice to SJCOG September 30, 2025

Expenditure Deadline

All funds must be expended on the project by:
December 31, 2025

Technical Assistance ongoing through December 2025)

Page Break

3274



Glossary of Key Terms

Accelerating Will Housing Production or Accelerating Infill Development, Including Housing
means planning, infrastructure, and other investment and actions that improve the affordability,
timing, cost, feasibility, approval, and amount of Housing development.

Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing ( AFFH), under Government Code section 8899.50, means

taking meaningful actions, in addition to combating discrimination, that overcome patterns of

segregation and foster inclusive communities free from barriers that restrict access to opportunity
based on protected characteristics. Specifically, Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing means

taking meaningful actions that, taken together, address significant disparities in Housing needs

and in access to opportunity, replacing segregated living patterns with truly integrated and

balanced living patterns, transforming racially and ethnically concentrated areas of poverty into

areas of opportunity, and fostering and maintaining compliance with Civil Rights and Fair

Housing Laws.

Affordable housing means housing that does not cost more than 30 percent of the gross income

of Lower- and Moderate -income Households.

Alternative Planning Strategy refers to the document, if any, prepared by a metropolitan

planning organization pursuant to paragraph ( 1) of subdivision ( b) of Section 65080 of the

Government Code.

Areas of High Segregation and Poverty means areas that meet consistent standards for both

poverty ( 30 percent of the population below the federal poverty line) and racial segregation
overrepresentation of people of color relative to the county).

California Department of Housing and Community Development ( HCD) is the State agency

administering the Regional Early Action Planning Grant of 2021 ( REAP 2.0).

Capital project is a type of project that will eventually result in the construction of public
improvements. Project phases can include environmental, design ( conceptual, preliminary, or

final), right-of-way, and construction.

Disadvantaged and Historically Underserved Communities includes concentrated areas of

poverty; Areas of High Segregation and Poverty and areas of low to moderate access to

opportunity ( TCAC/HCD Opportunity Area Maps); Communities of Concern, Disadvantaged
Communities ( SB 535 Disadvantaged Communities Map), and Low Income Communities

pursuant to Senate Bill 535 ( De Leon, Chapter 830, Statutes of 2012) and Assembly Bill 1550

Gomez, Chapter 369, Statutes of 2016); areas of high Housing cost burdens; areas with high
vulnerability of displacement; areas related to Tribal Entities; and other areas experiencing
disproportionate impacts of California's Housing and climate crisis. Applicants may propose
alternative definitions to Disadvantaged and Historically Underserved Communities in

consultation with the Department and the State Collaborative Partners.

Grant term is when expenses for project -related activities can be incurred to be eligible for

reimbursement and begins when the Notice to Proceed is issued and extends until the grant
termination date.

Grantee is an organization that has been awarded funding through the REAP 2.0 Program and

has entered into a grant agreement with SJCOG.

HCD ProHousing Designation Program is a program developed by HCD. It provides incentives to

cities and counties in the form of additional points or other preferences in scoring competitive
housing, community development, and infrastructure programs.

4275



Higher Resource Communities or Areas means those areas designated as " highest resource"

and " high resource" as defined by the most recent TCAC/HCD Opportunity Area Maps.

Housing Trust Fund means a Local or Regional Housing Trust Fund that is required to

be a public, joint public and private, or charitable nonprofit organization organized under

Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, which was established by legislation,
ordinance, resolution ( including nonprofit articles of incorporation), or a public -private

partnership organized to receive specific public, or public and private, revenue to

address local or regional Housing needs.

InfiII means, for REAP 2.0, areas where all the following apply: (1) the area consists of unused and

underutilized lands, ( 2) within existing development patterns that include a diversity of land uses,

and (3) that is accessible to destinations and daily services by transit, walking, or bicycling and

located in either:

a) An urban center, urban corridor, or area with transit -supportive densities, or

b) An established community that meets all the following criteria:

The area consists of or previously consisted of qualified urban uses

ii. The area is predominantly surrounded ( approximately 75 percent of the

perimeter) by parcels developed or previously developed with qualified
urban uses. In counting this, perimeters bordering navigable bodies of water

and improved parks shall not be included, and

No parcel within or adjoining the area is classified as agricultural or natural

and working lands.

Projects located within a Mobility Hub, Transit Priority Area, or Low VMT Area meet the definition

of Infill.

Low VMT Areas generally refer to areas requiring less driving and providing better access to daily
destinations such as jobs and services. Under HAP, low VMT areas are Traffic Analysis Zones with

2035 residential per capita VMT below the regional mean, as identified through Senate Bill ( SB)
743 technical guidelines and " Potential Areas for Transit Priority Projects" as defined under SB

375.

Major transit stop is a site containing an existing rail or bus rapid transit station, a ferry terminal

served by either a bus or rail transit service, or the intersection of two or more major bus routes

with a frequency of service interval of 15 minutes or less during the morning and afternoon peak
commute periods. Match percentage is calculated by dividing the total match amount by the

sum of the matching funds and the grant award.

Matching funds is the funding other than the grant award that contributes to the total project
cost. It is often represented as a percentage of the total project cost.

Mobility Hubs are communities with a high concentration of people, destinations, and travel

choices. They provide an integrated suite of mobility services, safe roads, and supporting
amenities and technology to help people reach high -frequency transit or make short trips
around a community. Mobility Hubs can span one, two, or a few miles, and each hub is uniquely

designed to fulfill a variety of travel needs while strengthening the sense of place.

Multimodal Communities are those which are served by a variety of travel options that

accommodate a variety of transportation modes for the public to access daily destinations.

Multimodal options can include but are not limited to, complete street improvements for active

transportation, improving access to transit, and creating high -quality transit stops.

Planning project is a type of project that includes plans and processes that accelerate housing
production but will not directly result in the construction of a public improvement project.
Examples include technical assistance in improving housing permitting processes, tracking
systems, and planning tools; performing feasibility studies to determine the most efficient

5276



locations to site housing; and temporary staffing or consultant needs associated with these

activities.

Qualitative or subjective evaluation criteria are those criteria in which discretion is needed to

provide a score. Often qualitative criteria seek to evaluate how well an applicant responded to

an application question or how well the proposed project will achieve a stated goal.

Quantitative or objective criteria are those criteria that a formula or conditional statement is

used to provide a score. Often quantitative criteria seek to evaluate a project -related data

point or metric against a range or scale and assign a point value based on where the data

point or metric falls within the range or scale. Other quantitative criteria assign a point value

based on responses to a conditional statement, such as a yes/no question or the presence or

absence of a condition.

Regional Early Action Planning 2021 ( REAP 2.0) is a grant program that provides one-time grant
funding to regional governments and entities for planning activities and capital projects that will

accelerate housing production and progress toward our state climate commitments.

REAP 2.0 Program Goal is to invest in housing, planning, and Infill housing -supportive infrastructure

across the entire state in a manner that reduces VMT, increases housing affordability, and

advances equity, consistent with all of the following:

Advancing the State Planning Priorities

Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing; •
Facilitating housing element compliance and progress for the sixth cycle Regional
Housing Needs Assessment

Advancing and implementing the region's SCS to achieve climate goals.

REAP 2.0 Program Objectives are the objectives that a project must meet in order to be eligible
for HAP. They are:

Accelerating infill development that facilitates housing supply, choice, and affordability.
Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing
Reducing vehicle miles traveled Regional Housing Needs Assessment ( RHNA) is codified

in state law at Government Code Section 65580, et seq.

It quantifies the need for housing and informs land use planning in addressing identified existing
and future housing needs resulting from population, employment, and household growth.
SJCOG is responsible for overseeing the RHNA process for the San Joaquin region and is currently
overseeing the 6th cycle RHNA, which covers the planning period from 2021-2029

Total Project Cost is calculated as the sum of the grant award and the matching funds.

Traffic Analysis Zone ( TAZ) is a geographic unit used for transportation modeling. A TAZ is smaller

than a census tract. Transformative and innovative activities under REAP 2.0 means housing,
planning, infrastructure investments supporting infill development, and other actions that enable

a local jurisdiction to meet its housing goals that also result in per capita vehicle miles traveled

reductions, including accelerating infill development, supporting residents through realizing
multimodal communities, shifting travel behavior through reducing driving, and increasing transit

ridership.

Transformative and innovative activities are meant to address these goals together and to lead

to changes in land use patterns and behaviors.

Transit Priority Areas ( TPAs) are areas within a half -mile of a major transit stop that are existing or

planned. Under SB 743, local jurisdictions can potentially use streamlined environmental review

for projects within TPAs.

Vehicle Miles Traveled ( VMT) is the total number of miles traveled on all roadways by all vehicles.

6
277



VMT per capita means the number of Vehicle Miles Traveled per person. It is calculated by
dividing the total annual miles of vehicle travel by the total population in a state or an urbanized

area.

List of Resources

Resource/ inks

HCD AFFH Data and Mapping

What to do?

Applicants can use this interactive

resource from HCD to fulfill a state

obligation to proactively combat

discrimination and increase access to

safe, affordable homes near jobs,
schools, healthcare, and parks for all

Californians, especially those who face

barriers because of their race, sex,

income, and other characteristics. In this

tool, users can explore data relating to

Fair Housing Enforcement, Segregation
and Integration, Disparities in Access to

Opportunity, Disproportionate Housing
Needs, Racially/Ethnically Concentrated

Areas of Poverty, and more.

HCD Housing Planning Hub Provides resources for accelerating
housing production.

TCAC/HCD 2023 Opportunity Map The TCAC/HCD Opportunity Map
identifies areas whose characteristics

have been shown by research to be most

strongly associated with positive
economic, educational, and health

outcomes for low-income families -

particularly long-term outcomes for

children - when compared to other

neighborhoods in the same region. The

map also identifies areas in California

that are both high poverty and racially
segregated. Use the tool to identify the

opportunity category that applies to the

project and to respond to questions
based on the type of opportunity
category that applies to the project.

SJCOG 6th Cycle Regional Housing Needs Review RHNA resources. RHNA is

Assessment mandated by state law, quantifies the

need for housing, and informs land use

planning in addressing identified existing
and future housing needs resulting from

population, employment, and household

growth.
California Climate Change Scoping Plan. Explains how the proposed use promotes

development and housing production in

infill locations consistent with the state's

climate targets and goals discussed in

the

278



2022 RTP/SCS Explains how the project is consistent with

SJ COG's land use strategies and what

performance indicators best align with

your project and how,

Background
In 2019, HCD established the REAP program to provide one-time grant funding to

regional governments and entities for planning activities to accelerate housing
production. REAP 2.0 builds on the success of 2019's REAP program but expands the

focus by integrating housing and climate goals and allowing for broader planning and

implementation investments, including infrastructure that supports future housing
development. REAP 2.0 activities must meet multiple state objectives by prioritizing infill

development, providing housing for people of all incomes, placing housing in locations

with good transportation options to reduce the need to drive, affirmatively furthering
fair housing, and accelerating the implementation of existing regional and local plans
to achieve these goals.

REAP 2.0 Advance Application Award Funding Framework

In December 2022, the SJCOG board approved the REAP 2.0 funding framework that

was proposed by SJCOG staff after staff considered input from committees,

stakeholders, and the board. The following table shows the approved funding
framework:

Program Administration

5% $ 530,626

Regional Supportive Infrastructure & Clean Mobiliiy Initiatives

21% $ 2,183,754

Regional Housing Acceleration Fund Set Aside

9% $ 1,000,000
Formula Funded Local Programs and Projects

65% $ 6,898,134

Of the total grant award of $10.6 million, almost $ 6.9 million ( or 65 percent) will be

reserved for formula funded local programs and projects. SJCOG submitted a REAP 2.0

grant application to HCD on December 24, 2022. SJCOG is currently working with HCD

on clarifications and requested additional information prior to receiving final HCD

approval of the full program of projects.

Allocation Formulas for Local Program and Projects

Utilizing a combination of both the population and RHNA formula options, each

weighted at 50 percent, to determine REAP 2.0 allocations for local jurisdictions. This

approach was proposed to strike a balance. The RHNA inclusion in the formula
benefited jurisdictions with higher RHNA housing obligations for affordable housing,
enabling them to receive more REAP 2.0 funds to expedite affordable housing
construction. Simultaneously, the population factor remained a crucial component,
allowing jurisdictions like Stockton and San Joaquin County, which had significant
numbers of lower -income households, to receive higher allocations than if solely relying
on the RHNA formula, Together, Stockton and San Joaquin County accounted for 69.7

percent of the lower -income households in the region.

8
279



This recommended allocation formula ensured fairness for jurisdictions with varying
RHNA obligations and those already having a substantial number of affordable housing
units. Furthermore, this formula aligned with the objectives of the REAP 2.0 program,
which sought to accelerate affordable housing production, especially in high -resource

areas ( affirmatively furthering fair housing) and revitalize disadvantaged and historically
underserved communities.

When the allocation formula was applied to the $6.9 million allocated for local

programs and projects, ensuring a $300,000 minimum, the allocation for each

jurisdiction was as follows:

Population Allocation ' 0.5) +

RHNA Allocation * 0.5)
Stockton $ 1,938,577
San Joaquin County $ 1,105,464

Tracy $ 1,124,509

Manteca $ 909,297

Lodi $ 506,170

Lathrop $ 714,116

Ripon $ 300,000
Escalon $ 300,000

In comparison to the population formula option that was used for the allocation of

REAP 1.0 funds, Lodi, San Joaquin County and Stockton would receive less funds but

more than what they would receive using the RHNA formula option. Lathrop, Manteca,
and Tracy would receive more funds with the staff -recommended option than the

population formula option. Lathrop will gain the most due to its very high RHNA

obligation in relation to its population.

Evaluation Criteria for Local Programs and Projects

SJCOG staff has prepared evaluation criteria to determine whether a project or

program proposed by a local jurisdiction qualifies to receive REAP 2.0 funds. The criteria

are divided into three sections. The most important evaluation section covers the REAP

2.0 objectives. A project must meet each of the three objectives. Other sections include

the primary factors which are from the REAP 2.0 guidelines and the secondary factors

that demonstrate the thoroughness of the application and the deliverability of the

project. A minimum of 60 points is required for a project to receive REAP 2.0 funds. The

maximum possible number of points is 100.

Eligibility
This is a flexible program. Funds can be utilized for planning efforts, or for implementing
existing plans, as they relate to housing and infrastructure to support new housing.

All REAP 2.0 applications must satisfy both housing and VMT reduction goals while

emphasizing the nexus between housing and climate change in ways that advance

equity and improve underlying social and health vulnerabilities that may have

contributed to more severe public health outcomes of the pandemic,

Statute does specify the following broad categories of eligible uses, though the

program does allow some flexibility, and proposed uses must demonstrate a nexus to all

program objectives:

Accelerating infill housing development

9280



Realizing multimodal communities

Shifting travel behavior by reducing driving
Increasing transit ridership

See REAP 2.0 Final Guidelines for more information

10
281



Application and Submittal Process Checklist

San Joaquin Council of Governments
555 E WEBER AVENUE STOCKTON, CA 95202-2804

PHONE: 209-235-0600; FAX: 209-235-0438

CONTACT: JOANN MARTINEZ 209-325-0582 MARTINEZ@SJCOG.ORG

APPLICANT INFORMATION: SUBCONSULTANT INFORMATION:

Agency Name: Organization
Name:

C CBO

Agency Type:  
City Organization 11Nonprofit Developer

County Type:  For Profit Developer
Other:

Mailing
Address:

Authorized

Representative
Name 8( Title:

Authorized

Representative
Email Address:

PROJECT INFORMATION:

Mailing Address:

Authorized

Representative
Name & Title:

Authorized

Representative
Email Address:

Number of

projects
submitted:

Project Title:

Yes  No

Amount of

REAP 2.0

funds

requested for

project:

PROJECT SCHEDULE AND BU

Please provide a description of the proposed project.

11
282



Text

Project Schedule And Budget

Project Location:

Please describe the

project's general
location(s) and include
an attached project
map.

Text

Project Tasks:

Please describe and
outline tasks

Budget Start

Date

End
Date

Tasks & Deliverables

Total

ECT<A N ENT WITH REAP 2.0 OBJECTIVES, PRIMARY, SECONDARY FACTO RS CHECKLIST:;

Please fill out the tables below to demonstrate how the proposed project adheres to all REAP

2.0 criteria. Please answer questions with concise sentences. 1-2 sentence answers are

preferred but not required.

Does the project accelerate infifl development near jobs and other key destinations to support
increasing housing choices and affordability that effectively reduce VMT and greenhouse gas
emissions?

Text

12
283



Is the project at an infill site and does it have affordability components that serve lower and

moderate -income households? ( Note: Use definition for infill in REAP 2.0 Guidelines).

Text

Is the project for affordable housing development programs that accelerate the supply of

long-term affordable housing for lower and moderate - income households? This may involve

predevelopment costs ( e.g. studies, land acquisition, entitlements), large expenditures and

capital investments. Affordable housing developments can include mixed - uses ( e.g. a

minimum of 65 percent total floor area).

Text

Optional) Is the project
located in a federally
recognized Opportunity
Zone as defined by the

U.S, Department of

Transportation?

Yes  No E

Does the project accelerate the supply of long-term affordable housing for lower and

moderate - income households in a high or highest resource area as identified in the

CTCAC/HCD Opportunity Areas Maps? This may include but are not limited to: enhancing
housing mobility strategies that remove barriers to housing, housing- supportive infrastructure,

and transportation in areas of opportunity.

Text

Does the project focus on conserving and improving assets in a SB 535 disadvantaged
community such as: targeting investments in neighborhood revitalization, preserving or

rehabilitating existing affordable housing, improving infrastructure, schools, employment, parks,
transportation and other community amenities? If there is no SB 535 disadvantaged community
within a jurisdiction, then the project focus should be conserving and improving assets in an

area (US. Census block group) where the median household income is at least 20 percent
below the jurisdiction median household income.

Text

Does the project target funding to benefit a SB 535 disadvantaged community or if there is no

SB 535 disadvantaged community within the jurisdiction, does the project target funding to an

area (U.S. Census block group) where the median household income is at least 20 percent
below the jurisdiction median household income.

Text

Does the project protect existing residents from displacement and preserve housing choices

and affordability in areas of lower or moderate resource areas as identified in the CTCAC/HCD
Opportunity Area Maps or in SB 535 disadvantaged communities ( or if there is no SB 535

disadvantaged community, located in a block group where median household income is at

least 20 percent below the jurisdiction median household income)

13
284



Text

If the project involves land use planning, policies and investment strategies, does it encourage
infill development by facilitating housing supply, choice, and affordability and is serviced by
existing and planned expansions of a multimodal transportation system?

Text

If the project involves transportation planning, does it increase travel options to homes, jobs,
services, and other key destinations that provide, support, or enhance multimodal communities
and reduce the number or length of vehicle trips?

Text

Optional) Explain how the project is consistent with SJ COG's 2022 RTP/SCS land use strategies
and what performance indicators best align with your project and how.

Text

Project Alignment with REAP 2.0 Primary Factors: Explain how your proposed project complies
with the six factors below as applicable

Factor 1: Supporting Compliance with your Jurisdiction's Housing Element for the 6th Cycle
Regional Housing Needs Assessment ( 2 points)

Text

Factor 2: Transformative Planning and Implementation Activities Does the project provide for

housing, planning, or infrastructure investments supporting infill housing, and other actions that

enable meeting housing goals that also result in per capita vehicle miles traveled reductions,

including accelerating infill development, supporting residents through realizing multimodal
communities, shilling travel behavior through reducing driving, and increasing transit ridership?
5 points)

Text

Factor 3: Public Outreach

1. Did the proposed project arise from or go through a public process to solicit community
input?
2. If this is a planning project, does the scope of work include a public process?
4 points)

Text

Factor 4: Benefit to Disadvantaged Populations; Does the project target funding to a SB 535

disadvantaged community or target funding to housing projects that are affordable to lower

or medium income households? (6 points)

Text

14
285



Factor 5: Significant Beneficial Impacts; Does the project lead to substantial changes in land

use patterns and travel behaviors, demonstrated by:

a. A rate of change compared to the baseline; or

b. The magnitude of impact relative to variables or targets; or
c. The proportion of need achieved; or

d. The impact relative to past trends, policies, and practices?
Note: For more information, see Section 203(A)(2) in the Regional Early Action Planning
Grants of 2021 ( REAP 2.0) Guidelines.

4 points)

Text

Factor 6: California Planning Priorities

Explain how the project supports promotion of infill development and equity by
rehabilitating, maintaining, and improving existing infrastructure that supports infili

development and appropriate reuse and redevelopment of previously developed,
underutilized land that is presently served by transit, streets, water, sewer, and other
essential services, particularly in underserved areas, and preserves cultural and historic

resources.

Explain how the project supports protection of environmental and agricultural resources by
protecting, preserving, and enhancing the state's most valuable natural resources,

including working landscapes such as farm, range, and forest lands; natural lands such as

wetlands, watersheds, wildlife habitats, and other wildlands; recreation lands such as parks,
trails, greenbelts, and other open space; and landscapes with locally unique features and

areas identified by the state as deserving special protection.
Explain how the project encourages efficient development patterns by ensuring that any
infrastructure associated with development does all of the following:

o Uses land efficiently; and

o is built adjacent to existing developed areas; and

o Is located in an area appropriately planned for growth; and

o Is in a location served by adequate transportation and other essential utilities and

services; and

o Minimizes ongoing costs to taxpayers.
1 point each, maximum 3 points)

Text

Project Alignment with REAP 2.0 Secondary Factors: Explain how your proposed project
complies with the two factors below as applicable

Factor 1: Project Scope of Work and Budget; A
scope of work, schedule and budget must be

included as part of the grant application. Are
these included in this application? (2 points)

Yes  No 

Factor 2: Project Risk Assessment:
1. Has the applicant thoroughly considered risks associated with delivering the project

consistent with the scope of work and budget?
2, Has the applicant demonstrated realistic means for mitigating risk associated with

delivering the project?
1 Point Each, Maximum 2 Points)

Text

15
286



RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FROM SJCOG POLICY BOARD SIGNATURE FOR

Authorized

Representative
Name:

Date:

Page Break

HR Manager

5/7/XX

Signature:

16
287



Scoring Methodology
Please fill out your score on the " self -score" column

Scoring Summary

REAP 2:O Objectives (Minmur
earn points for each objective

Accelerating Infill Development
Accelerate infill development near jobs and key

destinations to increase housing choice and affordability

Located on infill site and have affordability component

Accelerate the supply of long-term affordable housing
for lower- and moderate -income households

Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing

Accelerate the supply of affordable housing in high or

highest resource area

Conserve and improve assets in SB 535 disadvantaged
community

Target funding to benefit an SB 535 disadvantaged
community

Project protects existing residents from displacement and

preserve housing choices and affordability in areas of

lower or moderate resource areas

Reducing Vehicle Miles Traveled

Planning project or program - encourages infill

development by facilitating housing supply, choice, and

affordability and is serviced by existing and planned
expansions of a multimodal transportation system

Transportation planning - increases travel options to

destinations that provide, support, or enhance

multimodal communities and reduce the number or

length of vehicle trips.

Possible Self -Score

Maximum Score

Prima F ctors (Mini

Housing Element Compliance

Transformative Planning and Implementation Activities

Public Outreach

Benefit to Disadvantaged Populations

Significant Beneficial Impacts

California Planning Priorities

Scope of Work and Budget

Project Risk Assessment

Total Possible Points

Page Break

17
288



Attachment C: REAP 2,0 Reporting Form Excel " REAP - Local Jurisdiction Summary
Template"

18
289



Attachment D - REAP 2.0 Signed Council Resolution

Resolution

Name of Metropolitan Planning Organization)

APPROVING THE PARTICIPATION AND ALLOCATION OF FUNDING FOR THE REGIONAL

EARLY ACTION PLANNING GRANT ( REAP) FUNDS AWARDED TO SAN JOAQUIN COUNCIL

OF GOVERNMENTS ON BEHALF OF THE SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY MEMBER AGENCIES.

WHEREAS, the Housing and Community Department ( HCD) have provided funds for the

program shown above; and

WHEREAS, the provided funds by HCD have been made available through the San

Joaquin COG on behalf of HCD; and

WHEREAS, the San Joaquin COG signed a Standard Agreement to facilitate the

regional sub -allocations ( Exhibit A); and

WHEREAS, SJCOG has been delegated the responsibility for the administration of the

grant allocation, establishing necessary procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Housing and Community Development Department ( HCD) awarded the

allocation to SJCOG on behalf of San Joaquin County Member Agencies ( City of

Escalon, City of Lathrop, City of Lodi, City of Manteca, City of Ripon, City of Stockton,

City of Tracy, and County of San Joaquin); and

WHEREAS, SJCOG and participating member agencies, will conduct planning and

implementation activities that will accelerate housing production and housing -related

initiatives; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE ( INSERT LOCAL AGENCY):
1. Conducts activities consistent with the grant requirements; and

2. Commits to providing documentation of work completed and other deliverables

consistent with the grant requirements, and;
3. Total invoicing shall not exceed the allotted share as stipulated in Table 1 of

SJCOG REAP Grant Guidelines,

Approved and adopted the of , 2024. I, the undersigned hereby certify
that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the (Name of the Local Agency)

Following Roll Call Vote:

Name of CITY MANAGER} Signature

Clerk/Secretary for the Governing Board

Ayes: Nos: Absent:

Page Break

19
290



Attachment E - Signed Co -Operative Agreement

REGIONAL EARLY ACTION PLANNING (" REAP") FUNDS COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT ( 0-24-

xxx) FOR THE ( LOCAL JURISDICTION)

This COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT ( hereinafter " Agreement"), effective as of Month Day,
2024 is made and entered into by and between SAN JOAQUIN COUNCIL OF

GOVERNMENTS a Joint Powers Authority established under California Government

Code section 6500 et seq. (hereinafter " SJCOG") and, (LOCAL JURISDICTION)
hereinafter " Sponsor");

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the California Department of Housing and Community Development ( HCD)
has provided funds for the Regional Early Action Planning Program; and

WHEREAS, the provided funds by HCD have been made available through San Joaquin
Council of Governments ( SJCOG); and

WHEREAS, SJCOG has been delegated the responsibility for administration of the grant
allocation, establishing necessary procedures; and

WHEREAS, HCD awarded the allocation to SJCOG on behalf of the region and San

Joaquin County Member Agencies ( City of Escalon, City of Lathrop, City of Lodi, City of

Manteca, City of Ripon, City of Stockton, City of Tracy, and County of San Joaquin);
and

WHEREAS, SJCOG and participating member agencies, will conduct planning activities

that will accelerate housing production and housing - related initiatives,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and undertakings herein

made and the mutual benefits to be derived therefrom, the parties hereto agree as

follows:

This Agreement is fully comprised of these terms and the attached exhibits which are

incorporated by herein by reference. The exhibits attached to this Agreement are:

Exhibit A- Scope of Work

Exhibit B- Signed Resolution

Exhibit C- Final REAP Guidelines

AGREEMENT

1 . 1 Project Description. The project description, scope of work, delivery schedule,
and the anticipated timing for release of REAP funds are specified in Exhibit " A"

and incorporated herein by this reference.

1,2 Change In Project Scope. A change in the project scope as described by Exhibit

A" may not be implemented until it has been approved by SJCOG.

1,3 Eligible Reimbursement Costs. Eligible reimbursement costs shall be those costs as

defined by the statutes, rules and regulations of the State of California Housing
and Community Development Department.

20
291



1.4 Use of Funds. Sponsor shall use REAP funds consistent with the Project Scope of

Work, as described in Exhibit "A" or approved by SJCOG pursuant to Section 1.2.

1.5 Timely Use of Funds. REAP funds are one-time housing planning funds with an

expenditure deadline of December 31, 2025. SJCOG staff will monitor

expenditures on an annual basis to minimize the risk of losing funds that are

intended to benefit the region. If expenditures are behind schedule, SJCOG staff

may reach out to Sponsor to determine a schedule to expend funds or whether

it may be appropriate to reprogram funds. To meet the state expenditure
deadline and submit required reporting and invoicing, all REAP funds shall be

expended by August 31, 2025.

1.6 Completion of Project. Sponsor shall be responsible for the timely completion of

the Project and to provide management of consultant and contractor activities,

including responsibility for schedule, budget and oversight of the services,
consistent with the scope of work. The Cooperative agreement end date is

December 31, 2025.

1.7 Invoices and Progress Reports. Sponsor shall submit an invoice and progress

report on a quarterly basis for eligible expenses incurred for activities conducted

over the cooperative agreement period.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have executed this Agreement on the

day and year first written above,

LOCAL JURISDICTION) SAN JOAQUIN COUNCIL OF

GOVERNMENTS

BY: BY:

NAME: NAME: DIANE NGUYEN, EXECUTIVE

DATE: DIRECTOR

DATE:

ATTEST ATTEST

BY: BY:

NAME: NAME: STEVE DIAL, Deputy Executive

DATE: Director/CFO

DATE:

APPROVED AS TO FORM

BY:

NAME:

DATE:

21
292



ITEM 4.14

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO KNIFE RIVER

FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF PAVEMENT

REHABILITATION, CIP PS 24-29 AND APPROVE

BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution to Award a Construction Contract to

DSS Company dba Knife River Construction for

Construction of CIP PS 24-29 Pavement

Rehabilitation and Approve Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

On February 12, 2024, City Council approved the creation of Capital Improvement
Project ( CIP) PS 24-29 Pavement Rehabilitation ( Project) to correct existing road

deficiencies in the Woodfield community area. The Project will repair the deteriorated

pavement on Cherry Hills Drive, Cherry Hills Court, Kilarney Drive, and Kilarney Court.

The scope of work consists of a full -reconstruction pavement treatment that will use

the existing pavement section material as the base for the new roadway - wearing
surface.

The bid solicitation package with plans and specifications for the construction of the

Project was advertised on February 13, 2024, in accordance with Bidding Procedures

in California Public Contract Code ( PCC) 22160 and Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC)
2.36.060. The City Clerk received and opened nine ( 9) bids on February 29, 2024.

Based on the review and evaluation of the bids, the lowest responsive and responsible
bidder for construction of the Project was determined to be DSS Company dba Knife

River Construction ( Knife River) with a bid of $ 582,982.

Staff requests City Council award a construction contract to Knife River for

construction of the Project in the amount of $ 582,982 and authorize a 10%

construction contingency of $ 58,298 for a total cost not to exceed $ 641,280.

CIP PS 24-29 currently has a balance of $ 96,280 therefore staff is also requesting
Council approve budget amendment transferring $ 545,000 from the General Fund

Street Repair Reserves ( 1010) to the CIP Project Fund ( 3310) to fund the construction

contract and a 10% contingency.

BACKGROUND:

Staff identified the need to repair the pavement within the Woodfield community area.

On July 2023, CIP PS 22-29 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Project completed
the reconstruction of Prairie Dunes Drive. To continue the repair and rehabilitation of

this residential area, staff created CIP PS 24-29 for Pavement Rehabilitation on Cherry
Hills Drive, Cherry Hills Court, Kilarney Drive, and Kilarney Court.

293



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO KNIFE RIVER FOR CONSTRUCTION OF

CIP PS 24-29 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION AND APPROVE BUDGET

AMENDMENT

The Project will implement a full - reconstruction pavement treatment to rehabilitate

the project locations using the existing pavement section material as the base for the

new roadway -wearing surface. This treatment produces a cost-effective solution to

repair alligator, transverse, longitudinal, and reflection pavement cracking.

The bid solicitation package with plans and specifications for the construction of the

Project was advertised on February 13, 2024, in accordance with Bidding Procedures

in California PCC 22160 and LMC 2.36.060.

Nine ( 9) bids were received; each determined to be responsive and responsible. The

bid results are summarized in Table 1 below:

Table 1: Summary of Bid Results

Contractor Base Bid

DSS Company dba Knife River Construction 582,982
McGuire & Hester 594,490

George Reed, Inc. 621,876
Consolidated Engineering, Inc. 649,307
Tom Mayo Construction, Inc. 675,012
United Pavement Maintenance, Inc. 740,060
All-American Construction, Inc. 794,990
B&M Builders, Inc. 846,140
Central Valley Engineering & Asphalt, Inc. 980,189.50

Staff reviewed and evaluated the bids, and determined that the lowest responsive and

responsible bidder is Knife River. Staff requests City Council adopt a resolution

awarding a construction contract to Contractor for $ 582,982.

Staff also requests City Council authorize a 10% construction contingency of $ 58,298
and authorize staff to spend the contingency as necessary to achieve the goals of the

Project for a total cost not to exceed $ 641,280.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Construction of CIP PS 24-29 Pavement Rehabilitation is needed to correct existing
roadway pavement deficiencies and increase motorists' safety within the Woodfield

community area.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Sufficient funds were not allocated in the approved FY 23-24 budget, thus staff is also

requesting the approval of a budget amendment transferring $ 545,000 from the

General Fund Street Repair Reserves ( 1010) to the CIP Project Fund ( 3310) as follows:

294



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO KNIFE RIVER FOR CONSTRUCTION OF

CIP PS 24-29 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION AND APPROVE BUDGET

AMENDMENT

Decrease Street Repair Reserves

1010-251-03-00

Increase Transfer Out

1010-9900-990-9010

Increase Transfer In

3310-9900-393-0000

Increase Appropriation
3310-8000-420-1200

ATTACHMENTS:

545,000

545,000

PS 24-29 $ 545,000

PS 24-29 $ 545,000

A. Resolution to Award a Construction Contract to DSS Company dba Knife River

Construction for Construction of CIP PS 24-29 Pavement Rehabilitation, and

Approve Budget Amendment

B. Construction Contract with DSS Company dba Knife River Construction for

Construction of CIP PS 24-29 Pavement Rehabilitation

295



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO KNIFE RIVER FOR CONSTRUCTION OF

CIP PS 24-29 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION AND APPROVE BUDGET

AMENDMENT

APPROVALS:

03-25-2021

Ange[Abarca Date

Assistant Engineer

6»(0,Q,
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

3 -25 -202{

Brad ` aylor
City Engineer

Cari Jam

Director o% -Finance

3/26/70P-1
Date

ii,)(010202(
Date

3 • Zhc • 2o24

Michael King Date

Assistant City Mana

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

296



RESOLUTION NO. 24-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO AWARD

A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO DSS COMPANY DBA KNIFE RIVER

CONSTRUCTION FOR CONSTRUCTION OF PAVEMENT REHABILITATION, CIP

PS 24-29 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, on February 12, 2024, City Council approved the creation of

Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) PS 24-29 Pavement Rehabilitation ( Project) to
correct existing road deficiencies in the Woodfield community area; and

WHEREAS, the Project will repair the deteriorated pavement on Cherry Hills

Drive, Cherry Hills Court, Kilarney Drive, and Kilarney Court; and

WHEREAS, the scope of work consists of a full - reconstruction pavement
treatment that will use the existing pavement section material as the base for the

new roadway - wearing surface; and

WHEREAS, the bid solicitation package with plans and specifications for the

construction of the Project was advertised on February 13, 2024, in accordance with

Bidding Procedures in California Public Contract Code ( PCC) 22160 and Lathrop
Municipal Code ( LMC) 2.36.060; and

WHEREAS, nine ( 9) bids were received and opened on February 29, 2024;
and

WHEREAS, upon review and evaluation of the bids, the lowest responsive and

responsible bidder for the Project was determined to be DSS Company dba Knife

River Construction ( Knife River) with a bid of $ 582,982; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting City Council award a construction contract to

Knife River for the construction of CIP PS 24-29 in the amount of $ 582,982 and

authorize a 10% construction contingency of $ 58,298 for a total cost not to exceed

641,280; and

WHEREAS, CIP PS 24-29 currently has a balance of $ 96,280, staff is also

requesting Council approve budget amendment transferring $ 545,000 from the

General Fund Street Repair Reserves ( 1010) to the CIP Project Fund ( 3310) as

follows:

Decrease Street Reserves

1010-251-03-00 $ 545,000

Increase Transfer Out

1010-9900-990-9010 $ 545,000

297



Increase Transfer In

3310-9900-393-0000

Increase Appropriation
3310-8000-420-1200

PS 24-29 $ 545,000

PS 24-29 $ 545,000

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of

Lathrop hereby approves a construction contract with Knife River for construction of

CIP PS 24-29 Pavement Rehabilitation for a cost of $ 582,982; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
hereby approves a 10% construction contingency of $ 58,298 for a total cost not to

exceed $ 641,280 for construction of the Project and authorizes staff to spend up to

this amount as necessary to accomplish the goals of the Project; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop

hereby approves a budget amendment transferring $ 545,000 from the General Fund

Street Repair Reserves ( 1010) to the CIP Project ( 3310) as detailed above.

298



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8t" day of April 2024, by the

following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

299



ATTACHMENT

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

This Contract, dated April 8th 2024, is entered into by and between the City of Lathrop,
a municipal corporation of the State of California ( City), and DSS Company dba Knife River

Construction ( Contractor), whose Taxpayer Identification Number is

For and in consideration of the following covenants, terms and conditions, City and

Contractor ( the parties) agree:

1. Term. This Contract shall commence on, and be binding on the parties on, the date of

execution of this Contract, and shall expire on the date of recordation of the Notice of

Substantial Completion, or, if no such notice is required to be filed, on the date that final

payment is made hereunder, subject to the earlier termination of this Contract.

2. General Scope of Project and Work. Construction Documents for Pavement

Rehabilitation, CIP PS 24-29 (Project). Contractor shall furnish labor, services, materials

and equipment in connection with the construction of the Project and complete the Work

in accordance with the covenants, terms and conditions of this Contract to the satisfaction

of City. The Project and Work is generally described as follows:

The scope of work includes, but is not limited to, installation of exclusive left turn lanes

on all approaches and new signal equipment with controls. The improved intersection will

provide a dedicated through lane, a combined through/right lane and a dedicated left -turn

lane on Louise Avenue north and south bounds. On McKinley Avenue, the improved
intersection will provide a combined through/right lane and a dedicated left -turn lane on

each approach. Widening and required transitions will extend from the intersection limit

lines along both frontages. The improved roadway sections will be restriped to delineate

the reconfigured lanes, shoulders, crosswalks and directional arrows.

The work shall be completed within 60 working days following issuance of Notice to

Proceed.

The Work shall be complete, and all appurtenant work, materials, and services not

expressly shown or called for in the Construction Documents which may be necessary for

the complete and proper construction of the Work in good faith shall be performed,
furnished, and installed by the Contractor as though originally specified or shown. The

Contractor will be compensated for work actual work performed in accordance with the

unit prices and provisions contained in these Construction Documents.

Base Bid Total: $582,982

3. Construction Documents. This Contract shall include the Construction Documents which

are on file with Public Works Department and are hereby incorporated by reference ( i.e.

Project Specifications, Project Plans, addenda, performance bond, labor and materials

bond, certification of insurance, workers compensation certification, and guaranty) and the

Bid Documents submitted by Knife River on February 29, 2024.

300



For the purposes of construing, interpreting and resolving inconsistencies between the

provisions of this Contract, these documents and the provisions thereof are set forth in the

order of precedence described in Article 3 of the General Conditions.

4. Compensation. In consideration of Contractor's performance of its obligations hereunder,
City shall pay to Contractor the amount set forth in Contractor's Bid in accordance with

the provisions of this Contract and upon the receipt of written invoices and all necessary

supporting documentation within the time set forth in the Construction Documents.

Contractor hereby shall not be permitted to invoice the City nor accept compensation for

work not yet complete. In no event, shall the Contractor be entitled to payment for work

not included in the approved scope of work, a written task order, or change order signed
by the City's Public Works Director prior to commencement of any work.

5. Insurance. On or before the Date of Execution, Contractor shall obtain and maintain the

policies of insurance coverage described in Section 5.2 of the General Conditions on terms

and conditions and in amounts as may be required by the City. City shall not be obligated
to take out insurance on Contractor's personal property or the personal property of any

person performing labor or services or supplying materials or equipment under the Project.
Contractor shall furnish City with the certificates of insurance and with original
endorsements affecting coverage required under this Contract on or before the Date of

Execution. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by
a person who is authorized by that insurer to bind coverage in its behalf. Proof of insurance

shall be mailed to the Project Manager to the address set forth in Section 15 of this Contract.

6. Indemnification. Contractor agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold City, its City
Council members, officers, employees, engineer, and construction manager harmless from

and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, costs, expenses, liens,
penalties, suits, or judgments, arising in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, at any time

from any injury to or death of persons or damage to property as a result of the willful or

negligent act or omission of Contractor, or which results from Contractor's noncompliance
with any Law respecting the condition, use, occupation or safety of the Project site, or any

part thereof, or which arises from Contractor's failure to do anything required under this

Contract or for doing anything which Contractor is required not to do under this Contract,
or which arises from conduct for which any Law imposes strict liability on Contractor in

the performance of or failure to perform the terms and conditions of this Contract, except
as may arise from the sole willful or negligent act or omission of City or any of its City
Council members, officers, employees. This indemnification shall extend to any and all

claims, demands, or liens made or filed by reason of any construction, renovation, or

remodeling work performed by Contractor under this Contract at any time during the term

of this Contract, or arising thereafter.

7. Assumption of Risk. Contractor agrees to voluntarily assume any and all risk of loss,
damage, or injury to the property of Contractor which may occur in, on, or about the Project
site at any time and in any manner, excepting such loss, injury, or damage as may be caused

by the sole willful or negligent act or omission of City or any of its City Council members,
officers, or employees.

8. Waiver. The acceptance of any payment or performance, or any part thereof, shall not

operate as a waiver by City of its rights under this Contract.

301



A waiver by City of any breach of any part or provision of this Contract by Contractor shall

not operate as a waiver or continuing waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any

other provision, nor shall any custom or practice which may arise between the parties in

the administration of any part or provision of this Contract be construed to waive or to

lessen the right of City to insist upon the performance of Contractor in strict compliance
with the covenants, terms and conditions of this Contract.

9. Compliance with Laws. Contractor shall comply with all Laws now in force or which may
hereafter be in force pertaining to the Project and Work and this Contract, with the

requirement of any bond or fire underwriters or other similar body now or hereafter

constituted, with any discretionary license or permit issued pursuant to any Law of any

public agency or official as well as with any provision of all recorded documents affecting
the Project site, insofar as any are required by reason of the use or occupancy of the Project
site, and with all Laws pertaining to nondiscrimination and affirmative action in

employment and hazardous materials.

DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS- COMPLIANCE MONITORING UNIT

DIR Registration.

a) Contractor and Subcontractor Compliance. Strict compliance with DIR registration
requirements pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5 is a material obligation of the

Contractor under the Contract Documents. The foregoing includes without limitation,
compliance with DIR Registration requirements at all times during performance of the

Work by the Contractor and all Subcontractors of any tier. The failure of the Contractor

and all Subcontractors of every tire to be DIR registered at all times during the performance
of the Work is the Contractor'sdefault of a material obligation of the Contractor under the

Contract Documents.

b) No Subcontractor Performance of Work Without DIR Registration. No portion of the

Work is permitted to be performed by a Subcontractor of any tier unless the Subcontractor

is a DIR Registered contractor.

c) Contractor Obligation to Verify Subcontractor DIR Registration Status. An affirmative

and on -going obligation of the Contractor under the Contract Documents is the

Contractor's verification that all Subcontractors, of all tiers, are at all times during
performance of Work in full and strict compliance with DIR Registration requirements.
The Contractor shall not permit or allow any Subcontractor of any tier to perform any Work

without the Contractor's verification that all such Subcontractors are in full and strict

compliance with DIR Registration requirements.

d) Contractor Obligation to Request Substitution of Non-DIR Registered Subcontractor. If

any Subcontractor identified in the Contractor's Subcontractor List submitted with the

Contractor's proposal for the Work is not DIR Registered at the time of opening of

proposals for the Work or if a Subcontractor's DIR registration lapses prior to or during a

Subcontractor's performance of Work, the Contractor shall request the CITY's consent to

substitute the non-DIR registered Subcontractor pursuant to Labor Code Section

1771.1(c)(3) and/ or Labor Code Section 1771.1(d).

302



Certified Payroll Records

a) Compliance with Labor Code Section 1771.4 and 1776. A material obligation of the

Contractor under the Contract Documents is: (i) the Contractor'sstrict compliance with the

requirements pursuant to Labor Code Section 1771.4 and 1776 for preparation and

submittal of Certified Payroll Records (" CPR"); and ( ii) the Contractor's enforcement of

CPR preparation and submittal for all Subcontractors of every tier.

b) Express Condition Precedent to Payment of Contact Price. Strict compliance with CPR

requirements established pursuant to Labor Code Section 1776 is an express condition

precedent to the CITY's obligation to: (i) process any request for payment of any portion
of the Contract Price; or ( ii) to disburse any portion of the Contract Price to the Contractor.

The Contractor shall demonstrate strict compliance with CPR preparation and submittal

requirements by delivery to the CITY of electronic files or hard copies of all CPR's

submitted by the Contractor and/ or Subcontractors for Work pursuant to Labor Code

Section 1771.4 and 1776 concurrently with the submittal thereof to the Labor

Commissioner. The CITY: (i) shall not be obligated to process or disburse any portion of

the Contract Price; or ( ii) shall not be deemed in default of the CITY's obligations under

the Contract Documents unless the Contractor's demonstrates strict compliance with CPR

preparation and submittal requirements.

c) PWR Monitoring and Enforcement. During the Work pursuant to Labor Code Section

1771.4(a)(4), the Department of Industrial Relations shall monitor and enforce the

obligation of the Construction and Subcontractors of every tier to pay the laborers

performing any portion of the work the PWR established for the classification of work/

labor performed.

RECORD OF WAGES PAID: INSPECTION

Pursuant to Labor Code section 1776, Contractor stipulates to the following:

a) Contractor and each subcontractor shall keep an accurate payroll record, showing the name,

address, social security number, work classification, straight time and overtime hours

worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman,
apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by him or her in connection with the

public work under the Facilities lease and Construction Provisions. Such records shall be

on forms provided by the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement or shall contain the

same information of such forms. The payroll records may consist of payroll data that are

maintained as computer records, if printouts contain the same information as the forms

provided by the division and the printouts are verified as specified in subdivision ( a) of

Labor Code section 1776.

b) The payroll records enumerated under subdivision ( a) shall be certified and shall be

available for inspection at all reasonable hours at the principal office of Contractor on the

following basis:

303



1) A certified copy of an employee's payroll record shall be made available for

inspection or furnished to such employees or his or her authorized representative
on request.

2) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision ( a) shall be made

available for inspection or furnished upon request to a representative of the CITY,
the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, and Division of Apprenticeship
Standards of the Department of Industrial Relations.

3)A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision ( a) shall be made

available upon request by the public for inspection or copies thereof. However, a

request by the public shall be made through either the CITY, the Division of

Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement. If the

requested payroll records have not been provided pursuant to paragraph ( 2), the

requesting party shall, prior to being provided the records, reimburse the costs of

preparation by Contractor, subcontractors, and the entity through which the request
was made. The public shall not be given access to such records at the principal
office of Contractor.

c) Contractor shall file a certified copy of the records enumerated in subdivision ( a) with the

entity that requested such records within ten ( 10) days after receipt of the written request.

d) Any copy of records made available for inspection as copies and furnished upon request to

the public or any public agency, by the CITY, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards,
or the division of Labor Standards Enforcement shall be marked or obliterated in such a

manner as to prevent disclosure of an individual's name, address and social security
number. The name and address of contractor awarded the contract or performing the

contract shall not be marked or obliterated.

e) Contractor shall inform the CITY of the location of the records enumerated under

subdivision ( a), including the street address, city, and county, and shall, within ( 5) working
days, provide a notice of a change of location and address.

f) In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this Article, Contractor shall have

ten ( 10) days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written notice specifying in what

respects Contractor must comply with this Article. Should noncompliance still be evident

after such 10 -day period, Contractor shall pay a penalty of One- Hundred Dollars ($ 100.00)
to the CITY for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker, until strict

compliance is effectuated. Upon the request of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards

or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, such penalties shall be withheld from the

progress payment then due.

The responsibility for compliance with this Article shall rest upon Contractor.

10. Bonds. As a condition precedent to City's obligation to pay compensation to Contractor,
and on or before the date of Execution, Contractor shall furnish to the Project Manager the

Bonds as required under the Notice to Contractors.

304



11. Representations and Warranties. In the supply of any materials and equipment and the

rendering of labor and services during the course and scope of the Project and Work,
Contractor represents and warrants:

1) Any materials and equipment which shall be used during the course and scope of

the Project and Work shall be vested in Contractor;

2) Any materials and equipment which shall be used during the course and scope of

the Project and Work shall be merchantable and fit to be used for the particular
purpose for which the materials are required;

3) Any labor and services rendered and materials and equipment used or employed
during the course and scope of the Project and Work shall be free of defects in

workmanship for a period of one ( 1) year after the recordation of the Notice of

Substantial Completion, or, if no such notice is required to be filed, on the date that

final payment is made hereunder;

4) Any manufacturer's warranty obtained by Contractor shall be obtained or shall be

deemed obtained by Contractor for and on behalf of City.

5) Any information submitted by Contractor prior to the award of Contract, or

thereafter, upon request, whether or not submitted under a continuing obligation by
the terms of the Contract to do so, is true and correct at the time such information

is submitted or made available to the City;

6) Contractor has not colluded, conspired, or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any

person in regard to the terms and conditions of Contractor's Bid, except as may be

permitted by the Notice to Contractors;

7)

8)

9)

Contractor has the power and the authority to enter into this Contract with City, that

the individual executing this Contract is duly authorized to do so by appropriate
resolution, and that this Contract shall be executed, delivered and performed
pursuant to the power and authority conferred upon the person or persons

authorized to bind Contractor;

Contractor has not made an attempt to exert undue influence with the Project
Manager or any other person who has directly contributed to City's decision to

award the Contract to Contractor;

There are no unresolved claims or disputes between Contractor and City which

would materially affect Contractor's ability to perform under the Contract;

10) Contractor has furnished and will furnish true and accurate statements, records,
reports, resolutions, certifications, and other written information as may be

requested of Contractor by City from time to time during the term of this Contract;

11) Contractor and any person performing labor and services under this Project is duly
licensed as a contractor with the State of California as required by California

Business & Professional Code Section 7028, as amended; and

305



12) Contractor has fully examined and inspected the Project site and has full knowledge
of the physical conditions of the Project site.

12. Assignment. This Contract and the performance required hereunder is personal to

Contractor, and it shall not be assigned by Contractor. Any attempted assignment shall be

null and void.

13. Claims of Contractor. All claims pertaining to extra work, additional charges, or delays
within the Contract Time or other disputes arising out of the Contract shall be submitted

by Contractor in accordance with the General Conditions.

14. Audits by City. During the term of this Contract and for a period of not less than three ( 3)
years after the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract, City shall have the right to

audit Contractor's Project -related and Work -related writings and business records, as such

terms are defined in California Evidence Code Sections 250 and 1271, as amended, during
the regular business hours of Contractor, or, if Contractor has no such hours, during the

regular business hours of City.

15. Notices. All contracts, agreements, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims,
demands, Change Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements

given by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and

served upon the other party if (1) personally served, (2) sent by the United States mail,
postage prepaid, (3) sent by private express delivery service, or (4) in the case of a facsimile

transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth below during regular business

hours of the receiving party and followed with two (2) days by delivery of a hard copy of

the material sent by facsimile transmission, in accordance with ( 1), (2) or ( 3) above.

Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and service by
facsimile transmission.

To City:

To Contractor:

Phone:

Fax:

ATTN:

City of Lathrop
City Clerk

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

209) 941-7430

FAX: (209) 941-7449

ATTN: Senior Construction Manager

306



16. Miscellaneous.

1) Bailee Disclaimer. The parties understand and agree that City does not purport to

be Contractor's bailee, and City is, therefore, not responsible for any damage to the

personal property of Contractor.

2) Consent. Whenever in this Contract the approval or consent of a party is required,
such approval or consent shall be in writing and shall be executed by a person

having the express authority to grant such approval or consent.

3) Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Contract shall be governed and

construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the State of California.

4) Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in these specifications.

5) Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any

delay or failure to perform its obligations under this Contract, which directly results

from an Act of God or an act of a superior governmental authority.

6) Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Contract and shall have no

effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Contract.

7) Incorporation of Documents. All documents constituting the Construction

Documents described in Section 3 hereof and all documents which may, from time

to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such reference

incorporated in this Contract and shall be deemed to be part of this Contract.

8) Integration. This Contract and any amendments hereto between the parties
constitute the entire contract between the parties concerning the Project and Work,
and there are no other prior oral or written contracts between the parties that are not

incorporated in this Contract.

9) Modification of Contract. This Contract shall not be modified or be binding upon

the parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

10) Provision. Any contract, covenant, condition, clause, qualification, restriction,

reservation, term or other stipulation in the Contract shall define or otherwise

control, establish, or limit the performance required or permitted or to be required
of or permitted by either party. All provisions, whether covenants or conditions,
shall be deemed to be both covenants and conditions.

11) Resolution. Contractor shall submit with its Bid a copy of any corporate or

partnership resolution or other writing, which authorizes any director, officer or

other employee or partner to act for or on behalf of Contractor or which authorizes

Contractor to enter into this Contract.

12) Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Contract is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Contract not so

affected shall remain in full force and effect.

307



13) Status of Contractor. In the exercise of rights and obligations under this Contract,
Contractor acts as an independent contractor and not as an agent or employee of

City. Contractor shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing
to the City Council members, officers or employees of City, and Contractor

expressly waives any and all claims to such rights and benefits.

14) Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Contract shall inure to the benefit

of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns of the parties.

15) Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Contract and each of its

provisions. In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be

performed shall be computed by excluding the first Day and including the last. If

the time in which an act is to be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or any Day
observed as a legal holiday by City, the time for performance shall be extended to

the following Business Day.

16) Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the parties agree

that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California

in the County of San Joaquin or in the United States District Court for the Eastern

District of California.

17) Recovery of costs. The prevailing party in any action brought to enforce the terms

of this Contract or arising out of this Contract, including the enforcement of the

indemnity provision(s), may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable

attorney's fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against the

non -prevailing party.

18) Contractor and subcontractors must comply with all applicable standards, orders,
or requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act ( 42 USC 1857(h)),
Section 508 of the Clean Water Act ( 33 USC1368), Executive Order 11738, and

Environmental Protection Agency Regulations at 40 CFR Part 15.

19) Contractors and subcontractors must comply with mandatory standards and policies
relating to the energy efficiency which are contained in the State Energy
Conservation Plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation

ACT (Public Law 94-163, 89 stat 871).

20) The Contractor shall provide access to the site for the Environmental Protection

Agency and its duly authorized representatives, and the City.

21) If during the course of construction evidence of deposit of historical or

archaeological interest is found, the Contractor shall cease operation affecting the

find and shall notify the City, who shall notify the EPA and the State Historic

Preservation Officer. No further disturbance of the deposits shall ensue until the

Contractor has been notified by the City that construction may proceed. The City
will issue a notice to proceed only after the state official has surveyed the find and

made a determination to the EPA and the City.

308



Compensation to the contractor, if any, for lost time or changes in construction to

avoid the find, shall be determined in accordance with changed conditions or

change order provisions of the Construction Documents.

22) Notice to Proceed. Prior to commencing work under this Contract,
CONTRACTOR shall receive a written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice

to Proceed shall not be issued until all necessary bonds and insurances have been

received. City shall not be obligated to pay CONTRACTOR for any services prior
to issuance of the Notice to proceed.

23) Signatures. The individuals executing this Contract represent and warrant that they
have the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this

Contract on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONTRACTOR and the

CITY. This Contract shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

24) This project is a public works project: Contractor shall comply with requirements
of California Labor Code § 1700 and following, and prevailing wages shall be paid
for work performed on this project.

25) The statutory provisions for penalties for failing to comply with the State of

California wage and labor laws be enforced, as well as that for failing to pay

prevailing wages.

EXHIBITS:

EXHIBIT A: Contractor's Submitted Bid Item List

Certification of insurance, performance and payment bonds, and worker's

compensation certification shall be furnished to the City by the Contractor after
City Council's approval with resolution.

309



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first

above stated in Lathrop, California.

CONTRACTOR:

By:

Name:

Title:

CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL:

By:
Michael King, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED:

By:
Stephen J. Salvatore, City Manager

310



EXH B1T r

SECTION 00300

PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

CIP PS 24-29

BID PROPOSAL FORMS

PAVEMENT REHABILITATION, CIP PS 24-29

BID SCHEDULE

BID

ITEM
DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNITS

UNIT

PRICE

EXTENDED

TOTAL

1 Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance 1
LS 1431Iaf f31 /co. -

2 Traffic Control 1
LS

1(0129d-
1.7ct) 114,

6,2q0-
tcd3 Lower and Raise Manhole Covers 8

EA

4 Lower and Raise Valve Covers 8
EA

ia? 
r

Ir
5 Lower and Raise Monument Covers 2

EA

itZ'
r

2111a2

7.3i ?IDS6 Grind and Stockpile 2" AC Pavement 370
CY

3
d

7 Excavate Road Bed ( 11" Depth) 2,030
CY

50
r

04 cc t/

8
Remove and Replace PCC ADA Curb

Ramps
8

EA

Q t91 1r
9 Place Aggregate Base 2,908

TONS
L(7 f 3(9j 7.

10 Place HMA ® 4" Depth / 2 Lifts 1,500
TONS

101.
1 _n

S21 LICtr
I 1 Thermoplastic Striping - Caltrans

Standard Detail 22
200

LF r

j
fir , •

iJ o
12

Thermoplastic Striping - 12" White

Stop Bar
80

LF

660 5Zo
r

13 Thermoplastic Markings ( STOP) 4
EA

2(o5+ 10&o
r

14 Install Blue RPM ® Fire Hydrant 4
EA

710.50 it 7

TOTAL BASE BID: - C-621 i ez

TOTAL BASE BID IN WORDS: FIU thiNai Q eikerfTWO mism Nh IliANDRED

eitliTY-Twt Oot1.412$ 4N0 ! EQo C,

00300-2

311



PAGE LEFT

INTENTIONALLY

BLANK

312



ITEM 4.15

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:

RECOMMENDATION:

CREATE CIP GG 24-33 SCADA INTEGRATION

AND MAINTENANCE, RATIFY THE

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH

MCC CONTROLS LLC, DBA PRIMEX AND

APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENTS

Adopt a Resolution Creating CIP GG 24-33

SCADA Integration and Maintenance, Ratify
the Professional Service Agreement with MCC

Controls LLC, dba Primex and, Approve Related

Budget Amendments

SUMMARY:

The City of Lathrop's Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition ( SCADA) System
monitors and controls the City's common infrastructure in the following utility groups:
Water system, Storm Water system, Wastewater system, and Recycled Water system

equipment. This plethora of historical and new stations of various types ensure the

entire City has access to clean water and wastewater management while preventing
the City from flooding. These stations require maintenance, and the equipment
requires replacement or upgrading on a routine basis to ensure proper functionality.
To ensure the functionality and maintenance required for these stations is met, staff

requests that City Council create Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) GG 24-33 SCADA

Integration and Maintenance.

Primex has been an integral partner in integrating the SCADA systems around the

City for over a decade. The collaboration with Primex has evolved into a professional
service category, characterized by their skilled knowledge, and certified products that

offer exclusive solutions tailored to the City's SCADA systems and security -compliant
needs. This collaboration has been instrumental in establishing a consistent approach
to technology and software development, ensuring a high level of expertise and

reliability in these areas.

In addition to addressing the City's immediate security needs, Primex has played a

pivotal role in the development of critical component infrastructure that is now

integral to all our water systems. As the City's network expands and the City's
infrastructure requirements continue to grow, it becomes increasingly crucial to

maintain a unified and secure approach.

It has become imperative to replace the existing equipment at the 3 Street and Harlan

storm station due to its end - of -life status. Bringing this station into the City's network

is crucial for operators to effectively monitor its functions, adjust flows, and promptly
respond to any alerts regarding issues with flows, pumps, or other equipment. This

proactive measure is essential to mitigate the risk of flooding in the area. Additionally,
integrating these stations into our network will ensure compliance with the

313



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CIP GG 24-33 SCADA INTEGRATION AND MAINTENANCE, RATIFY

THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH MCC CONTROLS LLC, DBA

PRIMEX AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

Department of Homeland Security ( DHS) safety and security requirements by
allowing implementation of site monitoring surveillance. This comprehensive
approach not only enhances operational efficiency, reduces costs, but also ensures

the safety and security of the area.

Tonight, staff is requesting City Council approve the creation of CIP GG 24-33 SCADA

integration with an initial budget of $ 150,000 for the first year and a budget of

250,000 for fiscal year 24-25, ratify the Professional Services Agreement with

Primex in the amount of $52,262.25 and approve the related budget amendment.

BACKGROUND:

The City has a plethora of historical and new water stations of various types to ensure

the entire City has access to clean water and wastewater management while

preventing the City from flooding. The City of Lathrop' s Water system, Storm Water

system, Wastewater system, and Recycled Water system are monitored and

controlled by the City's SCADA equipment. These various water stations that utilize

this equipment recycle water, manage rainwater flooding and move various types of

water throughout the City. SCADA equipment provides real-time data, the ability to

control these stations remotely and has played an integral part in the expansion of

residential areas in Lathrop and the prevention of flooding throughout the City.

It has become imperative to replace the existing equipment at the 3 Street and Harlan

storm station due to its end - of -life status. Bringing this station into the City's network

is crucial for operators to effectively monitor its functions, adjust flows, and promptly
respond to any alerts regarding issues with flows, pumps, or other equipment. This

proactive measure is essential to mitigate the risk of flooding in the area. Additionally,
integrating these stations into our network will enable us to comply with the

Department of Homeland Security ( DHS) requirements by implementing surveillance

systems for site monitoring. This comprehensive approach not only enhances

operational efficiency, reduces costs, but also ensures the safety and security of the

area.

The City Manager signed a Professional Services Agreement with Primex for the

replacement of the PLC and OIT of the J street and Harlan storm drain lift station in

March 2024 so that the site would be integrated into the City's network. This allows
staff to be notified immediately in the event of vandalism or other potential threats

to the City's water system at this site. Having the capability to receive immediate

notifications from this site gives staff the ability to troubleshoot and rectify any issues

before damage to the system.

314



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CIP GG 24-33 SCADA INTEGRATION AND MAINTENANCE, RATIFY

THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH MCC CONTROLS LLC, DBA

The collaboration with Primex has evolved into a professional service category,
characterized by their skilled knowledge, and certified products that offer exclusive

solutions tailored to the City's SCADA Systems and security -compliant needs. This

collaboration has been instrumental in establishing a consistent approach to

technology and software development, ensuring a high level of expertise and

reliability in these areas. Therefore, the claimed bidding exemption for the

Professional Services Agreement with Primex for the integration of the 3 street and

Harlan storm pump station is pursuant to Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC) 2.36.110(a).

Tonight, staff is requesting City Council approve the creation of CIP GG 24-33 SCADA

Integration and maintenance with an initial budget of $ 150,000 for the fiscal year
23-24 and a budget of $250,000 for fiscal year 24-25, ratify the Professional Services

Agreement for the replacement of the OIT and PLC for ) street and Harlan storm drain

lift station in the amount of $52,262.25 and approve the related budget amendment.

The expense of $52,262.25 for the 3 street and Harlan storm drain life station will be

paid from the budget for the fiscal year 23-24 of $ 150,000.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The SCADA system allows staff to remotely control and monitor the City's water

systems to keep the City from flooding and moves water throughout the City to be

recycled or stored. SCADA integration for the various water stations throughout the

City is critical to the functionality of the water stations and the prevention of flooding.
This system allows staff to be notified immediately of any issues with the system so

they may rectify the issue before damage to the water system occurs.

315



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CIP GG 24-33 SCADA INTEGRATION AND MAINTENANCE, RATIFY

THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH MCC CONTROLS LLC, DBA

PRIMEX AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

FISCAL IMPACT:

The proposed project budget is $ 150,000 for the fiscal year 23-24 and $ 250,000 for

fiscal year 24-25. The current fund balance available in the CIP GG 24-33 budget will

not cover the cost of the Professional Services and equipment required. Staff

recommends a budget amendment of $ 150,000 for the fiscal year 23-24 and

250,000 for fiscal year 24-25 subsidized by the following funds to cover the cost of

professional services and equipment. Staff is requesting Council approve the

following budget amendment:

Fiscal Year 2023-2024

Increase Transfer Out

1010-9900-393-0000

Increase Transfer In

3010-9900-393-0000 GG 24-33

Increase Appropriation
3010-8000-420-7200 GG 24-33

Fiscal Year 2024-2025

150,000

150,000

150,000

Increase Transfer Out

2500-9900-990-9010 $ 10,639
2510-9900-990-9010 $ 37,234
2530-9900-990-9010 $ 5,319
2560-9900-990-9010 $ 5,318
2570-9900-990-9010 $ 26,596
2670-9900-990-9010 $ 10,639
2680-9900-990-9010 $ 5,319
5620-9900-990-9010 $ 63,830
6010-9900-990-9010 $ 37,234
6080-9900-990-9010 $ 47,872

Increase Transfer In

3010-9900-393-0000 GG 24-33 $ 250,000

Increase Appropriation
3010-8000-420-7200 GG 24-33 $ 250,000

316



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 5

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CIP GG 24-33 SCADA INTEGRATION AND MAINTENANCE, RATIFY

THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH MCC CONTROLS LLC, DBA

PRIMEX AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

ATTACHMENT:

A. Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop to Create CIP GG 24-33

SCADA Integration and Maintenance, Ratify the Professional Services

Agreement with MCC Controls LLC, dba Primex and Approve Related Budget
Amendments.

B. Professional Services Agreement with MCC Controls LLC, dba Primex for

Replacement of OIT and PLC for 3 street and Harlan Sewer Pump Station

317



Cari Jj es

Direc ,' r of Finance

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 6

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CIP GG 24-33 SCADA INTEGRATION AND MAINTENANCE, RATIFY

THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH MCC CONTROLS LLC, DBA

PRIMEX AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

APPROVALS:

04-)_,O
nandes Date

rector Information Systems

Date

3. Zce• ZoZ'f
Michael King Date

Assistant City Manger

3•L‘cZGzi
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

3.28 -ZIP
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

318



RESOLUTION NO. 24 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO CREATE

CIP GG 24-33 SCADA INTEGRATION AND MAINTENANCE, RATIFY THE

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH MCC CONTROLS LLC, DBA

PRIMEX AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENTS

WHEREAS, the City has many water stations of various types to ensure the

entire City has access to clean water and wastewater management while preventing
the City from flooding; and

WHEREAS, SCADA equipment is utilized to manage and control the various

water stations and pumps remotely throughout the City; and

WHEREAS, it has become imperative to replace the existing SCADA

equipment at the 3 Street and Harlan storm station due to its end -of -life status; and

WHEREAS, bringing this station into our network is crucial for operators to

effectively monitor its functions, adjust flows, and promptly respond to any alerts

regarding issues with flows, pumps, or other equipment; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager signed a Professional Services Agreement with

Primex for the replacement of the PLC and OIT of the 3 street and Harlan storm drain

lift station in March 2024, so that the site would be integrated into the City's network;
and

WHEREAS, MCC Controls dba Primex offers a professional services,
characterized by skilled knowledge of the City's SCADA system and customized

products that offer exclusive solutions tailored to the City's SCADA Systems and

security -compliant needs.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of

Lathrop does hereby Create CIP GG 24-33 SCADA Integration and Maintenance,
Ratify the City Managers Approval of the Professional Services Agreement with MCC

Controls LLC, dba Primex and Approve Related Budget Amendment below.

Fiscal Year 2023-2024

Increase Transfer Out

1010-9900-393-0000

Increase Transfer In

3010-9900-393-0000 GG 24-33

Increase Appropriation
3010-8000-420-7200 GG 24-33

150,000

150,000

150,000

319



Fiscal Year 2024-2025

Increase Transfer Out

2500-9900-990-9010 $ 10,639
2510-9900-990-9010 $ 37,234
2530-9900-990-9010 $ 5,319
2560-9900-990-9010 $ 5,318
2570-9900-990-9010 $ 26,596
2670-9900-990-9010 $ 10,639
2680-9900-990-9010 $ 5,319
5620-9900-990-9010 $ 63,830
6010-9900-990-9010 $ 37,234
6080-9900-990-9010 $ 47,872

Increase Transfer In

3010-9900-393-0000 GG 24-33 $ 250,000
Increase Appropriation
3010-8000-420-7200 GG 24-33 $ 250,000

320



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 8, 2024, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CIP GG 24-33 SCADA INTEGRATION AND MAINTENANCE, RATIFY

THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH MCC CONTROLS LLC, DBA

PRIMEX AND, APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

FISCAL IMPACT:

The proposed project budget is $ 150,000 for the fiscal year 23-24 and $ 250,000 for

fiscal year 24-25. The current fund balance available in the CIP GG 24-33 budget will

not cover the cost of the Professional Services and equipment required. Staff

recommends a budget amendment of $ 150,000 for the fiscal year 23-24 and

250,000 for fiscal year 24-25 subsidized by the following funds to cover the cost of

professional services and equipment. Staff is requesting Council approve the

following budget amendment:

Fiscal Year 2023-2024

Increase Transfer Out

1010-9900-393-0000

Increase Transfer In

3010-9900-393-0000 GG 24-33

Increase Appropriation
3010-8000-420-7200 GG 24-33

Fiscal Year 2024-2025

150,000

150,000

150,000

Increase Transfer Out

2500-9900-990-9010 $ 10,639
2510-9900-990-9010 $ 37,234
2530-9900-990-9010 $ 5,319
2560-9900-990-9010 $ 5,318
2570-9900-990-9010 $ 26,596
2670-9900-990-9010 $ 10,639
2680-9900-990-9010 $ 5,319
5620-9900-990-9010 $ 63,830
6010-9900-990-9010 $ 37,234
6080-9900-990-9010 $ 47,872

Increase Transfer In

3010-9900-393-0000 GG 24-33 $ 250,000

Increase Appropriation
3010-8000-420-7200 GG 24-33 $ 250,000

321



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8th day of April 2024, by the

following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

322



Allik lirCity of

Office of the City Manager

March 2S, 2024

Attachment B

390 Towne Centre Dr. - Lathrop, CA 95330

Phone ( 209) 941-7220 - fax (209) 941-7248

www.ci.lathrop.ca.us

NOTICE TO PROCEED

MCC Controls LLC dba Primex

Michael Anderson

859 Cotting Ct. Ste. G

Vacaville, CA 95688

Dear Mr. Anderson:

Enclosed please find your original executed agreement to replace the PLC and OIT a the

J Street Storm Drain Lift Station. This is your Notice to Proceed to the attached

agreement.

Should you have any questions regarding the project, please contact Tony Fernandes at

209) 941-7349, the staff member directly involved with this project.

Sincerely,

Stephen J. Salvatore

City Manager

Copy: Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

Project File

323



DocuSign Envelope ID: 53915F3E-A72D-4CA7-8120-1 CC959B888F3

CITY OF LATHROP PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND MCC CONTROLS LLC DBA

PRIMEX

TO PROVIDE REPLACEMENT OF THE PLC AND OIT AT THE J

STREET STORM DRAIN LIFT STATION

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this 7' day of March 2024, is

made and entered into by and between MCC Controls LLC dba Primex

CONSULTANT") and the CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal corporation
CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent
to perform the professional services to provide the replacement of the programmable
logic controller and the operator interface terminal as required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT was selected by CITY pursuant to said qualifications;
and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Services as

hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1) Scope of Service.

CONSULTANT agrees to provide professional services to provide the

replacement of the programmable logic controller and the operator interface

terminal in accordance with the scope of work submitted by the CONSULTANT,
attached as Exhibit " A" and incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT

agrees to diligently perform these services in accordance with the standards of

its profession and CITY'S satisfaction.

2) Compensation.

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT a sum not to exceed $ 52,262.25 as

described in Exhibit " A".

CONSULTANT shall be paid within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of billings containing
all information contained in Paragraph 5 below. In no event shall CONSULTANT

be entitled to compensation for work not included in Exhibit " A", unless a written

change order or authorization describing the extra work and payment terms has
been executed by CITY's Authorized Representative prior to the commencement

of the work.

324



DocuSign Envelope ID: 53915F3E-A72D-4CA7-B120-1CC959B888F3

CITY OF LATHROP — MCC CONTROLS LLC DBA PRIMEX

TO PROVIDE THE REPLACEMENT OF THE PLC AND OIT AT J STREET STORM
DRAIN LIFT STATION

3) Effective Date and Term.

This agreement shall become effective on the signature date of the City Manager
and CONSULTANT has been notified in writing as identified in section ( 18), and it

shall terminate no later than June 30, 2024.

4) Independent Contractor Status.

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while

engaged in carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this

Agreement, is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.

CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to represent, at any time or in any manner,

that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5) Billings.

CONSULTANT'S bills shall include date, date due, a list of all tasks performed by
deliverable, a total amount due, the amounts previously billed, the net amount due

on the invoice, and the balance remaining on the agreement and the

CONSULTANT'S signature. Except as specifically authorized by CITY,
CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate services performed by more than

one person. In no event shall CONSULTANT submit any billing for an amount in

excess of the maximum amount of compensation provided in section ( 2) for listed

services or for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a properly executed

change order.

6) Advice and Status Reporting.

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all

significant developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and

shall furnish to CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitor

the performance of this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall clarify with the CITY any
details of the design that are not specifically understood.

7) Assignment of Personnel.

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services

pursuant to this Agreement. If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person

assigned to the work called for under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to

do so immediately, regardless of the reason, or the lack of a reason, according to

the CITY'S request.

Page 2

325



DocuSign Envelope ID: 53915F3E-A72D-4CA7-8120-1CC959B888F3

CITY OF LATHROP — MCC CONTROLS LLC DBA PRIMEX

TO PROVIDE THE REPLACEMENT OF THE PLC AND OIT AT J STREET STORM

DRAIN LIFT STATION

The services shall be performed by, or under the direct supervision,
CONSULTANT's Authorized Representative: Max Hanson

CONSULTANT shall not replace its Authorized Representatives without the prior
written approval by the CITY.

8) Assignment and Subcontracting.

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for

entering into this Agreement was, and is, the professional reputation and

competence of CONSULTANT. Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein

may be assigned by CONSULTANT without the prior written approval of CITY'S

authorized representative. CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the

performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than the subcontractors

noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY'S authorized

representative.

9) Insurance.

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this

Agreement, CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for

the duration of the Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the

CITY the insurance specified in subsections ( a) through ( c) below with insurers

and under forms of insurance satisfactory in all respects to the CITY.

CONSULTANT shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any

subcontract until all insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been

obtained for the subcontractor. Verification of this insurance shall be submitted

and made part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a) Workers' Compensation. CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT'S

sole cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation
Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for any and all persons

employed directly or indirectly by CONSULTANT. Said Statutory
Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability
Insurance shall be provided with limits of not less than one million

dollars. In the alternative, CONSULTANT may rely on a self-

insurance program to meet these requirements provided that the

program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the

California Labor Code. The insurer, if insurance is provided, or the

CONSULTANT, if a program of self-insurance is provided, shall

waive all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from

work performed under this Agreement.

Page 3

326



DocuSign Envelope ID: 53915F3E-A72D-4CA7-8120-1CC959B888F3

CITY OF LATHROP — MCC CONTROLS LLC DBA PRIMEX

TO PROVIDE THE REPLACEMENT OF THE PLC AND OIT AT J STREET STORM

DRAIN LIFT STATION

b) Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT'S own cost and expense, shall

maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance for

the period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less than one

million dollars per occurrence, combined single limit coverage for

risks associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement.
If a Commercial General Liability Insurance or an Automobile Liability
form or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to be

performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall

be at least twice the required occurrence limit. Such coverage shall
include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising
from bodily and personal injury, including death resulting there from,
and damage to property resulting from activities contemplated under

this Agreement, including the use of owned and non -owned

automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001 ( ed. 11/88)
and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001

ed. 12/90) Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or

added as an endorsement to the policy:

i) CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to

be covered as insured with respect to each of the following:
liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of

CONSULTANT, including the insider's general supervision of

CONSULTANT; products and completed operations of

CONSULTANT; premises owned, occupied or used by
CONSULTANT. The coverage shall contain no special
limitations on the scope of protection afforded to CITY, its
officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii) The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident

basis, and not on a claims made basis.

iii) An endorsement must state that coverage is primary
insurance and that no other insurance affected by the CITY

will be called upon to contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv) Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting
provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to

CITY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

Page 4

327



DocuSign Envelope ID: 53915F3E-A72D-4CA7-B120-1CC959B888F3

CITY OF LATHROP — MCC CONTROLS LLC DBA PRIMEX

TO PROVIDE THE REPLACEMENT OF THE PLC AND OIT AT J STREET STORM
DRAIN LIFT STATION

v) Insurance is to be placed with California -admitted insurers

with a Best's rating of no less than A: VII.

vi) Notice of cancellation or non - renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days prior to such change.

c) Deductibles and Self -Insured Retentions. CONSULTANT shall

disclose the self -insured retentions and deductibles before beginning
any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement.
During the period covered by this Agreement, upon express written

authorization of the CITY's authorized representative,
CONSULTANT may increase such deductibles or self -insured

retentions with respect to CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and

volunteers. The CITY's authorized representative may condition

approval of an increase in deductible or self -insured retention levels

upon a requirement that CONSULTANT procure a bond

guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim

administration, and defense expenses that is satisfactory in all

respects to each of them.

d) Notice of Reduction in Coverage. In the event that any coverage

required under subsections ( a), (b), or ( c) of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other

manner, CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at

CONSULTANT'S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later

than five days after CONSULTANT is notified of the change in

coverage.

e) In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT

fails to provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, CITY

may, at its sole option:

i) Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of

the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under

the Agreement;

ii) Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or

withhold any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT

hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until

CONSULTANT demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

Page 5

328



DocuSign Envelope ID: 53915F3E-A72D-4CA7-8120-1CC959B888F3

CITY OF LATHROP — MCC CONTROLS LLC DBA PRIMEX

TO PROVIDE THE REPLACEMENT OF THE PLC AND OIT AT J STREET STORM

DRAIN LIFT STATION

Hi) Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to

other remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for

CONSULTANT'S breach.

10) Indemnification - CONSULTANT'SResponsibility.

As to the CONSULTANT'Swork hereunder, it is understood and agreed that (a)
CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, that (b)
CITY relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a

skillful and professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform.

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate
as a release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the

work performed. It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is

apprised of the scope of the work to be performed under this Agreement and

CONSULTANT agrees that said work can and shall be performed in a fully
competent manner in accordance with the standard of care applicable to

CONSULTANT'S profession.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, it officers, employees,
agents, and volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims,
suits, actions, damages, and causes of action arising out of any personal injury,
bodily injury, loss of life, or damage to property, or any violation of any federal,
state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct

or negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its employees, subcontractors,
or agents, or on account of the performance or character of this work, except for

any such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY, its

officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. It is understood that the duty of

CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set

forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code. Acceptance of insurance

certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve

CONSULTANT from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.

This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply whether or not such

insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any of such

damages or claims for damages.

Page 6

329



DocuSign Envelope ID: 53915F3E-A72D-4CA7-B120-1CC959B888F3

CITY OF LATHROP — MCC CONTROLS LLC DBA PRIMEX

TO PROVIDE THE REPLACEMENT OF THE PLC AND OIT AT J STREET STORM
DRAIN LIFT STATION

11) Licenses.

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration,
is required of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, or subcontractors by federal

or state law, CONSULTANT warrants that such license has been obtained, is valid

and in good standing, and CONSULTANT shall keep it in effect at all times during
the term of this Agreement, and that any applicable bond has been posted in

accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

12) Business Licenses.

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until

all Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

13) Termination.

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement upon 30 days written

notification to the other party. In the event of termination, the CONSULTANT shall

be entitled to compensation for services performed to the effective date of

termination; provided, however, that the CITY may condition payment of such

compensation upon CONSULTANT'S delivery to the CITY of any or all documents,

photographs, computer software, video and audio tapes, and other materials

provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by or for CONSULTANT or the CITY in

connection with this Agreement.

14) Funding.

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in

subsequent years is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the

appropriations limits of Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the

Council may determine not to fund this agreement in subsequent years.

15) Notices.

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change
Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given
by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and

served upon the other party if (1) personally served, (2) sent by the United States

mail, postage prepaid, (3) sent by private express delivery service, or ( 4) in the

case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth

below during regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two

2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile transmission.

Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and service

by facsimile transmission.

Page 7

330



DocuSign Envelope ID: 53915F3E-A72D-4CA7-B120-1CC959B888F3

CITY OF LATHROP — MCC CONTROLS LLC DBA PRIMEX

TO PROVIDE THE REPLACEMENT OF THE PLC AND OIT AT J STREET STORM
DRAIN LIFT STATION

To City:

Copy to:

City of Lathrop
City Clerk

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

City of Lathrop
Information Systems Department
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Phone: (209) 941-7430

FAX: (209) 941-7449

To Consultant: MCC Controls LLC dba Primex

859 Cotting Ct. Ste. G

Vacaville, CA 95688

16) Miscellaneous.

a) Consent. Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a

party is required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and

shall be executed by a person having the express authority to grant
such approval or consent.

b) Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be

governed and construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the

State of California.

c) Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in these

specifications.

d) Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on

account of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this

Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God or an act of a

superior governmental authority.

f) Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement
and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of

any part of this Agreement.

Page 8

331



DocuSign Envelope ID: 53915F3E-A72D-4CA7-8120-1CC959B888F3

CITY OF LATHROP — MCC CONTROLS LLC DBA PRIMEX

TO PROVIDE THE REPLACEMENT OF THE PLC AND OIT AT J STREET STORM

DRAIN LIFT STATION

g)

g)

Incorporation of Documents. All documents constituting the

Agreement documents described in Section 1 and Section 2 hereof

and all documents which may, from time to time, be referred to in any

duly executed amendment hereto are by such reference

incorporated in the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this

Agreement.

Integration. This Agreement and any amendments hereto between

the parties constitute the entire Agreement between the parties
concerning the Project and Work; there are no other prior oral or

written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in

this Agreement.

h) Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or

be binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in

writing and signed by the parties.

i) Provision. Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement
shall define or otherwise control, establish or limit the performance
required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either party.
All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to

be both covenants and conditions.

j) Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that

any provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the

provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force

and effect.

k) Status of CONSULTANT. In the exercise of rights and obligations
under this Agreement, CONSULTANT acts as an independent
contractor and not as an agent or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT

shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing
to the City Council members, officers or employees of CITY, and

CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and

benefits.

I) Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall

inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors

and assigns of the parties.

m) Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and

each of its provisions. In the calculation of time hereunder, the time

in which an act is to be performed shall be computed by excluding
the first Day and including the last. If the time in which an act is to

Page 9

332



DocuSign Envelope ID: 53915F3E-A72D-4CA7-8120-1CC959B888F3

CITY OF LATHROP — MCC CONTROLS LLC DBA PRIMEX

TO PROVIDE THE REPLACEMENT OF THE PLC AND OIT AT J STREET STORM
DRAIN LIFT STATION

be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day observed as

a legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance shall be extended

to the following Business Day.

n) Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder,
the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively
in the state courts of California in the County of San Joaquin or in the

United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

o) Recovery of Costs. The prevailing party in any action brought to
enforce the terms of this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement
may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney's
fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against
the non -prevailing party.

17) General Contractor Responsibilities.

Neither the professional activities of CONSULTANT, nor the presence of

CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT'S sub -consultants shall relieve the Consultant

of its obligations, duties and responsibilities.

CITY agrees that the CITY, CONSULTANT and its sub -consultants shall be

indemnified by the General Contractor and shall be made additional insured under

the General Contractor' general liability insurance policy and that a Waiver of

Subrogation in favor of CONSULTANT will be provided under the General

Contractor's Workers Compensation policy. CITY will require General Contractor

to provide evidence of such insurance to CITY and CONSULTANT prior to General

Contractor beginning work on the project.

18) Notice to Proceed.

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a

written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued

until all necessary bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be

obligated to pay CONSULTANT for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to

Proceed.

19) Signatures.

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the

right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this

Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the

CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 10

333



DocuSign Envelope ID: 53915F3E-A72D-4CA7-B120-1CC959B888F3

CITY OF LATHROP — MCC CONTROLS LLC DBA PRIMEX

TO PROVIDE THE REPLACEMENT OF THE PLC AND OIT AT J STREET STORM
DRAIN LIFT STATION

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

Salvador Navarrete

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop

Approved by:

CONSULTANT:

DocuSigned by:

FL4' & oua dt,S
ic2oDrJJ1D1r47o...

Tony Fernandes

Information Systems Director

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Steph . Salvatore

City Manager

Z- Z..- to

Date

MCC Controls LLC dba Primex

859 Cotting Ct. Ste. G

Vacaville, CA 95688

Fed ID #: 81-1611115

Business License #: 40633

DocuSigned by:

ODAea7DC.,norwa,e...

Signature

Michael Anderson

2/22/2024

Date

Zg • 
Date

2/22/2024

Date

Software Eng

Name Title

Page 11

334



hilL PRIMEX.
MCC Controls LLC DBA PRIMEX

859 Cotting Ct. Ste G

Vacaville, CA 95688

Contractor's License: 1016640

DIR Registration No.: 1000043535

Date: 2/1/2024

To: City of Lathrop
Attention: Tony Fernandes

From: Michael Anderson

PRIMEX Quote # 240201MA01

Project: J Street SDLS Controls

Task: J Street SDLS PLC and OIT Replacement
Terms: LUMP SUM

This proposal details all materials and services we intend to provide for the above referenced project.
Be sure to reference General Notes following the scope listing.

This proposal expires 45 days after the date noted above.

Phone 707.449.0341

Scope of Work

Item # Qty. Description Line Item Price

1 Lot PLC Hardware $ 6,728.28
PLC Processor

Rack

32 Pt DI/DO Card

Power Supply
8 Ch Analog Input Card

8 Ch Analog Output Card

Wiring harnesses

Misc. Wires, TB, labels, etc.

2 Lot OIT Hardware/Software $ 12,355.52

Program new City standard OIT for site

Remove existing display and install new

Field test new display for operation

3 Lot Engineering Services $ 32,231.50

Updated PLC drawings

Update original project drawings
Delivered to City in PDF

Rewrite existing program for M340 platform
Update PLC, OIT, & SCADA programming to current Lathrop standards:

Configure for Direct Comms

Alarm setpoints, enable/disable, and delays available through SCADA

Updates to SCADA as required to be consistent with City standards

On -site testing & commissioning

The total price for the scope of work above is:

Subtotal $ 51,315.30

Tax $ 946.95

52,262.25

General Notes:

1. Prices quoted above include sales tax and travel to the jobsite.
2. Terms and Conditions of sale: Upon PRIMEX approval of customer credit, PRIMEX will extend 30 -day payment terms on invoices for deliverables provided per this scope of

work. Deliverables are FOB — PRIMEX Vacaville, CA, with freight allowed ( unless specifically noted otherwise in this proposal). Customer may accept this proposal by
signature here -on, or by separate purchase order made out to MCC Controls LLC DBA PRIMEX.

Please call or email with any questions.

Sincerely,

Michael Anderson

www.primexcontrols.com 1 of 1

335



PAGE LEFT

INTENTIONALLY

BLANK

336



ITEM 5.1

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO

CONSIDER ADOPTING THE LATHROP ACTIVE

TRANSPORTATION PLAN, CIP PS 22-17

RECOMMENDATION: Council to Consider the Following:

CEQA STATUS:

1. Hold a Public Hearing; and

2. Adopt Resolution Certifying and Adopting
the Lathrop Active Transportation Plan, CIP

PS 22-17

The Project is Exempt from further Environmental

Review Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section

21083.3 and California Environmental Quality Act

CEQA) Guidelines Section 15183

SUMMARY:

The Lathrop Active Transportation Plan ( ATP) Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) PS

22-17 (Project) was created to identify a network of bicycle and pedestrian facilities

that improve safety and mobility. The ATP provides a strategy to develop citywide
connectivity through walking and biking between residential neighborhoods, schools,
transit, and job centers.

On November 15, 2022, City Council approved a professional engineering consulting
services with GHD, Inc. (GHD) to prepare the ATP. The planning process engaged the

public in developing goals, policies, and programs to improve walking and biking
conditions within the community. The plan evaluated all forms of non - vehicular

transportation by reviewing the existing facilities, identifying deficiencies, developing
and prioritizing potential projects, holding public meetings and receiving public
comments.

On March 1SY, 2024, GHD and the City issued a Draft Lathrop Active Transportation
Plan to review and provide comments for a 30 -day period. All comments received

during the circulation period were reviewed & addressed and are included in the final

Lathrop Active Transportation Plan ( Attachment B).

Staff is requesting that City Council hold a public hearing, consider all information

and public testimony and, if determined to be appropriate, adopt a resolution

approving and certifying the Lathrop Active Transportation Plan.

337



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER ADOPTING THE

LATHROP ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN, CIP PS 22-17

BACKGROUND:

On September 12, 2022, City Council created the Lathrop Active Transportation Plan,
CIP PS 22-17 to update the adopted 1995 Bicycle Master Plan and include all forms

of non -vehicular transportation. The ATP can present a focused, achievable action

plan for improvements to biking and walking facilities, and provide both short-term

priority projects and long-term improvements. On November 14, 2022, City Council

awarded a professional services agreement to GHD for preparation of the ATP.

The Project initiated in January 2023 with collection and analysis of existing citywide
multimodal transportation data. Through a community engagement plan, GHD

detailed outreach steps, activities and efforts needed to provide project information

to residents. The City and GHD held public workshops and pop-up events where the

community had the opportunity to provide feedback to the pedestrian and bicycle
network. A project website was generated and residents were able to view interactive

maps and take surveys on bike and pedestrian enhancements.

With feedback and recommendations received, GHD drafted the ATP that was

circulated for public review from March 1, 2024 to April 1, 2024. The draft ATP

included maps, tables, graphics, and a project summary evaluating all forms of non -

vehicular transportation. All comments received during the circulation period were

reviewed and addressed by the City and incorporated within the Final ATP.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff requests that City Council hold a public hearing, consider all information and

public testimony and, if determined to be appropriate, adopt a resolution certifying
and adopting the Final Lathrop Active Transportation Plan.

CEQA STATUS:

The City finds that the Project is exempt from further environmental review pursuant
to Public Resources Code Section 21083.3 and California Environmental Quality Act

CEQA) Guidelines Section 15183.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The City has been allocated funding by the Active Transportation Program through
the San Joaquin Council of Governments ( SJCOG) to fund ( 90%) of the Professional

Consulting Services Agreement with GHD. Sufficient funds ( 10%) have been included

in the adopted fiscal year 2023-24 budget under CIP PS 22-17 to complement the

agreement with GHD and prepare the ATP. No fiscal impact is anticipated.

338



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER ADOPTING THE

LATHROP ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN, CIP PS 22-17

ATTACHMENTS:

A. Resolution Certifying and Adopting the Lathrop Active Transportation Plan,
CIP PS 22-17

B. Lathrop Active Transportation Plan, CIP PS 22-17 (Dated, January 2024)

339



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER ADOPTING THE

LATHROP ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN, CIP PS 22-17

APPROVALS:

03 - 25""- O2Y

Angel Abarca Date

Assistant Engineer

Brad T'Ior
City Engineer

Cari James

Director of finance

3/1z6-1,14
Date

31-02d02az`71
Date

3 • 71 ZOv.j
Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

3-2 7 -%oLy
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Stepp' Salvatore

City Manager

Date

340



RESOLUTION NO. 24-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

CERTIFYING AND ADOPTING THE LATHROP ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION

PLAN, CIP PS 22-17

WHEREAS, the Lathrop Active Transportation Plan ( ATP) Capital Improvement
Project ( CIP) PS 22-17 (Project) was created to identify a network of bicycle and

pedestrian facilities that improve safety and mobility; and

WHEREAS, the ATP provides a strategy to develop citywide connectivity
through walking and biking between residential neighborhoods, schools, transit, and

job centers; and

WHEREAS, on November 15, 2022, City Council approved a professional
engineering consulting services with GHD, Inc. (GHD) to prepare the ATP; and

WHEREAS, the planning process engaged the public in developing goals,
policies, and programs to improve walking and biking conditions within the

community; and

WHEREAS, the plan evaluated all forms of non -vehicular transportation by
reviewing the existing transportation infrastructure, identifying deficiencies,
developing and prioritizing potential projects, holding public meetings and receiving
overall comments; and

WHEREAS, on March 1st, 2024, GHD and the City issued a Draft Lathrop Active

Transportation Plan to review and provide comments for a 30 -day period; and

WHEREAS, all comments received during the circulation period were reviewed

addressed by GHD and the City and are included in the final Lathrop Active

Transportation Plan; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting that City Council hold a public hearing,
consider all information and public testimony and, if determined to be appropriate,
adopt a resolution approving and certifying the Lathrop Active Transportation Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of

Lathrop hereby certifies and adopts the final Lathrop Active Transportation Plan, CIP

PS 22-17.

341



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 8t" day of April 2024, by the

following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

342



343



Prepared for the City of Lathrop by GHD Inc.

344



ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

City Council

Mayor Sonny Dhaliwal

Vice Mayor Paul Akinjo

Diane Lazard

Minnie Diallo

Jennifer Torres -O'Callaghan

Planning Commission

Gloryanna Rhodes

George Jackson

Tosh Ishihara

Ash Ralmilay

Paul Camarena

City Staff

Angel Abarca, Assistant Engineer

Brad Taylor, City Engineer

Consulting Team

GHD, INC.

Todd Tregenza

Summer Lopez

Patrick Lewis

Paige Peel

Holly Murphy

PAGE

ii
345



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Table of Figures iii

Table of Tables i

Introduction 1

Purpose of the Plan 3

Relationship to Other Documents 4

Organization of this Plan 29

Goals, Objectives, and Strategies 30

Existing Conditions 34

Local Context 34

Transportation Behavior 43

Transportation Network 43

Safety 53

Level of Traffic Stress 60

Programs 66

Stakeholder Engagement 67

Community Workshop 67

Website 73

Online Mapping Tool 73

Online Survey 74

Needs Assessment 76

Public Engagement Findings 76

Safety Analysis 76

Gaps, Barriers, and Level of Traffic Stress 79

Future Growth Assessment 85

Recommendations 87

Infrastructure Improvement Types 87

Amenities 94

Wayfinding 100

Infrastructure Recommendations 101

PAGE

iii
346



Project Priority Evaluation 110

Non - Infrastructure Recommendations 114

Implementation Plan 124

Financial Analysis 124

Implementation Strategy 126

Funding 130

PAGE

iv
347



TABLE OF FIGURES

Figure 1: Bicycle Transportation Plan — Bicycle Circulation Diagram 7

Figure 2: General Plan — Circulation Diagram 9

Figure 3: West Lathrop Specific Plan — Vicinity Map 12

Figure 4: Central Lathrop Specific Plan — Pedestrian and Bicycle Circulation Plan Map 14

Figure 5: Lathrop Gateway Business Park Specific Plan - Circulation — Bicycle & Pedestrian Map 16

Figure 6: Lathrop Gateway Business Park Specific Plan — 6 -Lane & 5 -Lane Arterial Sections 17

Figure 7: South Lathrop Specific Plan — Pedestrian and Bicycle Circulation Map 19

Figure 8: River Islands West Village NDP — Circulation Bike and Pedestrian Concept Map 22

Figure 9: SJCOG Regional BP-SRTS — Lathrop Proposed Bikeways 25

Figure 10: City Overview & Regional Vicinity Map 36

Figure 11: Existing Land Use/Zoning Map 37

Figure 12: Specific Area Boundaries 38

Figure 13: Disadvantaged Communities - CalEnviroScreen 4.0 Percentile 41

Figure 14: Median Household Income ( MHI) 42

Figure 15: Lathrop Service Area Map 44

Figure 16: RTD Route 150 Map 44

Figure 17: ACE Route Map and Connections 45

Figure 18: Major Destinations & Transit Map 46

Figure 19: Existing Bike Facilities 50

Figure 20: Bicycle Collisions by Severity 55

Figure 21: Density of Bicycle Collisions 56

Figure 22: Pedestrian Collisions by Severity 58

Figure 23: Density of Pedestrian Collisions 59

Figure 24: Types of Bicyclists 61

Figure 25: Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress — Segments 63

Figure 26: Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress — Crossings 64

Figure 27: Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress — Overall 65

Figure 28: Distribution of Map Comments Received 75

Figure 29: Key Gaps and Barriers 86

Figure 30: Bikeway Network Infrastructure Projects 108

Figure 31: Pedestrian Network Projects 109

PAGE

v

348



TABLE OF TABLES

Table 1: Bicycle Transportation Plan — Category 1 Bikeway Projects 5

Table 2: Bicycle Transportation Plan — Category 2 Bikeway Projects ( within unincorporated General Plan

Sphere) 6

Table 3: Bicycle Transportation Plan — Category 3: Administrative Programs and Procedures 6

Table 4: SJCOG Regional BP-SRTS — Lathrop Priority Bikeway Projects 23

Table 5: SJCOG Regional BP-SRTS — Lathrop Vision Bikeway Projects 24

Table 6: Caltrans District 10 Active Transportation Plan — Location - Based Needs 28

Table 7: Caltrans District 10 Active Transportation Plan — Needs Prioritization 28

Table 8: Age of Lathrop Residents 39

Table 9: Mode of Transportation to Work 43

Table 10: Existing Bikeway Miles 47

Table 11: Bicycle Collision Hotspots 77

Table 12: Pedestrian Collision Hotspots 77

Table 13: Proposed Bikeway Miles 107

Table 14: Project Priority Evaluation Criteria 110

Table 15: Priority Recommendations - All Projects 112

Table 16: Priority Recommendations - High Complexity 112

Table 17: Priority Recommendations - Low Complexity 113

Table 18: Unit Cost Assumptions 125

PAGE

vi

349



INTRODUCTION

The City of Lathrop ( City) is ready to move into

the next stage of its commitment to supporting
active transportation modes with the

development of this Active Transportation Plan

ATP). While historical development patterns did

not always provide dedicated facilities for

bicycling and walking, the City seeks to cater to

the diverse transportation needs of its residents,

workers, visitors, and stakeholders. Further, the

City imagines a future where its mobility network

allows people of all ages and abilities to get to

and from their destinations safely, efficiently,
and, as often as possible, without the use of

single occupancy vehicles.

As a community with fresh ideas on expanding
the local bicycle and pedestrian network, Lathrop
has a built environment that offers untapped

potential to shift commuting patterns to active

modes such as walking, bicycling, and rolling,

reducing congestion, and promoting healthy

lifestyles. Recent development of residential

communities has included enhanced pedestrian
and bicycle facilities, from multi -use trails to

accessible sidewalks. These facilities help to

encourage more residents and visitors to try
active alternatives to driving when traveling to

their destinations while also beginning to

illustrate the vibrant, multimodal future that is

possible in Lathrop. By building upon the City's
vision for community bikeways and pedestrian
facilities outlined in the General Plan and

specific plans, targeted investments in upgraded
pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure will result in

a safer, more connected network for users of all

ages and abilities.

This ATP is a critical tool for the City and the

broader Lathrop community as they shape a

balanced transportation system for Lathrop. It

provides a baseline understanding of the current

status and long-term vision for the active

PAGE

1

350



The primary objectives of the Lathrop ATP

include:

www.pedbikeimages.org / Dan Burden

transportation network, as well as supportive
policies and programs which can be

implemented in Lathrop. It also provides the

necessary information for the City to seek grant

funding support to build the projects that will

effectively complete this vision. This ATP

presents a focused, achievable action plan for

improvements to bicycling and walking facilities,

providing both short-term priority projects and

longer -term improvements.

Improving resident quality of life

Providing a safe and connected

pedestrian and bicycle network

Enhancing access to area amenities

and destinations

Reducing greenhouse gas ( GHG)
emissions

Promoting healthy lifestyles

PAGE

2

351



A view of several bridges crossing the San Joaquin River in Lathrop

Purpose of the Plan

This Active Transportation Plan will establish a

long-term vision for improving walking and

bicycling within Lathrop and identify a short-term

action plan of implementable projects, programs,
and policies.

The ATP provides a strategy to develop
connected citywide walking and bicycling
facilities that provide access between residential

neighborhoods, schools, transit, and jobs. These

network improvements are combined with

options for recommended education,

encouragement, and evaluation programs to

provide a comprehensive approach to improving
active transportation in Lathrop. The ATP also

identifies a plan to implement these projects and

programs through prioritization and phasing to

ensure implementation is manageable and

achievable.

This Plan represents an aspirational vision for

walking and bicycling in Lathrop, recognizing
that limited funding and resources may require

strategic phases of implementation over many

years.

The City has established four goals for this ATP:

1. Enhance mobility by providing a

comfortable, connected network of facilities

for people to walk, bike, and roll

2. Encourage active transportation within

Lathrop
3. Foster a safe ped/bike environment

4. Prioritize implementing active transportation
infrastructure projects that meet the needs

of Lathrop's growing population and reduce

Vehicle Miles Travelled ( VMT) and GHG

emissions

PAGE

3

352



Relationship to Other

Documents

A variety of local, regional, and state documents

relevant to the development and implementation
of the Active Transportation Plan were reviewed.

These documents set an overall trajectory for the

City and include policies and strategies the ATP

must be consistent with, while others provide a

foundation for the ATP and will effectively be

incorporated into the ATP. Documents reviewed,
and the guidance relevant to the ATP, are

discussed briefly below; the Planning and Policy
Context Chapter will include additional detail on

consistency and recommended updates to

relevant documents.

Lathrop

City of Lathrop
Bicycle Transportation Plan

Final Plan

BICYCLE TRANSPORTATION PLAN ( 2004)

The City of Lathrop's Bicycle Transportation
Plan, initially adopted in 1995 and updated in

2003 and 2004, guides the development of the

City's bikeway network in coordination with

regional plans and state law. The purpose of the

plan is to improve and expand bicycling

opportunities in Lathrop, providing direction for

the development of new bikeways alongside
future city growth and outlining a long-term goal
of a comprehensive system of bikeways that

provide safe and convenient bicycle travel

throughout the community. Policy priorities
include:

The bikeway system shall consist of Class 1

and Class 11 bikeway facilities. Use Class 111

bike routes only to provide route

connections where constraints make other

bikeways infeasiblei.

Provide bikeway access to all key
destinations; all neighborhoods should be

within % mile of a Class 11 bicycle lane, at

minimum.

Bikeway facilities shall be installed on new

streets at the time of improvement.

Develop a perimeter bikeway loop around

the City and a recreational bike path system

along the San Joaquin River corridor.

Provide class 11 bicycle lanes along all

existing major arterial streets; consider class

1 bicycle paths for all linear parks, green

belts, and parkways.

Bicycle facility implementation can be

flexible and use alternative locations if

consistent with General Plan and relevant

Specific Plan(s).

Specific Plans and development plans for

future annexations must each include a

Bicycle Circulation Plan ( BCP)" consistent

with the City of Lathrop Bicycle

Transportation Plan.

New development must provide bikeway
connections to the existing City core,

including across/under 1-5.

Provide class 11 bicycle lanes on all future

arterials, boulevards, and parkways.

Provide bicycle connections to the City of

Manteca's bicycle network, regional

1 See the Bicycle Facilities section of the Existing Conditions chapter for definitions of bikeway facilities

PAGE

4

353



bikeways in the San Joaquin County Bicycle
Plan, and the 1-205 Bikeway.

Bikeway improvements should be consistent

with Caltrans Highway Design Manual,

Chapter 1000 as well as typical sections

indicated in the City of Lathrop Bicycle
Transportation Plan.

Maximize safety for bicyclists at bikeway

crossings of all major streets and railroad

tracks.

Maintain bikeway pavement to provide a

smooth riding surface without potholes, inlet

grates, utility covers, road debris, or

obstructions.

Provide adequate lighting along bikeways.

Bikeway projects identified in the plan are divided into three categories, as depicted in the tables below.

Table 1 lists Category 1 bikeway projects or those within 1995 City limits:

Table 1: Bicycle Transportation Plan - Category 1 Bikeway Projects
Street Segment

Harlan Road

Bikeway Class

Class II

Priority*

2

D'Arcy Parkway Class II 1

Tesla Way Class II 3

McKinley Avenue Class II 3

Louise Avenue Class II 1

5th Street Class II 1

Woodfield Drive — Jasper Street Class II 2

Thomsen Road2 Class II 1

Roth Road Class II 3

Priority 1: 1-5years, Priority 2: 5-10 years, Priority 3: 10-20 years

2 Class II Bicycle Lanes have been installed on Thomsen Road.

PAGE

5

354



Table 2 lists Category 2 bikeway projects or those within the unincorporated General Plan sphere at the

time of plan adoption.

Table 2: Bicycle Transportation Plan — Category 2 Bikeway Projects ( within unincorporated
General Plan Sphere)

Street Segment

Manthey Road

Bikeway Class

Class II

Golden Valley Parkway Class II

River Islands Parkway Class II

Lathrop Road Class II

Connector Streets3 Class II

San Joaquin River Path Class I

Paradise Cut Pathway Class I

Old River Pathway Class I

Greenbelt Pathways Class I

Note: Projects have not been assigned priority because each will occur in conjunction with annexation and development within the sphere

Table 3 shows Category 3 projects, which includes all administrative programs and procedures to be

adopted by the City.

Table 3: Bicycle Transportation Plan — Category 3: Administrative Programs and Procedures

A•ministr•tiv •r• •r. ms , n• •r• - •ures

Bicycle Parking and Storage Ordinance

Public Works Bikeway Standards

General Plan Amendment

Bicycle Circulation Plan Requirements

Uniform Bicycle Signage Program

3 Short street segments connecting longer bikeways.

PAGE

6

355



Figure 1: Bicycle Transportation Plan - Bicycle Circulation Diagram
To Stockton

Glass I Blkt PaC'i IC tslar q • er•*r

al,C*Fnems ouflnec \-

MA WPM

11
011

40
1 10 ,+ 

1

1
1

T

Key

L_ _

E 20 VW,

Genera- velar. Area

Proposed Gass 1 PIVIP

Prop:sad Clem % 1 Lane

Source: Lathrop Bicycle Plan

a A IN

1

PAGE

7

356



Support regional VMT reduction via land

use and site design decisions that promote
active transportation and public transit.

GENERAL PLAN

CITY OF LATIIROP

GENERAL PLAN ( 2022)

Lathrop's General Plan identifies the

community's vision for the future and provides a

framework to guide decisions on growth,
development, and conservation of open space

and resources in Lathrop. The General Plan is

intended for use by City decision -makers and

staff as well as developers, and community
members to identify goals and policies that

articulate and facilitate a coherent and

progressive vision and strategy for the future of

the City and its residents. Relevant Elements of

the General Plan are discussed in the following
sections.

LAND USE ELEMENT

The Land Use Element provides goals and

policies to support local job growth and

economic development opportunities, a range of

housing types, and community services that are

accessible to all residents through its vision for

open space, commercial, industrial, residential,

and other land uses in the City. Policy priorities
include:

Ensure all residents have access to

community amenities, transportation
choices, and safe places to walk and bike.

CIRCULATION ELEMENT

The Circulation Element provides the framework

for the development and improvement of the

City's multi -modal transportation system,

including driving, walking, bicycling, transit, and

freight. It notes that improving the City's walking
and bicycling networks, and improving
connections to transit, will help more Lathrop
residents use these modes, improving health,
recreational opportunities, and quality of life for

residents as well as help the City meet statewide

goals for the environment. Policy priorities
include:

Provide a roadway network that is

consistent with the Circulation Element Map.

Create infrastructure that supports all

transportation modes.

Try to achieve intersection Level of Service

LOS) D or better, except where this

disincentivizes walking, bicycling or transit;

is incompatible with adjacent land uses;

prevents the City from achieving Vehicle

Miles Traveled reduction goals; or is too

expensive.

Fully fund new roadway construction via the

Capital Facilities Fee ( CFF) program or with

new development and ongoing roadway
maintenance via Community Facilities

Districts ( CFDs).

Establish a network of active transportation
routes connecting residential areas with key
destinations and employers.

Improve safety, efficiency, and comfort for

bicyclists and pedestrians with shade trees,
lane narrowing, and other traffic calming.
Prioritize walking and bicycling to school

over vehicular travel.

Provide safer, more convenient access to

transit service.

PAGE

8

357



Provide amenities like pedestrian - scale

lighting, bicycle parking, shade trees,

landscaping, and bus shelters and benches

to support active transportation.

Support land use with increased densities

and mixed uses, to reduce vehicle miles

Figure 2 shows the City's circulation network by

traveled and promote walking, biking, and

transit.

Encourage employers to provide programs

and support for alternative commutes and

work schedules to reduce driving.

road classification and number of lanes.

Figure 2: General Plan — Circulation Diagram

CITY OF LATHROP GENERAL PLAN

Figure CIR-1 Circulation Diagram

Number of Lanes

2 Lanes

3 Lanes

4 Lanes

6 Lanes

Arterial

Collector

Local

r-4 Existing Grade x x x Removed Road

Separation New Road

Lathrop City
Boundary

ci Lathrop Sphea
of IMluence

Source: General Plan - City of Lathrop

Ofher C ty
Boundary

San Joaquin
County

RECREATION AND RESOURCES ELEMENT

The Recreation and Resources Element

provides goals and policies related to parks and

recreation, regional and local open space,

cultural resources, biological resources and

habitat, mineral resources, air quality and

greenhouse gas emissions, the Bay Delta, and

water conservation. Relevant policy priorities
include:

rrirr.e / SO

Provide a wide variety of parks, recreational

facilities, open space, and trails within a

comprehensive system.

Maintain a public park, open space, and trail

system that is accessible to all parts of the

city.

Maintain and update facility design
standards based on proven best practices to

support active transportation and recreation.

Work with school districts to provide open

space on school sites, collaborating to

provide additional public park space at

public schools.

PAGE

9

358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



SANJOAQ

COUN

Legend

Sphere of Influence

S01) Boundary

Lathrop City Limits

K-12 Schools

Parks

Open Space

Lakes & Streams

Roads

Highways

Rail

Paper Size ANSI A

0 0.5 1 1.5 2

Mlles

Map Projection Lambert Conformal Conic

Horizontal Datum, North American 1983

Grid: NAD 1983 StatePlane California I I I FIPS 0403 Feet

Stockton
t,

Garden Acres

CITY OF LATHROP
ACTIVE

TRANSPORTATION

PLAN

CITY OVERVIEW &

REGIONAL VICINITY

Z
w

a

JST

0S

U LOUISE AVE

ROTH RD

ATFROP RD

SI

PARK ST

Project No. 12594140

Revision No. A

Date Jun 2023

FIGURE 10
IlghdnettghdlUS\Sacramento- 22002lotProlects15611125941401GISIMaps0Deleerables1001 Existe9Condkions1001 ExrstmgCondrtions.eprx•

12594140_001 Fpure 10_Vicindy
Print date 23 Jun 2023 - 20:52

Data source World Topographic Map - Iabelless San Joaquin County GIS/Plammng. Cektorme State Pads sn, HERE. Gamin SateGreph, FAO. METIINASA USGS

Bureau of Land Management, EPA NPS: EnerGov/Aerials 2020 CM of Lathrop Geographic Technologies Group World Topographo Map Esn, HERE, Gannet, FAO,

USGS, NGA EPA, NPS. Greeted by ppeel

385



Legend

Existing Land Use/

Zoning

Commercial

MINI Office

NEI Mixed Use

Residential

Transit - Oriented

Development

f---1 Industrial

I 1 Education

L I Natural Resources

I. ----I
Parks and Open
Space

Planned

Development

I I Public Facilities

I I Wastewater

Lakes & Streams

Lathrop City Limits

Sphere of Influence

S01) Boundary

Roads

Highways

Rail

The land use/zoning categories shown have been grouped

horn the cilys comprehensive 1st of designations to a smaller

number of categories for ease of display purposes.

1.

I

Paper Son ANSI A

7000 8,000

US Feet

Map Projection. Lambert Conformal Conic

Horizontal Datum North American 1983

Grid NAD 1983 StatePlane California III FIPS 0403 Feet

CITY OF LATHROP

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Project No. 12594140

Revision No. A

Date Jun 2023

tgrfianplaustc.oceento.a0One1Rgecress.asssrlavtsuop.0eWxeNewol EnnyWMtamgpt Evetn000n0M1onegro.
12594140 e tt LIMONING

PnM Me 23 Jun 3033-2054

r'

r

EXISTING

LAND USE/ZONING
OCu wLrw EnerGovtamae 2020 Ory MlnMrtp Gwprepao ixeeocoz N::r H

FIGURE 11
qun Oxn9 M]3., Roads

rvBournines OM oLahop. 2023.

Created by PPM

386



Legend

Districts

Central Lathrop

Crossroads

Business Park

East Lathrop

Lathrop Gateway
Business Park

Mossdale Landing

Mossdale Village

North Harlan

South Lathrop -
Non SLCC

South Lathrop -
SLCC

Stewart Tract

Sphere of Influence

S01) Boundary

Lathrop City Limits

Lakes & Streams

Highways

Rail

Roads

Paper See ANSI A

3,000 6000

US Feet

Map Prolechon Lambert Conformal Conic

Hor¢ontal Datum North American 1983

Grd. NAD 1983 StaleP0ne California III FIPS 0403 Feet

Central Lathrop 1r

Crossroads
s Mossdale Village t

Business Park

East Lathrop

Stewart Tract

Mossdale

Landing

South

GO V/ 2331

LOUISE AVE

p5EM10E

athrop Gateway
Business Park

South I5athrop

Lathrop • • Non SL-@

SLCC

CITY OF LATHROP

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Project No. 12594140

Revision No. A

Date Jun 2023

SPECIFIC

AREA

BOUNDARIES FIGURE 12
honanergnrtusi8eaamallo 0000]ialWoncce911t59a11ec15U1aetaoaaomuc1 EaelraC0.don901 Dasen3Cord0meera -
122324llcrot jpire 12 Speak Area Boo..

e 23 Jun 2023.2056

Dela source EnerGon as . 30 Dry of tatlrop Oeopn850 , 211.1.23.222 0 Wadsads 5n 20/321213Coen unty, 2091, Rm

Pry of Let,' 0o0 Sannoaqu a CoopS 2023 3013041 Bounden. ON of lalrap 2003

Creemq ppea

387



388



389



Legend

90 - 100 ( Highest
Scores)

MIN >80 - 90

I 1 > 70-80

I > 60 - 70

1 > 50 - 60

40 - 50

30 - 40

20-30

NM >10-20

111111111
0 - 10 ( Lowest

Scores)

Sphere of Influence

S01) Boundary

Lathrop City Limits

Highways

Roads

Rail

SAN JOAQ UI N COUNTY

City of

Lathrop

MARINA OR

ACADEMY DP.

RREN AVE

LATHROP

G ST

Pap er S¢e ANSI A

0 9000 6,000

OS Feet

Map Prolechon. Lambed Conformal Conic

H6rzontal Datum North Amencan 1983

Grd NAD 1983 StetePlane Celitomm III FIPS 0403 Feet

CITY OF LATHROP

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Project No. 12594140

Revision No. A

Date Jun 2023

CALENVIROSCREEN ( CES)
4.0 RESULTS FIGURE 13

1pMa8ydUSWgenenlo • 2M02smRgxeeo111Yba,WLlsaapoarventlaWOl Eo,singCnn6mae01 FaorpCm60onn0px-

125a4110001 PN.a01I DAC. CES 40

Prot Cale 236m 2071 • 20Sa

0010 fource Nghoalo TIGER, 2021.. PLO, Schools Son begun Canty. 2021.; Ropes Cnty S Lathrop. 2023. San begun County, 2024, sa u nA

BouMmes Gryd Le6ra.2023. CES e0 CA OEHNA. 2021.

Crea4ety pReeI

390



Legend

65% of MHI

54,663.05)

65% to <70% of

MHI ($ 54,66.05 -
58,867.90)

70% to <75% of

MHI ($ 58,867.90 -
63,072.75)

75% to <80% of

MHI ($ 63,072.75 -
67,277.60)

80% of MHI (>

67,277.60)

Open Space

Sphere of Influence

S01) Boundary

Lathrop City Limits

Highways

Roads

Rail

I o , 1

NHS • \

3y aip091504
R 4

Paper Sme ANSI A

0 3,000 6,000

US Feel

Map Protection. Lambert Conformal Conic

Hormontal Datum' North American 1983

GPO NAD 1983 StalePlene Califon) one III FIPS 0403 Feel

900 0oot00aoo xnone ) Rw5p.a05n12sga140.1. =
1o0aau.loot Ene5ngCordonn01 Eemng. 8818888,Ph.

Pnnt date 091un 2028-1952

1.81 MN STRE
O 5T

TP R

CITY OF LATHROP

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
Project No. 12594140

Revision No. A

Date Jun 2023

MEDIAN

HOUSEHOLD

INCOME ( MHI) FIGURE 14
Deb source 49,3.13 OES 2021. P... n Cann. 2013. Roads a un Cr,nry. 00 008Ory

Boundens pA a LEO, 2023. sou 5 Cenc.a00 201)-2021 Sy.m sidles Ts0. 813013

391



392



393



394



Legend

Transit Routes

Route 150

Route 90

Route 97

Transit Stops

ACE Station

Points of Interest

Commercial and

Retail

Public Attractions

and Landmark

Buildings

Education

4 Civic Facilites

Post Office

Health and Medical

o Police Station

A Fire Station

A Civic Facilities

K-12 Schools

Parks

Open Space

Lakes & Streams

Roads

Highways

I- Rail

Sphere of Influence

S01) Boundary

Lathrop City Limits

i — •

A

Paper Soe ANSI A

3.000 6,000

US Feel

Map Projection. Lambert Conformed Conic

Honzontal Datum: North American 1983

Gi0 NAD 1983 StetePlane Ce9fanie III FIPS 0403 Feet

1\o

al

I

CITY OF LATHROP

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
Project No. 12594140

Revision No. A

Date Jun 2021

MAJOR DESTINATIONS

TRANSIT FIGURE 18
0oh2we1..USLSecroimlo•00331,Mrq«M58111259111AGISWepeNd100.0N41 EynenIWMllomlrol EnrInpCon6lwn: e1.

12591140 001_8pue 11 Yq« 0 € 2nston•Tmmil

Pnnl 0010 231un 2023-2100

0 E 0200320202020 033&220203 GeogyM1r i«hntlo9nr tromp.. H yr. TIGER, 2021, 3.0 Srh Sen lmW n County 2023 R 03

Gly 012&133 202], Se 3mnuin County 20231 Sq & 00 900th, Gry d Lelko3 2023

G k M Web

395



396



397



398



i

Legend

Existing Bike Facilities

ClaVlaarectse Path

ss II Bike Lane

Class II Buffered Bike

Lane

Highways

Roads

4- Rail

Points of Interest

e Commercial and Retail

Public Attractions and

Landmark Buildings

Education

4 Civic Facilities

Post Office

O. Health and Medical

OO Police Station

Fire Station

t Civic Facilities

ACE Station

K-1 2 Schools

Parks

Open Space

Lakes & Streams

Lathrop City Limits

Sphere of Influence ( SOI)
Boundary

ti

Perhaps add a hatched line ( same col

to show one direction?

evinE i ldi idl l KLI di ili Luuise; iwU I;

segments with bike lanes on one

rillrrtinn (; 11,10

Paper Sae ANSI

3000 6,000

US Feel

Map Projection. Lambert Conformal Cogc

Horizontal Datum North American 1983

Grid NAD 1983 S101301ane California 111 FIPS 0403 Feet

3230 Rd

I

5

CITY OF LATHROP

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
Project No. 12594140

Revision No. A

Date Jan 2024

EXISTING

BIKE FACILITIES FIGURE 19
593Merp280515acramento• 220021203&502120202214820690 8 16 2,90,.23,,.2301 Entln9Condllona epv•

1999114oWIJan i9ve 193Mem,

RIM dale 9 n2021 • 1510

Date source EnarGov/ tl 2023 01,0 0.33(80.293(85,3.20.93.203(23 1390,3 3003 2021, 302.912200 Sen loe383 County. 2023.. 32N

0332020( 8 M23. San 03.020020142023 SO a Ury Boundnes Ory d .112,0,1:32.11,s,
Gaoled

2323

Qeebdty quad

399



400



401



402



403



Legend

Bicycle Collisions by
Severity

Severe Injury
Collision

ow
Visible Injury
Collision

Complain of Pain

Injury Collision

Property Damage

Only Collision

Lathrop City Limits

r s Sphere of Influence

S01) Boundary

K-12 Schools

Parks

Open Space

Lakes & Streams

Highways

Roads

4 Rail

hib collision data was reviewed for accuracy, data is subject to

pangethrouerror .
2201

Collissarepro my bland,eapnitobongo through Year 2023. Collision poinh may be overlapping

r `
5

I s _ _

ot or/

47L ERrrev4

14

1 
IVEii

151N`
MARINA DR

CADEMY DR•

1

Paper Size ANSI A

0 3,000 6,000

US Feet

Cap Projection Lambed Conformal Conic

Horizontal Datum North American 1983

Grid NAD 1983 5talePlane California III FIPS 0403 Feet

12 11 es EAISAAGnnale.001 Rmaan9Gnndbmsern,
125..1110n

1

00_Fpue 19 Me

SeventyPnnOlele23 Jun 2023 - 21 01

ATOROP ov

f
4,.,1

e THoMSEN R

PARK ST

LOUISTOE=

CITY OF LATHROP

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
Project No. 12594140

Revision No. A

Date Jun 2023

BICYCLE COLLISIONS

BY SEVERITY

2012-2021) FIGURE 20
Date source Camon Dela TISIS SWITRS 012,2021 Schoda sass county Roe., uxes a Steams San bowl s C BO, 2020, cyan space a„I LSC,,T

Lam Use N9eey TILER 2021 0113150 OA,of Lathrop, 2023 so Bow.y aN Lma OAat Lathrop 2023 EnecnoAwie 2020 01111 Lao.y,

5.48,3K Ter

bua by pp a

404



Legend

Collision Density

Sparse
Dense

Sphere of Influence

SOI) Boundary

Lathrop City Limits

K-12 Schools

Parks

Open Space

Lakes & Streams

Highways

Roads

Rail

r

I

1NmP ae AP e

r. 
lN / ` 9I 1 . .

a

o = 1

At
4',47Po1,r

Gk—

RIVER ISi0̂;
Ai 11

0 MAI AOEMY 091

1

ROTH RD _

RGP R0

GS

EIP s
ST

A R".

LJ

CITY OF LATHROP

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
Project No. 12594140

Revision No. A

Date Jun 2023

Papa Sue ANSI A

0 3,000 6,000

US Feet

Map Projection Lambert Conformal Conic

Horizontal Datum North American 1983

Grid NAD 1983 StatePlane California 111 FIPS 0403 Feet

1wM,AM8USWveisolo. IIW 21,&8.009112125141a015wYADOve 0 001 Exnfn9L0ndtnn001 EnelegLodlmeey.-
12.9e1e0_001 A9 , 20 Me CJi00n-NEAR
Pnnl date 23 Jun 2023.21 06

DENSITY OF

BICYCLE COLLISIONS

2012.2021) FIGURE 21
Dela e von Dale 211.13 ASWOTRS 2012. 2031 214004 Pens Douai. Rack L.t.2& msSrea San Joaquin Coun02022 Or Spate 01021 LAP,

ULand . algrneye TIGER, 2021 010 ROM. 0h of le_op 2023 SD Bond, 09 Lima 010 of lefty 2043 Er_GON2Mal. 2020 ON of Lefr,.
G.leooM1 T4Ardopwa 3mn.

CrtebOq ppe0

405



406



Legend

Pedestrian Collisions by
Severity

fe Fatal Collision

Severe Injury
Collision

Visible Injury
Collision

Complaint of Pain

Injury Collision

Property Damage
Only Colision

Sphere of Influence

S01) Boundary

Lathrop City Limits

K-12 Schools

Parks

Open Space

Lakes & Streams

Highways

Roads

IL Rail

Whte coeslon data was reviewed for accuracy data is subject to

reporting - lava) error. 2021 rdllalons are provisional and srbiect to

change through Year 2023 Collision points may be overlapping.

J."    r •

14

o

D = I

i5
P

f

HiVER F0.01,

4i"'ozrEel 
Q

A INA DR` A
iw ADEMB or

Paper See ANSI A

0 3,000 0,000

CITY OF LATHROP

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
Project No. 12594140

Revision No. A

Date Jun 2023

US Feet

Map Prolatlon Lambert Conformal Conic

Horizontal Datum North American 1983

Grid NAD 1983 SlalePene California III FIPS 0403 Feet

11gnoaagn0U515eaemento- 220021anAr.A.airt]Sa11M.GIsoep0nweoMWt Eneingconatoaaior EnstnAConaeaarer-
ool_Epve2lPeacalaon-Ssrcny

Pont dale 21 Jun GM., 21 oa

PEDESTRIAN COLLISIONS

BY SEVERITY

2012 - 2021) FIGURE 22
Dale swore Cason Dale fru58 SAGAS. 202. 2021. SSMas. Pates Cony Rah, LMtt 8 Stream San Joapnn Counts 2020. 00.151...B d legasp

Lard Use. Hae.ys TIGER. 2021. ON Roads oy of Lahrop, 2023 501 Boundary . Pry Lrels Pry or 1anrty. 2021 Ever armanes_2020 GM of Leta.

Geogropor maennuoyes Group
Read;by pp.

407



Legend

Collision Density

InSparseDense

Sphere of Influence

S01) Boundary

Lathrop City Limits

K-12 Schools

Parks

Open Space

Lakes & Streams

Highways

Roads

Rail

r
J '

e^," roz

j ` RJ
p}lL P

a MaRN,D Re
O -

ACADEMY DR

e
A

lift ti,

Whlk collision data was reviewed for accuracy, data Is subject to

reporting - keel error. 2021 collisions are provisional and subject to

change through Year 2023. CWADDon points maybe overlapping.

SL

Paper Sore ANSI A

0 3,000 6,000

US Feet

Map Projection Lambed Conformal Conic

Horuontal Datum North Amencan 1983

Grid NAD 1983 StatePkne Cal/tome Ill FIPS 0403 Feet

jlpnaoeonsU315enemmlo.YAa]r6010,01,561ir25991401GISus91os rsa.so0t_EseingCr4rgry Or EmrMCarAnons.5rr-

PnnlaN ro]unNurex2]22 PCAioon-Denary

CITY OF LATHROP

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
Project No. 12594140

Revision No. A

Date Jun 2023

DENSITY OF

PEDESTRIAN COLLISIONS

2012-2021) FIGURE 23
DeD source Cnivon DN. ltuS s SentRh x12. 2021 Sao.Pans. Gant, Roark, Lakes s Steens Sen begin Cann, 2023. open Spare Oly of 1aeeW

Lend Use Ngnrays TIGER, 2021 OIy Roam Oh of Lee, lox. no Malay DO Omits CIO of Ls.nop 2023 En.Cosis,n4, 2020 Oe o Loop,
GeoorepOr iernMoyn Goo,

Repeat", Waal

408



409



410



411



Legend

Segment LTS Highways

LTS 1 Roads

LTS 2 Rail

LTS 3 K-12 Schools

LTS 4 Parks

Bicycling Prohibited Open Space

Sphere of Influence Lakes & Streams

S01) Boundary

Lathrop City Limits

J.
a  

r

Paper See ANSI A

0 3,000 6,000

US Feet

Map Projection: Lambed Conformal Conic

Homage! Datum: North American 1983

God NAD 1983 StatePlene California III FIPS 0403 Feet

a.

THOMSEN•RD

Fa.1I

CITY OF LATHROP

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

EXISTING

SEGMENT LTS

Project No. 12594140

Revision No. A

Date Sep 2023

FIGURE 25
096004edlJo&vumM• MOO x1e0Roant06111Yb1NACISW00or . 0 tl01 jantimpConninont1001 Enefl900s000 p0•

11584140_001f nu. 24 Segment US

wieb4e 07 WW2, 16:20

Pala wane End 20Ne 1020 D0 of 1a6rop: Gonna. ixfidoper Owe. 4460,. TIGER 0001., Pete 302044$. San Joaquin Co" 3021. Roads

0y of Wnp, 0020, San Joaquin ow* 0020: Sa & fort foUAnn City of Leann 1011

Crean. by pawl

412



Legend

Crossing LTS

LTS 1

LTS 2

o LTS 3

LTS 4

Lakes & Streams

Sphere of Influence
I (

S01) Boundary

Lathrop City Limits

Paper Sore ANSI A

0 3,000 6,000

US Feet

Map Projection Lambert Conformal Conic

Horizontal Datum North American 1983

Grid NAD 1983 SlalePlane Caldorma III FIPS 0403 Feet

CITY OF LATHROP
ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

Project No. 12594140

Revision No. A

Date Jun 2023

EXISTING

CROSSING LTS FIGURE 26
Ignanengnauooseaamento• 220001mhaecta1551t1259414010IS1Repl0Mwntl2iool Ettaln9Conanon41001 EaeingConaucncepe-

12594140_001j quo Owung Lis

Pnnlaete 25 Jun 2029-1434

0.2 e0une EneUwt a_ 02090Lataep, oeooed.tleooeaoyan Group 442344.1411GER. 2021., Pros. U yS Joa nCaety 8203, Real

012 a Lathrop. 2033, scot Joaquin County 2023 201 aay 803129 ee Oly of Wkop 2017.

CruM M wad

413



Legend

Overall LTS

LTS 1

LTS 2

LTS 3

LTS 4

Bicycling Prohibited

K-12 Schools

Parks

Open Space

Lakes & Streams

Sphere of Influence

S01) Boundary

Lathrop City Limits

Highways

Rail

Roads

JI

Ns
1

Map Protection. Lambert Conformal Conic

Horizontal Datum: North American 1983

Grd NAD 1983 StatePlane California III FIPS 0403 Feet

Paper See ANSI A

0 3,000 6,000

US Feet

CITY OF LATHROP

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
Project No. 12594140

Revision No. A

Date Sep 2023

ROTH RD i

ATHROP RD

al LSE A//E

rr.

EXISTING

OVERALL LTS FIGURE 27
Iyntreeea seacrenento- 200321.lgeastem258meCSWnMAL.aetlaq l EnfMGon0mnbm rneen3Cadeonryn.
115anw 401 rgue 2s oM LTS

152 dale 01 Sep 2025 • 1654

Cab source E 42_2020 Pry of Lathrop Geopmtlr Tann2opee Gray Highways TIGER, 2021., PeeFn. 532342 5en Jmqun County 2023.. 3.05

Orly letRop 20233.2 3.3s, County 2023 .. 5014 an PounGne: OR 1.3203 2033

Premed M ppea

414



415



416



417



418



419



420



421



422



423



Figure 28: Distribution of Map Comments Received

Category Totals

Recreation Comment: 31

Traffic Safety Comment: 6

Work/Commute Comment: 2

Kids/School Comment: 7

Walking/Pedestrian Comment

Kids/School Comment

Traffic Safety Comment

Source: Social Pinpoint

Walking/Pedestrian Comment: 40

Bicycling Comment: 23

Bicycling Comment

Work/Commute Comment

Recreation Comment

PAGE

75

424



425



426



427



428



429



430



431



432



433



434



Lag•nd

Bicycle LTS

Segments

LTS 1

LTS 2

LTS 3

LTS 4

Bicycling Prohibited

Crossings

LTS1

LTS 1

LTS 3

e LTS4

K-12 Schools

Parks

Open Space

Lakes & Streams

Sphere of Influence

SOI) Boundary

Lathrop City Lmus

Highways

Roads

I- Rail

Existng Class 1 Path terminates in s

dirt area with no bicycle of pedeatd.n
borateswhich creates a gap in the

active transportation network. Lack of

crossing treatments across Manthey

Roads
Moasdale Croeung Regional

mud. in ai9h'sbaas baffler for

both Navels. and ped..blan..

HISNAI

rti tr.*. r.ww x.xemwA sdw

LATHROP RD

Arlen. roadways
throughout the City Hoe

as high stress barners to

bicycling conned.. . both

along segments and et

crossing locations.

I-5 Isoducas highanese borer for

both bicyclists and pedestrians duo.

few crossing oPportuniti Crossings
that do exist ILethrop Rde Louise Ave

Roth Roadi ere high stress

eespecially for pedestriansdue to

traffic volumes and speed.

Ste OF LATHROP

ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN

KEY GAPS

AND BARRIERS

Prged No 12594140

Revrs on No •

Dale 1.2024

FIGURE 29

435



436



437



438



439



440



441



442



443



444



445



446



447



448



449



450



451



452



453



454



455



456



457



458



459



460



461



462



463



464



465



466



467



468



469



470



471



472



473



474



475



476



477



478



479



480



481



482



483



484



ITEM 5.2

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO

FORM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.

2024-1 (EAGLES LANDING SERVICES)

RECOMMENDATION: Council to Consider the Following:

1. Hold a Public Hearing; and

2. Adopt a Resolution of Formation of

the Community Facilities District

2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services);
and

3. Adopt a Resolution Calling Special
Election for the Community Facilities

District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing
Services); and

4. Adopt a Resolution Declaring Results

of Special Election and Direct

Recording of Notice of Special Tax

Lien for the Community Facilities

District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing
Services); and

5. Introduce Ordinance Levying Special
Taxes Within Community Facilities

District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing
Services).

SUMMARY:

As part of their conditions of approval, master developers are required to submit to

the City a fiscal impact analysis. The purpose of a fiscal impact analysis is to estimate

the overall financial impacts a development will have on the City. This analysis
enables the City to estimate the difference between the costs of providing services

to a new development and the revenue the new development will generate.

The City and DR Horton ( Developer) have recently completed a fiscal impact analysis
for the Eagles Landing project. The fiscal impact analysis projected that the

development would produce a shortfall to the City's General Fund. In order for the

City to ensure that development continues to pay its own way, Community Facilities

485



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 8, 2024 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2024-1 FORMATION

District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services) ( CFD) needs to be formed to cover the

shortfalls.

Staff recommends Council approve the attached three Resolutions and Ordinance to

complete the CFD formation process and to legally authorize the future levy of a

special tax to finance the costs of certain services of benefit to the properties within

the CFD.

BACKGROUND:

City staff, the Financing Team and the Developer have had several discussions to help
formulate the proposed CFD and the special tax to be levied, which has been approved
by the Developer and will be calculated and levied as set forth in the Rate and Method

of Apportionment of Special Tax ( Exhibit B of Attachment A).

The CFD will include 95 parcels and will have a single tax rate formula, for the levy of

the " Special Tax", for the purpose of funding City services.

The description of the services authorized to be paid for by the special tax, are detailed

the " Description of Services" (Exhibit A of Attachment A). The services shall include:

Services

Police protection services

Maintenance of open space; including irrigation and vegetation control

Maintenance of roads and roadways; including street sweeping, street repair,
street striping and repair and repainting of sound walls

Storm protection; including operation and maintenance of storm drainage

system
Landscaping of public areas; including irrigation, tree trimming and vegetation
maintenance and control

The City Council has four documents for consideration:

1. The Resolution of Formation ( Attachment A) - This officially forms the

CFD, authorizes the special tax to be collected and establishes an

appropriations limit for the CFD ( under Article XIIIB of the Constitution).
The exhibits to this resolution show the Services to be financed and the

formula by which the special tax will be levied in the CFD. This includes

the List of Services and Facilities ( Exhibit A of Attachment A) listing the

services and projects that are authorized to be funded from special tax

revenues generated within the CFD and the Rate & Method of the Special
Tax ( Exhibit B of Attachment A) providing for the security for the funding
of the CFD and showing how the revenues from the CFD are to be collected

and also sets forth the purpose and level of the taxes from the various

different types of properties.

486



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2024-1 FORMATION

PAGE 3

2. The Resolution Calling Special Landowner Election ( Attachment B)
This sets the election for the same Council meeting and provides the form

of the special ballot to be used by the landowner -voter. The election may

be held at the same meeting because the property owner -voters have all

requested it. Ballots have been previously mailed and are to be returned

directly to the City Clerk by the meeting time.

3. The Resolution Declaring Results of Special Landowner Election

Attachment C) - This is for adoption by the Council after the vote is

announced by the City Clerk. It confirms the outcome of the property owner

election for the CFD. Attached to it is a copy of the official Canvass and

Statement of Result of Election to be completed by the City Clerk after the

vote is announced. This resolution also directs the filing of the Notice of

Special Tax Lien against the lands in the CFD to allow collection of the

special tax on each property.

4. Ordinance Levying Special Taxes ( Attachment D) - Under the law, the

Council must levy the special taxes by an ordinance. Under this ordinance,
the levy is made once by the introduction and adoption of this ordinance,
and, in each year hereafter, the process of determining the special taxes

and processing the collection is done by the City's financial official ( or a

consultant) and no further Council action is needed.

Once the above actions are completed, the City is authorized to record with the County
Recorder a Notice of Special Tax Lien pertaining to each of the parcels in the CFD subject
to a special tax.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff has worked with DR Horton to complete a fiscal impact analysis for their project.
The fiscal impact analysis has determined that the proposed development will

produce a shortfall to the City's General Fund. In order for the City to ensure that

development continues to pay its own way, a Community Facilities District ( CFD)
needs to be formed to cover the shortfalls.

FISCAL IMPACT:

City Staff time and all formation costs have been funded by DR Horton. The proposed
CFD will fund General Fund shortfalls anticipated by the development.

487



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2024-1 FORMATION

ATTACHMENTS:

A. Resolution of Formation of Community Facilities District

Exhibits to Attachment A:

A. Description of Authorized Services and Facilities

B. Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax

B. Resolution Calling Special Landowner Election

Exhibits to Attachment B:

A. Official Ballot Special Tax Election

C. Resolution Declaring Results of Special Landowner Election

Exhibits to Attachment C:

A. Canvass and Statement of Result of Election

PAGE 4

D. Ordinance Levying Special Taxes Within the Community Facilities District

488



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2024-1 FORMATION

APPROVALS:

Cari Jam

Director • f Finance

Brad TYylor
City Engineer

Salvador Navarrete

City Attorney

PAGE 5

Date

s/z, /7 -0 -z. -J

Date

3 - zozy
Date

3 -2a3 -P#
Steen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

489



RESOLUTION NO. 24-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP OF

FORMATION OF COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

CITY OF LATHROP

Community Facilities District No. 2024-1

Eagles Landing Services)

WHEREAS, on February 12, 2024, this City Council adopted a resolution

entitled " Resolution of Intention to Establish City of Lathrop Community Facilities

District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services)" to Finance Public Services" ( the

Resolution of Intention"), stating its intention to form " City of Lathrop Community

Facilities District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services)" ( the " CFD") pursuant to the

Mello - Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of

Division 2 of Title 5, commencing with Section 53311, of the California Government

Code ( the " Act"); and

WHEREAS, the Resolution of Intention, incorporating a map of the proposed
boundaries of the CFD and stating the services to be provided ( as set forth in the list

attached hereto as Exhibit A), the cost of providing such services, and the rate and

method of apportionment of the special tax to be levied within the CFD, is on file with

the City Clerk and the provisions thereof are incorporated herein by this reference as

if fully set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, on this date, this City Council held a noticed public hearing as

required by the Act and the Resolution of Intention relative to the proposed formation

of the CFD; and

WHEREAS, at the hearing all interested persons desiring to be heard on all

matters pertaining to the formation of the CFD, the services to be provided therein

and the levy of said special tax were heard and a full and fair hearing was held; and

WHEREAS, at the hearing evidence was presented to this City Council on said

matters before it, including a report caused to be prepared by the Public Works

Director ( the " Report") as to the services to be provided through the CFD and the

costs thereof, a copy of which is on file with the City Clerk, and this City Council at

the conclusion of said hearing is fully advised in the premises; and

WHEREAS, written protests with respect to the formation of the CFD, the

furnishing of specified types of services and the rate and method of apportionment
of the special taxes have not been filed with the City Clerk by fifty percent ( 50%) or

more of the registered voters residing within the territory of the CFD or property
owners of one-half (1/2) or more of the area of land within the CFD and not exempt
from the proposed special tax; and

Attachment " A"

Page 1 of 4

490



WHEREAS, the special tax proposed to be levied in the CFD to pay for the

proposed services to be provided therein, as set forth in Exhibit B hereto, has not

been eliminated by protest by fifty percent ( 50%) or more of the registered voters

residing within the territory of the CFD or the owners of one-half (1/2) or more of the

area of land within the CFD and not exempt from the special tax; and

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED as follows:

1. Recitals Correct. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

2. No Majority Protest. The proposed special tax to be levied within the

CFD has not been precluded by majority protest pursuant to section 53324 of the

Act.

3. Prior Proceedings Valid. All prior proceedings taken by this City Council

in connection with the establishment of the CFD and the levy of the special tax have

been duly considered and are hereby found and determined to be valid and in

conformity with the Act.

4. Name of CFD. The community facilities district designated " City of

Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services)" is hereby
established pursuant to the Act.

5. Boundaries of CFD. The boundaries of the CFD, as set forth in the map

of the CFD heretofore recorded in the San Joaquin County Recorder's Office on

February 22, 2024, as Document No. 2024-014664 of Maps of Assessment and

Community Facilities Districts, are hereby approved, are incorporated herein by
reference and shall be the boundaries of the CFD.

6. Description of Services. The type of public services proposed to be

financed by the CFD and pursuant to the Act shall consist of those items listed as

services in Exhibit A hereto and by this reference incorporated herein ( the

Services").

7. Special Tax. Except to the extent that funds are otherwise available to

the CFD to pay for the Services, a special tax ( the " Special Tax") sufficient to pay the

costs thereof, secured by the recordation of a continuing lien against all non-exempt
real property in the CFD, is intended to be levied annually within the CFD, and

collected in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem property taxes or in such other

manner as may be prescribed by this City Council.

The proposed rate and method of apportionment of the Special Tax among the

parcels of real property within the CFD, in sufficient detail to allow each landowner

within the proposed CFD to estimate the maximum amount such owner will have to

pay, are shown in Exhibit B attached hereto and hereby incorporated herein.

Attachment " A"

Page 2 of 4

491



8. Increased Demands. It is hereby found and determined that the

Services are necessary to meet increased demands placed upon local agencies as the

result of development occurring in the CFD.

9. Responsible Official. The Finance Director of the City of Lathrop, 390

Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330, 209-941-7200, is the officer of the City
who will be responsible for preparing annually a current roll of special tax levy

obligations by assessor's parcel number and who will be responsible for estimating
future special tax levies pursuant to the Act.

10. Tax Lien. Upon recordation of a notice of special tax lien pursuant to

Section 3114.5 of the Streets and Highways Code of California, a continuing lien to

secure each levy of the special tax shall attach to all nonexempt real property in the

CFD and this lien shall continue in force and effect until the special tax obligation is

prepaid and permanently satisfied and the lien canceled in accordance with law or

until collection of the tax by the City ceases.

11. Appropriations Limit. In accordance with the Act, the annual

appropriations limit, as defined by subdivision ( h) of Section 8 of Article XIII B of the

California Constitution, of the CFD is hereby preliminarily established at $ 3,000,000,
and said appropriations limit shall be submitted to the voters of the CFD as hereafter

provided. The proposition establishing said annual appropriations limit shall become

effective if approved by the qualified electors voting thereon and shall be adjusted in

accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act.

12. Election. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the proposition of the

levy of the special tax and the proposition of the establishment of the appropriations
limit specified above shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the CFD at an

election. The time, place and conditions of the election shall be as specified by a

separate resolution of this City Council.

13. Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.

Attachment " A"

Page 3 of 4

492



I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced and

adopted by the City Council of the City of Lathrop at a meeting held on the 8th day of

April, 2024, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Attachment " A"

Page 4 of 4

493



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF LATHROP

Community Facilities District No. 2024-1

Eagles Landing Services)

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES TO BE FINANCED BY THE CFD

Services

The services to be funded, in whole or in part, by the community facilities

district ( CFD) include all direct and incidental costs related to providing public
services and maintenance of public infrastructure within the Eagles Landing area

including the area in the CFD, as well as areas adjacent to the foregoing. More

specifically, the services shall include, but not be limited to: (i) police protection

services, (ii) maintenance of open space, including trails and habitat areas, with

services to include, but not be limited to, irrigation and vegetation control; ( iii)
maintenance of roads and roadways, with services to include, but not be limited to,

regularly scheduled street sweeping, repair of public streets, striping of streets and

repair and repainting of sound walls and other appurtenances; (iv) storm protection

services, including, but not limited to, the operation and maintenance of storm

drainage systems, ( v) landscaping in public areas and in the public right of way

along public streets, including, but not limited to, irrigation, tree trimming and

vegetation maintenance and control; and ( vi) any other public services authorized

to be funded under Section 53313 of the California Government Code that are not

already funded by another community facilities district on the property within the

CFD.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the services described in

the preceding paragraph: obtaining, constructing, furnishing, operating and

maintaining equipment, apparatus or facilities related to providing the services

and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to be maintained, paying
the salaries and benefits of personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, payment of insurance costs and other related expenses and the provision
of reserves for repairs and replacements and for the future provision of services.

The services to be financed by the CFD are in addition to those provided in the

territory of the CFD before the date of formation of the CFD and will not supplant
services already available within that territory when the District is created.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses to be funded by the CFD include the direct and

indirect expenses incurred by the City of Lathrop ( City) in carrying out its duties

with respect to the CFD including, but not limited to, the levy and collection of the

special taxes, the fees and expenses of attorneys, any fees of the County of San

Joaquin related to the CFD or the collection of special taxes, an allocable share of

the salaries of any City staff directly related thereto and a proportionate amount of

the City's general administrative overhead related thereto, any amounts paid by the

Exhibit " A"

Page 1 of 2

494



City from its general fund with respect to the CFD or the services authorized to be

financed by the CFD, and expenses incurred by the City in undertaking action to

foreclose on properties for which the payment of special taxes is delinquent, and all

other costs and expenses of the City in any way related to the CFD.

Other

The incidental expenses that may be funded by the CFD include, in addition

to the administrative expenses identified above, the payment or reimbursement to

the CFD of all costs associated with the establishment and ongoing administration

of the CFD.

Exhibit " A"

Page 2of2

495



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

FOR CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2024-1

EAGLES LANDING SERVICES)

A Special Tax, as hereinafter defined, shall be levied and collected in City of Lathrop Community Facilities

District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services) ("CFD No. 2024-1") each Fiscal Year commencing in Fiscal

Year 2024/25, in an amount determined by the application of the procedures below. All Taxable Property,

as hereinafter defined, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the

purposes, to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meaning:

Accessory Dwelling Unit" or " ADU" means all Assessor's Parcels of Single -Family Residential

Detached Property for which a building permit(s) has been issued for an " Accessory Dwelling Unit"

as defined in California Government Code Section 65852.2(j)(1), as may be amended from time to

time, which is accessory to a primary Unit. The ADU may be located on the same Assessor's Parcel

as the primary Unit or on a separate Assessor's Parcel. For purposes of clarification, where an ADU

and primary Unit are on the same Assessor's Parcel, the ADU located on such Assessor's Parcel is

considered a separate Unit from the primary Unit on such Assessor's Parcel for purposes of the

Special Tax. Should an Assessor's Parcel contain only an ADU, such Assessor's Parcel will be taxed

as an ADU Unit only.

Acre or Acreage" means the land area of an Assessor's Parcel as shown on an Assessor's Parcel

Map or in the Assessor's Data for each Assessor's Parcel. In the event the Assessor's Parcel Map or

Assessor's Data shows no Acreage, the Acreage for any Assessor's Parcel shall be determined by the

CFD Administrator based upon the applicable final map, parcel map, condominium plan, or other

recorded County parcel map. If the preceding maps are not available, the Acreage of an Assessor's

Parcel may be determined utilizing GIS.

Act" means the Mello -Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,

Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State.

Administrative Expenses" means the actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related to the

administration of CFD No. 2024-1 including, but not limited to, the following: the costs of computing

the Annual Special Tax Requirement and of preparing the Special Tax collection schedules; the costs

of collecting the Special Tax, including any charges levied by the County Auditor's Office, Tax

Collector's Office or Treasurer's Office; the costs of the City or designee in complying with the

disclosure requirements of the California Government Code ( including the Act), including public

inquiries regarding the Special Tax; the costs of the City or designee related to an appeal of the

Special Tax; and the costs of commencing and pursuing to completion any action arising from any

delinquent Special Tax in CFD No. 2024-1. Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts

estimated or advanced by the City or CFD No. 2024-1 for any other administrative purposes,

including, but not limited to, attorney's fees.

Exhibit " B"
City of Lathrop

Community Facilities District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services) Page 1

496



Annual Services Costs" means the respective amounts determined by the CFD Administrator

required to fund services authorized to be funded by CFD No. 2024-1 for the applicable yearly

period.

Annual Special Tax Requirement" means that amount with respect to CFD No. 2024-1 determined

by the City Council or designee as required in any Fiscal Year to pay: (1) the Administrative Expenses,

2) the Annual Services Costs, (3) any amount required to establish or replenish any reserve or

replacement fund established in connection with CFD No. 2024-1, and ( 4) any reasonably

anticipated delinquent Special Tax based on the delinquency rate for any Special Tax levied in the

previous Fiscal Year.

Assessor's Data" means Assessor's Parcel Number, Units, Acreage, or other information contained

in the records of the County Assessor for each Assessor's Parcel.

Assessor's Parcel" or " Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map and/or

Assessor's Data with an assigned Assessor's Parcel Number.

Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the Assessor of the County designating parcels

by Assessor's Parcel Number.

Assessor's Parcel Number" means, with respect to an Assessor's Parcel, that number assigned to

such Assessor's Parcel by the County Assessor for purposes of identification.

Building Square Feet" or " BSF" means all of the square footage within the perimeter of a

residential structure, not including any carport, walkway, garage, overhang, patio, enclosed patio,

or similar area. The determination of Building Square Feet shall be made by reference to the

Assessor's Data. If the Assessor's Data does not show Building Square Feet, building permit(s)

issued for such structure, or other records of the City shall be used, as determined by the CFD

Administrator.

City means the City of Lathrop, California.

City Council" means the City Council of the City, acting as the legislative body of CFD No. 2024-1.

CFD Administrator" means an official of the City, or designee thereof, responsible for determining

the Annual Special Tax Requirement and providing for the levy and collection of the Special Taxes.

CFD No. 2024-1" means the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2024-1 (Eagles

Landing Services).

County" means the County of San Joaquin.

County Assessor" means the County Assessor of the County.

Developed Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property in CFD No. 2024-1 for which

a building permit for new construction was issued by the City prior to June 1 of the preceding Fiscal

Year.

Exempt Property" means all Assessors' Parcels within the boundary of CFD No. 2024-1 which are

exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section E.

City of Lathrop

Community Facilities District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services) Page 2

497



Final Subdivision Map" means a subdivision of property created by recordation of a final

subdivision map, parcel map or lot line adjustment, approved by the City pursuant to the Subdivision

Map Act ( California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.) or recordation of a condominium plan

pursuant to California Civil Code 4120, that creates individual lots for which residential building

permits may be issued without further subdivision of such property.

Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

GIS" means a geographic information system.

Initiative # 1935" means initiative constitutional amendment 1935 which is eligible for the

November 5, 2024, general election ballot and will be certified as qualified unless withdrawn by the

proponent prior to June 27, 2024.

Maximum Special Tax" means the maximum Special Tax authorized to fund the Annual Special Tax

Requirement in any Fiscal Year that may apply to Taxable Property as described in Section C.

Mixed - Use Property" means all Assessor's Parcels of Developed Property that have more than one

land use category, allowing for both a Single -Family Residential Detached Property Unit and an ADU

Unit on each such Assessor's Parcel. For an Assessor's Parcel of Mixed - Use Property, the Special Tax

shall be calculated and levied for each use type present on the Assessor's Parcel.

Open Space Property" means property within the boundaries of CFD No. 2024-1 which ( i) has been

designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Final Subdivision Map as open space, ( ii) is

classified by the County Assessor as open space, (iii) has been irrevocably offered for dedication as

open space to the federal government, the State, the County, the City, or any other public agency,

or ( iv) is encumbered by an easement or other restriction required by the City limiting the use of

such property to open space.

Property Owner's Association" means any property owner's association. As used in this definition,

a Property Owner's Association includes any home -owner's association, condominium owner's

association, master or sub -association or non-residential owner's association.

Property Owner's Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No.

2024-1 which is ( a) owned by a Property Owner's Association or ( b) designated with specific

boundaries and acreage on a Final Subdivision Map as property owner association property.

Proportionately" means for Taxable Property that the ratio of the Special Tax levy to the Maximum

Annual Special Tax is equal for all Assessors' Parcels of Taxable Property levied within each property

land use classification within CFD No. 2024-1.

Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of CFD No. 2024-1 which ( i) is owned

by a public agency, ( ii) has been irrevocably offered for dedication to a public agency, or ( iii) is

designated with specific boundaries and Acreage on a Final Subdivision Map as property which will

be owned by a public agency. For purposes of this definition, a public agency includes the federal

government, the State, the County, the City, school districts, or any other public agency.

City of Lathrop

Community Facilities District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services) Page 3

498



Single Family Residential Detached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels of Developed Property

for which a building permit(s) has been issued for a detached residential structure intended as a

single primary Unit.

Special Tax" means the amount levied in each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property to fund the Annual Special Tax Requirement.

State" means the State of California.

Taxable Property" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 2024-1

that are not Exempt Property.

Undeveloped Property" means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 2024-

1 that is not classified as Developed Property, Open Space Property, Property Owner's Association

Property, or Public Property.

Unit" means ( i) for Single Family Residential Detached Property, an individual single family

detached residential unit and ( ii) for ADUs, each residential unit. The number of Units assigned to

each Assessor's Parcel may be determined by ( i) referencing Assessor's Data, (ii) site surveys and

physical unit counts, and/or (iii) other research by the CFD Administrator.

Welfare Exempt Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No.

2024-1 that ( a) have been granted a welfare exemption by the County under subdivision ( g) of

Section 214 of the Revenue and Taxation Code indicated in the Assessor's Data finalized as of

January 1 of the previous Fiscal Year, and ( b) are exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to Section

53340(c) of the Act.

B. DETERMINATION OF TAXABLE PARCELS

Each Fiscal Year, the CFD Administrator shall determine the valid Assessor's Parcel Numbers for all

Taxable Property within CFD No. 2024-1. If any Assessor's Parcel Numbers are no longer valid, the

CFD Administrator shall determine the new Assessor's Parcel Number or Numbers in effect for the

then -current Fiscal Year. To the extent a Parcel or Parcels of Taxable Property are subdivided,

consolidated, or otherwise reconfigured, the Maximum Special Tax shall be assigned to the new

Assessor's Parcels Numbers pursuant to Section C. The CFD Administrator shall also determine: (i)

which Parcels are Taxable Property; (iii) the number of Units or Building Square Footage each Parcel

contains; ( iv) the property type, i.e., Single -Family Residential Detached Property, Accessory

Dwelling Unit, or Mixed - Use Property; and ( v) the Annual Special Tax Requirement for the Fiscal

Year.

C. MAXIMUM ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX RATES

The Maximum Special Taxes for each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property shall be assigned below:

City of Lathrop

Community Facilities District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services) Page 4

499



1. Maximum Special Taxes

The Maximum Special Tax for each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property shall be assigned

according to Table 1 below:

TABLE 1

MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX RATES

FISCAL YEAR 2024/25*

Land Use Category

Maximum

Special Tax

Rate Per

Single - Family Residential Detached Property 1,625.00 Unit

Accessory Dwelling Unit See Below Unit

Accessory Dwelling Unit

The Maximum Special Tax for an Accessory Dwelling Unit shall be calculated as a percentage of

the Maximum Special Tax for the primary Unit the ADU is accessory to, based on Building Square

Footage. For example, if a primary Single -Family Residential Detached Property Unit with 2,000

BSF has an ADU of 800 BSF, the Maximum Special Tax for the ADU shall be calculated by the

following steps:

1. 800 BSF / 2,000 BSF = 0.40 or 40%

2. $ 1,625.00 Maximum Special Tax per Unit x 40% = $650.00 Maximum Special Tax for

such ADU

On July 1 of each Fiscal Year, commencing on July 1, 2025, the Maximum Special Tax rates shall

be increased by the lesser of ( i) the increase from the prior Fiscal Year, if any, in the Local

Consumer Price Index ( CPI) for the San Francisco -Oakland - Hayward Area for All Urban

Consumers, or (ii) four percent (4%). The CPI used shall be as determined by the Bureau of Labor

Statistics from April -to -April beginning with the period from April 2024 to April 2025.

In some instances, an Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property may be Mixed -Use Property. The

Maximum Special Tax levied on an Assessor's Parcel shall be the sum of the Maximum Special

Tax for all Units of each property type on that Assessor's Parcel.

2. Assignment of Assessor's Parcel(s) to Property Land Use Category

When an Assessor's Parcel changes from being classified as Undeveloped Property to another

land use category and is considered Developed Property, that assignment shall not change due

to future changes in land use.

3. Assignment of Maximum Special Tax to Newly Created Assessor'sParcel(s)

After a Final Subdivision Map has been recorded, if there are changes to the overall planned

development within CFD No. 2024-1, the process for assigning the Maximum Special Tax to each

City of Lathrop

Community Facilities District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services) Page 5

500



Assessor's Parcel expected to be classified as Single -Family Residential Detached Property is as

follows:

Step 1: Determine the then -current total expected Maximum Special Tax for CFD No. 2024-1,

by referencing Table 2.

Step 2: Identify the Assessor's Parcel(s) of Taxable Property expected to be classified as Single -

Family Residential Detached Property and assign the Maximum Special Tax to each Assessor's

Parcel of Taxable Property expected to be classified as Single -Family Residential Detached

Property according to the then - current Maximum Special Tax Rates for such category. Sum the

Maximum Special Tax assigned to each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property expected to be

classified as Single -Family Residential Detached Property.

Step 3: Divide the total expected Maximum Special Tax in Step 1 by the total Maximum Special

Tax assigned in Step 2 to arrive at a fraction.

Step 4: Apportion the total expected Maximum Special Tax from Step 1 to each Assessor's Parcel

of Taxable Property expected to be classified as Single -Family Residential Detached Property by

multiplying each Assessor'sParcel fraction, determined in Step 3, by the then -current Maximum

Special Tax Rates for Single -Family Residential Detached Property.

Step 5: The Maximum Special Tax assigned to each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property

expected to be classified as Single -Family Residential Detached Property shall be the greater of

the Maximum Special Tax assigned in Step 2 or the Maximum Special Tax calculated in Step 4.

If there are no changes to the planned development within CFD No. 2024-1, the Maximum

Special Tax shall be assigned according to Table 1.

The planned development is provided in the table below:

TABLE 2

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AND TOTAL EXPECTED MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX

FISCAL YEAR 2024/25*

Land Use Category

Planned

Development

Total Expected
Maximum

Special Tax

Single - Family Residential Detached Property 95 Units 154,375.00

On July 1 of each Fiscal Year, commencing on July 1, 2025, the Maximum Special Tax rates shall

be increased by the lesser of ( i) the increase from the prior Fiscal Year, if any, in the Local

Consumer Price Index ( CPI) for the San Francisco -Oakland - Hayward Area for All Urban

Consumers, or (ii) four percent (4%). The CPI used shall be as determined by the Bureau of Labor

Statistics from April -to -April beginning with the period from April 2024 to April 2025.

Once created, if a newly created Assessor's Parcel(s) of Taxable Property further changes or

subdivides, the above steps shall be repeated to determine the Maximum Special Tax for the

City of Lathrop

Community Facilities District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services) Page 6

501



additional newly created Assessor's Parcel(s) of Taxable Property created from the change or

subdivision.

D. METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF THE SPECIAL TAXES

All Taxable Property shall be subject to the Special Tax defined as follows. The Special Tax shall be

levied each Fiscal Year by the CFD Administrator.

The Annual Special Tax Requirement shall be apportioned to each Parcel within CFD No. 2024-1 by

the method shown below.

First: Determine the Annual Special Tax Requirement.

Second: Levy the Special Tax on each Parcel of Developed Property, Proportionately, up to the

applicable Maximum Special Tax.

Under no circumstances will the Special Taxes on any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property be

increased by more than 10% as a consequence of delinquency or default by the owner of any other

Assessor's Parcel within CFD No. 2024-1.

E. EXEMPTIONS

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax, no

Special Tax shall be levied on Open Space Property, Property Owner's Association Property,

Undeveloped Property, Assessor's Parcels with public or utility easements making impractical their

utilization for any use other than the purposes set forth in the easement, or Public Property, except

as otherwise provided in Sections 53317.3, 53317.5 and 533401 of the Act.

No Special Tax shall be levied on any Assessor's Parcel in any Fiscal Year in which such Assessor's

Parcel is classified as Welfare Exempt Property.

F. APPEAL OF SPECIAL TAX LEVY

Any property owner may file a written appeal of the Special Tax with the CFD Administrator claiming

that the amount or application of the Special Tax is not correct. The appeal must be filed not later

than one calendar year after having paid the Special Tax that is disputed, and the appellant must be

current in all payments of the Special Tax. In addition, during the term of the appeal process, all

Special Tax levied must be paid on or before the payment date established when the levy was made.

The appeal must specify the reasons why the appellant claims the Special Tax is in error. The CFD

Administrator shall review the appeal, meet with the appellant if the CFD Administrator deems

necessary, and advise the appellant of its determination.

If the property owner disagrees with the CFD Administrator's decision relative to the appeal, the

owner may then file a written appeal with the City Council whose subsequent decision shall be final

and binding on all interested parties. If the decision of the CFD Administrator or subsequent decision

by the City Council requires the Special Tax to be modified or changed in favor of the property owner,

then an adjustment shall be made to credit the Special Tax in future years.

City of Lathrop

Community Facilities District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services) Page 7

502



This procedure shall be exclusive and its exhaustion by any property owner shall be a condition

precedent to filing any legal action by such owner.

G. INTERPRETATIONS OF RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

The City reserves the right to make minor administrative and technical changes to this document

that do not materially affect the rate and method of apportioning the Special Tax. In addition, the

interpretation and application of any section of this document shall be at the City's discretion.

Interpretations may be made by the City Council by ordinance or resolution for purposes of clarifying

any vagueness or ambiguity in this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

H. MANNER AND DURATION OF SPECIAL TAX

The Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad valorem

property taxes, provided that the City may directly bill the Special Tax, may collect the Special Tax at

a different time or in a different manner if needed to meet the financial obligations of CFD No. 2024-

1, and may collect delinquent Special Taxes through available methods.

A Special Tax shall be levied commencing in Fiscal Year 2024/25 to the extent necessary to satisfy

the Annual Special Tax Requirement and shall be levied each Fiscal Year thereafter for as long as

required to satisfy the Annual Special Tax Requirement. However, should Initiative # 1935 be included

as an initiative measure at election and subsequently be approved by voters, the duration of the

Special Tax is 500 years.

I. PREPAYMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

The Special Tax may not be prepaid.

City of Lathrop

Community Facilities District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services) Page 8

503



RESOLUTION NO. 24-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP CALLING

SPECIAL ELECTION

CITY OF LATHROP

Community Facilities District No. 2024-1

Eagles Landing Services)

WHEREAS, this City Council has adopted a resolution entitled " Resolution of

Formation of Community Facilities District" (the " Resolution of Formation"), ordering
the formation of the " City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2024-1

Eagles Landing Services)" (the " CFD"), authorizing the levy of a special tax on

property within the CFD and preliminarily establishing an appropriations limit for the

CFD, all pursuant to the Mello - Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, Chapter 2.5

of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing with Section 53311, of the California

Government Code ( the " Act"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Resolution of Formation, the

propositions of the levy of the special tax and the establishment of the

appropriations limit shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the CFD as

required by the provisions of the Act;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, as follows:

1. Issues Submitted. Pursuant to Sections 53326, 53351 and 53325.7 of

the Act, the issues of the levy of the special tax and the establishment of the

appropriations limit shall be submitted to the qualified electors ( as defined below) of

the CFD at an election called therefor as provided below.

2. Qualified Electors. This Council hereby finds that fewer than 12

persons have been registered to vote within the territory of the CFD for each of the

90 days preceding the close of the public hearings heretofore conducted and

concluded by this Council for the purposes of these proceedings. Accordingly, and

pursuant to Section 53326 of the Act, this Council finds that, for these proceedings,
the qualified electors are the landowners within the CFD and that the vote shall be

by such landowners or their authorized representatives, each having one vote for

each acre or portion thereof such landowner owns in the CFD as of the close of the

public hearings.

3. Conduct of Election. This Council hereby calls a special election to

consider the measures described in section 1 above, which election shall be held on

April 8, 2024 and the results thereof canvassed at the meeting of this Council on

April 8, 2024. The City Clerk is hereby designated as the official to conduct the

election and to receive all ballots until 7:00 p.m. on the election date. It is hereby

acknowledged that the City Clerk has on file the Resolution of Formation, a certified

map of the boundaries of the CFD, and a sufficient description to allow the City
Clerk to determine the electors of the CFD. Pursuant to Section 53327 of the Act,

Page 1 of 5

Attachment B"

504



the election shall be conducted by messenger or mail -delivered ballot pursuant to

Section 4000 of the California Elections Code. This Council hereby finds that

paragraphs ( a), (b), (c) (1) and ( c)(3) of Section 4000 are applicable to this special
election.

4. Ballot. As authorized by Section 53353.5 of the Act, the two

propositions described in section 1 above shall be combined into a single ballot

measure, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit " A", which is hereby

approved and by this reference incorporated herein. The City Clerk is hereby
authorized and directed to cause a ballot, in substantially the form of Exhibit " A," to

be delivered to each of the qualified electors of the CFD. Each ballot shall indicate

the number of votes to be voted by the respective landowner to which the ballot

pertains. Each ballot shall be accompanied by all supplies and written instructions

necessary for the use and return of the ballot as appropriate under the Act.

5. Waivers. This Council hereby further finds that the provisions of

Section 53326 of the Act requiring a minimum of 90 days following the adoption of

the Resolution of Formation to elapse before the special election are for the

protection of the qualified electors of the CFD. There is on file with the City Clerk a

written waiver executed by all of the qualified electors of the CFD allowing for a

shortening of the time for the special election to expedite the process of formation

of the CFD and waiving any requirement for notice, analysis and arguments and

other requirements and formalities in connection with the election. Accordingly, this

Council finds and determines that the qualified electors have requested formation of

the CFD and have been fully apprised of the CFD, tax rates, uses of the tax and all

other matters related to the CFD, and have agreed to the shortened time for the

election and waiver of analysis and arguments, and have thereby been fully
informed and protected in these proceedings. This Council also finds and

determines that the City Clerk has concurred in the shortened time for the election.

Analysis and arguments with respect to the ballot measures are hereby waived, as

provided in Section 53327 of the Act.

6. Accountability. Under Sections 50075.1 and 53410 of the Government

Code, the following accountability provisions shall apply to the special taxes: (a) the

providing of Services and the incidental costs thereof, all as defined in the

Resolution of Formation, shall constitute the specific single purpose; ( b) the

proceeds shall be applied only to the specific purposes identified in ( a) above; (c)
there shall be created special account(s) or funds(s) into which the proceeds shall

be deposited; and ( d) there shall be caused to be prepared an annual report as

required by Sections 50075.3 of the Government Code.

7. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.

Page 2 of 5

Attachment " B"

505



I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced and

adopted by the City Council of the City of Lathrop at a meeting held on the 8th day
of April, 2024, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Page 3 of 5

Attachment " B"

506



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF LATHROP

Community Facilities District No. 2024-1

Eagles Landing Services)

OFFICIAL BALLOT

SPECIAL TAX ELECTION

This ballot is for a special, landowner election for a community facilities

district. You must return this ballot in the enclosed postage paid envelope to the

office of the City Clerk of the City of Lathrop no later than the hour of 7:00 p.m. on

2024, either by mail or in person. The City Clerk's office is located at

390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330.

To vote, mark a cross ( X) on the voting line after the word " YES" or after the

word " NO". All marks otherwise made are forbidden. All distinguishing marks are

forbidden and make the ballot void. If you wrongly mark, tear, or deface this ballot,
return it to the City Clerk of the City of Lathrop and obtain another.

Shall the measure pursuant to which the City of

Lathrop on behalf of its Community Facilities District

No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services) (the " CFD") will

i) levy a special tax within the CFD at rates of YES

1,625/residential unit ( with other property taxed at

other rates) for 500 years, subject to annual

escalation, in accordance with the rate and method of

apportionment of special taxes for the CFD attached

hereto, raising $ 154,375 in Fiscal Year 2024-25 NO

assuming full build - out of the CFD), to pay for

services in the listing attached hereto; and ( ii) the

annual appropriations limit of the CFD shall initially be

3,000,000, subject to escalation, be adopted?

The undersigned is the authorized representative of the below - named

landowner and is the person legally authorized and entitled to cast this ballot on

behalf of the below -named landowner. By execution in the space provided below,
the undersigned Landowner certifies that such owner has initiated, requested
and/or reviewed all the CFD provisions and proceedings leading up to this election,

including the list of authorized facilities, the bond indebtedness limit for the CFD,
and the Rate and Method of Apportionment, which includes the tax rates and

duration of the special tax to be placed on the Landowner's property. The

undersigned has waived ( i) the time limit pertaining to the conduct of the election,
ii) any requirement for analysis and arguments with respect to the ballot measure,

and ( iii) any irregularity in the proceedings that may be claimed as a result of the

application of such waivers.

A- 1

507



Further, the undersigned, on behalf of the below - named Landowner, hereby

knowingly, voluntarily and intelligently waives any and all defects in any notice,

ballot, or procedure related to the conduct of the election, whether known or

unknown, including any requirements set forth in The Taxpayer Protection and

Government Accountability Act, which is a constitutional initiative that has qualified
for the November 2024 Statewide ballot ( except the right to vote and to have the

ballots fairly counted), and states that the election is being expedited at the

particular instance and request of the Landowner.

By execution in the space provided below, you also indicate your waiver of ( i)
the time limit pertaining to the conduct of the election, ( ii) any requirement for

analysis and arguments with respect to the ballot measure, and ( iii) any irregularity
in the proceedings that may be claimed as a result of the application of such

waivers.

Number of Votes:

Property Owner:

A- 2

508



RESOLUTION NO. 24-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

DECLARING RESULTS OF SPECIAL ELECTION AND DIRECTING RECORDING

OF NOTICE OF SPECIAL TAX LIEN

CITY OF LATHROP

Community Facilities District No. 2024-1

Eagles Landing Services)

WHEREAS, this City Council has adopted a resolution entitled " Resolution of

Formation of Community Facilities District" (the " Resolution of Formation"), ordering
the formation of the " City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2024-1

Eagles Landing Services)" ( the " CFD"), authorizing the levy of a special tax on

property within the CFD and preliminarily establishing an appropriations limit for the

CFD, all pursuant to the Mello -Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, Chapter 2.5

of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing with Section 53311, of the California

Government Code ( the " Act"); and

WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Resolution of Formation and pursuant
to a " Resolution Calling Special Election" ( the " Election Resolution") heretofore

adopted by this City Council the propositions of the levy of the special tax and the

establishment of the appropriations limit were submitted to the qualified electors of

the CFD as required by the provisions of the Act; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Election Resolution, which are by
this reference incorporated herein, the special election has been held and the City
Clerk has on file a Canvass and Statement of Results of Election, ( the " Canvass") a

copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, this City Council has reviewed the Canvass, finds it appropriate
and wishes to complete its proceedings for the CFD.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED as follows:

1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are all true and correct.

2. Issues Presented. The issues presented at the special election were

the levy of a special tax within the CFD and the approval of an annual

appropriations limit of not to exceed $ 3,000,000, all pursuant to the Resolution of

Formation.

3. Canvass and Issues Approved. The Council hereby approves the

Canvass and finds that it shall be a permanent part of the record of its proceedings
for the CFD. Pursuant to the Canvass, the issues presented at the special election

Page 1 of 4

Attachment " C"

509



were approved by the qualified electors of the CFD by more than two-thirds (2/3) of

the votes cast at the special election.

4. Proceedings Approved. Pursuant to the voter approval, the CFD is

hereby declared to be fully formed with the authority to levy the special taxes and

to have the established appropriations limit, all as heretofore provided in these

proceedings and in the Act. It is hereby found that all prior proceedings and actions

taken by this City Council with respect to the CFD were valid and in conformity with

the Act.

5. Notice of Tax Lien. The City Clerk is hereby directed to complete,
execute and cause to be recorded in the office of the County Recorder of the

County of San Joaquin a notice of special tax lien in the form required by the Act,

such recording to occur no later than fifteen ( 15) days following adoption by the

Council of this resolution.

6. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.

Page 2 of 4

Attachment " C"

510



I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced and

adopted by the City Council of the City of Lathrop at a meeting held on the 8th day
of April, 2024, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Page 3 of 4

Attachment " C"

511



CANVASS AND STATEMENT OF RESULT OF ELECTION

CITY OF LATHROP

Community Facilities District No. 2024-1

Eagles Landing Services)

I hereby certify that on April 8, 2024 I canvassed the returns of the election

held on April 8, 2024 in the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2024-1

Eagles Landing Services) and the total number of ballots cast in said District and

the total number of votes cast for and against the measure are as follows and the

totals as shown for and against the measure are full, true and correct:

Qualified
Landowner Votes

Votes Cast

City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2024-1

Eagles Landing Services)
Special Tax Election, April 8, 2024

YES NO

Shall the measure pursuant to which the City of Lathrop
on behalf of its Community Facilities District No. 2024-1

Eagles Landing Services) ( the " CFD") will ( i) levy a

special tax within the CFD at rates of $ 1,625/residential
unit ( with other property taxed at other rates) for 500

years, subject to annual escalation, in accordance with

the rate and method of apportionment of special taxes for

the CFD attached hereto, raising $ 154,375 in Fiscal Year

2024-25 (assuming full build - out of the CFD), to pay for

services in the listing attached hereto; and ( ii) the annual

appropriations limit of the CFD shall initially be

3,000,000, subject to escalation, be adopted?

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND this

day of , 2024.

By:
City Clerk

EXHIBIT A

512



ORDINANCE NO. 24 -

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP LEVYING

SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN CITY OF LATHROP COMMUNITY FACILITIES

DISTRICT NO. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services)

WHEREAS, on February 12, 2024 this City Council ( the " City Council") of the

City of Lathrop ( the " City"), adopted a resolution entitled " Resolution of Intention to

Establish Community Facilities District " stating its intention to establish " City of

Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2024-1 (Eagles Landing Services)" ( the

CFD") pursuant to the Mello - Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended,

sections 53311, et. seq., of the California Government Code ( the " Act"), to finance

certain public services ( the " Services"); and

WHEREAS, notice was published as required by the Act relative to the

intention of this City Council to form the CFD and to provide for the Services; and

WHEREAS, this City Council has held noticed public hearings as required by

the Act relative to ( i) the determination to proceed with the formation of the CFD

and the rate and method of apportionment of the special tax to be levied within the

CFD to finance the authorized Services for the CFD; and

WHEREAS, at said hearing all persons desiring to be heard on all matters

pertaining to the formation of the CFD and the levy of said special taxes were

heard, substantial evidence was presented and considered by this City Council and

a full and fair hearing was held; and

WHEREAS, subsequent to the hearing, this City Council adopted resolutions

entitled " Resolution of Formation of Community Facilities District" (the " Resolution

of Formation") and " Resolution Calling Special Election", which resolutions defined

the public Services to be financed by the CFD ( the " Services"), established the CFD,

authorized the levy of a special tax with the CFD and called an election within the

CFD on the propositions of levying a special tax, and establishing an appropriations
limit within the CFD, respectively; and

WHEREAS, on April 8, 2024 a special election was held within the CFD at

which the eligible landowner - electors approved such propositions by the two-thirds

vote required by the Act.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF LATHROP, as follows:

Section 1. By the passage of this Ordinance this City Council hereby
authorizes and levies special taxes within the CFD pursuant to the Act, at the rate

and in accordance with the formula ( the " Rate and Method") set forth in the

Resolution of Formation, which Resolution of Formation is by this reference

Page 1 of 3

Attachment " D"

513



incorporated herein. The special taxes are hereby levied commencing in fiscal year

2024-25 and in each fiscal year for the period provided in the Rate and Method, as

contemplated by the Resolution of Formation, and all costs of administering the

CFD.

Section 2. The Finance Director of the City is hereby authorized and

directed each fiscal year to determine the specific special tax rate and amount to be

levied for the next ensuing fiscal year for each parcel of real property within the

CFD, in the manner and as provided in the Resolution of Formation.

Section 3. Properties or entities of the State, federal or local governments
shall be exempt from any levy of the special taxes. In no event shall the special
taxes be levied on any parcel within the CFD in excess of the maximum tax

specified in the Resolution of Formation.

Section 4. All of the collections of the special tax shall be used as provided
for in the Act and in the Resolution of Formation including, but not limited to, the

payment of the costs of the Services, the payment of the costs of the City in

administering the CFD, and the costs of collecting and administering the special tax.

Section 5. The special taxes shall be collected in the same manner as

ordinary ad valorem taxes are collected and shall have the same lien priority, and

be subject to the same penalties and the same procedure and sale in cases of

delinquency as provided for ad valorem taxes; provided, however, that this City
Council may provide for other appropriate methods of collection by resolutions of

this City Council. In addition, the provisions of Section 53356.1 of the Act shall

apply to delinquent special tax payments. The Finance Director of the City is

hereby authorized and directed to provide all necessary information to the

auditor/tax collector of the County of San Joaquin in order to effect proper billing
and collection of the special tax, so that the special tax shall be included on the

secured property tax roll of the County of San Joaquin for fiscal year 2024-25 and

for each fiscal year thereafter for the period of time provided in the Rate and

Method.

Section 6. If for any reason any portion of this Ordinance is found to be

invalid, or if the special tax is found inapplicable to any particular parcel within the

CFD, by a court of competent jurisdiction, the balance of this Ordinance and the

application of the special tax to the remaining parcels within the CFD shall not be

affected.

Section 7. The Mayor shall sign this Ordinance and the City Clerk shall

cause the same to be published within fifteen ( 15) days after its passage at least

once in a newspaper of general circulation published and circulated in the City.

Section 8. This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days from the date of final

passage.

Page 2 of 3

Attachment " D"

514



THIS ORDINANCE was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council

of the City of Lathrop on the 8th day of April 2024, and was PASSED AND

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on the

day of , 2024, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Page 3 of 3

Attachment " D"

515



PAGE LEFT

INTENTIONALLY

BLANK

516



ITEM 5.3

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: DISCUSS AND CONSIDER OPTIONS TO INSTALL A

FENCE OR WALL ON MCKEE BOULEVARD FROM RIVER

ISLANDS PARKWAY TO TOWNE CENTRE DRIVE

RECOMMENDATION: Discuss and Consider Options to Install a Fence or

Wall on McKee Boulevard from River Islands

Parkway to Towne Centre Drive

SUMMARY:

The Mossdale Landing community was built in 2004 with backyards fronting McKee

Boulevard. The backyard wood fences are privately owned and are failing after 20

years of service. Residents are replacing fences sporadically, creating a mix of styles,

quality and colors along a main collector road. Residents have requested a new fence

or wall along McKee Boulevard from River Islands Parkway to Towne Centre Drive to

maintain aesthetics and security.

Staff reviewed the street cross-section on McKee Boulevard and determined that

there is sufficient space between the sidewalk and the property line to install a new

fence or wall parallel to the existing fences. The proposed fence or wall will be offset

from the existing backyard fences and constructed entirely within public right-of-way.

The following options are being presented to Council for review and consideration of

a new fence or wall:

Option 1 —Install New Wood Fence

Approximate cost is $ 550,000)

Recommended: Simplified scope of work; time cost effective

Option 2 —Construct New Masonry Wall

Approximate cost is $ 2,100,000)

Not Recommended: High cost; requires structural design, footings,
grading and rebar

Staff will pursue the option selected by Council and bring an item back for Council to

create a Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) and approve a budget amendment to

complete the corresponding design services.

517



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER OPTIONS TO INSTALL A FENCE OR WALL ON

MCKEE BOULEVARD FROM RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY TO TOWNE CENTRE

DRIVE FENCE

BACKGROUND:

The Mossdale Landing community is located west of Interstate 5 between Central

Lathrop to the north and the San Joaquin River to the south. The community was

built in 2004 with backyards fronting McKee Boulevard. The backyard wood fences

are privately owned and are failing after 20 years of service. Residents are replacing
fences sporadically, creating a mix of styles, quality and colors along a main collector

road. Residents have requested a new fence or wall along McKee Boulevard from

River Islands Parkway to Towne Centre Drive to maintain aesthetics and security.

Since the existing fences are owned and maintained by the residents, the only way

for the City to maintain aesthetic consistency and security is to build and maintain

another fence or wall within the public right of way that is parallel to the private
fences.

Staff reviewed the street cross-section on McKee Boulevard and determined there is

sufficient space between the sidewalk and the property line to install a new fence or

wall parallel to the existing fences. The options listed above are being presented to

Council for review and consideration of a new perimeter fence or wall within public
right-of-way and parallel to the existing backyard fences.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The backyard wood fences are privately owned and are failing after 20 years of

service. Residents are replacing fences sporadically, creating a mix of styles, quality
and colors along a main collector road. The only way for the City to maintain aesthetic

consistency and security is to build and maintain another fence or wall within the

public right of way that is parallel to the private fences.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff will pursue the option selected by Council and bring an item back for Council to

create a Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) and approve a budget amendment to

complete the design services.

518



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 8, 2024 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

DISCUSS AND CONSIDER OPTIONS TO INSTALL A FENCE OR WALL ON

MCKEE BOULEVARD FROM RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY TO TOWNE CENTRE

DRIVE FENCE

APPROVALS:

Angel brca

Assistant Engineer

Brad Paylor
City Engineer

Cari Ja,n s

Direct dr of Finance

2ozy

Date

4/1/
Date

Date

y •\. 2oz){

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Ste en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

519



PAGE LEFT

INTENTIONALLY

BLANK

520


	2024-04-08 City Council Regular Meeting Agenda
	2024-04-08 Item 4.2 Approve Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of  February 12, 2024
	2024-04-08 Item 4.3 Second Reading & Adoption of Ordinance 24-457
	2024-04-08 Item 4.4 Ratify Purchase with CDW-G for Cyber Security Related Software Subscription
	2024-04-08 Item 4.5 Ratify Agreement with ICU Technologies, Inc. for Camera Surveillance Systems for the Evidence Building, CIP GG 21-13
	2024-04-08 Item 4.6 Ratify Contract with ICU Technologies, Inc. for Phase II of Major City Parks Surveillance, CIP GG 22-35
	2024-04-08 Item 4.7 Approve Agreement with Butler Amusements, Inc. for LPD to Provide Law Enforcement Svcs for Annual Carnival Event
	2024-04-08 Item 4.8 Approve Task Order No. 12 with Goodwin Consulting Group, Inc. for the Citywide CFF Update, CIP GG 22-01
	2024-04-08 Item 4.9 Approve Amendments 3 & 4 with RBI to Provide Add'l Studies & NPDES Permit Compliance Support Svcs, CIP WW 20-17
	2024-04-08 Item 4.10 Approve Agreement with BFK Engineers for East Lathrop Water Main & Lateral Upgrades, CIP PW 24-12
	2024-04-08 Item 4.11 Accept the General Plan Housing Element Annual Progress Report for CY 2023
	2024-04-08 Item 4.12 Accept Public Improvements Associated with EP 22-99 from New Cingular Wireless PCS dba AT&T
	2024-04-08 Item 4.13 Authorize Participation & Allocation of Funding for Regional Early Action Planning Grants
	2024-04-08 Item 4.14 Award Construction Contract to Knife River for Construction of Pavement Rehabilitation, CIP PS 24-29
	2024-04-08 Item 4.15 Create CIP GG 24-33 SCADA Integration & Maintenance & Ratify Agreement with MCC Controls, dba Primex
	2024-04-08 Item 5.1 Public Hearing to Consider Adopting the Lathrop Active Transportation Plan, CIP PS 22-17
	2024-04-08 Item 5.2 Public Hearing to Form Community Facilities District No. 2024-1
	2024-04-08 Item 5.3 Discuss & Consider Options to Install a Fence or Wall on McKee Blvd from R.I. Pkwy to Towne Centre Dr



